
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

1

http://www.sisterbaywi.gov/
mailto:zeke.jackson@sisterbaywi.gov


VILLAGE OF SISTER BAY BOARD OF TRUSTEES MEETING MINUTES 1 

TUESDAY, MAY 17, 2016 2 

SISTER BAY-LIBERTY GROVE FIRE STATION – 2258 MILL ROAD 3 

UNAPPROVED VERSION 4 
 5 
The May 17, 2016 meeting of the Village of Sister Bay Board of Trustees was called to order 6 

by Village President Dave Lienau at 6:04 P.M.   7 

 8 

Present:  President Lienau and Trustees Denise Bhirdo, Pat Duffy, Scott Baker, Kathy 9 

Enquist, John Clove and Nate Bell. 10 

 11 

Staff Members: Village Administrator Zeke Jackson, Finance Director Tasha Rass, Marina 12 

Manager Nicole Krauel and Assistant Administrator Janal Suppanz. 13 

 14 

Others:  Betty Curzon, Kim Erzinger, Sharon Doersching, Ron Kane, Vilius and Alma 15 

Vaicekauskas, Rob Zoschke, Jackson Parr, Judith Ross-Stevenson, and two other individuals. 16 
 17 
Approval of the Agenda and Minutes as published: 18 
A motion was made by Bhirdo, seconded by Duffy that the Agenda for the May 17, 2016 meeting of 19 
the Village of Sister Bay Board of Trustees be approved as presented. Motion carried – All ayes. 20 
 21 
A motion was made by Bhirdo, seconded by Duffy that the minutes for the April 19, 2016 meeting of 22 
the Village Board be approved as presented. Motion carried – All ayes. 23 
 24 
Comments and correspondence: 25 
Lienau noted that correspondence which had been received from Moody’s Investors Service, 26 

a thank you letter from Steve Jacobson for the retirement gift and party, and a support 27 

request from Fred Johnson, the President of the Sister Bay Historical Society, had been 28 

included in the meeting packets. The correspondence which was received from Moody’s  29 

indicates that the Village has an A1 rating.    30 

 31 
Item No. 2. Discussion regarding Resolution No. 331, thanking and recognizing Betty 32 
Curzon for thirty years of service at the Sister Bay-Liberty Grove Library; Consider a 33 
motion for action if appropriate: 34 
Lienau requested that Betty Curzon step forward, and presented her with a plaque on behalf 35 

of the Village Board. He also read Resolution No. 331, which thanks Curzon for her thirty 36 

years of service at the Sister Bay-Liberty Grove Library aloud.  37 
 38 
A motion was made by Lienau, seconded by Baker that the Village passes and adopts Resolution No. 39 
331, thanking and recognizing Betty Curzon for thirty years of service at the Sister Bay-Liberty Grove 40 
Library. Motion carried with Bhirdo abstaining. 41 
 42 
Item No. 1. Discussion regarding Resolution No. 330, thanking and recognizing Nora 43 
Zacek for her service on the Board of Trustees; Consider a motion for action if 44 
appropriate: 45 
Lienau noted that Nora Zacek was unable to attend this meeting, but did read Resolution 46 

No. 330, which thanks Zacek for her service on the Board of Trustees aloud. He also 47 

displayed an engraved clock, and noted that the clock would be presented to Zacek ASAP.   48 

2



Minutes for the May 17, 2016 Meeting of the Village Board 

-2- 

A motion was made by Lienau, seconded by Clove that the Village Board passes and adopts Resolution 1 
No. 330, thanking and recognizing Nora Zacek for her service on the Board of Trustees. Motion 2 
carried – All ayes. 3 
 4 
Item No. 3. Consider a motion to call the Board of Review to order and immediately 5 
adjourn until a noticed meeting which has been scheduled for September 27, 2016: 6 
Pursuant to Wis. Stats., §70.47(1) the Village’s Board of Review must meet during the thirty 7 

day period beginning on the first Monday of May, but this year’s Open Book has been 8 

scheduled for Thursday, September 8, 2016 from 9:00 A.M. to 6:00 P.M., Friday, September 9, 9 

2016 from 8:00 A.M. to 5:00 P.M., and Saturday, September 10, 2016 from 9:00 A.M. to 6:00 10 

P.M. Therefore, the Village Clerk is recommending that the Board of Review be called to 11 

order and immediately adjourned until 6:00 P.M. on September 27, 2016. (Troy Zacharias, the 12 

Village’s Assessor, and Nancy Baux, the Court Reporter the Village retains, will both be 13 
available on that date.) 14 

 15 
At 6:08 P.M. a motion was made by Duffy, seconded by Bell that the Board of Review for the Village 16 
of Sister Bay be called to order and immediately adjourned until 6:00 P.M. on Tuesday, September 27, 17 
2016. Motion carried – All ayes. 18 
 19 
Item No. 4. Discussion on a recommendation from the Finance and Utilities Committees 20 
regarding award of a contract for engineering services with respect to installation of 21 
sanitary, water and storm sewer service on the Braun property; Consider a motion for 22 
action if appropriate: 23 
After a considerable amount of work by the members of the public, the Economic 24 

Development Committee, the Finance Committee, the Plan Commission and the Village 25 

Board, a Plat of Survey has been approved and awaits State approvals for “the Braun 26 

property”. As it stands sanitary, water and storm sewer utilities are not readily accessible on 27 

“the Braun property”, and, therefore engineering work will have to be done to address those 28 

issues. The Utilities Committee has recommended that proposals be solicited from at least 29 

two engineering firms for the required work, and has also recommended that the apparent 30 

low bidder be awarded a contract. During discussion the Board members indicated that they 31 

would prefer to see Agenda Item No. 4 tabled until the proposals are actually received. 32 

 33 
A motion was made by Duffy, seconded by Baker that Agenda Item No. 4 shall be tabled until   34 
proposals for the engineering work which is required with respect to the Braun property are actually 35 
received from the firms who were asked to submit them. Motion carried – All ayes.    36 

 37 
Item No. 7. Discussion regarding an application which was submitted by the owners of 38 
the Sister Bay Inn, (f/k/a the Voyager Inn), for one month pro-rated Class “B” and Class 39 
C” alcoholic beverage licenses: 40 
The owners of the Sister Bay Inn, which was formerly known as the Voyager Inn, plan to 41 

serve pizza in the evenings for their customers and have submitted an application for one 42 

month pro-rated “Class  B” and “Class C” alcoholic beverage licenses. The applicable 43 

documentation and fees have been submitted to the Village Clerk and she has recommended 44 

that the licenses be issued. 45 

 46 
A motion was made by Clove, seconded by Duffy that the Village Board approves of the issuance of a 47 
one month pro-rated Class “B” (On Premise Beer and Wine) License and a Class “C” (Off-Premise 48 

3



Minutes for the May 17, 2016 Meeting of the Village Board 

-3- 

Beer and Wine) License to the owners of the Sister Bay Inn. Motion carried – All ayes.   1 
 2 
Item No. 9. Discussion regarding an application for Class “B” and Class “C” alcoholic 3 
beverage licenses for Roots Inn and Kitchen, which business is located at 2373 Maple 4 
Drive: 5 
The Inn on Maple has been sold, and the new owners are planning to continue to operate a 6 
bed and breakfast but would also like to open a bistro in that building. Therefore, they have 7 

requested that they be granted two month pro-rated Class “B” and Class “C” alcoholic 8 

beverage licenses. The applicable documentation has been submitted to the Village Clerk and 9 

she has recommended that the licenses be issued. 10 

 11 
A motion was made by Bhirdo, seconded by Baker that the Village Board approves of the issuance of a 12 
two month pro-rated Class “B” (On Premise Beer and Wine) License and a Class “C” (Off-Premise 13 
Beer and Wine) License to the owners of Roots Inn and Kitchen at 2378 Maple Drive. Motion carried 14 
– All ayes. 15 
 16 
Item No. 8. Review and discussion regarding the 2015 audit of the Village of Sister Bay’s 17 
financial records; Consider appropriate motions for action: 18 
Rass presented the 2015 audit and explained that this entire document as well as the 19 

Management Letter were presented at the May 10, 2016 Finance Committee Meeting by the 20 
Village’s auditors, Amber Drieieske and Virginia Hinz of Schenck, SC. During the review 21 

process Driewieske noted that the Village’s cash balance has decreased by approximately 22 

$1,500,00 from the prior year. (This reduction can be attributed to the fact that a substantial 23 

amount of work was done on the Bay Shore Drive Reconstruction Project, the Beach Project, 24 

and the Line Burial Project.)  The auditors have recommended that Village officials review 25 

and standardize receipting procedures at the Marina to ensure that receipts are properly 26 

prepared and deposits are made in a timely fashion. They also are recommending that the 27 

Village restructure its Chart of Accounts in such fashion that it coincides with the State’s 28 

Uniform Chart of Accounts for Municipalities. Both of these issues have already been 29 

addressed and work is ongoing on them. There was one audit finding this year – The 30 

financial statements are prepared by the auditors rather than by Village staff members. This 31 
finding is typical of small municipalities which do not have Certified Public Accountants on 32 

staff. GASB rules do require that the Village must have someone on staff who is qualified to 33 

perform a thorough review of the draft statements, and that requirement has been satisfied. 34 

 35 
A motion was made by Duffy, seconded by Bhirdo that the Village Board accepts the recommendation 36 
of the Finance Committee and accepts the 2015 audit for the Village of Sister Bay as presented. Motion 37 
carried – All ayes. 38 
 39 
Item No. 5. Presentation and discussion on goal setting, CIP priorities and policy 40 
objectives, and open discussion regarding those issues; Consider a motion for action if 41 
appropriate: 42 
Jackson noted that he tallied the data contained on the survey sheets which had been 43 

received from the Board members, and all that data had been included in the meeting 44 
packets. The top three CIP projects were Street Resurfacing, Bay Shore Drive Storm Water 45 

Work, and Downtown Redevelopment.  Eventually the data will be presented to the Finance 46 

Committee for consideration when work is done on the CIP. Discussion took place regarding 47 

“the next step” in the goal setting process, and it was the consensus that since this could be a 48 

4



Minutes for the May 17, 2016 Meeting of the Village Board 

-4- 

complex task a special Board Meeting(s) shall be conducted. The main topic of discussion at 1 

the first meeting will be property sales. 2 

 3 

Clove noted that the Marina Committee has recommended that the Village Board approve of 4 

the installation of a fuel dock at the Sister Bay Marina and place such an expenditure at the 5 

top of the Marina’s CIP for 2017. He then made a presentation regarding this issue, and 6 
during the course of that presentation explained that the mission statement for the Sister Bay 7 

Marina is to become Northern Door’s “premier waterfront destination”. Clove believes the 8 

Marina is the only real revenue source the Village has. Boaters are “captive” and do spend 9 

money when they are here, and, therefore, they help pay for future development without 10 

taxing residents. The Village has 40 transient slips and can accommodate boats which are up 11 

to 80’ in length. In order to become a “destination marina” marketing and advertising must 12 

be done. Updated showers and Marina facilities are also needed. Work is currently being 13 

done on marketing and advertising, and the Village’s marina facilities and showers have 14 

already been updated, but fuel docks are still needed as transient boaters definitely desire 15 

that amenity. Data was presented regarding estimated fuel consumption by the average 16 

boater, and Clove indicated that he does not believe it makes any sense to turn potential 17 

customers away. The anticipated expenditure for a state-of-the-art pressurized fuel dock is 18 
approximately $250,000.00, and a revenue note would initially be required. Total estimated 19 

fuel use at the Sister Bay Marina @ a $1.00 per gallon profit margin could yield a return on 20 

investment in as little as 3 years. The Fish Creek and Egg Harbor Municipal Docks do sell 21 

fuel, but their fuel sales are limited because of draft and tank capacity issues. Therefore, very 22 

few transient boaters obtain fuel at those marinas. There is a perception that local gas stations 23 

will lose sales if the Village has a fuel dock, but  people who trailer their boats will not be 24 

likely to purchase gas at a fuel dock anyhow as the per gallon prices are considerably higher 25 

at a fuel dock than at a gas station. There probably will be complaints that the fuel dock 26 

would be too close to the beach and there is potential for environmental issues to arise, but if 27 

such an amenity were to be installed very stringent controls and regulations would have to 28 

be complied with. “A” and “B” Dock are in need of repair, and floating piers are needed on 29 
both of those docks as well as on “D” Dock and “J” Dock. A bulkhead is also needed on “J’ 30 

Dock, and additional upgrades could be made to the Marina Building. It is Clove’s 31 

contention that fuel dock proceeds would fund all of those repairs/improvements. 32 

 33 
Lienau noted that a special meeting(s) will be conducted regarding goal setting and CIP priorities, and 34 
informed Clove that his presentation regarding the fuel dock would have to be suspended until such 35 
time as it has been properly noticed on an Agenda.   36 

 37 
Item No. 6. Discussion regarding amendment of the Sister Bay Board of Trustees By-Laws, 38 
as well as the Sister Bay Committee and Commission By-Laws; Consider appropriate 39 
motions for action: 40 
The current versions of the Board of Trustee By-Laws and the Committee and Commission 41 

By-Laws were included in the meeting packets, and those documents were jointly reviewed 42 

by the Board members. It was eventually the consensus that: 43 

   Provision Number 21 of the Board By-Laws should be revised in such fashion 44 
that it states that anyone who participates in a Village meeting by electronic 45 

means must be visible to meeting attendees. (An Attorney General’s Opinion 46 

was recently issued which mandates such activities.) 47 

   The makeup of the Marina Fest Committee will be revised in such fashion that 48 

5



Minutes for the May 17, 2016 Meeting of the Village Board 

-5- 

there shall be  “1 Trustee, 1 citizen  and 1 member of the Marina Committee” 1 

on that Committee. There will no longer be Co-Chairs. 2 

   The Bay Shore Drive Oversight Committee will be dissolved as all their 3 
assigned tasks have now been completed.  4 

   The ex-officio Plan Commission member with recognized experience and 5 
qualifications related to planning and development will be allowed to vote. 6 

   The Waterfront Oversight Committee will be dissolved as all their assigned 7 
tasks have now been completed. 8 

 9 
Bhirdo noted that the citizen members of the Waterfront Oversight Committee were not compensated 10 
for any of the meetings they attended, and Lienau requested that Rass see that those individuals are 11 
paid for their services ASAP. 12 
 13 

     The Village President is an ex-officio member of all Committees anyhow, and 14 
if quorum issues arise he or she will be allowed to participate as a voting 15 

member of any meetings he or she is asked to attend. 16 

 17 

Bhirdo explained that after she was sworn in as a Board member she requested a paper copy 18 

of the Board packet, and was informed that the Village Board had determined that all Board, 19 

Committee and Commission members should utilize digital meeting packets. To her 20 

knowledge this policy was never formally approved or included in the By-Laws. For a 21 
variety of reasons digital meeting packets simply don’t work for her. She would be willing 22 

to reimburse the Village for the cost of copies on a per-page “cost” basis, or would be 23 

willing to go to the Administration Office to print hard copies for herself. It was eventually 24 

the consensus that meeting packets will continue to be distributed via electronic means, but 25 

if a Board member(s) request(s) paper copies those documents shall be provided to them at 26 

cost. 27 

 28 

    In accord with earlier Board consensus a provision will be added to the By-29 
Laws which states that digital meeting packets will be distributed to all 30 

Board, Commission and Committee members in a timely fashion, and all of 31 

the Board and Plan Commission members will be provided a Village-owned 32 

tablet to view those packets on. If a Board member(s) request(s) paper copies 33 
those documents will be provided to them at cost.  34 

 35 
Jackson was asked to see that the previously mentioned revisions are made to the Board and 36 
Committee/Commission By-Laws, and the revised documents will be reviewed at a future meeting of 37 
the Village Board. 38 
 39 
At 8:20 P.M. a brief recess was taken and the Board reconvened at 8:31 P.M. 40 
 41 
Item No. 10. Consider a motion to discuss and confirm President Lienau’s 42 
Committee/Commission appointments: 43 
Lienau distributed a document on which his proposed annual Committee appointments 44 

were listed, and a copy of that document is hereby attached and incorporated by reference. 45 

Enquist and Baker were asked if either of them would be willing to serve on the Historical 46 

Society Board of Directors, and Baker volunteered. Bhirdo indicated that she would rather 47 

not serve as Chair of the Administration and Compensation Oversight Committee, and 48 

6



Minutes for the May 17, 2016 Meeting of the Village Board 

-6- 

Duffy was then appointed Chair of that Committee. Duffy was also appointed Chair of the 1 

Marina Fest Committee. 2 

 3 
A motion was made by Bell, seconded by Clove that all of the Committee/Commission appointments 4 
which were recommended by President Lienau and reviewed at this meeting are approved as amended. 5 
Motion carried – All ayes. 6 
 7 
Item No. 11. Report on County activities from the County Supervisor Dave Lienau: 8 
Lienau noted that he didn’t have anything new to report as the County Board won’t be 9 

meeting until next week.  10 

 11 
Item No. 12. Review of the financial statements and consideration of a motion to approve 12 
the monthly bills: 13 
Payment Approval Reports for the period April 19, 2016 through May 16, 2016 were 14 

included in the meeting packets, and the Board members jointly reviewed those documents. 15 
 16 
A motion was made by Lienau, seconded by Baker that the monthly bills depicted on the reports which 17 
were included in the meeting packets totaling $223,247.17 are all approved. Motion carried – All ayes. 18 
 19 
Item No. 13. Report by the Village Administrator on Village activities and projects: 20 
Jackson gave the following oral report: 21 

 Work is substantially completed on the Bay Shore Drive Project. 22 
 23 
Committee Reports: 24 
(1) Administrative Committee: 25 
          The Administrative Committee met and formulated the previously mentioned 26 

Committee/Commission assignments. 27 
 28 

(2) Bay Shore Drive Reconstruction Oversight Ad Hoc Committee: 29 
The Bay Shore Drive Reconstruction Oversight Ad Hoc Committee has not met 30 

recently and will be dissolved. 31 

 32 
(3) Communication and Technology Committee: 33 
           The Communication and Technology Committee has not met recently. 34 

 35 
(4)  Door County Coastal Byways Commission: 36 
 The Door County Coastal Byways Commission will be meeting tomorrow.  37 
 38 
(5)  DCEDC: 39 

 Baker was unable to attend the last DCEDC Meeting. 40 
 41 
(6)  Economic Development Committee: 42 
 The Economic Development Committee has not met recently. 43 
 44 
(7)  Finance Committee: 45 
 No action based on the minutes which were included in the meeting packets. 46 
 47 
 48 

7



Minutes for the May 17, 2016 Meeting of the Village Board 

-7- 

(8)  Fire Board and Fire District Exploratory Committee: 1 
 The Fire Board and the Fire District Exploratory Committees have not met recently. 2 
 3 
(9)  Historical Society: 4 
 Since Zacek was not present no Historical Society report was given. Work is ongoing 5 

on gearing up for the upcoming season at The Corner of the Past. 6 
 7 
(10)  Library Commission: 8 
 No action based on the Library Commission Meeting Minutes which were included in 9 

the meeting packets. Use of the Library and Library services has increased.  10 
 11 
(11)  Marina Committee and Marina Fest Committee: 12 

No action based on the Marina and Marina Fest Committee Meeting Minutes which 13 

were included in the meeting packets. 14 

 15 
(12)  Parks: 16 
 No action based on the minutes which were included in the meeting packets.  17 
 18 
(13)  Personnel Committee: 19 
 The Personnel Committee has not met recently. 20 
 21 
(14)  Plan Commission: 22 
 The Plan Commission will be meeting next week. 23 

 24 
(16)  SBAA: 25 
 No action based on the minutes which were included in the meeting packets.  26 
 27 
(17)  Teen Center: 28 
 The Teen Center, which is now known as the Youth Center, is once again open on 29 

Saturday nights and things are going quite well. There is a definite need for 30 

chaperones. If anyone is interested in helping out they should contact Enquist or 31 

Shannon Jungwirth. 32 

  33 
(18)  Tourism Zone Commission: 34 
  Since Zacek was not present no report was given. 35 
 36 
(19)  Utilities – Water, Sewer, and Storm Sewer Committees: 37 
 The Utilities – Water, Sewer and Storm Sewer Committees met this morning. 38 
 39 
(20)  Administration/Compensation Oversight: 40 
 The Administration/Compensation Oversight Committee has not met recently. 41 
 42 
(21)  Waterfront Oversight 43 
 No action based on the minutes which were included in the meeting packets. 44 

 45 
At 9:14 P.M. another brief recess was taken and the Board members reconvened at 9:24 P.M. 46 
 47 
 48 

8



Minutes for the May 17, 2016 Meeting of the Village Board 

 

-8- 

Item No. 14. Consider a motion to convene into executive session pursuant to Wis. Stats., 1 
§19.85(1)(e) to deliberate or negotiate the purchase of public properties, the investment of 2 
public funds, or conduct other specified public business, whenever competitive or 3 
bargaining reasons require a closed session, and §19.85(1)(g) to confer with legal counsel 4 
for the governmental body who is rendering oral or written advice concerning strategy to 5 
be adopted by the body with respect to litigation in which it is or is likely to become 6 
involved: 7 
At 9:16 P.M. a motion was made by Lienau, seconded by Baker that the Village Board convene into 8 
executive session pursuant to Wis. Stats., §19.85(1)(e) to deliberate or negotiate the purchase of public 9 
properties, the investment of public funds, or conduct other specified public business, whenever 10 
competitive or bargaining reasons require a closed session, and §19.85(1)(g) to confer with legal 11 
counsel for the governmental body who is rendering oral or written advice concerning strategy to be 12 
adopted by the body with respect to litigation in which it is or is likely to become involved. A roll call 13 
vote was taken on that motion and the Board members voted in the following fashion: 14 
 15 
     Baker – Aye; Bell – Aye; Bhirdo – Aye; Clove – Aye; Duffy – Aye; Enquist – Aye; Lienau – Aye 16 
 17 
Motion carried. 18 
 19 
Item No. 15. Consider a motion to reconvene into open session: 20 
At 9:54 P.M. a motion was made by Lienau, seconded by  that the Village Board reconvene into open 21 
session. Another roll call vote was taken, and the Board members again voted in the following fashion: 22 
 23 
    Baker – Aye; Bell – Aye; Bhirdo – Aye; Clove – Aye; Duffy – Aye; Enquist – Aye; Lienau – Aye 24 
 25 
Motion carried. 26 
 27 
Item No. 16. Consider a motion to take action, if required: 28 
A motion was made by Bhirdo, seconded by Baker that staff is directed to take the action which was 29 
suggested by legal counsel. Motion carried – All ayes. 30 
 31 
17. Discussion regarding matters to be placed on a future agenda or referred to a 32 
committee, official or employee: 33 
It was the consensus that: 34 

    The Historical Society’s funding request shall be referred to the Finance Committee. 35 
 36 
It was also the consensus that the following issues shall be addressed at a future meeting(s) of the 37 
Village Board: 38 

   Discussion on a recommendation from the Finance and Utilities Committees regarding award 39 
of a contract for engineering services related to sanitary, water and storm sewer service on the 40 
Braun  property; Consider a motion for action if appropriate. 41 

    Discussion regarding amendment of the Sister Bay Board of Trustees By-Laws and the Sister 42 
Bay Committee and Commission By-Laws; Consider appropriate motions for action. 43 

   The Board of Review for the Village of Sister Bay will be adjourned until 6:00 P.M. on 44 
Tuesday, September 27, 2016. 45 

  Discussion on goal setting, CIP priorities and policy objectives, and open discussion regarding 46 
those issues; Consider a motion for action if appropriate, will be addressed at a Special Board 47 
Meeting(s). (At one of those meetings the Marina Committee’s recommendation that the 48 
Village Board approve of the installation of a fuel dock at the Sister Bay Marina and place such 49 

9



Minutes for the May 17, 2016 Meeting of the Village Board 

I:\1. 2016 Agendas\Board\2016_05\word docs\051716 Village Board Meeting Minutes - Unapproved 
Version.docx 
Created by Janal Suppanz on 03/04/2015; Last Printed: 5/18/2016 4:15 PM 

-9- 

an expenditure at the top of the Marina’s CIP for 2017 will be formally addressed.) 1 
 2 
Adjournment: 3 
A motion was made by Bhirdo, seconded by Baker to adjourn the meeting of the Board of Trustees at 4 
10:02 P.M. Motion carried – All ayes. 5 
 6 
Respectfully submitted,  7 

 8 
Janal Suppanz, 9 

Assistant Administrator  10 

 11 

 12 

 13 

 14 

 15 

 16 

 17 

 18 
 19 

 20 

 21 

 22 
23 
24 

10



MINUTES FOR THE MAY 31, 2016 SPECIAL MEETING OF THE   1 

VILLAGE OF SISTER BAY BOARD OF TRUSTEES  2 

SISTER BAY-LIBERTY GROVE FIRE STATION – 2258 MILL ROAD 3 

UNAPPROVED VERSION 4 
 5 
The May 31, 2016 special meeting of the Village of Sister Bay Board of Trustees was called to 6 

order by Village President Dave Lienau at 4:57 P.M.   7 

 8 

Present:  President Lienau and Trustees Denise Bhirdo, Scott Baker, Kathy Enquist, John 9 

Clove and Nate Bell. 10 
 11 

Excused:  Pat Duffy 12 

 13 

Staff Members: Village Administrator Zeke Jackson, Finance Director Tasha Rass, and 14 

Assistant Administrator Janal Suppanz. 15 

 16 
Approval of the Agenda and Minutes as published: 17 
A motion was made by Baker, seconded by Enquist that the Agenda for the May 31, 2016 meeting of 18 
the Village of Sister Bay Board of Trustees be approved as presented. Motion carried – All ayes. 19 
 20 

No minutes were presented. 21 
 22 
Comments and correspondence: 23 
Lienau noted that no new correspondence had been received, and then asked if anyone 24 

wished to comment regarding a non-agenda item. No one responded.  25 

 26 
Item No. 1. Consider a motion to convene into executive session pursuant to Wis. Stats., 27 
§19.85(1)(e) to deliberate or negotiate the purchase of public properties, the investment of 28 
public funds, or conduct other specified public business, whenever competitive or bargaining 29 
reasons require a closed session: 30 
At 5:01 P.M. a motion was made by Eqnuist, seconded by Baker that the Village Board convene 31 
into executive session pursuant to Wis. Stats., §19.85(1)(e) to deliberate or negotiate the 32 
purchase of public properties, the investment of public funds, or conduct other specified public 33 
business, whenever competitive or bargaining reasons require a closed session. A roll call vote 34 
was taken on that motion, and the Board members voted in the following fashion: 35 
 36 
Baker – Aye; Bell – Aye;  Bhirdo – Aye; Clove – Aye; Duffy – Aye; Enquist – Aye; Lienau – Aye. 37 
 38 
Motion carried.  39 
 40 
Item No. 2. Consider a motion to reconvene into open session: 41 
At 6:06 P.M. a motion was made by Baker, seconded by Enquist that the Village Board 42 
reconvene into open session. Another roll call vote was taken, and the Board members again 43 
voted in the following fashion: 44 
 45 
 Baker – Aye; Bell – Aye;  Bhirdo – Aye; Clove – Aye; Duffy – Aye; Enquist – Aye; Lienau – Aye. 46 
 47 
Motion carried.  48 

11



Minutes for the May 31, 2016 Special Meeting of the Board of Trustees 

I:\1. 2016 Agendas\Board\2016_05\053116 Special Board\word\053116 Village Board Meeting Minutes - 

Unapproved Version.docx 
Created by Janal Suppanz on 03/04/2015; Last Printed: 6/15/2016 3:06 PM 

-2- 

Item No. 3. Consider a motion to take action, if required: 1 
A motion was made by Clove, seconded by Baker that Village staff members shall take the 2 
actions which were discussed in closed session at this meeting. Motion carried – All ayes.   3 
 4 
Item No. 4. Reaffirmation of the minutes of the February 16, 2016 meeting of the Village 5 
Board, and adoption of Resolution No. 332-053116 approving a loan in the amount of 6 
$590,000 from the Bank of Luxemburg for TIF financing of the Stony Ridge Project: 7 
The closing on the Stony Ridge Project took place last week. The Bank of Luxemburg is 8 
requiring that a Resolution which approves the loan in the amount of $590,000.00 be passed 9 
and adopted by the Village Board. 10 
 11 
A motion was made by Clove, seconded by Bell that the Village Board passes and adopts 12 
Resolution No. 332, approving a loan in the amount of $590,000 from the Bank of Luxemburg 13 
for TIF financing of the Stony Ridge Project. Motion carried – All ayes. 14 
 15 
Discussion regarding matters to be placed on a future agenda or referred to a committee, 16 
official or employee: 17 
There were no matters to be placed on a future agenda or referred to a committee, official or 18 
employee. 19 
 20 
Adjournment: 21 
A motion was made by Baker, seconded by Enquist to adjourn the meeting of the Board of 22 
Trustees at 6:14 P.M. Motion carried – All ayes. 23 
 24 
Respectfully submitted,  25 

 26 
Janal Suppanz, 27 
Assistant Administrator  28 

29 
30 
31 
32 
33 
34 
35 
36 
37 
38 
39 
40 
41 
42 

12



Village of Sister Bay 
BOARD REPORT 

 
            Meeting Date 06/21/2016 
            Item No.: 1 
 
Recommendation:  
That the Village Board adopt Resolution 333-062116, Adoption of the Door County Hazard Mitigation 
Plan.   
 
Background:  Beginning in the 1960’s with the Federal Flood Insurance program, emergency management 
has emerged as a “marbled cake” of collaborative planning and intervention by Federal, State and Local 
Government entities.  The foundation of this system is built upon the idea that hazards to life and property 
should be mitigated through sound infrastructure, adequate response resources and long term abatement 
(planning and zoning ordinances).   
 
The first step in dealing with a hazard is to identify it, and to plan on how we might deal with it.  The Door 
County Hazard Mitigation Plan identifies hazards throughout the County, and gives communities a tool by 
which we can begin to address acute and chronic hazards. 
 
Fiscal Impact: None at this time; enables the County and Village to apply for hazard mitigation grants from 
the Federal and State Government, if applicable. 
 
       Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
       Zeke Jackson 
       Village Administrator 
 
 
 
 
 
 

13



     №

 

INTRODUCED at a regular meeting of the Board of Trustees of the Village of Sister Bay held this 21st day of  
June, 2016. 
 
Passed and adopted this 21st day of June, 2016. 
 
          _____________________________________ 
          David W. Lienau, Village President 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
__________________________________     VOTE: Ayes _____ Noes _____ 
Christy Sully, Village Clerk 
 

14



 
 
 
 
 

Door County Hazard Mitigation Plan 
 

Adopted by the Door County Board of Supervisors on __________, 2016 
 

Door County Planning Department 
 

Door County Government Center 
 

421 Nebraska Street 
 

Sturgeon Bay, WI 54235 
 

Phone: (920) 746-2323 
 

FAX: (920) 746-2387 
 

Web site: http://map.co.door.wi.us/planning/ 
 
 
 

DRAFT SUBMITTED TO WISCONSIN EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT 
 

May 25, 2016 
  

15

http://map.co.door.wi.us/planning/


 
TABLE OF CONTENTS 
 
 

CHAPTER 1: INTRODUCTION……………………………………………………………… 1 

CHAPTER 2: RISK ASSESSMENT………………………………………………………… 8 

CHAPTER 3: MITIGATION STRATEGIES AND PLAN MAINTENANCE…..………... 45 

APPENDIX A: PLANNING PROCESS DOCUMENTS…...……....……………………….. 59 

APPENDIX B: MUNICIPAL MEMORANDA OF AGREEMENT.………………………… 84 

APPENDIX C: SUMMARY OF CAPABILITIES.....………………………………………… 92 
 

APPENDIX D: MAPS…………………………………………………………………………. 100 

 
 

16



 
 
 
 
 
 
Door County Hazard Mitigation Plan 
Chapter 1: Introduction 
  

17



In 2000, the U.S. Congress passed the Disaster Mitigation Act, intended to reduce public and private 
expenses associated with disasters and to speed up response time to and reduce recovery time from 
disasters.  The purpose of this act, and the Door County Hazard Mitigation Plan, is “to reduce the loss of 

life and property, human suffering, economic disruption, and disaster assistance costs resulting from 
natural disasters.”  An additional purpose of the Door County Hazard Mitigation Plan is to address similar 
issues resulting from non-natural disasters.   
 
The Disaster Mitigation Act included a new requirement for local governments to prepare hazard mitigation 
plans in order to be eligible for funding from the Federal Emergency Management Administration (FEMA) 
for mitigation activities, both pre- and post-natural disaster, through the Pre-Disaster Mitigation Assistance 
Program and the Hazard Mitigation Grant Program.  Addressing manmade/technological hazards is 
encouraged, but not required.  Without a FEMA-approved and adopted plan, governments cannot utilize 
funding through the Pre-Disaster Mitigation Grant Program.  In order for a local government without a 
FEMA-approved and adopted plan to be eligible to receive funding through the Hazard Mitigation Grant 
Program, they would have to agree to prepare a hazard mitigation plan within one year after a disaster 
occurs.   
 
In 2014, the Door County Planning and Emergency Services Departments partnered to develop the Door 
County Hazard Mitigation Plan in compliance with FEMA requirements and as a multi-jurisdictional plan.  
The county’s five incorporated municipalities (City of Sturgeon Bay and Villages of Egg Harbor, Ephraim, 
Forestville, and Sister Bay) agreed to participate in the development of this plan, as well as other county 
departments and outside agencies with an interest in disaster management.  Representatives from these 
agencies, departments, and municipalities formed the Planning Team that guided the development of this 
plan, a list of which is provided later in this chapter.     
 
PLANNING PROCESS 
Note:  The grant approval letter, press releases, requests for input, meeting agendas and minutes 
described below can be found in Appendix A.    
 
In June of 2014, FEMA approved a grant application from Door County in the amount of $33,000 for the 
development of a county hazard mitigation plan.  FEMA provided 75% ($24,750), Wisconsin Emergency 
Management provided 12.5% ($4,125), and Door County provided the remaining 12.5% ($4,125).  The 
grant timeframe began on June 10, 2014 and ends on June 10, 2017.  The draft plan was due to FEMA by 
January 31, 2016, with the final plan to be completed and approved by FEMA on or before July 31, 2016.   
 
The Door County Hazard Mitigation Plan was developed following guidelines in the “Local Mitigation 
Planning Handbook” published by FEMA.  The handbook covers Title 44 Code of Federal Regulations 
§201.6 for FEMA approval and eligibility to apply for FEMA hazard mitigation assistance programs.  Listed 
below is a timeline and description of the steps taken to develop the Plan. 
 

 Grant Application Approved (June 10, 2014).  A letter from FEMA to Wisconsin Emergency 
Management was sent, approving the application for a Local Multi-Jurisdictional Hazard Mitigation 
Plan.   

 Pre-Planning Meetings 
o Meeting with Planning and Emergency Services Department to discuss scope of services to 

be provided by the Planning Department (June 26, 2014).   
o Meeting with Planning and Emergency Services Departments to plan kick-off meeting (July 

10, 2014). 
o Meeting with Planning and Emergency Services Departments to discuss planning process 

outline (August 13, 2014). 
  

18



 Planning Team Press Release and Meetings 

o Kick-Off meeting (September 30, 2014).  An invitation to attend a Planning Team kick-off 
meeting was sent to county departments, incorporated municipalities, and other agencies 
with an interest in hazard mitigation planning on August 20th, 2014.  At the meeting, 
Planning Team participants reviewed the hazard mitigation plan development process, 
responsibilities, and timeline.  Participants also reviewed the Memorandum of Agreement 
and the “capabilities” worksheet. 

o Press Release (December 12, 2014).  A press release was sent to local media contacts 
announcing the hazard mitigation planning process.   

o Planning Team Meeting (January 29, 2014).  Planning Department staff members 
presented research on natural hazards, discussed local capabilities worksheet, and handed 
out base maps and instructions for asset/infrastructure identification. 

o Planning Team Meeting (April 28, 2015).  Planning Department staff members presented 
research on non-natural hazards, discussed DNR redevelopment and remediation 
information, and discussed asset/infrastructure and hazardous materials/sites maps. 

 Input Requests 
o Draft Risk Assessment Chapter (July 8, 2015).  Planning Department staff members 

emailed the Planning Team notice that the draft risk assessment chapter was posted to the 
Planning Department’s Web site for their review.  Comments requested by July 31st. 

o Draft Mitigation Strategies Chapter (July 29, 2015). Planning Department staff members 
emailed the Planning Team notice that the draft mitigation strategies chapter was posted to 
the Planning Department’s Web site for their review.  Comments requested by August 14th. 

o Draft Risk Assessment and Mitigation Strategies Chapters (August 14, 2015).  Planning 
Department staff members sent an email reminding the Planning Team to submit comments 
regarding the draft risk assessment and mitigation strategies chapters.  Comments 
requested by August 18th.     

 Open House Meetings (September 21st, 28th, and 29th).  Planning Department staff members 
issued/sent a press release/invitation on August 19th, 2015 regarding open house meetings being 
hosted by the Planning and Emergency Management Services Departments in late September to 
review the draft risk assessment and mitigation strategies chapters.  Three open house meetings 
were held in Northern Door, Southern Door, and the City at which the draft risk assessment and 
mitigation strategies chapters were presented and input was gathered from meeting participants.  
Note that the meeting minutes in Appendix A list the input received and what the Planning 
Department did with the input. 

 Input Request (November 2015).  Planning Department staff members issued a press release and 
emailed the Planning Team, local and regional agencies involved in hazard mitigation activities, 
agencies that have the authority to regulate development, and neighboring communities regarding a 
final opportunity to review and comment on the draft plan prior to submittal to FEMA.  The email 
described where to view the draft chapters on-line and how to offer input in writing by faxing, 
emailing, or mailing the Planning Department.  Comments requested by November 25th, 2015.   

 Plan Submittal to Wisconsin Emergency Management (January 12th and March 17th, 2016).  
Planning Department staff members submitted the final plan draft to Wisconsin Emergency 
Management for their review and comment.  

 Municipal Adoption Request (2016).  Planning Department staff members emailed incorporated 
municipalities the conditionally approved plan along with a request for official adoption by the 
municipality.   

 Approval/Adoption by Door County Resource Planning Committee/Board of Supervisors 
(2016).  The Resource Planning Committee voted to approve recommendation of the plan by the 

19



Door County Board of Supervisors on __________.  The Door County Board of Supervisors 
adopted the plan on __________.    
 

PLANNING TEAM 
 
The following Door County departments, municipalities, and agencies were invited to participate on the 
Planning Team: 

 Door County Departments 
o Administrator – Maureen Murphy, Administrator (since resigned) 
o Airport – Keith Kasbohm, Director 
o Building and Grounds – Wayne Spritka, Director 
o Emergency Management Services – Dan Williams, Director, and Anthony Luchini, Deputy 

Director (since resigned) 
o Highway – John Kolodziej, Director 
o Human Services – Joe Krebsbach, Director 
o Land Information Office – Tom Haight, Land Information Officer 
o Parks – Erik Aleson, Parks Director 
o Planning – Mariah Goode, Director, and Becky Kerwin, Planner 
o Public Health – Rhonda Kolberg, Director 
o Sanitarian – John Teichtler, Director 
o Sheriff’s – Steve Delarwelle, Sheriff  

 
 Municipalities 

o City of Sturgeon Bay, Mayor and Administrator – Thad Birmingham, Mayor, and Steve McNeil, 
Administrator (since resigned) 

o City of Sturgeon Bay, Community Development – Marty Olejniczak, Director  
o Village of Forestville, President and Administrator – Terry McNulty, President, and Mary Ann 

Salmon, Clerk 
o Village of Egg Harbor, President and Administrator – Joe Smith, President, and Lynn 

Ohnesorge, Clerk-Treasurer 
o Village of Ephraim, President and Administrator – Mike McCutcheon, President and Charity 

Buhr, Clerk (since resigned).  Also, Andrea Collak, Clerk, and Brent Bristol, Zoning 
Administrator  

o Village of Sister Bay, President and Administrator – Dave Lienau, President, and Zeke Jackson, 
Administrator  
 

 Other agencies 
o U.S. Coast Guard – John Sehn, Senior Chief 
o Wisconsin Public Service – Larry Schlies, General Manager 
o American Red Cross – Travis Waack, Regional Director 
o Ministry Door County Medical Center – Steve Schwenke, Safety Manager (since resigned) 

 
  

20



PARTICIPATING JURISDICTIONS  

Door County and all incorporated municipalities participated in the development of the hazard mitigation 
plan.  Agreement by the municipalities to participate was formalized with a signed Memoranda of 
Agreement that outlined specific responsibilities, as listed below.  The complete Memorandum of 
Agreement signed by Door County and the signature page of the municipal Memoranda of Agreement can 
be found in Appendix B.  Also provided below is a description of each municipality’s specific participation.    

 Develop/approve the Schedule of Tasks with the Planning Team. 
 Attend regular meetings of the Planning Team and any applicable sub-county meetings. 
 Assist the Planning Team with developing and conducting an outreach strategy to involve other 

stakeholders and the public in order to appropriately represent the Jurisdiction. 
 Provide data and feedback to develop the risk assessment and mitigation strategy, including a 

specific mitigation action plan for the Jurisdiction. 
 Submit drafts of plan to the Jurisdiction for review. 
 Work with the Planning Team to incorporate Jurisdiction comments into the draft plan. 
 Submit the draft plan to their respective governing body for consideration and adoption. 
 After adoption, coordinate a process to monitor, evaluate, and work toward plan implementation. 

 
Municipal Participation 
Note that all of the municipalities filled out a capabilities worksheet and provided input in writing and/or at 
one of the open house meetings.  A summary of the capabilities worksheets can be found in Appendix C.   
 
Door County  
Memorandum of Agreement: Dan Williams, Emergency Services Director Emergency Services 
Meeting Participant(s): Dan Williams, Director; Tony Luchini, Deputy Director (since resigned) 
Meeting(s) attended:  

 Planning Team Meetings – September 30th, 2014; January 29th, 2015; and April 28th, 2015  
 Open house meetings – September 21st, 28th, and 29th, 2015 

 
City of Sturgeon Bay  
Memorandum of Agreement: Thad Birmingham, Mayor 
Meeting Participants: Marty Olejnizak, Administrator 
Meetings attended:  

 Planning Team Meetings – September 30th, 2014; January 29th, 2015; and April 28th, 2015  
 Open house meeting – September 28th, 2015 

 
Village of Egg Harbor  
Memorandum of Agreement: Joe Smith, President  
Meeting Participants: Josh Van Lieshout, Administrator (since resigned); Michelle Anderson, Deputy 
Administrator/Deputy Clerk/Deputy Treasurer 
Meetings attended:  

 Planning Team Meeting – September 30th, 2014  
 Open house meeting – September 29th, 2015 

 
Village of Ephraim 
Memorandum of Agreement: Mike McCutcheon, President  
Meeting Participants: Charity Buhr, Administrator (since resigned); Brent Bristol, Zoning Administrator; 
Jane Olson, Trustee 
Meetings attended:  

 Planning Team Meeting – September 30th, 2014  
 Open house meeting – September 29th, 2015 

 
  

21



Village of Forestville 
Memorandum of Agreement: Terry McNulty, President 
Meeting Participants: Terry McNulty, President 
Meetings attended:  

 Planning Team Meeting – September 30th, 2014  
 Open house meeting – September 29th, 2015 

 
Village of Sister Bay 
Memorandum of Agreement: Zeke Jackson, Administrator 
Meeting Participants: Zeke Jackson, Administrator; Patrick Johnson, Operator; Michael Schell, Operations 
Supervisor 
Meeting attended: Open house meeting – September 29th, 2015 
 
STAKEHOLDER AND PUBLIC INVOLVEMENT 
 
Three press releases/invitations were issued over the course of the planning process, as described 
previously and in more detail below: 

 Press Release (December 12, 2014).  A press release was sent to local media contacts 
announcing the hazard mitigation planning process and how to get involved.   

 Press Release/Invitation to Open House Meetings (August 19, 2015).   

o A press release regarding the open house meetings scheduled for late September was 
emailed to local media contacts and the Planning Team.   

o An invitation to attend the open house meetings was mailed to local and regional agencies 
involved in hazard mitigation activities, agencies that have the authority to regulate 
development, and neighboring communities.   

o The press release and invitation described the open house meetings as an opportunity to 
review the draft risk assessment and mitigation strategies chapters and offer input.   

o The press release and invitation described where to view the draft chapters on-line and how 
to offer input in writing by faxing, emailing, or mailing the Planning Department.   

 Press Release/Input Request (December 2015).  A press release regarding a final draft of the 
plan was emailed to local media contacts, the Planning Team, local and regional agencies involved 
in hazard mitigation activities, agencies that have the authority to regulate development, and 
neighboring communities.  The press release described where to view the draft chapters on-line 
and how to offer input in writing by faxing, emailing, or mailing the Planning Department.   
 

REVIEW AND INCORPORATION OF OTHER DOCUMENTS 
 
The following plans, studies, reports, and technical information were reviewed and incorporated into the 
Door County Hazard Mitigation Plan: 

 Natural hazard profiles:  
o Discovery Report, Great Lakes Coastal Flood Study, Lake Michigan, Basin-Wide Report, 

Report Number 01, February 2013; Appendix F, Kewaunee, Door, and Brown Counties, WI, 
Discovery Report 

o State of Wisconsin Hazard Mitigation Plan, Wisconsin Emergency Management, 
Department of Military Affairs, October 2011 

o National Oceanic Atmospheric Administration (NOAA), Storm Events Database and 
additional drought information from the “Climate at a Glance” Web page.   

 Communicable diseases: Center for Disease Control and Prevention  

22



 Roadway accidents: Wisconsin Department of Transportation 

 Private water supply contamination, hazardous materials on roadways, and hazardous materials on 
waterways: DNR Bureau of Remediation and Redevelopment 

 Groundwater Concern Areas: Door County Greenprint modeling tool 
 

Additionally, county profile information can be found in the Door County Comprehensive and Farmland 
Preservation Plan 2035 – Volume II, including the following topics: 

 Geographical Description of the County 
 Population and Demographics 
 Historical and Cultural Resources 
 Housing 
 Economic Development 
 Natural Resources 
 Agricultural Resources 
 Transportation 
 Community Facilities and Utilities 
 Land Use 
 Intergovernmental Cooperation 

 
PLAN ORGANIZATION 
 
The Door County Hazard Mitigation Plan is divided into three chapters.  This chapter, Chapter 1, 
Introduction, discusses the federal Disaster Mitigation Act of 2000, grant funding for this plan, the planning 
process, and a list of documents reviewed and incorporated into this plan.  Chapter 2, Risk Assessment, 
provides profiles for natural disasters that have affected Door County, including description, location, 
historical occurrences, probability of occurrence, impacts, and vulnerability.  Chapter 2 also provides 
information on non-natural hazards that have affected Door County, primarily based on information from 
the Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources – Bureau of Redevelopment and Remediation.  Chapter 
3, Mitigation Strategies and Plan Maintenance, contains the goals and action items that represent what the 
county and municipalities seek to achieve through mitigation plan implementation.  Chapter 3 also 
addresses the monitoring, evaluation, and maintenance of this plan.  

23



 
 
 
 
 
 
Door County Hazard Mitigation Plan 
Chapter 2: Risk Assessment 
  

24



INTRODUCTION 
 
An important component of hazard mitigation planning is conducting a risk assessment regarding the 
potential impacts of hazards to a community’s people, economy, and built and natural environments.  For 
the purpose of hazard mitigation planning, “risk” is the potential for damage, loss, or other impacts created 
by the interaction of hazards with community assets.  Exposure of people, property, and other community 
assets to hazards can result in disaster, depending on the impacts.  Impacts are the consequences or 
effect of the hazard on community assets.  Risk assessment results provide the foundation for the rest of 
the planning process where action items to reduce risk are identified and prioritized. 
 
At its April 2015 meeting, the Door County Hazard Mitigation Plan steering committee conducted a risk 
assessment for both natural and non-natural hazards based on a list of hazards provided by the Wisconsin 
Emergency Management division.  For each hazard, the committee gave a separate ranking of one (low 
risk), two (medium risk), or three (high risk) for both frequency and probability.  Specific hazards and their 
associated rankings for risk are listed below in order of highest ranking to lowest ranking or no ranking.  All 
of the natural hazards, non-natural hazards with a ranking of 4 or higher, and “nuclear power plant” are 
described in further detail later in this chapter in the “Natural Hazard Profiles” and “Non-Natural Hazard 
Profiles” sections.   
 
Natural Hazards Non-Natural Hazards 

 lightning and thunderstorms (5)  communicable diseases (9) 
 tornado/high winds (5)  water supply contamination – private (8) 
 snow/ice/blizzard storms (5)  hazardous materials – roadway (6) 
 extreme heat (4)  hazardous materials – waterway (5) 
 extreme cold (4)  loss of electrical system (5) 
 stormwater flooding (3)  transportation – roadway accidents (4) 
 flash, riverine, and lake flooding (3)  structural fire (4) 
 hail storms (2)  loss of sewer system (4) 
 drought (2)  nuclear power plant (3) 
 wildfire  contaminants (anthrax, etc.) (3) 
 coastal erosion  water supply contamination – public (3) 
 landslide and subsidence  transportation – airway (3) 
 dam failure  transportation – waterway (3)  
 climate change  hazardous materials – aircraft (3) 
 dense fog  hazardous materials – pipeline (3) 
 funnel clouds and waterspouts  correction center incidence (3) 

  school violence (2) 
  workplace violence (2) 
  terrorism (2) 

 
Per Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA) requirements for hazard mitigation plan content, 
this chapter describes natural hazards that pose a threat to the county in terms of location, extent, 
previous occurrences, and probability of future occurrences.  The natural hazard profiles are primarily 
based on information from the National Oceanic Atmospheric Administration and the state’s hazard 
mitigation plan.   
 
FEMA does not require non-natural hazard events to be included in a certified hazard mitigation plan, 
however, the Planning Team agreed to include non-natural hazard information.  The non-natural hazards 
listed with a ranking of 4 or higher and “nuclear power plant” are discussed later in this chapter.  The non-
natural hazard profiles are primarily based on information from the Wisconsin Department of Natural 
Resources – Bureau of Redevelopment and Remediation, the state agency responsible for the 
investigation and cleanup of environmental contamination and the redevelopment of contaminated 
properties.  Also included, as appropriate, is information from the Door County Comprehensive and 
Farmland Preservation Plan 2035.   

25



HAZARD MITIGATION PLANNING RISK ASSMENT MAPS 
 
FEMA flood zone areas (100-year), discussed in further detail later in this chapter, are shown on a county 
overview map located at the end of this plan (see Appendix D, Map 2.1).  Also included at the end of this 
plan are two sets of maps, described below, for the five incorporated municipalities and for the 
unincorporated areas of Door County.  (See Appendix D, Maps 2.2 – 2.17.)   
 
“Facilities/Infrastructure and Hazardous Materials” Maps 
The first map in the set of two, entitled “Facilities/Infrastructure and Hazardous Materials”, shows the 
features listed below.  These maps were created for the purpose of identifying assets and infrastructure 
that could be destroyed or harmed in the event of a hazard, as well as assets and infrastructure potentially 
available to assist in the event of a hazard.  Hazardous material storage sites are also shown on these 
maps in order to help assess proximity of harmful materials to human populations and because sites where 
there is hazardous material storage can also be part of a community’s assets, such as municipal wells and 
wastewater-related facilities.   

 occupied buildings/vulnerable populations 
o child care centers 
o schools 
o vulnerable populations (elderly and handicapped) 

 government/non-governmental organization buildings 
o administrative buildings 
o libraries 
o churches 
o post offices 
o club buildings 

 emergency services 
o Coast Guard-related 
o clinic/hospital 
o emergency services stations 
o fire stations 
o police stations 

 seasonal or temporary populations 
o popular beaches 
o community buildings 
o community events 
o public camping sites 
o seasonal group quarters 

 utilities 
o communications-related 
o electric-related 
o propane 
o radio/television-related 
o water-related 
o power lines 
o gas lines 

 transportation-related  
o airport or aircraft-related 
o boat ramp 
o ferry 
o highway shop 
o marina 
o stream-road intersections 

26



o roads in 100-year floodplain 

 hazardous materials storage 
o chemical storage (agricultural and utility-related) 
o manure storage 
o DNR open contamination sites 
o fuel storage  
o wastewater-related 
o landfill 
o solid waste storage 

 Town of Forestville dam  

 100-year flood zone 
 
“Contamination Sites, Hazardous Materials Storage, and Groundwater Concern Areas” Maps 
The second map in the set of two, entitled “Contamination Sites, Hazardous Materials Storage, and 
Groundwater Concern Areas”, shows the feature listed below.  Hazardous material storage sites and DNR 
redevelopment and remediation sites are shown on top of groundwater concern areas on these maps in 
order to assess historical and potential future occurrences of contamination of soil and groundwater.   

 hazardous materials storage (see above for specific features) 
 contamination redevelopment and remediation sites 
 groundwater concern areas 

 
The contamination redevelopment and remediation sites are discussed in further detail in the “Non-Natural 
Hazard Profiles” section of this chapter.  The groundwater concern areas were developed using the 
county’s Greenprinting modeling tool.  The Greenprint model incorporates a set of targeted land use 
management and planning goals specific to Door County, one of which is to protect groundwater quality.  
Criteria used to develop the groundwater concern areas map are depth to bedrock, depth to water table, 
soil infiltration rates, municipal water supply zones of contribution, closed depressions and principal 
bedrock outlets, and fractured bedrock and Karst features.  More information on the Greenprinting model 
and process can be found at http://206.169.56.66/DoorCounty_Greenprint/. 
 
NATURAL HAZARD PROFILES 
The information provided in the natural hazard profiles is primarily from the state’s hazard mitigation plan 
and the National Oceanic Atmospheric Administration (NOAA).  In 2015, the NOAA’s former three data 
centers—the National Climatic Data Center, the National Geophysical Data Center, and the National 
Oceanographic Data Center, which included the National Coastal Data Development Center—merged to 
form the National Centers for Environmental Information (NCEI).  NCEI’s mission is to meet the demand 
for high-value environmental data and information.  According to NCEI they are the world’s largest 
provider of weather and climate data, providing access to one of the most significant archives on Earth, 
with comprehensive oceanic, atmospheric, and geophysical data.   
 
NCEI provides on its Web site a Storm Events database, which is searchable by state and county.  NCEI 
receives storm data from the National Weather Service, which in turn receives their information from a 
variety of sources, including county, state and federal emergency management officials, local law 
enforcement officials, skywarn spotters, National Weather Service damage surveys, newspaper clipping 
services, the insurance industry, and the general public.   
 
In Door County there were a total of 22 event types reported, listed in Table 2.1 below from highest to 
lowest by average number of events per year.  The Storm Events database also tracks direct and indirect 
deaths, direct and indirect injuries, property damage, and crop damage resulting from a storm event.  For 
Door County, there were 2 deaths and 12 injuries related to tornado, thunderstorm wind, high wind, heavy 
rain, and lightening events.  Damages reported for Door County were over $8.9 million in property damage 

27

http://206.169.56.66/DoorCounty_Greenprint/


and over $5.2 million in crop damage.  Following is a description of the 22 Storm Event types that have 
occurred in Door County and any injuries, deaths, or damages resulting from those events.   
 
PLANNING TEAM RISK ASSESSMENT RESULTS 
 
For the purpose of this plan, all hazard events that have affected Door County are grouped into five 
general categories in Table 2.2: storms and/or hazardous wind events (with a “winter event” sub-category), 
hazardous temperatures, hazardous rain events, hail, and other hazards. Within each of these five general 
hazard categories, the NOAA Storm Event hazard types and associated data are listed.  The left-hand 
column of the table shows the NOAA Storm Event hazard types, plus stormwater flooding (an event type 
not listed in the Storm Events database); the second to fourth columns show the total number of events, 
average number of events per year, and number of deaths and injuries.  The NOAA Storm Event types are 
listed in order of highest to lowest average number of events per year (third column).  In the last column, 
the hazard types ranked by the Planning Team are listed in the same row as the closest matching NOAA 
Storm Event category.  Note that the NOAA Storm Event database was just released in April 2015, shortly 
before the April 29th Planning Team risk assessment meeting; Planning Department staff members 
discovered the database after this meeting took place.  For future updates of this plan, hazard categories 
used for the risk assessment may change to be more consistent with the Storm Event categories.         
 
The Planning Team hazard categories in the last column show the risk assessment ranking given by the 
Planning Team, in order from highest to lowest risk.  As explained previously, the committee gave a 
ranking of one (low risk), two (medium risk), or three (high risk) for each of the three categories of risk 
(frequency, probability, and threat to public health and safety).  The values assigned to each of these 
categories were then added together to come up with a total value or “ranking” for each hazard type.  
NOAA Storm Event data (number of events, average number of events per year, and number of direct 
deaths/injuries) is shown in columns three through five.   
 
After Table 2.2, the five general hazard types are discussed in order of ranking from highest risk to those 
hazard events not ranked by the Planning Team, in terms of the specific Planning Team hazard 
categories.  Each hazard discussion includes the NOAA Storm Events hazard descriptions/criteria and 
reported hazard occurrences.  Descriptive and historical occurrence information from the state’s hazard 
mitigation plan is included, however, in some instances the two sources do not describe hazards similarly 
and/or the number of historical occurrences differs greatly.  Also provided from the state’s hazard 
mitigation plan are assessments of the probability of future occurrences for all hazards and loss estimation 
for future occurrences of flood and tornado events.    
 
STORM AND/OR WIND EVENTS 
 
The NCEI Storm Events database categories included in this section are thunderstorm wind, strong and 
high winds, tornados, lightning, and winter storms.  The Planning Team risk assessment categories and 
rankings are: 

 tornados: 5 
 lightning & thunderstorms: 5 
 snow/ice/blizzard storms: 5 

 
Description, Location, Historical Occurrences 

Thunderstorm Wind 
 
Although thunderstorms can occur throughout Wisconsin during any month of the year, their highest 
frequency is May through September.  Thunderstorm wind occurs most often between 12:00 p.m. and 
10:00 p.m., frequently peaking in severity between 6:00 p.m. and 7:00 p.m.  Wisconsin averages around 
30 thunderstorm days per year over the northeastern counties to around 42 days over the southwestern 
counties. 
 

28



A “thunderstorm wind” event may get recorded in the Storm Events database when convective wind (rising 
and sinking air) reaches 58 mph or greater and occurs within 30 minutes of lightning being observed or 
detected.  Thunderstorm winds greater than 74 mph, equivalent to estimated winds in the low-end 
category of the Enhanced Fujita damage (tornado intensity) scale, can cause what the NCEI considers 
extreme wind damage.  Extreme wind can partially remove roofs, break windows, push over light trailer 
homes, and push automobiles off the road.  Winds of any speed (including below 58 mph) that occur 
during a thunderstorm and produce a fatality, injury, or damage are also recorded as a thunderstorm wind 
event. 
 
In Door County between 1966 and 2014 there were 90 thunderstorm wind events recorded in the Storm 
Events database, with eight events reaching extreme speeds (75 mph or greater); the highest wind speed 
reported was 128 mph.  These thunderstorm wind events resulted in $355,000 in property damages, $500 
in crop damages, and six indirect injuries. Door County averages 1.5 thunderstorm wind events per year.   
 
Table 2.1:  Natural Hazard Events, Door County 

 
Source:  National Oceanic Atmospheric Administration, Storm Events - National Centers for Environmental Data, June, 2015.   
 
 
  

Event Type
All events tracked between

1996 - 2014, except where noted.
Ave. # Per 

Year
NOAA # 

of Events

# Direct 
Deaths/
Injuries

$ Property 
Damage

$ Crop 
Damage

Winter Storm 1.79 34 -- -- --
Thunderstorm Wind (1955 - 2014) 1.50 90 0/6 $355,000 $500
Heavy Snow 1.32 25 -- -- --
Hail (1955 - 2014) 1.10 66 -- -- $3,500,000
Strong Wind 0.95 18 -- $40,000
High Wind (1 direct death) 0.84 16 1/1 $185,000 --
Dense Fog 0.53 10 -- -- --
Waterspout 0.32 6 -- -- --
Blizzard 0.32 6 -- -- --
Drought 0.32 6 -- -- --
Lightning 0.32 6 0/1 $444,700 --
Winter Weather 0.21 4 -- -- --
Extreme Cold/Wind Chill 0.21 4 -- -- --
Funnel Cloud 0.21 4 -- -- --
Cold/Wind Chill 0.16 3 -- -- --
Heavy Rain (1 indirect death) 0.16 3 1/0 -- --
Tornado (1950 - 2014) 0.12 8 0/4 $8,017,500 $1,770,000
Heat 0.11 2 -- -- --
Excessive Heat 0.05 1 -- -- --
Flash Flood 0.05 1 -- $75,000 --
Flood 0.05 1 -- -- --
Ice Storm 0.05 1 -- -- --
Total -- 315 2/12 $9,117,200 $5,270,500

29



Table 2.2: Hazard Risk Assessment Results, Door County 

 
Source:  Door County Hazard Mitigation Planning Team, April 2015; National Oceanic Atmospheric Administration, 
Storm Events - National Centers for Environmental Data, June 2015.   
 
Strong and High Winds 

 Strong Wind.  A non-convective wind gusting less than 58 mph (typically for less than 20 
seconds) may get recorded in the Storm Events database as a “strong wind” event.  A non-
convective wind sustained, typically for more than 20 seconds, at less than 40 mph that causes 
a fatality, injury, or damage may also be classified as a strong wind.  In Door County, 18 strong 
wind events were recorded between 1996 and 2014, causing $40,000 in property damages.   

 High Wind.  A non-convective wind sustained at 40 mph or greater for one hour or longer may 
get recorded as a “high wind” event in the Storm Events database.  In Door County, 16 high 
wind events were recorded between 1997 and 2011, with one direct injury occurring in 1998.  A 
total of $205,000 in property damage from these events was recorded.   

  

NOAA Storm Event Type
All events tracked between

1996 - 2014, except where noted.
# of 

Events
Ave. # 

Per Year
# Direct 

Deaths/Injuries

Planning Team Risk 
Assessment:

Category & Ranking

Thunderstorm wind (1955 - 2014) 90 1.50 0/6 Thunderstorms: 5
Strong wind 18 0.95 -- --
High wind (1 direct death) 16 0.84 1/1 --
Tornado (1950 - 2014) 8 0.12 0/4 Tornados: 5
Lightning 6 0.32 0/1 Lightning: 5

Winter storm 34 1.79 -- --
Heavy snow 25 1.32 -- Snow storm: 5
Blizzard 6 0.32 -- Blizzard storm: 5
Winter weather 4 0.21 -- --
Ice storm 1 0.05 -- Ice storm: 5

Extreme cold/wind chill 4 0.21 -- Extreme cold: 4
Cold/wind chill 3 0.16 -- --
Heat 2 0.11 -- Extreme heat: 4
Excessive heat 1 0.05 -- --

Heavy rain (1 indirect death) 3 0.16 1/0 --
Flood 1 0.05 -- Flash, riverine, & lake flooding: 3
Flash flood 1 0.05 -- --
-- -- -- -- Stormwater flooding: 3

Hail (1955 - 2014) 66 1.10 -- Hail: 2

Drought 6 0.32 -- Drought: 2

Wildfire -- -- --
Coastal erosion -- -- --
Landslide and land subsidence -- -- --
Dam failure -- -- --
Climate change -- -- --
Dense fog 10 0.53 --
Waterspout 6 0.32 --
Funnel cloud 4 0.21 --
Total - All Hazard Events 315 -- 2/12

Storms and/or Hazardous Wind Events

Hazardous Temperatures

Hazardous Rain Events

Hail  

Other Hazards

Winter Events

Drought

Not Ranked

30



Tornados 

Note: this section also includes NCEI Storm Event database information on funnel clouds and 
waterspouts.  The state hazard mitigation plan addresses funnel clouds as part of its discussion on 
tornados and does not address waterspouts at all.     
 
A tornado is a violently rotating column of air extending from the base of a convective cloud (usually 
cumulonimbus) to the ground.  Tornados can form within many environments; however, three common 
environments include intense squall lines, super cell thunderstorms, and the right front quadrant of land-
falling hurricanes within the spiral bands of thunderstorms. Though more uncommon, tornados may also 
result from earthquake-induced fires, wildfires, or atomic bombs. Additionally, severe weather spotter and 
research videotapes of tornados in the past twenty years have shown that a tornado can be in progress 
with no visible “funnel cloud” at the ground level.  Tornado damage severity is measured by the Enhanced 
Fujita Tornado Scale (EF-Scale), as shown in Table 2.3 below.  A detailed description of the EF-Scale can 
be found online at the National Weather Service Storm Prediction Center website.   
 
Table 2.3: Enhanced Fujita (EF) Tornado Scale 

Category EF-Scale Wind Speed (mph) 
EF0 (weak) 65 – 85 mph 
EF1 (weak) 86 – 110 mph 
EF2 (strong) 111 – 135 mph 
EF3 (strong) 136 – 165 mph 
EF4 (violent) 166 – 200 mph 
EF5 (violent) >200 mph 

Source: NOAA National Weather Service, Milwaukee/Sullivan, WI, 2011.  
 
Wisconsin lies along the northern edge of the nation’s maximum frequency belt for tornados, sometimes 
called “tornado alley,” which extends northeastward from Oklahoma into Iowa and then across to Illinois 
and southern Wisconsin. Generally, the southern portion of Wisconsin has a higher frequency of tornados, 
although every county in Wisconsin has had tornados. 
 
Most tornados in the United States last less than 10 minutes, but some have occurred for more than an 
hour.  Tornado paths can range from a few hundred feet to miles and tornado widths may range from tens 
of yards to a mile or two.  The “average” Wisconsin tornado for the period between 1982 and 2007 had a 
life-span of 7.1 minutes, a path length of  3.7 miles, a path width of 118 yards, and an EF rating of 0.7 
(mid-way between an EF0 and EF1). 
 
Data collected between 1950 and 2010 for Wisconsin shows that most long-track tornados (25 miles or 
longer) tornados in the state travel southwest to northeast.  A number of the tornados moved west to east, 
as well as northwest to southeast; northwest to southeast moving tornados tended to occur in the later part 
of the warm season.  Data collected between 1982 and 2010 shows that over 85% of Wisconsin’s 
tornados were rated as “weak” (EF0 & EF1), over 13% were “strong” (EF2 & EF3), and just under 10% 
were “violent” (EF4 & EF5).   
 
In Wisconsin, June has the highest tornado frequency, followed by July, May, and August.  The only 
month with no documented tornados in the state is February. Historically, winter, spring, and fall tornados 
are more likely to occur in southern parts of the state more than in northern parts.  Peak hours of 
occurrence in the state are between 3:00 p.m. and 10:00 p.m., when 75% of the tornados occur. The 
busiest “spin-up hour” is between 6:00 p.m. and 7:00 p.m.  
 
A “tornado” event may be recorded in the Storm Events database when a violently rotating column of air 
extends to or from a cumuliform cloud or underneath a cumuliform cloud to the ground, and is visible (but 
not always) as a condensation funnel.  In order for a rotating column of air to be classified as a tornado, it 
must be in contact with the ground and extend to/from the cloud base, and there should be some 
semblance of ground-based visual effects such as dust/dirt rotational markings/swirls, or structural or 
vegetative damage or disturbance.  Between 1956 and 2000, eight tornados were recorded in the Storm 

31



Events database for Door County.  (See Table 2.4.)  The most serious tornado occurred in 1998, which 
was given an EF3 ranking and was responsible for two injuries, over $4.7 million in property damages, and 
over $1.7 million in crop damages.  The second worst tornado event occurred in 1970 when two EF2 
tornados occurred on the same day, causing two injuries and $500,000 in property damages.   
 
Table 2.4: Tornado Events, Door County 

 
Source:  National Oceanic Atmospheric Administration, Storm Events - National Centers for 
Environmental Data, June, 2015.   
 
Relative to the rest of the state, Door County is a low density (number of tornados per square mile) area 
for tornados, averaging 0.12 tornados per year between 1950 and 2015, compared to 21.6 tornados per 
year statewide for the same time frame.   
 
Lightning 
 
Lightning, typically a byproduct of a thunderstorm, is a sudden and violent discharge of electricity that 
occurs between clouds, from clouds to ground, or, if there are high structures involved, ground to clouds.  
The action of rising and descending air in a thunderstorm separates positive and negative charges, with 
lightning the result of the buildup and discharge of energy between positive and negative charge areas.  
Water and ice particles may also affect the distribution of the electrical charge. In only a few millionths of a 
second, the air near a lightning strike heats to 50,000°F, a temperature hotter than the surface of the sun.  
The rapid heating and cooling of air near the lightning causes a shock wave that results in thunder. 
 
Warning signs for possible cloud-to-ground lightning strikes are high winds, rainfall, and a darkening sky.  
Many lightning casualties happen at the beginning of an approaching storm, however, more than half of 
lightning deaths occur after a thunderstorm has passed. While the threat of lightning significantly 
diminishes after the last sound of thunder, it may still occur up to 30 minutes later.  The threat of lightning 
exists even when thunderstorms are in the area, but the sky is clear overhead; lightning has been known 
to strike more than ten miles from a storm. 
 
A “lightning” event may be recorded in the Storm Events database when a sudden electrical discharge 
from a thunderstorm results in a fatality, injury, and/or damage.  Between 1997 and 2011, six lightning 
events were recorded for Door County, including one injury and $444,700 in property damage.   
 
Winter Events 
 
A variety of weather phenomena and conditions can occur during winter storms.  The following are 
National Weather Service-approved descriptions of winter storm elements: 

 Heavy snowfall.  Accumulation of six or more inches of snow in a twelve-hour period or eight or 
more inches in a 24-hour period. 

 Blizzard.  Sustained wind speeds or frequent wind gusts of at least 35 mph accompanied by 
heavy snowfall or large amounts of blowing or drifting snow. 

 Ice storm.  Rain freezing upon contact with the ground and/or exposed objects near the ground; 
at least ¼ inch of ice must accumulate within twelve hours. 

Date Time F-Scale
# Direct 
Injuries

$ Property 
Damage

$ Crop 
Damage

Length 
(miles)

Width 
(yards)

7/1/1956 12:05 p.m. F2 0 $250,000 $0 10.6 50
7/25/1966 6:20 p.m. F0 0 $2,500 $0 2 17
4/22/1970 9:10 p.m. F2 2 $250,000 $0 2.3 500
4/22/1970 9:30 p.m. F2 0 $250,000 $0 4.3 500
7/12/1973 7:30 a.m. F1 0 $25,000 $0 0 100
6/8/1985 8:00 p.m. F2 0 $2,500,000 $0 5 150

8/23/1998 5:30 p.m. F3 2 $4,740,000 $1,770,000 5.1 1,300
7/13/2000 2:55 p.m. F0 0 $0 $0 0.1 50

32



 Freezing drizzle/freezing rain.  Drizzle or rain freezes upon impact on objects with a 
temperature of 32ºF or below. 

 Sleet.  Solid grains or pellets of ice formed by the freezing of raindrops or the refreezing of 
largely melted snowflakes; does not cling to surfaces. 

 
Generally, the winter storm season in Wisconsin runs from October through March.  According to the 
state’s hazard mitigation plan, Wisconsin’s harsh winter temperatures have become slightly milder over 
the past couple of decades, while the number of severe winter storms are increasing.  This may be 
partially related to better documentation generated by the National Weather Service, but also may be 
related to the fact that warmer air can hold more moisture, which ultimately can fall as snow.  
 
Much of the snowfall in Wisconsin occurs in small amounts of one to three inches per occurrence. Total 
snowfall per season averages between approximately 30 inches in the extreme south-central area of the 
state to 120 to 160 inches in the Lake Superior snowbelt (Ashland and Iron Counties). Additionally, 
counties closer to Lake Michigan have had a higher number of blizzard events, due in part to the strong 
winds off of the lake. 
 
According to the state’s hazard mitigation plan, between 1982 and 2010, Door County had 98 winter 
weather events, averaging 3.4 events per year, including ice storms, blizzards, winter storms, or lake 
effect events.  Door County’s average seasonal snowfall between 1971 and 2000 was between 40 and 50 
inches.  In December of 2000, record or near-record snow depths of 15 to 34 inches occurred in much of 
the southern part of Wisconsin and counties along Lake Michigan.  Fourteen counties, including Door 
County, received a Presidential Emergency Declaration as a result.  In total, these counties received 
$5,483,097 in federal funds to cover costs associated with snow removal and emergency response efforts. 
 
NCEI criteria for its six categories of severe winter weather are listed below.  Listed within each category 
are the number of events that occurred in Door County and the first and last years of the event’s 
occurrence.   

 Winter Storm.  A winter weather event which has more than one significant hazard (i.e., heavy 
snow and blowing snow; snow and ice; snow and sleet; sleet and ice; or snow, sleet, and ice) 
and meets or exceeds locally/regionally defined 12 and/or 24 hour warning criteria for at least 
one of the precipitation elements, on a widespread or localized basis. Normally, a winter storm 
would pose a threat to life or property.  For Door County, 34 winter storm events were recorded 
between 1996 and 2014, an average of 1.8 events per year.   

 Heavy Snow.  Snow accumulation meeting or exceeding locally/regionally defined 12 and/or 24 
hour warning criteria, on a widespread or localized basis.  This could mean such values as 4, 6, 
or 8 inches or more in 12 hours or less; or 6, 8, or 10 inches in 24 hours or less. In some heavy 
snow events, structural damage, due to the excessive weight of snow accumulations, may 
occur in the few days following the meteorological end of the event.  For Door County, 25 
heavy snow events were recorded between 1996 and 2014, averaging 0.8 events per year. 

 Blizzard.  A winter storm which produces the following conditions for 3 hours or longer on a 
widespread or localized basis:  (1) sustained winds or frequent gusts 35 mph or greater and (2) 
falling and/or blowing snow reducing visibility frequently to less than 1/4 mile, on a widespread 
or localized basis.  For Door County, six blizzard events were recorded between 1996 and 
2010, averaging 0.4 events per year. 

 Winter Weather.  A winter precipitation event that causes a death, injury, or a significant impact 
to commerce or transportation but does not meet locally/regionally defined warning criteria.  A 
winter weather event could result from one or more winter precipitation types (snow, or 
blowing/drifting snow, or freezing rain/drizzle), on a widespread or localized basis.  For Door 
County, four winter weather events were recorded between 1996 and 1997, averaging 2.0 
events per year. 

33



 Ice Storm.  Ice accretion meeting or exceeding locally/regionally defined warning criteria 
(typical value is ¼ or ½ inch or more), on a widespread or localized basis.  For Door County, 
one ice storm event was recorded in 1996.  (Note that the state’s hazard mitigation plan reports 
three ice storms having occurred in Door County between 1982 and 2010.) 

 
Probability of Occurrence, Impacts, Vulnerability, and Economic Costs 
 
When a thunderstorm became severe in Wisconsin during the period between 1982 and 2010, it was in 
the following form:   

 damaging high wind 58% of the time, 
 large hail 30% of the time, 
 tornados 7% of the time, and 
 flash floods from heavy rain 5% of the time. 

 
Wisconsin experiences from two to five severe thunderstorm wind events per year, on average.  Door 
County is on the low end of this range, averaging between two and three severe thunderstorm wind events 
per year.   
 
Lightning occurs with most severe thunderstorms, but does not always produce damages.  The probability 
of lightning itself occurring is quite high, due to the high number of severe thunderstorms in the state; 
however, the site-specific incidence of lightning is considered low because of the localized nature of the 
hazard. 
 
The state’s hazard mitigation plan estimates the annual probability of a tornado and associated dollar 
value of damage for all counties in Wisconsin.  For Door County, the average loss per tornado is over 
$1,002,250 million, based on eight tornados occurring in the county between 1950 and 2010 with 
associated damages of $8,018,000 million.  The state bases the probability of a tornado happening in the 
future on past occurrences, thus, the probability of a tornado occurring in Door County in any given year is 
0.13115 (8 tornados/61 years).  Future tornado dollar damage is projected to be at $131,443 (0.13115 * 
$1,002,250) per year.  Compared to other counties, Door County is a low-risk area for tornados; Dodge 
County has the highest probability at 0.93 tornados, followed by Dane County at 0.91 tornados.      
 
Compared to the rest of the state, Door County has a lower probability of heavy snowfall, since heavy 
snowfalls are more likely to occur in northern Wisconsin in counties along Lake Superior.  However, 
blizzards are more likely to occur in the eastern counties along Lake Michigan, including Door County.  
Door and Manitowoc Counties have the highest historical occurrences of blizzards at 6 blizzard events 
between 1982 and 2010.  Comparing all winter weather events, Door County is in the middle of the range 
of occurrences, with 98 total events occurring between 1982 and 2010, compared to 60 total occurrences 
on the low end and 120 or more total occurrences on the high end, for the same time frame.      
 
All municipalities in Door County are equally vulnerable to storm and/or wind events.  Northern Door, 
however, with approximately 56% of all the housing units in the county and only one transmission line 
serving the area is more vulnerable to power outages.  The impacts of power outages include lost 
economic activity due to businesses not being able to operate properly and injuries occurring during the 
clean-up of debris.         
 
HAZARDOUS TEMPERATURES 
 
The NCEI Storm Events database categories included in this section are extreme summer heat and 
extreme cold/wind chill.  The Planning Team risk assessment categories and rankings are: 

 extreme cold: 4 
 extreme heat: 4 

 
  

34



Description, Location, Historical Occurrences 
 
Extreme Summer Heat 
 
According to the National Weather Service, “extreme summer heat” is the combination of very high 
temperatures and exceptionally humid conditions.  If such conditions persist for an extended period of 
time, it is called a heat wave.  When possible, the National Weather Service warns people and agencies 
that extreme heat conditions are forecasted: 

 Excessive Heat Outlook.  A warning is issued when conditions for an excessive heat event may 
occur in the next three to seven days; provides information to those who need to plan for heat 
(i.e. emergency management, public health officials, utility companies). 

 Excessive Heat Watch.  A warning is issued when conditions for an excessive heat event are 
expected to occur in the next twelve to 48 hours. 

 Excessive Heat Warning/Advisory.  A warning is issued when an excessive heat event is 
expected to occur in the next 36 hours. 

 
The National Weather Service issues an outlook, watch, or warning/advisory when the heat index (or how 
hot it really feels) is expected to exceed 105º F to 110º F for two consecutive days.  At a heat index of 105º 
F or higher, the heat is extreme enough to cause disorders associated with exposure to heat and/or 
physical activity.  Heat index is a function of the actual temperature and the relative humidity. Table 2.5 
below shows the danger categories and heat disorders with their corresponding heat index values. Note 
that caution should be taken when the heat index value approaches 90° F. 
 
Table 2.5: Heat Index and Disorders 

Danger 
Category 

 
Heat Disorder 

Heat Index Value 
(how hot it feels) 

Extreme Danger Heatstroke or sunstroke imminent >130F 
Danger Sunstroke, heat cramps, or heat exhaustion likely; heat 

stroke possible with prolonged exposure and physical 
activity. 

105F - 130F 

Extreme Caution Sunstroke, heat cramps, and heat exhaustion possible; 
heat stroke possible with prolonged exposure and 
physical activity. 

90F - 105F 

Caution Fatigue possible with prolonged exposure and physical 
activity.   

89F - 90F 

Source: NOAA National Weather Service, 2008. 
 
Extreme heat is the number one weather killer nationwide, killing 162 people annually, according to the 
ten-year average from 2000-2009 from the National Weather Service. There are different stages of heat 
disorders associated with exposure to heat: 

 Heatstroke.  An often fatal medical emergency occurring when the body’s responses to heat 
stress are insufficient to prevent a substantial rise in the body’s core temperature, typically 
exceeding 105°F; even with rapid cooling and treatment, the average fatality rate is 15%. 

 Heat Exhaustion.  A less serious medical condition characterized by dizziness, weakness, or 
fatigue; body temperatures may be normal or slightly-to-moderately elevated; with fluid 
treatment, prognosis is typically good. 

 Heat Syncope.  A sudden loss of consciousness, typically associated with people exercising 
who are not acclimated to warm temperatures; causes little or no harm to the individual. 

 Heat Cramps.  May occur in people unaccustomed to exercising in the heat. 
 

35



In addition to affecting people, extreme heat puts significant stress on plants and animals. Extreme heat 
may reduce crop yields or contribute to crop loss. Similarly, livestock may become overheated, leading to 
reduced milk production and other problems. 
 
NCEI describes “excessive heat” as a combination of high temperatures (well above normal) and high 
humidity.  An excessive heat event occurs whenever heat index values meet or exceed locally/regionally 
established excessive heat warning thresholds, on a widespread or localized basis. Fatalities (directly-
related) or major impacts to human health occurring during excessive heat warning conditions are 
reported using this event category.  One excessive heat event was recorded in the Storm Events 
database for Door County in 2000. Note that the state’s hazard mitigation plan reports that Door County 
experienced 25 heat wave days and nine heat wave events between 1982 and 2010.  A heat wave event 
is a period of abnormally and uncomfortably hot and unusually humid weather, typically lasting two or 
more days.   
 
Extreme Cold/Wind Chill 
 
The combination of extremely cold temperatures and strong winds can result in wind chills that cause 
bodily injury such as frostbite and death due to exposure (hypothermia).  Wind chill is an apparent 
temperature describing the combined effect of wind and low air temperatures on exposed skin; 
measurement is based on the rate of heat loss from exposed skin.  A temperature of 0ºF combined with a 
15 mph wind results in a wind chill temperature of -19ºF.  At this wind chill temperature, exposed skin can 
freeze in 30 minutes.  In general, the National Weather Service regional offices issue Wind Chill Advisories 
for Wisconsin when wind chill values are expected to drop to -20 to -34ºF with winds 10 mph or higher.  
Similarly, the National Weather Service issues Wind Chill Warnings when wind chill values are expected to 
drop to -35ºF or lower with winds 10 mph or higher.   
 
NCEI describes “extreme cold/wind chill” as a period of extremely low temperatures or wind chill 
temperatures reaching or exceeding locally/regionally defined warning criteria (typical value around 
-35F or colder), on a widespread or localized basis.  For Door County, four events were recorded in the 
Storm Events database, with two events occurring in the winter of 2008 and two events occurring in the 
winter of 2014.   
 
NCEI describes “cold/wind chill” as a period of low temperatures or wind chill temperatures reaching or 

exceeding locally/regionally defined advisory (typical value is -18F or colder) conditions, on a widespread 
or localized basis.  A combination of seasonably cold temperatures and low wind chill values (roughly 15F 
below normal) is counted as a cold/wind chill event when it is the primary cause of death, as determined 
by a medical examiner.  For Door County, three cold/wind chill events were recorded, with two events 
occurring in the winter of 1996 and one event occurring in the winter of 2006.   
 
Probability of Occurrence, Impacts, Vulnerability, and Economic Costs 
 
According to the state hazard mitigation plan, the probability of exceeding 89°F is high (“caution” category 
in Table 2.5), but temperatures are not the only determinant of effects that also include humidity, duration, 
and timing of the extreme temperature event.  
 
All municipalities in Door County are equally vulnerable to extreme temperatures.  Extreme temperatures 
tend to have the greatest impact on the elderly.  Door County has a much larger percentage of adults aged 
65 and over at 22.5% compared to 13.7% for the state.  However, according the Wisconsin Environmental 
Public Health Tracking System, a lower rate of people visit the emergency room due to heat-related stress 
at 11.3 people per 100,000 in 2013 compared to 16.5 for the state for the same year.   
 
  

36



HAZARDOUS RAIN EVENTS  
 
The NCEI Storm Events database categories included in this section are heavy rain, flooding, and flash 
flooding.  Note that there is no stormwater flooding category in the database.  The Planning Team risk 
assessment categories and rankings are: 

 flash, riverine, & lake flooding: 3 
 stormwater flooding: 3 

 
Description, Location, Historical Occurrences 
 
Note: unless otherwise noted, the information on flooding below is copied from the state’s hazard 
mitigation plan, with some minor editing.   
 
Flooding, as defined by the National Flood Insurance Program, is “a general and temporary condition 
where two or more acres of normally dry land or two or more properties are inundated by water or 
mudflow.”  Floods specifically affect floodplains, the lowlands adjacent to water bodies.  Floods are natural 
events that are considered hazards only when people and/or property are affected.  Nationwide, hundreds 
of flood hazard events occur each year, making it one of the most common hazards in all 50 states and 
U.S. territories. 
 
There are a number of categories of floods in the U.S, however, the most common type of flooding event 
is riverine flooding, also known as overbank flooding.  In Wisconsin, riverine floodplains range from 
narrow, confined channels in the steep valleys of hilly regions, to wide, flat areas in plains and coastal 
regions. The amount of water in the floodplain is a function of the size and topography of the contributing 
watershed, the regional and local climate, geological characteristics, and land use attributes. 
 
Much of Wisconsin’s flooding on larger rivers occurs more than six hours after a causative event such as 
heavy rain, or rain combined with snowmelt.  This kind of flooding can ultimately affect not only larger 
rivers, but also small streams and low areas outside of the floodplains of larger rivers.  The cause of 
flooding in large rivers is typically prolonged periods of rainfall from weather systems covering large areas. 
These systems may saturate the ground and overload the rivers and/or reservoirs in numerous smaller 
basins that drain into larger rivers. Localized weather systems, such as thunderstorms, may cause intense 
rainfall over smaller areas, leading to flooding in smaller rivers and streams. These events may also lead 
to flooding in larger waterways, as smaller rivers and streams feed into these larger systems. Annual 
spring floods, due to the melting of snowpack, may affect both large and small rivers and areas. 
 
Wisconsin is prone to experiencing flash floods, ice jam floods, local drainage floods, and high 
groundwater floods.  The most notable of these are flash floods because they occur the quickest, with little 
or no warning, and tend to be accompanied by other problems.  Flash floods occur within six hours of a 
causative event such as heavy rains, ice jams, or dam failures. They usually involve a rapid rise in water 
level, high velocity, and large amounts of debris, which can lead to significant damage including the 
tearing out of trees, undermining of buildings and bridges, scouring of new channels, and creation of sink 
holes. The intensity of flash flooding is a function of the intensity and duration of rainfall, steepness of the 
watershed, stream gradients, watershed vegetation, natural and artificial flood storage areas, and 
configuration of the streambed and floodplain.  Flash flooding on larger rivers can transition to general 
river flooding that persists for days. 
 
Though Wisconsin was not as severely affected as other states in the Midwest, the 1993 floods were one 
of the state’s most significant disasters in terms of both damages and funds received through disaster 
relief programs.  The total amount of disaster relief funds received by the state from all declarations prior 
to 1993 was $352 million.  Approximately $300 million in disaster relief was received by the state for the 
1993 Presidential Disaster Declaration alone. 
 
While most flood events are not declared a Presidential Disaster, many get classified as a major flood 
event.  Major flooding, as defined by the National Weather Service, involves extensive inundation of 

37



structures and roads and significant evacuations of people and/or transfer of property to higher elevations. 
A Flood Warning is issued if major flooding is expected during the event. Examples of conditions that 
would be considered major flooding include:  

 many buildings flooded, some with substantial damage or destruction  
 infrastructure destroyed or rendered useless for an extended period of time  
 multiple homes are flooded or moved off foundations  
 everyone in threatened area is asked to evacuate  
 National Guard units assist in evacuation efforts  
 erosion problems are extreme  
 airstrip, fuel tanks, and the generator station are likely flooded  
 loss of transportation access, communication, power and/or fuel spills are likely  
 fuel tanks may float and spill and possibly float downstream  
 ice chunks floating through town that could cause structural damage  
 high damage estimates and high degree of danger to residents 

 
A major flood event in 1973 affected 35 counties in the state, including Door County.  Estimated damages 
for Door County was $24 million.  Also, according to the state’s hazard mitigation plan, eight flood events 
(non-major) occurred in Door County between 1982 and 2010.  
 
NCEI describes a “heavy rain” event as an unusually large amount of rain which does not cause a flash 
flood or flood, but causes damage, e.g., roof collapse or other human/economic impact.  Heavy rain 
resulting in urban and/or small stream flooding is also classified as a heavy rain event.  For Door County, 
one heavy rain event was recorded in 2006 and two heavy rain events were recorded in 2008.  One 
indirect death is attributed to a heavy rain event in 2008.   
 
NCEI describes a “flood” event as any high flow, overflow, or inundation by water which causes or 
threatens damage.  In general, this would mean the inundation of a normally dry area caused by an 
increased water level in an established watercourse, or ponding of water, generally occurring more than 
six hours after the causative event, and posing a threat to life or property.  This can be on a widespread or 
localized basis.   
 
NCEI describes a “flash flood” as a rapid and extreme flow of high water into a normally dry area, or a 
rapid water level rise in a stream or creek above a predetermined flood level, beginning within six hours of 
the causative event (e.g., intense rainfall, dam failure, ice jam-related), on a widespread or localized basis.  
Ongoing flooding can intensify to flash flooding in cases where intense rainfall results in a rapid surge of 
rising flood waters.  Flash floods typically only exist for a day or two.   
One flood event in 1996 and one flash flood event in 2014 (September 4th) were recorded in the Storm 
Events database for Door County.  The flash flood occurred in the Village of Ephraim and was reported to 
cause $75,000 in damages.  The narrative recorded in the Storm Events database for this event is 
provided below:   
 
“Thunderstorms developed in a moist and unstable air mass ahead of an approaching cold front. Clusters 
of storms with torrential rain caused flooding and flash flooding. Rainfall totals were mainly in the 1 to 3 
inch range, with locally higher amounts. The heaviest rainfall was across northern Door County where 
more than 6 inches of rain fell in the Baileys Harbor area, flooding basements and campgrounds and 
washing out the shoulders of roads. The flooding caused damage to some documents at the Ephraim 
Historical Society. Isolated storms produced large hail and wind damage.  
 
Heavy rainfall flooded basements, resorts, and campgrounds, and damaged roads in the Sister Bay, Fish 
Creek, and Baileys Harbor areas. In excess of 6 inches of rain in Baileys Harbor caused nearly every 
home there to sustain a backup from the sewage disposal plant. Flood waters damaged documents at the 
Ephraim Historical Society. The flooding also washed out shoulders of several roads in the area.” 
 

38



The flash flood event that was recorded for the Village of Ephraim could also be described as surface 
water runoff flooding.  A description of surface water runoff flooding from FEMA and anecdotal impacts of 
the September 4th, 2014 flooding event are described below.     
 
Surface Water Runoff Flooding 

Note: The surface water runoff flooding description provided below is a slightly modified excerpt from a 
FEMA document on types of flood and floodplains.   
 
When rainfall reaches the Earth’s surface, it will either evaporate, infiltrate into the soil, or run over the 
surface (surface water runoff).  The type of ground cover greatly influences the proportions of these 
events.  Surface water runoff occurs when the rainfall intensity exceeds the evaporation rate and 
infiltration capacity of the soil.  It also occurs when rainfall falls on impervious surfaces, such as buildings, 
roadways, and other paved areas.  Water that flows along the surface may become trapped in 
depressions where it will either evaporate back into the air, infiltrate into the ground, or spill out of the 
depression as it fills.  If local drainage conditions are inadequate to accommodate rainfall through a 
combination of evaporation, infiltration into the ground, and surface runoff, accumulation of water in certain 
areas may cause localized flooding problems.   
 
Flooding problems resulting from runoff of surface water generally increase as areas become more 
urbanized.  Greater population density generally increases the amount of impervious areas and reducing 
the amount of pervious areas that can absorb rainfall.  Reduction in the amount of natural ground that can 
absorb rainfall results in an increase in the amount of surface runoff generated.  Uncontrolled, this runoff 
may be channeled to areas that cause flooding of structures and roadways.  This may be especially true 
where the predevelopment land surface had a gently sloping surface with no defined channels.  Such 
areas are subject to shallow sheet flooding during storms, but urbanization and other development speeds 
up the accumulation of floodwater.   
 
According to local reporting of the September 4, 2014 flooding event, parts of the county received seven to 
eight inches of rain within 24 hours, causing mostly surface runoff flooding and some sewer backup 
flooding.  At least some of the sewer backup flooding was due to the fact that the power was out for 
approximately 12 hours.  Both types of flooding primarily affected basements, where the large majority of 
the damage occurred.  Door County Emergency Management Services received claims from 61 residents 
and businesses located in the Villages of Ephraim, Egg Harbor, and Sister Bay and the Towns of Baileys 
Harbor, Gibraltar, and Liberty Grove.  Damages claimed ranged in value from a few thousand to a couple 
hundred thousand dollars.   
 
Probability of Occurrence, Impacts, Vulnerability, and Economic Costs 
 
Historical records are used to determine the probability of occurrence for different extents of flooding, 
expressed in percentages.  The percentage describes the chance that the level of flood water will exceed 
a certain height, on average in any given year.  The most widely adopted design and regulatory standard 
for floods in the United States is the one-percent annual chance flood (base flood or 100-year flood), which 
has a one-percent chance of occurring in any particular year.  This measure is a simple and general way 
to express the statistical likelihood of a flood; actual recurrence periods vary from place to place. 
  
Smaller floods occur more often than larger, deeper, and more widespread floods.  Thus, a “10- year” 
flood has a greater likelihood of occurring than a “100- year” flood.  Table 2.6 below shows a range of 
flood recurrence intervals and their probabilities of occurrence. 
 
  

39



Table 2.6: Flood Recurrence Intervals  
Occurrence Annual Percent Chance of 
10-year 10.0% 
50-year 2.0% 
100-year 1.0% 
500-year 0.2% 
Source:  Federal Emergency Management Administration 
 
It is important to note that risk of a flood event occurring changes over time.  Since natural hazards, like 
floods, do not affect a particular location every single year, the focus is on the overall probability of the 
event occurring over a selected time horizon. Assuming that most hazard events are independent 
outcomes, the probability of a 100-year flood occurring at any given time is 1/100 or 0.01. However, the 
probability of a 100-year flood occurring at least once over the next 100 years is 1-(0.99)^100=0.634. 
 
The state’s hazard mitigation plan includes results from a flood risk assessment conducted using Hazard 
USA (HAZUS), a FEMA-developed software tool used to estimate damages from wind, floods, and 
earthquakes, among other natural disasters.  Loss estimates produced by HAZUS are based on current 
scientific and engineering knowledge of the effects of hurricane winds, floods, and earthquakes.  HAZUS 
takes into account various impacts of a hazard event, including the following:   

 physical damage to residential and commercial buildings, schools, critical facilities, and 
infrastructure 

 economic loss, including lost jobs, business interruptions, and repair and reconstruction costs 
 social impacts and impacts to people, including requirements for shelters and medical aid 

 
HAZUS uses Geographic Information System software to map and display hazard data and the results of 
damage and economic loss estimates for buildings and infrastructure.  HAZUS provides for three levels of 
analysis, with the basic level using a nationwide database to provide rough estimates.  The assessment 
conducted by the Wisconsin Emergency Management Division was done at the basic level, with the 
addition of Digital Flood Information Rate Maps where available. The state also included essential facilities 
data, including schools, hospitals, fire stations, Emergency Operation Centers, and police stations.  Lastly, 
U.S. Census housing data was used to estimate construction dates. 
The HAZUS default inventory data includes the following: 

 general building stock 
 essential facilities 
 demographic information  
 transportation lifeline systems 
 utility lifeline systems 
 high potential loss facilities  
 hazardous materials facilities 

 
The HAZUS model delineates a stream network for every square mile within a county and then performs 
an area weighted assessment of flood damage.  The number of grid cells at a given depth is counted and 
then divided by the total number of cells within a census block.  The result is used to “weight” damage at 
that flood depth for each building occupancy class.  Buildings are considered a total loss once the 50% 
damage threshold is reached.  The software analyzes building stock by occupancy and type to estimate: 

 building losses 
 full replacement value and depreciated replacement value 
 shelter requirements 
 building, content, and inventory losses 

 
Essential facilities are not weighted, but evaluated for losses at their specific location.  This evaluation is 
based on building and content losses, restoration time to 100% functionality, lifeline losses (for selected 
components), and losses to structures and equipment. 

40



The HAZUS flood risk assessment results for Door County are listed below: 

 Total damaged buildings: 305  
 Total economic loss: $58,146,000  
 Building loss: $30,818,000  
 Short term shelter (population in need of): 354 
 Moderately damaged essential facility buildings: 1 fire building 

 
Map 2.1, Floodplains, illustrates Door County areas mapped by FEMA as being potentially located in the 
100-year floodplain.  Table 2.7 below shows the number of buildings located within the floodplain, total 
improved value, and average improved value for each municipality and the Northern and Southern Door 
unincorporated areas.  Table 2.7 also lists if a municipality is participating in the National Flood Insurance 
Program (NFIP) and the number of repetitive loss structures.  The City is the only municipality with a 
repetitive loss structure and the Village of Sister Bay is the only municipality not participating in the NFIP 
program.   
 
Table 2.7: Number and Value of Buildings in the Floodplain 

Municipality 

# of 
Buildings 

in 
Floodplain 

Total 
Improved 

Value 

Ave 
Improved 

Value 
NFIP 

Participation 

# Repetitive 
Loss 

Structures 
Northern Door (uninc. areas) 961 $187,926,900 $195,553 Yes 0 
Southern Door (uninc. Areas) 855 $95,788,300 $112,033 Yes 0 
City 257 $60,097,200 $233,841 Yes 1* 
Village of Egg Harbor 39 $9,940,300 $254,879 Yes 0 
Village of Ephraim 59 $17,187,100 $291,307 Yes 0 
Village of Forestville 0 $0 $0 No** 0 
Village of Sister Bay 17 $7,039,000 $414,059 No** 0 

Source: Door County Real Property, August 2015. 
*Single-family home 
**Flooding is not perceived to be a major risk.   

 
HAIL 
 
Hail is only the only NCEI Storm Events database category included in this section.  The Planning Team 
risk assessment ranking for hail is 2.   
 
Description, Location, Historical Occurrences 
 
Hail can develop within thunderstorms when strong currents of rising air, known as updrafts, carry water 
droplets high within the storm, exposing these droplets to cold air and freezing them.  As the frozen 
droplets begin to fall toward the ground, rising currents within the storm lift them again.  The hailstones 
gain an ice layer and grow increasingly larger with each ascent.  Eventually the hailstones become too 
heavy for the updraft to support, and they fall to the ground. 
 
Although hail typically accompanies severe thunderstorms, all strong thunderstorms have the potential to 
produce hailstones of small diameter (less than 0.75 inches).  The size of hailstones varies and is a direct 
consequence of the severity and size of the thunderstorm; greater instability in the atmosphere causes 
stronger updrafts.  Stronger updrafts can keep hailstones suspended for longer periods of time, resulting in 
larger hailstones at ground level.  Severe hail is considered 0.75 inches in diameter (the size of a penny) 
or greater.  Hailstorms can occur throughout the year, however, most hail events occur between April and 
October.  
 
Hail can cause extensive crop and property damage, particularly during the months May through 
September when approximately 85% of hailstorms occur.  This timeframe coincides with the growing and 

41



harvesting seasons for many of Wisconsin’s crops, causing economic losses and damages for the 
agriculture industry.   
 
NCEI describes hail as frozen precipitation in the form of balls or irregular lumps of ice.  Hail that is 0.75 
inches or larger may be recorded as an event; hail that is smaller in size which causes property and/or 
crop damage, or casualties, may also be recorded as a hail event.  Between 1963 and 2014, 66 hail 
events were recorded for Door County, with one event in 2014 causing $3.5 million in crop damage.  The 
largest hail size recorded for the county was in 1998 at 2.75” in diameter.   
 
Probability of Occurrence, Impacts, Vulnerability, and Economic Costs 
 
According to the state’s hazard mitigation plan, the average land area affected by an individual hail event 
is about 225 square miles or a diameter of 17 miles surrounding the center of the storm.  Hail risk at a 
single point or over an area is a function of the target at risk (property or crop) and the hail frequency and 
intensity.  The annual probability of hail occurring somewhere in the state is quite high.  However, the site-
specific incidence of hail is lower, due to the localized nature of the hazard. 
 
All municipalities in Door County are equally vulnerable to hale, however, the impact is greatest in the 
unincorporated areas due to large areas of agricultural use.  Table 2.8 below shows agriculturally 
assessed land area and value for the Northern and Southern Door areas.  Although Southern Door has 
approximately one-third more agricultural land, it’s per acre average is $8 less than Northern Door’s per 
acre average.  Assuming the proportion of crops to livestock is the same in both Northern and Southern 
Door, a hail event in Northern Door is likely to cause slightly greater crop damage due to its higher per 
acre average value.   
 
Table 2.8: Agriculturally Assessed Land Area and Value 

  Agricultural 

Area $ Acres  
Per Acre 
Average 

Northern Door $7,413,900 42,424 $175 
Southern Door $10,532,200 62,945 $167 
Door County $17,999,300 105,717 $170 
Source: Door County Real Property Listing, May 2013. 

 
DROUGHT 
 
Drought is the only NCEI Storm Events database category included in this section.  The Planning Team 
risk assessment ranking for drought is 2. 
 
Description, Location, Historical Occurrences 
 
Due to its multi-dimensional nature, drought is a complex and difficult hazard to define in exact terms, 
partly because of the ways it differs from other natural hazards: 

 The onset and end of a drought are difficult to determine due to slow accumulation and lingering 
effects after its apparent end. 

 The lack of an exact and universally accepted definition adds to the confusion of existence and 
severity. 

 The impact of drought is less obvious and may be spread over a larger geographic area. 
 
Drought is the result of a natural decline in expected precipitation over an extended period of time, and 
occurs in virtually every climate on the planet, including areas of high and low precipitation.  A drought’s 
severity depends on its duration, intensity, geographic extent, and water supply demands for both human 
use and vegetation.  The severity of a drought can be aggravated by other climatic factors, such as 

42



prolonged high winds and low relative humidity.  The following four definitions are commonly used to 
describe drought: 

 Meteorological drought: degree of dryness, expressed as a departure of actual precipitation 
from expected average or normal amount, based on monthly, seasonal, or annual time scales 

 Hydrological drought: effects of precipitation shortfalls on streamflows, reservoir, lake, and 
groundwater levels 

 Agricultural drought: soil moisture deficiencies relative to water demands of crop life 

 Socioeconomic drought (or water management drought): demand for water exceeds the water 
supply, resulting in a water shortage 

 
Wisconsin is most vulnerable to agricultural drought.  The state has approximately 15.2 million acres of 
farmland on 78,000 farms and was ranked ninth in the country in overall farm receipts in 2010 (National 
Agricultural Statistics Service).  Even small droughts of limited duration can significantly reduce crop 
growth and yields, adversely affecting farm incomes and local economies.  Droughts also significantly 
increase the risk of forest fires and wildfires. Additionally, the loss of vegetation in the absence of sufficient 
water can result in flooding, even from average rainfall, following drought conditions. 
During the 20th century, seven notable drought events occurred in Wisconsin, as described below.  These 
droughts affected NOAA Climate Division 6, which includes Door County.     

 1929-1934:  The drought of 1929-1934 was probably the most significant in Wisconsin history, due 
to its duration and severity.  In some parts of the state, the drought continued with somewhat 
decreased effect until the early 1940s. 

 1948-1950:  The 1948-1950 drought was most significant in the northern part of the state.  

 1955-1959:  This drought affected all areas of the state, but less so in the northwestern corner. 

 1976-1977:  During this drought, the federal government declared 64 Wisconsin counties as 
drought areas, deeming them eligible for assistance under the 1988 Disaster Relief Act.  Federal 
assistance was used to help communities drill new wells to obtain new water supplies.  State 
agricultural losses due to this drought were valued at $624 million. 

 1987-1988:  Some believe the 1987-1988 drought to be the most severe ever experienced in 
Wisconsin and much of the Midwest.  It was characterized by below normal precipitation, persistent 
dry air, and above normal temperatures.  Its effects were most severe in north-central and 
northeastern Wisconsin.  Crop losses statewide were between 30% and 60%, valued at $1.3 
billion.  A combination of state and federal drought assistance programs helped Wisconsin farmers 
recover a portion of their losses. 

 2003:  In August 2003, drought conditions affected parts of south-central and southeast Wisconsin.  

 2007:  Between January and July of 2007, drought gradually affected most of Wisconsin, 
spreading from north to south.  Summer temperatures averaged one to three degrees above 
normal, and eventually moderate to extreme drought covered 85% of the state. Only the southern 
tier counties had normal to abnormally dry conditions.   

 
In addition to these seven droughts, a brief moderately severe drought occurred in Division 6 in 1963 and 
1964.  Figure 2.1 below shows the Palmer Drought Severity Index (PDSI) between 1895 and 2015 for 
Division 6.  The PDSI, devised in 1965, was the first drought indicator to comprehensively assess moisture 
status.  It uses temperature and precipitation data to calculate water supply and demand, incorporates soil 
moisture, and is considered most effective for unirrigated cropland.  The PDSI primarily reflects long-term 
drought and has been used extensively to initiate drought relief.  The index values are categorized as 
follows: 

 -4.0 or less, extreme 
 -3.0 to -3.9, severe 
 -2.0 to -2.9, moderate 

43

http://www.cpc.ncep.noaa.gov/products/analysis_monitoring/regional_monitoring/palmer.gif


 -1.9 to +1.9, near normal 
 +2.0 to +2.9, unusually moist 
 +3.0 – +3.9, very moist  

 
Figure 2.1: Palmer Drought Severity Index, Door County 

 
Source: http://www.ncdc.noaa.gov/cag/. 
 
Note that the NCEI Storm Events database shows only six drought events occurring between 1999 and 
2007; one drought was reported in 1999, two in 2005, and three in 2007. 
 
Probability of Occurrence, Impacts, Vulnerability, and Economic Costs 
 
According to the state hazard mitigation plan, the future incidence of drought is highly unpredictable, and 
may also be localized, making it difficult to determine probability with any accuracy.  NOAA is improving its 
methodology to accurately forecast drought conditions using a combination of current and historical 
precipitation, streamflow, ground water, and crop data to perform short-term and long-term forecasts. 
 
All municipalities in Door County are equally vulnerable to drought, however, the impact is greatest in the 
unincorporated areas due to large areas of agricultural use.  Table 2.8 shows agriculturally assessed land 
area and value for the Northern and Southern Door areas.  A drought is likely to have the same impact on 
both areas since it would be widespread and the average value per acre is similar, with Southern Door at 
$167 per acre and Northern Door at $175 per acre.   
 
HAZARDS NOT ASSESSED 
 
Wildfire 
Note that “wildfire” is a category within the NCEI Storm Events database, however, there are no recorded 
wildfire events for Door County.  
 
Chapter 26.01(2) of the Wisconsin State Statutes defines forest fires as any “uncontrolled, wild, or running 
fires burning in forest, marsh, field, cutover, or other lands or involving farm, city, or village property and 

44

http://www.ncdc.noaa.gov/cag/


improvements incidental to the uncontrolled, wild, or running fires occurring on forest, marsh, field, 
cutover, or other lands.”  Forest fires often begin unnoticed, spread quickly, and are usually signaled by 
dense smoke that may fill the area for miles around.  Wildfires in Wisconsin are primarily human-caused 
through acts such as burning yard debris, arson, or campfires.  They can also be caused by natural events 
such as lightning.   
 
According to the Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources (DNR), an average of over 1,500 wildfire 
events occur annually in Wisconsin, causing thousands of dollars of damage to property and destroying 
natural resources.  While most of the wildfire starts in Wisconsin are quickly contained and kept to less 
than ten acres in size, Wisconsin has experienced catastrophic fires throughout its history.  The most 
disastrous fire in the state’s history is the Peshtigo Fire, when more than 1.5 million acres of forest burned 
in northeastern Wisconsin, mainly in Oconto, Marinette, Shawano, Brown, Kewaunee, Door, and 
Manitowoc Counties.  The fire killed an estimate 1,152 people, displaced an estimated 3,000 people, and 
left another 350 people missing.  Although this event represents the greatest single loss of human life by 
fire in American history, the Great Chicago Fire, which occurred at the same time, received much more 
publicity than the Peshtigo fire.   
 
NCEI describes a “wildfire” event as any wildland-urban interface fire or forest, grassland, or rangeland fire 
that causes one or more fatalities, one or more injuries, and/or property damage (including equipment 
damaged in fighting the fire).  In general, forest fires smaller than 100 acres, grassland or rangeland fires 
smaller than 300 acres, and wildland use fires not actively managed as wildfires are not recorded.  There 
are no recorded wildfire events for Door County in the NCEI Storm Event database.   
 
Probability of Occurrence 
 
In 2011, in cooperation with federal and tribal partners, the DNR finished a statewide wildfire assessment 
to identify communities-at-risk.  The three factors used to assess potential wildfire damage are as follows: 

 Hazard:  the relative likelihood that an ignited wildfire will achieve sufficient intensity to threaten 
life or property based on land cover type, and historic fire regime (pattern, frequency, intensity). 

 Wildland-Urban Interface (WUI): the relative vulnerability of each 2000 census block to wildfire 
damage based on housing density and spatial relationships with undeveloped vegetation in the 
area.  Wisconsin’s WUI was layered with a weighted vegetation layer to accentuate proximity to 
flammable vegetation. 

 Ignition Risk:  the relative likelihood of a wildfire ignition within a given area based on historic fire 
occurrence, population density, and proximity to a potential ignition source. 

 
Each of Wisconsin’s 1,864 towns, villages, and cities were defined as a “community” and assigned one of 
five threat levels:  very low, low, moderate, high, and very high.  Communities determined to have a high 
or very high threat of wildfire are considered at-risk.  Statewide, 337 communities were determined to be 
at-risk, including the Town of Liberty Grove.   
 
Coastal Erosion 

Note that “coastal erosion” is not a category within the NCEI Storm Events database.   
Coastal erosion is defined as the wearing away of land and the loss of or displacement of lands along 
coastlines, beaches, or dune material over a period of time as a result of natural coastal processes or 
human influences.  Natural processes and human influences affecting coastal erosion are listed below. 
  
Natural processes: 

 lake level change 
 currents 
 tides 
 waves and storm surges 

45



 winds 
 flooding 
 orientation of shoreline 
 sediment influx 
 littoral processes 
 ice floes 
 overwash 

 
Human influences: 

 dredging 
 jetty and groin construction 
 hardening shorelines with seawalls 
 revetments 
 beach nourishment 
 boat wakes 
 construction of harbors 
 construction of sediment-trapping dams in the river tributaries 

  
Rates of bluff and dune erosion along the shores of the Great Lakes vary from no erosion to tens of feet 
per year due to annual variability in wave climate and lake levels.  Times of high water or wave action 
accelerate the erosion process, with bluff erosion more likely to occur during major storm events as a 
result of increased wave action on the shoreline.  The effects of wave-induced erosion are usually greater 
during periods of high water-levels.  Other significant factors contributing to shoreline erosion involve the 
movement of beach sediments for navigational improvements and shoreline structures and some dredge-
material disposal practices that deplete both tributary and shoreland sources of sediment.   
 
The state’s hazard mitigation plan describes all of Wisconsin’s 15 coastal counties as experiencing bluff 
erosion, coastal flooding, fluctuating water levels, and damage to shoreline structures.  Additionally, the 
Wisconsin Coastal Management Program’s “Needs Assessment and Strategy, 2011-2015” describes the 
185 miles of shoreline from southern-most Kenosha County to the Sturgeon Bay Canal as being the most 
vulnerable, as well as the northeastern part of Brown County.  The report describes erosion along the 
remainder of the Lake Michigan shore (from the Sturgeon Bay Canal in Door County to Green Bay) as 
limited to smaller segments of bays and clay banks. 
 
Probability of Occurrence 
 
According to the Wisconsin Initiative on Climate Change Impacts report, the state’s coastal regions will 
face unique challenges due to lower water levels, with Lake Michigan’s average water level predicted to 
decrease by about a foot by the end of the century.  Additionally, reduced ice cover due to warmer 
temperatures, combined with an increase in wind strength, will expose shorelines to larger waves for 
longer periods of time, resulting in shoreline erosion.  Predicted immoderate rain events will make 
shorelines exceedingly vulnerable to erosion as the soil will retain moisture more of the time, making it 
unstable and inordinately prone to erosion. Shoreline erosion eventually leads to shoreline recession, the 
change in distance from a shoreline feature's original position to the eroded position, the most visible 
aspect of erosion. However, recession does not immediately follow erosion and can take years to occur. 
Shoreline damage can also occur with fluctuating water levels and excessive wave impact. As waves 
down-cut the lakebed during low-water times, shoreline erosion happens more quickly; then when water 
levels rise again, waves can reach further inland and lead to shoreline damage. 
 
The state’s hazard mitigation plan includes a risk assessment that estimates losses from coastal erosion.  
The assessment used HAZUS default data from the 2000 Census to determine the number and types of 
structures subject to low- and high-risk erosion.  The erosion risk zones are based on distance in miles 
from coastal water, with the high-risk erosion zone defined as ¼ mile from coastal water and the low-risk 
erosion zone defined as ¼ to ½ mile from coastal water.  The replacement values of structures were 

46



estimated based on structure type and dimensions, with the replacement value assumed to be equal to the 
total loss of the structure.   
Table 2.9 shows the HAZUS loss estimation for the high-risk and low-risk erosion zones.  Door County has 
a total of 7,956 structures subject to high-risk erosion, valued at about $254 million.  Within the low-risk 
erosion zone, Door County has a total of 9,747 structures, valued at $604,386,720.  The state’s hazard 
mitigation plan ranks both low- and high-risk erosion zones as “high” risk for potential losses in Door 
County.   
 
Table 2.9: Coastal Erosion Zone Loss Estimation, Door County 

 
 
Landslide and Land Subsidence 

Note:  Neither “landslide” nor “land subsidence” is a category within the NCEI Storm Events database.   
 
Landslides, the downward and outward movement of slopes, refers to various kinds of events, including 
mudflows, mudslides, debris flows, rock falls, rockslides, debris avalanches, debris slides, and earth flows. 
Landslides may include any combination of natural rock, soil, or artificial fill, and are classified by the type 
of movement and the type of material, as described below:   

 Slides are downward displacements along one or more failure surfaces of soil or rock.  The 
material may be a single intact mass or a number of pieces.  The sliding may be rotational (turning 
about a point) or translational (movement roughly parallel to the failure surface). The most common 
type of slide is called a slump. A slump is a rotational slide occurring when a portion of a hillside 
moves downslope under the influence of gravity. 

 Flows are a form of rapid mass movement by loose soils, rocks, and organic matter, together with 
air and water that form a rapidly downhill flowing slurry mixture. Flows are distinguished from slides 
by high water content and velocities that resemble those of viscous liquids. 

 Lateral spreads are large movements of rock, fine-grained soils (i.e., quick clays), or granular soils, 
distributed laterally.  Liquefaction may occur in loose, granular soils, and can occur spontaneously 
due to changes in pore-water pressure or due to earthquake vibrations. 

 Falls and topples are masses of rocks or material that detach from a steep slope or cliff that free-
fall, roll, or bounce.  Movements typically are rapid to extremely rapid. Earthquakes commonly 
trigger rock falls. 

 
Land subsidence occurs when subsurface supports (i.e., bedrock or soils) fail, causing a loss of surface 
elevation.  This hazard is primarily caused by human activities in relation to mining and drainage of soils, 
but can also be caused by geologic conditions.  In certain parts of the state, sinkholes are more likely to be 
caused by human activity, such as abandoned mines or storm sewers.  In other areas, such as Door 
County, sinkholes are caused from Karst formations, prevalent in areas where carbonate rocks, such as 
limestone or dolomite, are present.  As the limestone rock under the soil dissolves over time from rainfall 
or flowing groundwater, a hollow area may form underground into which surface soil can sink. 
  
Probability of Occurrence 
 
Landslide probability is highly site-specific, and cannot be accurately characterized on a statewide basis, 
except in the most general sense. Statewide analyses for karst potential have been performed by the US 

Door County Risk
Res. Com. Gov. Total Res. Com. Gov.

High-Risk 
Erosion Zone 7,889 66 1 7,956 $252,104,420 $2,074,860 $14,140 High
Low-Risk 
Erosion Zone 9,654 92 1 9,747 $598,461,600 $5,896,840 $28,280 High
Source:  State of Wisconsin Hazard Mitigation Plan, 2011.  

Number of Structures Loss Estimation

47



Geological Survey and the Wisconsin Geological and Natural History Survey.  Most areas at greatest risk 
of shallow karst potential (less than five feet below surface) are found in the far western and southwestern 
portions of the state, however, Door County makes up the majority of an outlying area.  Deeper karst 
potential (five to 300 feet below ground surface) is found largely in the eastern portion of the state, along 
the Fox River and into southeastern Wisconsin.  In Door County, deeper karst potential is found in the 
southeast and southwest parts of the county.   
 
According to the state’s hazard mitigation plan, areas of Door County have had “moderate” landslide 
incidences.  These areas are shown along the coast in contiguous stretches in the Towns of Brussels and 
Union, the Towns of Sturgeon Bay and Clay Banks, and the Towns of Liberty Grove (west coast) and 
Gibraltar.  Although these areas have been designated as “moderate incidence” areas, they have not been 
given a “susceptibility” designation.  As such, these moderate incidence areas do not seem to pose any 
significant threat at this time.   
  
Dam Failure 
Note that “dam failure” is not a category within the NCEI Storm Events database.   
 
A dam is a barrier, typically constructed of earth, rock, concrete, or mine tailings, used to store, control, or 
divert water.  The water impounded behind a dam is referred to as the reservoir and its volume is 
measured in acre-feet, with one acre-foot being the volume of water that covers one acre of land to a 
depth of one foot.  
 
A dam failure is the collapse, breach, or other failure of a dam that causes downstream flooding.  Dam 
failures usually occur when the spillway capacity is inadequate and water overtops the dam or when 
internal erosion through the dam foundation occurs (also known as piping).  If internal erosion or 
overtopping causes a full structural breach, a high-velocity, debris-laden wall of water is released and 
rushes downstream, damaging or destroying whatever is in its path.  Dam failures may result due to one or 
more the following: 

 prolonged periods of rainfall and flooding (the cause of most failures) 
 inadequate spillway capacity which causes excess overtopping flows 
 landslides into reservoirs 
 high winds 
 improper maintenance 
 internal erosion erosions due to embankment or foundation leakage or piping 
 improper design 
 negligent operation 
 failure of upstream dams 
 earthquakes 

  
For emergency planning purposes, dam failures are categorized as one of the following: 

 Rainy Day Failures.  Rainy day failures involve periods of excessive precipitation leading to 
unusually high runoff.  This high runoff increases the reservoir level, and if not controlled, the 
overtopping of the dam or excessive water pressure can lead to dam failure. Normal storm events 
can also lead to rainy day failures if water outlets are plugged with debris or otherwise made 
inoperable. 

 Sunny Day Failures.  Sunny day failures occur due to poor dam maintenance, damage/obstruction 
of outlet systems, or vandalism.  This is the worst type of failure and can be catastrophic because 
the breach is unexpected and there may be insufficient time to properly warn downstream 
residents. 

 
The DNR has records on 23 dams located in Door County; most are private dams, classified as “small” 
dams, except for the one “large” dam located in the Town of Forestville, owned and operated by Door 
County.  The reservoir associated with this dam is 72 acres in size and 7 feet deep.   

48



Probability of Occurrence 

The direct economic impact of a dam or levee failure includes, but is not limited to, the cost of repair of the 
dam or levee, the flood damage resulting from the failure, and loss of income due to displaced businesses 
or workers. Though there have been very few dam failures in Wisconsin resulting in major damages or 
loss of life, many existing dams are starting to need more frequent repairs.  The DNR administers the Dam 
Safety program, authorized under Ch. 31, Wis. Stats., which regulates all dams and bridges affecting 
navigable waters in the state.  DNR administrative code NR333 mandates that an Inspection, Operation, 
and Maintenance (IOM) Plan be approved by the DNR in accordance with the following situations: 

 when a new dam is being designed and constructed 
 within ten years of performing a hazard analysis on an existing dam 
 when an existing dam is reconstructed 
 after a dam failure analysis is approved by the DNR 
 when a dam is referred to in an adopted floodplain zoning ordinance 
 when the DNR issues a department directive ordering a dam safety inspection 

 
Under NR 333, the DNR assigns hazard ratings to large dams in the state.  Two factors are considered 
when assigning hazard ratings: existing land use and land use controls (zoning) downstream of the dam.  
Dams are classified in one of three categories that identify the potential hazard to life and property: 

 high hazard – failure of dam would probably result in loss of life 
 significant hazard – failure of dam could result in appreciable property damage 
 low hazard – failure would result in only minimal property damage and loss of life is unlikely 

 
In 2012, the Town of Forestville dam was reassigned by the DNR from “significant hazard” to “low hazard” 
per a substantiated formal request made by the Door County Airport and Parks Department.  
 
Climate Change 
Note that “climate change” is not a category within the NCEI Storm Events database. 
 
NOAA defines climate change as a non-random change in climate that is measured over several decades 
or longer. The change may be due to natural or human-induced causes.  The Wisconsin Initiative on 
Climate Change Impacts (WICCI) has been researching effects of climate change specific to Wisconsin.  
WICCI is a partnership between the University of Wisconsin, DNR, and other state agencies and 
institutions.  The group was formed in 2007 as a response to a bi-partisan state legislative committee 
wanting to better understand the potential effects of climate change within the state. 
In its preliminary work, WICCI found that Wisconsin’s climate has changed in a pattern that is consistent 
with well-documented global trends.  The WICCI analysis was based on daily weather data recorded 
between 1950 and 2006 at 176 weather stations from throughout the state.  The key findings from this 
analysis are as follows: 

 There was a statewide increase in annual average temperature of 1.1°F, with peak warming in the 
northwest portion of Wisconsin. 

 The observed average temperature increase in the state has been highest for winter; statewide 
winter temperatures have increased 2.5°F since 1950, with 3.5°F to 4.5°F increases in the 
northwest portion of the state. 

 Wisconsin experiences fewer nights below 0°F than in 1950.  Specifically, most of the state 
experiences between two and six fewer nights, while the extreme northwestern portion of the state 
experiences between 18 and 24 fewer nights below 0°F. 

 Statewide, the average growing season lasts 12 days longer than it did in 1950.  In other words, 
the “spring thaw” comes sooner, and the “fall freeze” comes later. 

 Wisconsin has experienced a 10% increase in average annual precipitation over the 56-year period 
from 1950 to 2006.  This is an annual average of about three more inches of precipitation than in 

49

http://www.cpc.ncep.noaa.gov/products/outreach/glossary.shtml#CLI


the 1950s.  Noteworthy is the additional precipitation, as much as seven inches, in areas with high 
population density, such as near Madison (Dane County), Milwaukee (Milwaukee County), Eau 
Claire (Eau Claire County), and Hudson (Saint Croix County). 

 
According to the state hazard mitigation plan, Door County experienced the following temperature 
changes between 1950 and 2006: 

 1.0 – 1.5 degree increase in average temperature; 

 1.0 – 1.5 degree increase in average winter temperature; and 

 1.5 – 3.5 inch increase in average annual precipitation.   
 
Probability of Occurrence 
 
Historical temperature and precipitation data for Wisconsin have shown that the state has become warmer 
and wetter since 1950.  According to WICCI, between 1950 and 2006, Wisconsin’s average annual 
temperature rose by 1.1 degrees Fahrenheit and average annual precipitation has increased by 3.1 inches.  
Circulation models predict that this warming trend will continue and increase, with future precipitation also 
likely to increase. More precipitation is likely to occur in the form of rain and freezing rain during the winter, 
as well as increasing in both frequency and intensity during the spring and fall. By 2050, temperatures for 
the state are predicted to warm between 6° and 7° Fahrenheit.  
 
The combination of warmer temperatures, more precipitation, and more intense precipitation will have a 
critical impact on the quantity and quality of the state's water resources, natural habitats, agriculture, and 
the social and built environment. The state's coastal regions will face unique challenges in the form of 
shoreline erosion and recession and threats to coastal wetlands due to lower water levels, with Lake 
Michigan's average water level predicted to decrease by about a foot by the end of the century. 
 
According to the state’s hazard mitigation plan, the future is uncertain with regard to climate change, with 
varying models predicting a range of outcomes.  It is unknown how much the climate will change and at 
what speed it will change.  As further research is performed, better models to predict the effects of climate 
change will become available.   
 
Dense Fog 
 
NCEI describes a “dense fog” event as water droplets suspended in the air at the Earth’s surface, over a 
widespread or localized area, reducing visibility to values equal to or below locally/regionally established 
values for dense fog (usually ¼ mile or less) and impacting transportation or commerce.  A dense fog 
event is also reported anytime an accident or injury occurs due to fog.  Between 1996 and 2000, ten dense 
fog events were recorded for Door County, with six of those events recorded in 1996.   
 
Funnel Clouds and Waterspouts 
 
NCEI describes a “funnel cloud” as a rotating, visible, extension of a cloud pendant from a convective 
cloud with circulation not reaching the ground.  It includes cold-air funnels which typically form in a 
shallow, cool air mass behind a cold front.  The funnel cloud should be large, noteworthy, or create strong 
public interest to be reported.  Between 1999 and 2009, four funnel clouds were recorded for Door 
County.   
 
NCEI describes a “waterspout” event as a rotating column of air, pendant from a convective cloud, with its 
circulation extending from cloud base to the water surface of an area assigned as a Marine Forecast Zone, 
including the Great Lakes.  A condensation funnel may or may not be visible in the vortex.  Between 1998 
and 2001, six waterspouts were recorded for Door County.   
 
 
  

50



NON-NATURAL HAZARD PROFILES 
 
The non-natural hazards described in this section are as follows:  

 communicable diseases  
 private water supply contamination  
 hazardous materials – roadway 
 hazardous materials – waterway 
 loss of electrical system 
 transportation – roadway accidents  
 structural fire 
 loss of sewer system 
 nuclear power plant 

 
The data provided below regarding communicable diseases comes from the Center for Disease Control 
and Prevention.  The roadway accident information comes from the Wisconsin Department of 
Transportation.  The private water supply contamination, hazardous materials on roadways, and hazardous 
materials on waterways come from the DNR’s Remediation and Redevelopment Program, which oversees 
the investigation and cleanup of environmental contamination and the redevelopment of contaminated 
properties.  The Bureau for Remediation and Redevelopment Tracking System (BRRTS) is the DNR’s on-
line database that provides information about contaminated properties and other activities related to the 
investigation and cleanup of contaminated soil or groundwater in Wisconsin for both state and federal 
cleanup programs.  The database includes (but is not limited to) the following contamination data: 

 investigations and cleanups of contaminated soil and/or groundwater  
 spills 
 Superfund sites 
 DNR funding assistance 

 
The BRRTS divides the data into groups of activities, as listed below: 

 Abandoned container.  An abandoned container with potentially hazardous contents has been 
inspected and recovered. No known discharge to the environment has occurred. If the container 
discharged a hazardous substance, a “Spills” activity is created at this location (see “Spills” below). 

 Leaking Underground Storage Tank (LUST).  A LUST site has soil and/or groundwater 
contaminated with petroleum, which includes toxic and cancer causing substances. However, given 
time, petroleum contamination naturally breaks down in the environment (biodegradation). Some 
LUST sites may emit potentially explosive vapors. 

 Environmental Repair Program (ERP).  ERP sites are sites other than LUSTs that have 
contaminated soil and/or groundwater. Examples include industrial spills (or dumping) that need 
long term investigation, buried containers of hazardous substances, and closed landfills that have 
caused contamination. The ERP module includes petroleum contamination from above-ground (but 
not from underground) storage tanks. 

 Spills.  A discharge of a hazardous substance that may adversely impact, or threaten to impact, 
public health, welfare, or the environment. Spills are usually cleaned up quickly.  A spill is reportable 
to the DNR if there is an impact to human health; to the environment; there is a fire, explosion or 
safety hazard; or the spill has been cleaned up immediately.  Spills more than the quantities listed 
below must be reported to the DNR:   

o Petroleum compounds 
 petroleum product spilled and completely contained on an impervious surface 
 less than 1 gallon of gasoline or light grade petroleum product spilled onto a 

pervious surface or which runs off an impervious surface 
 less than 5 gallons of medium or heavy grade petroleum products spilled onto a 

pervious surface or which runs off an impervious surface  

51



o Agrichemical compounds 
 less than 250 pounds dry fertilizer 
 less than 25 gallons of a liquid fertilizer 
 pesticides that would cover less than 1 acre of land if applied according to label 

instructions 

 General Property Information.  This consists of records of various milestones related to liability 
exemptions, liability clarifications, and cleanup agreements that have been approved by the DNR to 
clarify the legal status of a property.  

 Voluntary Party Liability Exemption (VPLE).  VPLEs are an elective process in which a property 
owner conducts an environmental investigation and cleanup of an entire property and then receives 
limits on future liability for that contamination under s. 292.15, Wisconsin Statutes. An individual, 
business, or unit of government can receive the liability exemption after a completed cleanup is 
approved. 

 No Action Required.  There was, or may have been, a discharge to the environment and, based on 
the known information, DNR has determined that the responsible party does not need to undertake 
an investigation or cleanup in response to that discharge. 

 
COMMUNICABLE DISEASES  
 
The Planning Team assigned communicable diseases a total of nine points out of a possible nine points 
for level of risk.   
 

 Meningitis (3 occurrences reported in Door County between 1997 and 2014).  Meningitis is an 
inflammation of the membranes (meninges) surrounding the brain and spinal cord.  The swelling 
associated with meningitis often triggers the "hallmark" signs and symptoms of this condition, 
including headache, fever, and a stiff neck.  Most cases of meningitis in the U.S. are caused by a 
viral infection, but bacterial and fungal infections also can lead to meningitis. Depending on the 
cause of the infection, meningitis can get better on its own in a couple of weeks or it can be a life-
threatening emergency requiring urgent antibiotic treatment.  

 
It's easy to mistake the early signs and symptoms of meningitis for the flu (influenza). Meningitis signs and 
symptoms may develop over several hours or over one or two days.  The signs and symptoms that may 
occur in anyone older than the age of two include:  

 sudden high fever 
 severe headache that isn't easily confused with other types of headache 
 stiff neck 
 vomiting or nausea with headache 
 confusion or difficulty concentrating 
 seizures 
 sleepiness or difficulty waking up 
 sensitivity to light 
 lack of interest in drinking and eating 
 skin rash in some cases, such as in meningococcal meningitis 

 
 Tuberculosis (7 TB and 34 latent TB occurrences reported in Door County between 1997 and 

2014).  Tuberculosis (TB) is a disease caused by germs that are spread from person to person 
through the air. TB usually affects the lungs, but it can also affect other parts of the body, such as 
the brain, the kidneys, or the spine. A person with TB can die if they do not get treatment.  The 
general symptoms of TB disease include feelings of sickness or weakness, weight loss, fever, and 
night sweats. The symptoms of TB disease of the lungs also include coughing, chest pain, and the 
coughing up of blood. Symptoms of TB disease in other parts of the body depend on the area 
affected. 

52



TB germs spread into the air when a person with TB disease of the lungs or throat coughs, sneezes, 
speaks, or sings. These germs can stay in the air for several hours, depending on the environment. 
Persons who breathe in the air containing these TB germs can become infected; this is called latent TB 
infection.  People with latent TB infection have TB germs in their bodies, but they are not sick because the 
germs are not active. These people do not have symptoms of TB disease, and they cannot spread the 
germs to others, however, they may develop TB disease in the future. They are often prescribed treatment 
to prevent them from developing TB disease. 
 
People with TB disease have TB germs that are active, meaning that the germs are multiplying and 
destroying tissue in their body and can be spread to others. They usually, but not always, have symptoms 
of TB disease, which include those listed below.  Drugs that can treat TB disease are available. 

 a bad cough that lasts three weeks or longer 
 pain in the chest 
 coughing up blood or sputum 
 weakness or fatigue 
 weight loss 
 no appetite 
 chills 
 fever 
 sweating at night 

 
 Cryptosporidium (33 cases of cryptosporidiosis reported in Door County between 1997 and 

2014).  Cryptosporidium is a microscopic parasite that causes the diarrheal disease 
cryptosporidiosis. Both the parasite and the disease are commonly known as "Crypto."  There are 
many species of Cryptosporidium that infect animals, some of which also infect humans. The 
parasite is protected by an outer shell that allows it to survive outside the body for long periods of 
time and makes it very tolerant to chlorine disinfection.  While this parasite can be spread in 
several different ways, water (drinking water and recreational water) is the most common way the 
parasite spreads.  

 
Cryptosporidium is a leading cause of waterborne disease among humans in the United States.  
Cryptosporidium parasites are found in every region of the United States and throughout the world. 
Travelers to developing countries may be at greater risk for infection because of poorer water treatment 
and food sanitation.  In the United States, an estimated 748,000 cases of cryptosporidiosis occur each 
year. 
 
Crypto lives in the intestine of infected humans or animals that shed Cryptosporidium parasites in the 
stool. Millions of Crypto parasites can be released in a bowel movement from an infected human or 
animal. Shedding begins when the symptoms begin and can last for weeks after the symptoms (e.g., 
diarrhea) stop.  Crypto may be found in soil, food, water, or surfaces that have been contaminated with the 
feces from infected humans or animals. Crypto is not spread by contact with blood. Crypto can be spread 
by: 

 putting something in the mouth or accidentally swallowing something that has come in 
contact with the stool of a person or animal infected with Crypto 

 swallowing recreational water or beverages contaminated with Crypto 
 eating uncooked food contaminated with Crypto 
 touching your mouth with contaminated hands 

 
Contaminated water may include water that has not been boiled or filtered, as well as contaminated 
recreational water sources. Several community-wide outbreaks of cryptosporidiosis have been linked to 
drinking municipal water or recreational water contaminated with Cryptosporidium.  Once infected, people 
with decreased immunity are most at risk for severe disease, depending on a person's degree of immune 
suppression. 

53



 E. Coli (5 cases of Shiga Toxin-Producing occurrences reported in Door County between 1997 and 
2014).  Escherichia coli (E. coli) bacteria normally live in the intestines of people and animals. Most 
E. coli are harmless and actually are an important part of a healthy human intestinal tract.  Some E. 
coli are pathogenic, however, meaning they can cause illness, either diarrhea or illness outside of 
the intestinal tract.  

 
In 2002, the Door County Public Health Department began an extensive effort to monitor E. coli in the 
water at many beaches around Door County, largely due to the outbreak of a gastrointestinal illness traced 
back to one of the county’s most popular beaches.  In 2003, the Door County Soil & Water Conservation 
Department (SWCD) began identifying E. coli contamination sources at 31 beaches around the county, 
with a final report published in 2007.  The final report concluded that storm water discharge during and 
after rain events is one of the clear sources of E. coli contamination in beach water throughout the county, 
with the most contaminated sources originating from onshore sources.  Eleven beaches in nine different 
municipalities throughout the county were shown to have elevated E. Coli levels during or after rain 
events, the contamination likely due to the storm water discharge pipes located on or near the beaches.  
Since the 2007 report, the SWCD, through its Beach Contamination Reduction program, has worked with 
the county, City of Sturgeon Bay, Villages of Egg Harbor, Ephraim, and Sister Bay, and the Towns of 
Baileys Harbor, Gibraltar, Jacksonport, and Liberty Grove to develop construction plans to reduce 
stormwater contamination in public beach water.   
  

 Pneumonia. Pneumonia can be caused by viruses, bacteria, and fungi. In the United States, 
common causes of viral pneumonia are influenza and respiratory syncytial virus, and a common 
cause of bacterial pneumonia is Streptococcus pneumoniae (pneumococcus). 

 
 Norovirus.  Norovirus is very contagious, transmitted from an infected person, contaminated food 

or water, or by touching contaminated surfaces. The virus causes the stomach or intestines or both 
to get inflamed (acute gastroenteritis), leading to stomach pain, nausea, diarrhea, and vomiting.  It 
is the most common cause of acute gastroenteritis in the United States.  Norovirus illness can be 
serious, especially for young children and older adults.  Each year, it causes 19-21 million illnesses 
and contributes to 56,000-71,000 hospitalizations and 570-800 deaths. Norovirus is also the most 
common cause of foodborne-disease outbreaks in the United States.  The best way to help prevent 
norovirus is to practice proper hand washing and general cleanliness. 

 
 Influenza (3 hospitalizations between 1996 and 2014) 

o Seasonal Flu.  A contagious respiratory illness caused by influenza (flu) viruses occurring every 
year.  It affects an average of 5 percent to 20 percent of the U.S. population by causing mild to 
severe illness, and in some instances can lead to death. 

o H1N1 Influenza (swine flu; 18 cases in 2009).  H1N1 influenza is a respiratory disease of pigs 
caused by type A influenza viruses that cause regular outbreaks in pigs. People do not 
normally get H1N1 influenza, but human infections can and do happen. H1N1 influenza viruses 
have been reported to spread from person-to-person.  

o Avian Influenza.  Commonly known as bird flu, this strain of influenza virus is naturally 
occurring in birds. Wild birds can carry the virus and may not get sick from it; however, 
domestic birds may become infected by the virus and often die from it. 

 
WATER SUPPLY CONTAMINATION – PRIVATE  
 
The Planning Team assigned private water supply contamination a total of eight points out of a possible 
nine points for level of risk.   
 
Many of the soils in Door County are very shallow, especially in the northern two-thirds of the county. 
Across most of the county, soils are less than five feet in depth to bedrock; 22% of the soil is less than 18 
inches in depth and another 17% is between 18 to 36 inches in depth. The soils in the northern two-thirds 
of the county are rough and/or shallow, with much of the land cover remaining in woodland or wetland. 

54



The soils in the southern one-third of the county are deeper, smoother, and predominantly farmed. The 
largest acreage of the county’s wetlands are also found in this region. 
 
Since the county’s groundwater is recharged from water that infiltrates through a land surface consisting of 
thin soils and bedrock formations, Door County has one of the highest risks of surface water pollution to 
groundwater of any county in Wisconsin.  The dolostone bedrock contains many karst features that provide 
for large water-holding capacity and lateral flow, but also allow water and accompanying contaminants to 
quickly and directly enter the dolostone aquifer. 
 
As development in an area increases, so does the impervious surface area, such as roofs, driveways, and 
parking lots. This affects the amount and quality of water that infiltrates to the groundwater due to the 
changes to vegetative cover, slope, soil composition, and soil depth. Groundwater may be contaminated by 
construction and agricultural runoff events, which can lead to contamination of private wells, fish kills, and 
an influx of nutrients into surface waters, causing algal blooms.  Additionally, leaking private septic system 
tanks, usually made out of steel, or other malfunctioning portions of private septic systems, are primary 
contributors of bacteria such as fecal coliform and E. coli to groundwater. 
 
Figure 2.2 is a groundwater contamination susceptibility map, created by the DNR in partnership with the 
United States Geological Survey, University of Wisconsin-Extension, and Wisconsin Geological and Natural 
History Survey. Five physical resource characteristics were identified as important in determining how 
easily a contaminant can be carried through overlying materials to the groundwater. These characteristics 
are depth to bedrock, type of bedrock, soil characteristics, depth to water table, and characteristics of 
surficial deposits (glacial deposits lying between bedrock and soil). 
 
Municipal wells serve approximately one-third of the county’s households, while private wells serve 
approximately two-thirds of the county's households. Only the City of Sturgeon Bay, the Villages of 
Forestville and Sister Bay, and Maplewood (Town of Forestville) have municipal water. The Village of 
Sister Bay also serves some households located in the Town of Liberty Grove. The City of Sturgeon Bay 
and the Villages of Forestville and Sister Bay have mapped their “zones of contribution,” the surface area 
on the land that contributes rain and snowfall to the groundwater for a particular well site. Subsequent to 
mapping their zones of contributions, the City of Sturgeon Bay, Town of Liberty Grove, and the Village of 
Sister Bay have adopted wellhead protection ordinances. 
 
Due to Door County’s high risk for groundwater contamination, the county has requirements above and 
beyond the typical state requirements for well-drilling in place, such as additional casing requirements. 
The well casing is a steel or plastic pipe that lines the well, keeping it from caving in and protecting 
contamination of the ground water by surface water. In 1971, based on the findings of a study conducted 
by the Wisconsin Geological Survey of the county’s groundwater, the county set casing depths for two 
different “zones,” with minimum requirements of 100 feet and 170 feet depending upon which zone the 
well was located within. (State-wide, wells constructed prior to 1957 were required to have a uniform 
minimum casing of 40 feet; between 1957 and 1971, a uniform minimum casing of 100 feet was required. 
Currently, state-wide requirements vary depending on site conditions.) Since 2006, the transition areas 
between those zones are now required to have a minimum of 140 feet of casing. In some situations, the 
DNR grants variances for construction and/or usage of a well with less than the minimum required casing 
amounts. The DNR may also recommend more casing based on known contamination in an area. 
 
While municipal wells are routinely tested for contaminants, proper monitoring of contaminants in private 
wells often does not occur.  Known problems for private wells are primarily bacterial contamination and 
nitrates.  Copper and lead can also be present in groundwater, but usually come from plumbing/piping 
and sometimes from pesticides or herbicides. Lead can also be present in groundwater because of the 
county’s past agricultural practice of using lead arsenic for controlling diseases in orchards.   
 

55



Figure 2.2: Groundwater Contamination Susceptibility Analysis, Door County

 
 
Contaminants may enter the groundwater through spills and leaking underground tanks.  Water supply 
contamination from such occurrences has been reported to the DNR 14 times between 1984 and 2009, 
as listed below by type: 

 2 ERP – open 
 1 LUST – open 
 1 historical Spill 
 5 closed LUST 
 5 closed Spills 

 
The type of substances causing the contamination and number of events reported are as follows: 

 petroleum: 8 
 volatile organic compounds: 2 
 agriculture chemicals: 2 
 food: 1 
 manure: 1  

 
Note that the one manure event listed in the database occurred in 2005.  Not included in the database is a 
manure event that occurred in 2014 when manure was spread too close to a sinkhole and ended up in the 

56



drinking water supply of nearby homes in the Town of Jacksonport.  Sixteen people became ill and one 
person was hospitalized, according to the Door County Department of Public Health. 
 
HAZARDOUS MATERIALS – ROADWAY  
 
The Planning Team assigned hazardous material spills along or near a roadway a total ranking of six 
points out of a possible nine points.   
 
Hazardous material spills along or near a roadway in Door County have been reported to the DNR 12 
times between 1996 and 2014.  The types of substances and number of events reported are listed below: 

 petroleum: 8 
 agriculture chemicals: 2 
 sewage: 1 
 anti-freeze: 1 
 mineral oil: 1 
 manure: 1 

 
HAZARDOUS MATERIALS – WATERWAY 
 
The Planning Team assigned hazardous material spills in a waterway a total of five points out of a possible 
nine points.   
 
Hazardous material spills resulting in surface water contamination in Door County have been reported to 
the DNR 193 times between 1971 and 2015.  The status of all events are either “closed spill,” “historic 
spill,” or “closed ERP.”  The types of substances and number of events reported are listed below: 

 petroleum: 134 
 unknown or historical spill with no substance listed: 45 
 sewage: 4 
 other: 4 
 mineral oil: 3 
 industrial chemical: 2 
 volatile organic compound: 1 
 animal product: 1 
 food: 1 
 industrial chemical: 1 
 anti-freeze - 1 
 manure - 1 

 
Out of these 193 events, 163 (84%) took place in the Sturgeon Bay area, primarily taking place at the ship 
building/repair businesses.   
 
LOSS OF ELECTRICAL SYSTEM 
 
The Planning Team assigned loss of electrical system a total of five points out of a possible nine points 
for level of risk.   
 
According to a federal report issued by the Executive Office of the President, “Economic Benefits of 
Increasing Electric Grid Resilience to Weather Outages,” severe weather is the leading cause of power 
outages in the United States.  During a power outage, the normal operation of homes, businesses, public 
buildings and other critical community facilities may be interrupted.  The costs of outages take various 
forms, including lost output and wages, spoiled inventory, delayed production, inconvenience, and damage 
to the electric grid.  Grid resilience is increasingly important as climate change increases the frequency and 
intensity of severe weather.  Scientific research predicts more severe hurricanes, winter storms, heat waves, 
floods and other extreme weather events induced by climate change.  Continued investment in grid 

57



modernization and resilience will mitigate these costs over time, saving the economy billions of dollars and 
reducing the hardship experienced when extreme weather strikes.     
 
In addition to the economic costs of power outages, the loss of home heating and cooling systems may 
lead to heat exhaustion and hypothermia.  Note that there are no recorded deaths or hospitalizations in 
Door County due to the loss of home heating and cooling systems.  Described below are the primary 
electric, natural gas, and other fuel sources that keep homes heated/cooled in Door County.   
 
Electric Service 
 
Except for a few small home-based alternative energy systems, all of the county’s energy for electricity is 
imported from outside the county.  Wisconsin Public Service (WPS) supplies the majority of power to 
Door County’s residential, agricultural, commercial, and industrial customers, except for the Sturgeon 
Bay Utilities service area and the Town of Washington.  
 
Sturgeon Bay Utilities (SBU) maintains an electric distribution system that services over 8,300 customers 
in the City of Sturgeon Bay and the Towns of Clay Banks, Nasewaupee, Sevastopol, and Sturgeon Bay. 
Utility staff members are responsible for maintaining three substations with current capacity of over 98 
megawatts and over 281 miles of overhead and underground transmission lines. Over 3,300 transformers 
regulate the voltage measured by 9,400 meters used by its customers. 
 
SBU is customer-owned and a member of Wisconsin Public Power, Inc. (WPPI). WPPI, created to provide 
reliable, low-cost power and services to its member/owners, is a regional power company serving 50 
customer-owned electric utilities. Through WPPI, these public power utilities share resources and own 
generation facilities that provide reliable, affordable electricity to more than 190,000 homes and businesses 
in Wisconsin, Upper Michigan, and Iowa. WPPI supplies electricity to approximately 60 percent of the load 
served by municipal electric systems in Wisconsin, based on energy sales. 
 
The Washington Island Electric Cooperative Inc., a private electric service utility established in 1945, 
serves approximately 700 year-round residents and 1,300 seasonal residents on Washington Island. 
 
Most electric power for the county is transmitted along high voltage electric transmission lines owned and 
operated by the American Transmission Company (ATC). The ATC, formed in 2001, is a transmission-
only utility that owns and operates approximately 9,350 miles of transmission lines and 500 substations. It 
serves approximately two-thirds of Wisconsin, including Door County. Four transmission lines run through 
Southern Door to the City. Only one transmission line serves all of northern Door County (north of the 
Dunn Road station). Major transmission lines within Door County include 138 kilovolt lines. Smaller 
electric transmission lines (69 kilovolt) also traverse throughout the county. 
 
The ATC publishes an annual 10-year Transmission System Assessment Summary Report that outlines 
systems limitations and solutions for each of their five zones in Wisconsin. The September 2014 report 
recommends rebuilding a 69 kilovolt line between Dyckesville and the City, to be in service by the year 
2016.  ATC also plans to upgrade equipment at the Canal substation. 
 
Natural Gas and Other Fuels 
 
WPS provides natural gas service to the City of Sturgeon Bay and Southern and Central Door, including 
the Towns of Brussels, Forestville, Gardner, Nasewaupee, Sevastopol, Sturgeon Bay, and Union. County 
residents and businesses without natural gas service have individual on-site tanks for liquid propane or 
fuel oil, purchased from other private vendors. Wood stoves and pellet stoves have also become 
increasingly popular as energy costs rise and renewable energy sources receive greater attention in the 
media. Pellets are made from recycled sawdust, wood shavings, corn, walnut and peanut shells, and 
similar biomass wastes that are ground up, compressed, and extruded. 
 
  

58



TRANSPORTATION – ROADWAY ACCIDENTS 
 
The Planning Team assigned transportation, roadway accidents, a total of four points out of a possible nine 
points for level of risk.   
 
Vehicle crash reports are filed with WisDOT by county and city police departments, providing the time, 
location, type, and severity of the crash. The number, location, and severity of accidents often indicate 
problems with road and street alignments, construction, or the geometric design of the street. A variety of 
measures, including alterations in the street geometry, enlargement of the intersection turning radii, 
placement of more prominent signs, relocation of access drives, and speed changes, are often used to 
alleviate problem areas. Detailed crash information for Door County can be found on-line from WisDOT.  
Figure 2.3 below shows the most recent data available for number and severity of vehicle crashes in Door 
County between 1999 and 2012. 
 
Figure 2.3: Number and Severity of Crashes, Door County, 1999 - 2012 

 
Source:  http://www.dot.wisconsin.gov/safety/motorist/crashfacts/. 
 
STRUCTURAL FIRE  
 
The Planning Team assigned structural fire a total of four points out of a possible nine points for level of 
risk.  House fires pose a health risk primarily due to smoke inhalation and burns.   
 
LOSS OF SEWER SYSTEM  
 
The Planning Team assigned loss of sewer system a total of four points out of a possible nine points for 
level of risk.  A private septic system failure can cause pooling of sewage on the ground, which kids 
sometimes play in and get sick.  Failure of a municipal sewer system can cause structural damage, as well 
as pose health risks.  There no recorded deaths or hospitalizations in Door County due to failure of a 
sewer system.  
  
  

59



NUCLEAR POWER PLANT  
 
The Planning Team assigned nuclear power plant a total of three points out of a possible nine points for 
level of risk.   
 
Note: the information below is condensed from a Door County Environmental Council newsletter, sourced 
from Star Tribune, Power Engineering, Associated Press.   
 
The Nuclear Regulatory Commission defines two emergency planning zones around nuclear power plants: 
a plume exposure pathway zone with a radius of 10 miles, concerned primarily with exposure to, and 
inhalation of, airborne radioactive contamination, and an ingestion pathway zone of about 50 miles, 
concerned primarily with ingestion of food and liquid contaminated by radioactivity.   
 
The Point Beach nuclear power plant is located in Two Rivers, approximately 30 miles from Door County’s 
southern border.  This plant provides approximately one-sixth of the total electric power generated for 
Wisconsin.  The Kewaunee Nuclear Power Station, now closed, is located in Kewaunee County on the 
shore of Lake Michigan, 15 miles from Door County’s southern border.  The plant ceased operation on 
May 7th, 2013.  As of 2015, Dominion Resources, the current owner, was seeking a waiver of this 
requirement, contending that the rule is outdated and overly conservative.  The Nuclear Regulatory 
Commission’s estimate of the risk each year of an earthquake intense enough to cause core damage to 
the reactor at Kewaunee was 1 in 83,333, according to a study they published in 2010.     
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

60



 
 
 
 
 
Door County Hazard Mitigation Plan 
Chapter 3: Mitigation Strategies 
 
  

61



HAZARD MITIGATION GOALS AND ACTION ITEMS 
 
Per FEMA requirements, a hazard mitigation plan must contain goals and action items that represent what 
the community seeks to achieve through mitigation plan implementation.  Mitigation action items are a 
specific action, project, activity, or process taken to reduce or eliminate long-term risk to people and 
property from the impact of hazards.   
 
The goals and action items found in the chart below were prioritized by the lead and participating 
agencies, also identified in the chart below.  All lead and participating agencies were sent an email with 
applicable action items high-lighted in yellow.  Agency directors were asked to review the high-lighted 
items for confirmation of their involvement and to assign a low, medium, or high priority to each item.  
Directors were also asked to assign a time-frame for the implementation of each action item.  The costs 
and benefits of each action item will be considered when looking into implementation.     
 
LEGEND 
Door County Departments:  
Aging and Disability Resource Center (ADRC) 
Buildings and Grounds (Buildings and Grounds) 
Emergency Management Services (EMS) 
Highway (Highway) 
Human Services (Human Services) 
Information Systems (IS)  
Land Information Office (LIO) 
Parks (Parks) 
Planning (Planning)   
Public Health (Public Health) 
Sheriff’s (Sheriff’s) 
Soil and Water Conservation (SWCD) 
 
Local Municipalities: 
City of Sturgeon Bay 
Villages of Egg Harbor, Ephraim, Forestville, and Sister Bay 
 
Other agencies/committees: 
Communications Advisory Technical Subcommittee (CATS) 
Door County Economic Development Corporation (DCEDC) Attainable Housing Committee  
Lakeshore Community Action Program (CAP) 
Local Emergency Planning Committee (LEPC) 
 
HAZARD MITIGATION GOALS 

1. Minimize human, economic, and environmental disruption and reduce the potential for injury and 
loss of life from natural and non-natural hazards.  

2. Enhance public education about disaster preparedness and resilience, and expand public 
awareness of natural hazards. 

3. Encourage and promote continued comprehensive hazard mitigation planning and implementation 
of the plan. 

4. Support coordination and collaboration among federal, state, and local authorities and non-
governmental organizations regarding hazard mitigation activities. 

5. Improve the disaster resistance of buildings, structures, and infrastructure whether new 
construction, expansion, or renovation. 

62



Mitigation Strategy Priority Project 
Time Frame 

Lead and 
Participating 

Agencies 
GENERAL ACTION ITEMS 

1. Maintain and enhance CodeRed as the single most important source to alert the 
public to a hazard.   

High On-going EMS 

2. Incorporate some hazard mitigation planning, as appropriate, into future updates 
of the county’s comprehensive and farmland preservation plan.   

Medium  Every 10 yrs; 
next update 
no later than 
2025 

Planning 

3. Distribute hazard mitigation materials at housing workshops, trainings, and 
orientation sessions. 

Low On-going EMS  
DCEDC Attainable 
Housing Committee 
Lakeshore CAP 

4. Utilizing the Wisconsin Historical Society’s GIS database on historical and 
archeological sites, develop a GIS layer identifying those that are located within 
the 100-year floodplain. 

 

Low 10+ years Planning  

5. Continued use and further development of the county’s Geographic Information 
System for emergency service purposes.   
Note:  After a meeting with IS/LIO, EMS, and Planning regarding a mock-up of 
GIS hazard mitigation plan information, EMS decided this feature was not 
helpful enough to pursue finalization at this time.  If up-to-date utilities 
information can ever be obtained on a regular basis, this action item should be 
re-evaluated.    

Low 10+ years EMS 
IS/LIO 
Planning 

6. Research/install backup power supply system for county critical facilities. 
 
 

High 1 – 5 years EMS  
Buildings and Grounds 
 

7. Research alternative communication opportunities to assist overloaded dispatch 
capabilities due to a catastrophic event.   
Note:  The Door County Sheriff’s Department has a command vehicle that can 
also serve as a 911 call center.  Testing of the 911 call center function will take 
place in 2016.  In the meantime, the current 911 call center has a manual switch 
that will transfer calls to Brown County in the event the call center becomes 
overloaded.    

High 2016 Sheriff’s 
CATS  

63



Mitigation Strategy Priority Project 
Time Frame 

Lead and 
Participating 

Agencies 
8. Continue to add to and update information on the Sheriff’s Department Web site 

regarding types of hazards and how to respond in the event of a hazard or 
potential hazard, as well as links to sites with information related to weather 
conditions, burning practices/regulations, hazardous material spills, etc.  

Low On-going Sheriff’s 
IS 

STORMS AND/OR HAZARDOUS WIND EVENTS 
1. Continue to utilize public awareness methods such as radio and television 

stations and outdoor warning systems.  
High 
(V. SB – Medium) 

On-going EMS 
Local municipalities 

2. Investigate the feasibility of increasing the number of sirens located throughout 
the county.  (Note: the City and Village of Forestville already have outdoor 
warning systems.) 

Low 10+ years Local municipalities 

3. Continue to prepare and distribute educational materials to the public on severe 
weather safety procedures. 

High 
(V. SB – Medium)  

On-going EMS 

4. Inventory and investigate the feasibility of providing safe shelters and signage at 
state, county, and local parks and recreation areas. 

Low 
(City – not doing)  

10+ years Parks 
Local parks  

5. Install lightning protection devices and methods such as lightning rods and 
grounding on each community’s communications infrastructure and other critical 
facilities.   
Notes: The City has already done this.  For the county, possibly prioritize those 
without first vs. newer buildings.     

Low 10+ years Sheriff’s 
CATS 
Local municipalities 
IS 

6. Analyze lightning grade surge protection for critical electronic equipment used 
for response and recovery. 
Note:  Already done for data centers.  IS follows best practices and electrical 
codes (i.e., proper grounding and UPS protection) when computer infrastructure 
is installed.  Analysis is only done when the equipment does not work.   

Low  10+ years Sheriff’s/CATS 
IS 

7. Promote tornado safety public information as well as other summer severe 
weather public awareness/educational efforts through continued partnership with 
the National Weather Service. 

High On-going EMS 

8. Assist personnel in schools and businesses, public facility managers, and 
individuals in determining “best available” tornado safety areas. 

High On-going EMS 

9. Develop and maintain a comprehensive safety plan for each publicly-owned 
building. 

Low  
(V. SB – Medium) 

10+ years Airport 
Building and Grounds 
EMS 

64



Mitigation Strategy Priority Project 
Time Frame 

Lead and 
Participating 

Agencies 
 Government and Senior Centers have plans and are reviewed annually. 

 Library plan is in process. 

 Airport and Highway Departments do not have plans.   
Note: the City has already done this. 

Highway 
Sheriff’s 
Library 
Local municipalities 

10. Continue efforts to improve mobile home safety in windstorms and tornadoes 
through public education efforts and assistance in locating safe shelter sites, the 
requirement of tie-downs in mobile home parks, and the installation of outdoor 
warning sirens. 

Low 
(City – Medium;   
V. SB – N/A) 

On-going Planning  
Local municipalities  

11. Establish/maintain intergovernmental cooperation agreements with neighboring 
communities and private vendors to acquire any necessary additional equipment 
needed for storm clean-up. (Note: the City has already done this.) 

V. SB – High  1 – 5 years Local municipalities 

12. Establish/continue tree trimming, drainage system clearance, and other 
maintenance programs. For example:   

 Village of Egg Harbor – Public Tree Removal Ordinance 

 City – annual maintenance by Public Works Department and Sturgeon Bay 
Utilities 

Medium 
(City – high for 
tree trimming & 
low for drainage 
clearance; V. SB – 
Low) 

On-going Highway 
Local municipalities 

13. Encourage utility companies and development firms to bury power lines in new 
developments or when upgrades are made to existing lines. 

Low 
(City – No)  
 

On-going EMS 
Planning 
Local municipalities 

14. Work with communities to develop and/or enforce restrictions on planting large 
or rapidly growing trees near power lines. Note: City policy exists. 

Medium 
(V. SB – High)  

On-going Highway 
Local municipalities 

WINTER STORMS (HEAVY SNOW, BLIZZARDS, ICE) 
1. Continue to ensure plowing and salting/sanding equipment is operational and 

available to handle potential emergencies. 
High On-going Highway 

Local public works 

2. Continue to ensure/establish communication lines between municipalities, 
police, fire, EMS, hospital/clinics, and highway/street departments. 

Medium 
(City – High; 
V. SB – High) 

On-going EMS  
Sheriff’s 
Highway 
Local municipalities 

3. Provide for coordination of public safety, support agencies (such as American 
Red Cross and United Way), and resource acquisition during emergencies 
through implementation of the Door County Emergency Operations Plan. 

High On-going EMS 
American Red Cross 
United Way 

65



Mitigation Strategy Priority Project 
Time Frame 

Lead and 
Participating 

Agencies 
4. Ensure/continue inclusion of driver safety strategies for severe weather events 

in driver education classes and materials. 
Low On-going EMS  

Sheriff’s  
Public schools 

5. Collaborate with Soil and Water Conservation Department and the NRCS to 
expand windbreak planting, such as snow fences or “living snow fences” (rows 
of trees or other vegetation) to limit blowing and drifting of snow over critical 
roadway segments.   

Medium 
(City – No;  
V. SB – Medium)  

5 – 10 years Highway    
SWCD  
Local municipalities 

HAZARDOUS TEMPERATURES 

1. Encourage the county’s human service entities and energy providers to continue 
to expand programs to assist at-risk populations in paying their utility bills and in 
acquiring appliances to mitigate extreme weather conditions. 

Low On-going Public Health  
Human Services  
United Way 

2. Work with the local community and social service agencies such as the Door 
County Aging and Disability Resource Center to establish and maintain a 
“friendly visitor” program designed to have volunteers call vulnerable individuals 
during temperature advisory situations.   

Medium 5 – 10 years Public Health  
Human Services/ADRC  
United Way 

3. Establish/maintain agreements with such entities as local malls, libraries, and 
schools to serve as heating and cooling centers.  

Low On-going Public Health  

HAZARDOUS RAIN EVENTS 
1. Provide sewer back-flow prevention information and other floodproofing 

measures to communities through public information programs.   
City – Low  
V. SB – Low 

10+ years Local municipalities 

2. Encourage sewer utilities to provide back-up power sources at lift stations to 
help prevent sewer back-flow flooding.   
Note: the City and Villages of Forestville & Sister Bay have backup generators. 

Low (cost-
prohibitive) 

10+ years Local municipalities 

3. Prepare and maintain an evacuation plan for people and property, including 
dissemination of storm preparation measures and evacuation instructions to the 
public through the media. 

High 2016 EMS  

4. Continue to monitor the National Weather Service flood forecasts. High On-going EMS  

5. Maintain a process for the preparation of the opening and operation of 
congregate care facilities. 

High As-Needed EMS  

66



Mitigation Strategy Priority Project 
Time Frame 

Lead and 
Participating 

Agencies 
6. Establish/maintain protective measures such as sandbagging, protection of 

buildings and other structures, and emergency gas and electricity cut-off 
procedures. 

City – Low  
V. SB – Low 

10+ years Local municipalities 

7. Prepare, adopt, and maintain proactive land use planning methods through the 
county’s and municipalities’ comprehensive plans and implementation tools such 
as land use regulations (codes and ordinances) and stormwater management 
plans. 

Medium 
(City – Medium)  

On-going Planning  
Local municipalities 

8. Adopt/enforce land use regulations that preserve natural resources adjacent to 
and in defined floodplains. 

Medium On-going Planning  
Local municipalities 

9. Inventory and assess areas throughout both the rural and urban areas of the 
county that have repeated flash-flooding problems and identify activities to 
remediate or rectify problems at those locations. 

Medium 
(City – No)  

5 – 10 years EMS  
Local municipalities 

10. Utilize FEMA floodplain mapping when adopted to update existing flood maps 
and data sources to better determine areas and facilities susceptible to recurring 
flooding.  Note: the City has already done this. 

As-Needed 
(City – Medium)  

On-going Planning  
Local municipalities 

11. Maintain a stormwater management plan that includes such remediation 
techniques as surface detention basins and in-street detention units.   
Note: the City has already done this. 

V. SB – Low  
 

10+ years Local municipalities 

12. Implement a rural drainage improvement program that would include ditch, 
bridge, and culvert maintenance and improvements. (Note: the City has already 
done this.) 

City – Medium 
V. SB – Medium 

On-going Local municipalities 

13. Research WisDOT’s Flood Damage Aid Program; disseminate information as 
appropriate.   

Medium On-going EMS  
Planning  

HAIL 
1. Continue distribution of information through the UW-Extension and other 

appropriate sources on various hail insurance options such as the commercial 
stock and mutual companies, and Federal Crop Insurance Corporation (FCIC). 

TBD TBD UW-Extension 

2. Document hail damage. TBD TBD UW-Extension 

3. Promote Crop Hail Insurance programs for the agricultural community. TBD TBD UW-Extension 

 

67



Mitigation Strategy Priority Project 
Time Frame 

Lead and 
Participating 

Agencies 
COMMUNICABLE DISEASES 

1. Continue maintenance of a community public health system with adequate 
numbers of medical staff and sufficient disease monitoring and surveillance 
capabilities to adequately protect the population from small- and large-scale 
epidemics.   

High On-going Public Health  

2. Continue to encourage residents to receive immunizations against 
communicable diseases, including annual and special-strain flu shots.   

High On-going Public Health  

3. Promote public awareness and personal preparedness. Medium On-going Public Health  

4. Seek guidance from the State Pandemic Preparedness Plan. Low On-going Public Health  

PRIVATE WATER SUPPLY CONTAMINATION 
1. Research/implement expanded monitoring programs.  Medium 

(City – No;  
V. SB – Low)  

5 – 10 years SWCD  
Public Health  
Local municipalities 

2. Manage the impact of new development on water quality through appropriate 
land use designations, decisions, and conditions. 

High On-going Planning  

3. Partner with county Soil and Water Conservation and Sanitarian Departments to 
review and potentially update ordinances, programs, and policies in order to 
better protect water quality. 

High  1 – 5 years Planning  

HAZARDOUS MATERIALS – ROADWAY AND WATERWAY 
1. Work with the Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources to develop a 

database of hazardous materials being transported through Door County. 
Medium On-going EMS  

Highway  

2. Ensure that any business which uses, stores, or manufactures hazardous 
material is in compliance with the Occupational Safety and Health Administration 
regulations detailed in 29 CFR 1910.120 (hazardous waste operations and 
emergency response).   

Medium On-going EMS  
LEPC 

3. Continue diligent the Emergency Planning and Community Right-to-Know Act 
program.  

Medium On-going EMS  
LEPC 

4. Continue to exercise with regional HAZMAT teams. Medium On-going EMS  
Highway 

5. Continue to coordinate and collaborate with private utility companies. Low As-Needed EMS  

68



Mitigation Strategy Priority Project 
Time Frame 

Lead and 
Participating 

Agencies 
6. Promote state enforcement of federal requirements for transporting hazardous 

materials. 
High On-going EMS   

LOSS OF ELECTRICAL, FUEL, AND SEWER SYSTEMS 
1. Develop and coordinate county and regional exercises with utility companies. Medium On-going EMS  

2. Research and inventory Energy Assistance Programs offered by private utility 
companies.   

Medium On-going Human 
Services/Contracted 
Agency 

3. Inventory backup power generation capabilities.  High On-going EMS  

TRANSPORTATION – ROADWAY ACCIDENTS 
(from the Door County Comprehensive and Farmland Preservation Plan 2035) 

1. Require, when appropriate, safe and convenient pedestrian, bike, and walking 
paths, sidewalks, and crosswalks, particularly within dense or community core 
areas, that connect to residential and commercial areas. 

Medium 
(City – Medium)  

On-going Planning  
Local municipalities 

2. Address safety and efficiency issues by identifying dangerous intersections, 
providing adequate traffic controls, assessing lines-of-sight, providing 
appropriate access points, maintaining a minimum Level of Service (LOS) on all 
highways and roads, and other appropriate safety/efficiency methods. 

High 
(City – High)  

On-going Planning  
Highway   
Local municipalities 

STRUCTURAL FIRE 
1. Assess building codes and standards that apply to fire protective strategies. Medium On-going Local fire departments 

2. Establish/support community watch programs. Medium On-going Local fire departments 

3. Assess availability to high capacity wells for use in recharging response 
equipment during fires.  

Medium On-going Local fire departments 

4. Participate with the County Fire Chiefs Association. Medium On-going Local fire departments 

5. Inventory the details of existing Mutual Aid Agreements.  Medium On-going Local fire departments 

 

69



POTENTIAL FUNDING SOURCES FOR MITIGATION ACTIONS 
 
Funding for hazard mitigation programs and projects can come from a number of sources both 
public and private. Non-local funding can come from a number of sources, either in the form of a 
grant or a loan. The following text provides a description of a number of grant programs available 
to Manitowoc County, or other entities seeking to carry out hazard mitigation actions, in funding 
future mitigation actions identified in this plan: 
 
FEDERAL PROGRAMS 
 
EDA Public Works and Development Facilities  
 
These funds are available for local units of government to enhance regional competitiveness and 
promote long-term economic development in regions experiencing substantial economic distress. 
 
EDA provides Public Works investments to help distressed communities and regions revitalize, 
expand, and upgrade their physical infrastructure to attract new industry, encourage business 
expansion, diversify local economies, and generate or retain long-term private sector jobs and 
investment. 
 
FEMA Assistance to Firefighters Grant 

 
The primary goal of the Assistance to Firefighters Grants (AFG) is to meet the firefighting and 
emergency response needs of fire departments and nonaffiliated emergency medical services 
organizations. The AFG program has helps firefighters and other first responders to obtain 
critically needed equipment, protective gear, emergency vehicles, training, and other resources 
needed  to  protect  the  public  and  emergency  personnel  from  fire  and  related  hazards.  The 
National Preparedness Directorate in the Federal Emergency Management Agency administers 
the grants in cooperation with the U.S. Fire Administration. 
 
The Fire Prevention and Safety Grants (FP&S)  

 

FP&S grants are part of the AFG grants and are under the purview of the National Preparedness 
Directorate in the Federal Emergency Management Agency. FP&S grants support projects that 
enhance the safety of the public and firefighters from fire and related hazards. The primary goal is 
to target high-risk populations and mitigate high incidences of death and injury. 
 
FEMA Flood Mitigation Assistance Program 
 
The Flood Mitigation Assistance (FMA) program was created as part of the National Flood 
Insurance Reform Act (NFIRA) of 1994 with the goal of reducing or eliminating claims under the 
National Flood Insurance Program (NFIP).  FEMA provides FMA funds to assist States and 
communities implement measures that reduce or eliminate the long-term risk of flood damage to 
buildings,  manufactured  homes,  and  other  structures  insurable  under  the  National  Flood 
Insurance Program. Eligible activities include: acquisition, relocation, elevation, and flood- proofing 
of flood-prone insured properties; flood mitigation planning; and technical assistance. In order to 
be eligible for funding through this program the local government must be in compliance with the 
National Flood Insurance Program. 
 
FEMA Hazard Mitigation Grant Program 
 
The Hazard Mitigation Grant Program (HMGP) provides grants to States and local governments to 
implement long-term hazard mitigation measures after a major disaster declaration.  The purpose 

70



of the HMGP is to reduce the loss of life and property due to natural disasters and to enable 
mitigation measures to be implemented during the immediate recovery from a disaster. Eligible 
activities include: flood proofing; acquisition and relocation of flood prone properties; elevation of 
flood prone properties; retrofitting properties to be wind resistent; stormwater improvements; and 
education and awareness. In order to be eligible for funding through this program,  the  local  
government  must  be  in  compliance  with  the  National  Flood  Insurance Program. All projects 
must be cost-effective, environmentally sound, and solve a problem. Funds area available anytime 
after a Presidential Disaster Declaration has been made in the State of Wisconsin. 
 
FEMA Pre-Disaster Mitigation Program 
 

The Pre-Disaster Mitigation (PDM) program provides funds to states, territories, Indian tribal 
governments,   communities,   and   universities   for   hazard   mitigation   planning   and   the 
implementation of mitigation projects prior to a disaster event. Funding these plans and projects 
reduces overall risks to the population and structures, while also reducing reliance on funding from 
actual disaster declarations. PDM grants are to be awarded on a competitive basis and without 
reference to state allocations, quotas, or other formula-based allocation of funds. Grant funds can 
be used to cover management costs, information dissemination, planning, technical assistance, 
and mitigation projects. In order to be eligible for funding through this program the local  
government  must  be  in  compliance  with  the  National  Flood  Insurance  Program.  All projects 
must be cost-effective and environmentally sound. 
 
Pipeline and Hazardous Materials Safety Administration, Hazardous Materials Emergency 
Preparedness 
 
The  Hazardous  Materials  Emergency  Preparedness  (HMEP)  grant  program  is  intended  to 
provide financial and technical assistance as well as national direction and guidance to enhance 
State, Territorial, Tribal, and local hazardous materials emergency planning and training. The 
HMEP  Grant  Program  distributes  fees  collected  from  shippers  and  carriers  of  hazardous 
materials to emergency responders for hazmat training and to Local Emergency Planning 
Committees (LEPCs) for hazmat planning. 
 
U.S. Department of Education School Emergency Response and Crisis Management Plan 
Discretionary Grant Program 
 
This  grant  program  is  designed  to  provide  funds  to  Local  Education  Agencies  (LEA)  to 
strengthen and improve their emergency response and crisis plans, at the district and school- 
building level. Grantees are required to address all four phases of crisis planning: prevention and 
mitigation, preparedness, response, and recovery. In addition, LEAs are required to form 
partnerships and collaborate with community organizations, local law enforcement agencies, 
heads of local governments, and offices of public safety, health, and mental health as they review 
and revise school crisis plans. Plans must be coordinated with state or local homeland security 
plans and support implementation of the National Incident Management System (NIMS). Grant 
funds may be used for the following activities: training school safety teams and students; 
conducting building and facilities audits; communicating emergency response policies to parents 
and guardians; implementing an Incident Command System (ICS); purchasing school safety 
equipment  (to  a  limited  extent);  conducting  drills  and  tabletop  simulation  exercises;  and 
preparing and distributing copies of crisis plans. 
  

71



STATE OF WISCONSIN PROGRAMS 
 
WDNR Lake Planning Grant 
 
Counties, towns, cities, villages, tribes, qualified non-profit conservation organizations, qualified 
lake associations, school districts (in partnership with another eligible party), public inland lake 
protection and rehabilitation districts, town sanitary districts, and other local governmental units 
that are established for the purpose of lake management, are eligible to apply for funding to collect 
and analyze information needed to protect and restore lakes and their watersheds. 
 
Eligible activities include: gathering and analysis of physical, chemical, and biological information 
on lakes; describing present and potential land uses within lake watersheds and on shorelines; 
reviewing jurisdictional boundaries and evaluating ordinances that relate to zoning, sanitation, or 
pollution control or surface use; assessments of fish, aquatic life, wildlife, and their habitats; and 
developing, evaluating, publishing, and distributing alternative courses of action and 
recommendations in a lake management plan. 
 
WDNR Municipal Flood Control Grant Program 
 
The Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources, Bureau of Community Financial Assistance and 
Bureau of Watershed Management, offers this grant assistance package to all cities, villages, 
towns,  Indian  Tribes,  and  metropolitan  sewerage  districts  concerned  with  municipal  flood 
control management in the State of Wisconsin. Assistance is provided with the availability of 
Acquisition and Development grants to purchase property or vacant land, structure removal, 
construction or other development costs and with Local Assistance Grants for providing 
administrative support activities. 
 
WDNR River Planning Grant 
 
Under this grant program counties, cities, towns, villages, tribes, other local governmental units, 
qualified river management organizations, and qualified nonprofit conservation organizations are 
eligible to apply for funding under this program. Projects funded by this program must be designed 
to collect, assess and disseminate information on riverine ecosystems; assist in developing 
organizations to help manage rivers; assist the public in understanding riverine ecosystems; 
and/or create management plans for the long term protection and improvement of riverine 
ecosystems. Eligible activities include: organizational development for existing river 
protection/improvement organizations; assistance with the formation of a qualified river 
management organization; public education projects; and planning and assessment projects. 
Capital improvement projects are not eligible for funding under this grant. 
 
WDNR Volunteer Fire Assistance Grant 
 
Volunteer Fire Assistance (VFA) grants are available to Wisconsin county/area fire associations 
statewide. Grant funding is intended to support wildland fire suppression capabilities in an area 
through broad-ranging projects of benefit to all of the local fire departments. Successful 
applications  will  have  a  positive  impact  on  the  prevention,  detection,  and  suppression  of 
wildland fires in all of the communities served by a county/area fire association. Grant funds can 
be used for: fire fighter safety; fire fighter training; fire prevention (particularly in the Wildland 
Urban Interface); dry hydrants and other water resources; mapping; enhanced communications; 
wildland fire suppression equipment; and the organization of a new fire department. 
 
  

72



WDOA Comprehensive Planning Grant Program 
 
The  Division  of  Intergovernmental  Relations  administers  the  Wisconsin  Comprehensive 
Planning Grant Program to assist local governments in the development and adoption of 
comprehensive plans. The Comprehensive Planning Grant Program has established a framework 
that promotes cooperation, collaboration and the exchange of ideas relating to planning and land 
use issues. 
 
WDOA, Division of Housing and Intergovernmental Relations, Emergency Housing Grant 
Program 
 
This program makes available funds for acquisition, rehabilitation, and/or demolition projects after 
a disaster event has occurred. These funds can be used as a local match to receive FEMA 
mitigation funds. The project must be used to benefit low and moderate income individuals. 
 
PLAN MAINTENANCE 
 
Per the FEMA handbook guidelines, plan maintenance is the process the planning team establishes to 
track the plan’s implementation progress and to inform the plan update.  The plan must include a 
description of the method and schedule for monitoring, evaluating, and updating it within a 5-year cycle.  
These procedures help to: 

 Ensure that the mitigation strategy is implemented according to the plan. 

 Provide the foundation for an ongoing mitigation program in the community. 

 Standardize long-term monitoring of hazard-related activities. 

 Integrate mitigation principles into community official’s daily job responsibilities and department roles. 

 Maintain momentum through continued engagement and accountability in the plan’s progress.   
 
Plan updates provide the opportunity to consider how well the procedures established in the previously 
approved plan worked and then revise them as needed.   

 
MONITORING, EVALUATING, UPDATING 
 
The Door County Emergency Services Department (EMS) is the agency responsible for monitoring, 
evaluating, and updating this plan.  EMS will monitor the implementation of this plan by discussing it 
annually (approximately one year from the date of adoption) with the Emergency 
Services/Communications and Local Emergency Planning Committees.  Within three years of the date of 
adoption, the plan’s action items will be evaluated for effectiveness at achieving the plan’s goals by 
contacting the agencies identified in the Mitigation Strategies chart for an update.  Within five years of the 
date of adoption, this plan will be reviewed and revised as necessary to reflect any changes in progress 
or priority.     
 
In addition to the processes described above, EMS will incorporate as appropriate any action items from 
the hazard mitigation plan into the Door County Emergency Operations Plan.  The purpose of the 
Emergency Operations Plan is to: 

1.  Facilitate the protection of lives, property, and the environment in major disasters of any 
nature. 

2. Coordinate response to disasters, assess damages, identify mitigation opportunities, and 
implement recovery efforts. 

73



3. Describe the county’s relationship in support of local units of governments during response 
and recovery. 

4. Serve as a coordinating document for supporting inter policies and procedures. 
5. Reflect information collected, decisions made, and procedures developed in the planning 

process and during response. 
6. Provide a link between the county and municipal plans.   

 
Lastly, the Door County Hazard Mitigation Plan will be posted on both the Planning and Emergency 
Management Services Departments’ Web sites along with contact information for providing input. 

74



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Door County Hazard Mitigation Plan 
Appendix A 

75



76



77



78



79



80



81



82



83



84



85



86



87



88



89



90



91



92



93



94



95



96



97



98



99



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Door County Hazard Mitigation Plan 
Appendix B  
 
 
 
 

100



101



102



103



104



105



106



107



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Door County Hazard Mitigation Plan 
Appendix C 

108



SUMMARY OF MUNICIPAL CAPABILITIES 
Note: The county and municipalities will review the Door County Hazard Mitigation Plan when updating the 
plans and ordinances listed below in order to identify any opportunities for integrating this plan into other 
planning mechanisms.  The county and municipalities will also post this plan on their individual Web sites 
with instructions on how the public may comment.     
 
Door County 
 
Planning and Regulatory 
 
Plans: 

 Comprehensive and farmland preservation plan 2035 
 Capital improvements plan (2005 – 2009) 
 Economic development plan (2005) 
 Local emergency operations plan (2012) 
 Continuity of operations plan (Emergency Services and Public Health) 
 Transportation plan (2012) 
 Continuity of Operations Plan (for county buildings) 

 
Land Use Planning and Ordinances 

 Zoning ordinance 
 Subdivision ordinance 
 Floodplain ordinance, flood insurance rate maps 
 Land division ordinance, stormwater runoff control for major land divisions  

 
Administrative and Technical 
 
Administration 

 Planning commission 
 Emergency Services committee, mitigation planning 
 Tree trimming (highway department?) 
 Mutual aid agreements (Door County Emergency Operations Plans) 
 Emergency manager 

 
Staff 

 Floodplain zoning administrators 
 Emergency manager 
 Community planner 
 GIS coordinator 

 
Technical 

 Hazard data and information 
 Grant writing 
 Warning systems/services (CodeRed) 
 Reverse 911 

 

109



Financial (funding resources) 

 Capital improvements project funding 
 Incur debt through general obligation bonds and/or special tax bonds 
 Community development block grant 
 Other federal funding programs 
 State funding programs 

 
Education and Outreach 

 Door County Public Health  
 Door County Sheriff’s Department 
 United Way 
 Local Emergency Planning Committee (educates the community on hazardous materials located 

throughout the community) 
 

City of Sturgeon Bay 
 
Planning and Regulatory 
 
Plans: 

 Comprehensive plan (2010) 
 Capital improvements plan (2014) 
 Economic development plan (2005) 
 Local emergency operations plan (2014) 
 Transportation plan (2000) 
 Stormwater management plan (2005) 
 Continuity of Operations Plan (2006) 
 Port security plan (2006) 

 
Building Code, Permitting, and Inspections 

 State building code  
 ISO rating of 3 
 Site plan review requirements 

 
Land Use Planning and Ordinances 

 Zoning ordinance (includes wellhead protection standards) 
 Subdivision ordinance (includes land suitability, cul-de-sac length, water main looping, and other 

mitigation standards; includes acquisition of land for open space and public recreation uses) 
 Floodplain ordinance, flood insurance rate maps 
 Stormwater management ordinance (requires new development to reduce runoff to guard against 

downstream flooding) 
 Shoreland Wetland Zoning Code 
 Property Maintenance Code 

 
  

110



Administrative and Technical 
 
Administration 

 Planning commission 
 Maintenance programs (Public Works Department and Sturgeon Bay Utilities) 
 Mutual aid agreements (Door County Emergency Operations Plans) 
 Mutual Aid Box Alarm System division #154 (statewide mutual aid, July 2014) 

 
Staff 

 Chief building official 
 Floodplain zoning administrator 
 Community planner 
 Civil engineer 
 GIS coordinator 
 All city staff is trained in National Incident Management System and Incident Command System 100 

& 200 
 

Technical 

 Emergency Planning and Community Right-to-Know Act reporting and Fire Department inspection 
records 

 Grant writing 
 Outdoor warning systems (six sirens) 
 Cable TV warning system  

 
Financial (funding resources) 

 Capital improvements project funding 
 Authority to levy taxes for specific purposes 
 Fees for water, sewer, gas, or electric services 
 Incur debt through general obligation bonds and/or special tax bonds 
 Storm water utility fee 
 Incur debt through private activities 
 Community development block grant 
 Other federal funding programs 
 State funding programs 

 
Education and Outreach 

 Ham radio operators provide communications during disaster 
 Civil Air Patrol and U.S. Coast Guard Auxiliary 
 Fire department has ongoing fire safety, household preparedness, and weather emergency 

programs provided to businesses, schools, etc.   
 Fire department prepares and educates schools on disaster plans 

 
  

111



Village of Egg Harbor 
 
Planning and Regulatory 
 
Plans: 

 Comprehensive plan (2008) 
 Capital improvements plan (2015) 
 Local emergency operations plan (2014) 

 
Building Code, Permitting, and Inspections 

 State building code  
 ISO rating of 7 
 Site plan review requirements 

 
Land Use Planning and Ordinances 

 Zoning ordinance 
 Subdivision ordinance 
 Floodplain ordinance, flood insurance rate maps 
 Public tree removal 

 
Administrative and Technical 
 
Administration 

 Planning commission 
 Maintenance programs 
 Mutual aid agreements 

 
Staff 

 Chief building official (part-time) 
 Floodplain zoning administrator 
 Civil engineer (part-time)  

 
Technical 

 Hazard data and information (municipal owned/operated) 
 Grant writing 

 
Financial (funding resources) 

 Capital improvements project funding 
 Fees for water, sewer, gas, or electric services 
 Incur debt through general obligation bonds and/or special tax bonds 
 Incur debt through private activities 
 Community development block grant 
 Other federal funding programs (beach/storm water improvement, marina repairs) 
 State funding programs (marina repairs) 

 
  

112



Education and Outreach 

 Ham radio operators provide communications during disaster 
 Civil Air Patrol and U.S. Coast Guard Auxiliary 
 Fire department has ongoing fire safety, household preparedness, and weather emergency 

programs provided to businesses, schools, etc.   
 Fire department prepares and educates schools on disaster plans 

 
Village of Ephraim 
 
Planning and Regulatory 
 
Plans: 

 Comprehensive plan (2009) 
 Transportation plan (currently discussing) 
 Stormwater design standards (within erosion control ordinance) 

 
Building Code, Permitting, and Inspections 

 State building code  
 ISO rating of 7 

 
Land Use Planning and Ordinances 

 Zoning ordinance 
 Subdivision ordinance 
 Floodplain zoning ordinance, flood insurance rate maps 
 Erosion control ordinance with specific Niagara escarpment language 
 Acquisition of land for open space and public recreation uses 

 
Administrative and Technical 
 
Administration 

 Planning commission 
 Tree trimming and flushing storm sewers annually 
 Mutual aid agreements through fire department 

 
Staff 

 Zoning/floodplain administrator and community planner 
 Fire chief 

 
Technical 

 Grant writing 
 
Financial (funding resources) 

 Capital improvements project funding 
 Authority to levy taxes for specific purposes  
 Fees for water, sewer, gas, or electric services 
 Incur debt through general obligation bonds and/or special tax bonds 
 Incur debt through private activities 
 Community development block grant 
 Other federal funding programs 

113



 State funding programs 
 

Education and Outreach  

 Ongoing public education or information programs (fire department gives presentations to Gibraltar 
and Peninsula Preschools, and at an annual fire station open house  
 

Village of Forestville 
 
Planning and Regulatory 
 
Plans: 

 Comprehensive plan (2010) 
 Economic development plan (2010)  
 Local emergency operations plan (2014) 
 Transportation plan (2010) 
 Stormwater management plan (2010) 

 
Building Code, Permitting, and Inspections 

 State building code  
 ISO rating of 6 
 Site plan review requirements 

 
Land Use Planning and Ordinances 

 Zoning ordinance 
 Subdivision ordinance 
 Floodplain zoning ordinance, flood insurance rate maps 

 
Administrative and Technical 
 
Administration 

 Planning commission 
 Mitigation planning committee 
 Mutual aid agreements 

 
Technical 

 Outdoor warning siren 
 
Financial (funding resources) 

 Authority to levy taxes for specific purposes 
 Fees for water, sewer, gas, or electric services 
 Impact fees for new development 
 Other federal funding programs (beach/storm water improvement, marina repairs) 
 State funding programs (marina repairs) 

 
Village of Sister Bay 
 
Planning and Regulatory 
 
Plans: 

114



 Comprehensive plan (2003) 
 Capital improvements plan (2014) 
 Economic development plan (2014)  

 
Building Code, Permitting, and Inspections 

 State building code  
 ISO rating of 4/5 (hydrants/1,000’ beyond hydrants) 
 Site plan review requirements 

 
Land Use Planning and Ordinances 

 Zoning ordinance 
 Subdivision ordinance 
 Natural hazard specific ordinance (bluff protection) 
 Acquisition of land for open space and public recreation uses 
 Flood insurance rate maps 

 
Administrative and Technical 
 
Administration 

 Planning commission 
 Maintenance programs 
 Mutual aid agreements 

 
Staff 

 Chief building official (part-time) 
 Community planner 

 
Technical 

 Limited outdoor warning capacity 
 
Financial (funding resources) 

 Capital improvements project funding 
 Authority to levy taxes for specific purposes  
 Fees for water, sewer, gas, or electric services 
 Impact fees for new development 
 Incur debt through general obligation bonds and/or special tax bonds 
 Incur debt through private activities 
 Community development block grant? 
 Other federal funding programs 
 State funding programs 

 
Education and Outreach 

 Sister Bay & Liberty Grove Fire Fighters Association 
 Northern Door First Responders Association 
 Open house at fire station 

  

115



 
 
 
 
 
Door County Hazard Mitigation Plan 
Appendix D 
 

116



"!42

"!57

"!57"!42

"!42

"!57 "!42

Y

Y
D

D
D

D

N

N

N

X X

K K

C

C

C C

J
J

H

J
J

XC

DK

XC

MM

O

O

H

S

S

S

OO

U

U

U

CC

SB
C C

M

M

PD

HH

HH

TT

TT

BB

WD

B

T

P

II

T

T

E
A

E

EE

B

T

T

G

G

A
V

EE

F

F

A

Q

Q

Q

F

ZZ

ZZ

NP

DK

W

W

W

W
W

Town of Washington

Baileys
Harbor

Brussels

Clay
Banks

Egg
Harbor

Forestville

Gardner

Gibraltar

Jacksonport

Liberty
Grove

Nasewaupee

Sevastopol

Sturgeon
Bay

Union

Washington

Village of
Egg Harbor

Village of
Ephraim

Village of
Forestville

Village of
Sister Bay

City of
Sturgeon Bay

This set of maps is a compilation of data
gathered for evaluation purposes only.

Data source:  FEMA 2008
                      Door County Planning Dept. 2014

Adopted by the Door County Board of Supervisors,
December 16, 2014
Effective upon distribution per Wisconsin State Statutes,
January 1, 2015

See Town of Washington Inset

0 3 6 Miles

N

EW

S

Shoreland Areas

Lakes and Ponds
Streams

Road Class
State Highway
County Highway
Local Road

Floodplain

Door County Planning Dept.
421 Nebraska Street

Sturgeon Bay, WI  54235
(920) 746-2323

map.co.door.wi.us/planning

117

rkerwin
Typewritten Text

rkerwin
Typewritten Text

rkerwin
Typewritten Text

rkerwin
Typewritten Text

rkerwin
Typewritten Text

rkerwin
Typewritten Text

rkerwin
Typewritten Text

rkerwin
Typewritten Text

rkerwin
Typewritten Text

rkerwin
Typewritten Text
Door County Hazard Mitigation PlanMap 2.1: Shoreland and Floodplain Areas

rkerwin
Typewritten Text

rkerwin
Typewritten Text

rkerwin
Typewritten Text



!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!n

æ

æ

æ

æ

æ

æ

æ

æ æ

æ

æ

æ

æ

æ

æ

æ

æææ

æ

æ
æ

²

²

²

²

²

c

²c

²

!®²

;

;
²

;
;

!®

ú úúú
úú
úú ú

úúú úúú

úú
ú úú ú

úúúú ú úú
úúú úúúúú ú

úú
úúúú ú úúú úúúúúúúúú úú úúú úúúú ú úú úú ú
úú

úú úúúú úú

úú

ú úú
úú ú

ú ú úúú úú ú úúúú ú úú ú
úúú ú úú ú úú ú ú

úú úúú ú
úú

úú
ú

ú úúúú ú úú úú
ú úú úú ú ú

úú úúúú ú ú úúúú
úú

úú ú
úúúú úúúú úú ú

ú
úú úúúú ú ú

ú
ú úúúúúú úú úú

úú
ú úú úú ú

ú ú ú úú úú
ú

úú úúú
ú

úúúú úú ú úú ú úúú
ú

úúúúúú ú úúú ú úú úúú úú úú úú úú

Î

e

e

e

î

î

î

Î

k

k

e

î

k

¬

¬

¬

¬

sk
¬

k

Ñ

¬
r

r

r

r

r
r

r

d

d

r

r

rr
r

r

r

r

r
rr

r

r

r

Þ
r

rÞ dÞ

Þ dÞr

Þ
Þ

d

!

dÞ

Þ
r

Þ

Þ

Þ

Þdd

r

!

r

ÆQ

ÆQ

ÆQ

h

g

i

®

å
å

å

å

å å

å

«

å
® «

«
å
å
«

«
å
«

0

0

j

j

j

V
V

V

V

V

V

V

V

V

V

V

V

V

V

V

V

V

,
,

,,
,

,

,

,

,

,

,

,
,

, ,

,

,
,

,

,,

, ,,
, ,

,

,

,

,

,
,

,

,
,

,

,

,,

,
,

,

,

, ,V

,

,

,,

,

,

,

,V

,

,

,

,,

V

7

7

N

N

O

U

U
U

U

U

U

U

U
j

N

j
j

j

j
j

j

jj

0

V

Union

Br
us

se
ls

Gardner

NasewaupeeForestville

Sevastopol

Cla
y B

an
ks

Stu
rge

on
 Ba

y

Sturgeon Bay

Ga
rdn

er

Dunes Lake

Forestville Millpond

Dunes Lake

Stony Creek

Renard Creek

Kayes Creek

Ahnapee River

Larson Creek

Ma
y C

ree
k

Sil
ve

r C
ree

k -
 Br

us
se

ls

Bear Creek

Fabry Creek

Big Creek

Schuyler Creek

Claybanks Creek

Lily Bay Creek

Twin Harbor Creek

Los
t Cree

k

Sugar Creek

Woodard Creek

Malvitz Creek

CO
 H

WY
 C

CO HWY DK

CO HWY S

CO HWY X

CO
 H

WY
 U

S Shiloh Rd

Mi
ll R

d

CO HWY K

Stone Rd

Pa
rk 

Dr

ST
 H

WY
 42

Tru
 W

ay
 R

d

ST HWY 57

CO HWY J

CO HWY H

CO
 H

WY
 N

Pit Rd

Fox Ln

Mi
se

re 
Rd

Br
us

se
ls 

Rd

CO
 H

WY
 XC

Salona Rd

CO
 H

WY
 O

CO
 H

WY
 M

Forest Rd

Wilson Rd

CO HWY Y

School Rd

Rabbit Rd

Low Rd

Tagge Rd

Maplewood Rd

ST HWY 42-57

Idl
ew

ild
 R

d

Lovers Ln

W Center Rd

Hornspier Rd

Silverdale Rd

CO HWY MM

CO HWY TT

Cherry Rd

E Center Rd

Ma
y R

d

Swamp Rd

Sand Bay Rd

Ce
da

r L
n

Ba
y S

ho
re 

Dr

Ril
ey

s B
ay

 R
d

Ma
ple

 R
d

Lime Kiln Rd

Ma
rsh

 R
d

S Brauer Rd

Old Elm Rd

Pine Rd Midway Rd

Rosewood Rd

Pit
 C

t

S S
tev

en
so

n P
ier

 R
d

Geier Rd

Kolberg Rd

Emerald Dr

Shoreline Rd

Sc
ho

ol 
Dr

Cemetery Rd

Ploor Rd

S L
ak

e M
ich

iga
n D

r

Circle Ridge Rd

Walker Rd

N Carnot Rd

La
ke

 Fo
res

t P
ark

 R
d

W Carnot Rd

CO HWY OO

Poplar Ln

Pine Ln

Taube Rd

Elm
 Ln

Hig
h R

d

W County Line Rd

Ro
ck

y R
d

White Star Rd

Star Rd

Mile Rd

Ripp Rd

Gardner Rd

Du
mp

 R
d

Vis
te 

Rd

Dane Rd

Wilke Rd

Rid
ge

 R
d

Feest Rd

E Carnot Rd

S H
all

 R
d

Belgian Dr

Moore Rd

Cu
rve

 R
d

Sw
am

p C
t

N Town Hall Rd

Haberli Rd

County Line Rd

Renier Rd

Mathey Rd

Led
ge

 Rd

Cloverleaf Rd

CO HWY D

S Forest Dr

Pic
ke

ral
 R

d

Elm
s R

d

Sams Rd

Stage Rd Hump Rd

W Dunn Rd

Glidden Dr

S C
arn

ot 
Rd

Ne
w 

Se
ttle

me
nt 

Rd

S Norway Rd

Cherry Ln

Sand Bay Point Rd

S Bay S
hor

e R
d

Gravel Pit Rd

Skeet Ave

Shoemaker Rd

W Star Rd

Hil
ly 

Rid
ge

 R
d

Haines Rd

Zirbel Rd

N 
No

rw
ay

 R
d

To
rna

do
 R

d

Kluth Rd

E Swamp Rd

Dufek Ln

Co
yo

te 
Ct

Old Substation Rd

Mann Rd

Y Inn Rd

CO HWY H-O

Rass Rd Ro
ose

vel
t C

t

Clar 
Lin

 Rd

Rutz Ln

Hoffman Rd

Hickory Hill Ln

Oakwood Rd

Wood Lane Rd

Sk
i L

n

Guilette Rd

Sixel Rd

Naze Rd

Slow Rd

School Ln

Plainview Rd

Todey Rd

Bre
ezy

 Ac
res

 Rd

E Gardner Rd

W Olson Dr

Cir
cle

 Ri
dge

 Ct

W Jorns Ln

Roosevelt Rd

Sa
rge

an
t R

d

Appletree Rd

Circle Rd

Duvall Ct

Cli
ff T

op
 Rd

Coisman Rd

South Rd

ST H
WY 42

-57

CO HWY J

S L
ake

 M
ich

iga
n D

rLovers Ln

CO HWY D

Rileys Bay Rd

Haberli Rd

CO HWY C

Ledge Rd

ST HWY 57

CO HWY H

Sand Bay Rd

ST HWY 42

ST HWY 57

AT
C

ATC

¯

Map 2.2: Facilities/Infrastructure, 
Hazardous Materials, and Flood Zone
Central Door

Door County Hazard Mitigation Plan

Transportation-Related
airport or aircraft-relatede

boat rampî

ferryí
highway shopk

marinaÎ
stream road intersectionsú

roads in 100-yr flood zone

!n dam
Other

100-yr flood zone

® child care
å school

Occupied Buildings/
Vulnerable Populations

« vulnerable population

Utilities

power lines (ATC)
water-relatedÞ

propaneÄ

electric-relatedd

gas lines (WPS)! !

radio/tv-related!

communications-relatedr

Emergency Services

emergency servicesns
fire station¬

clinic/hospitalÑ

a police station

Coast Guard-relatedk

Hazardous Materials

fuel storagey

, manure storage

solid wasteN

landfillO

wastewater relatedj

open contamination siteU

_ chemical storage 

jg beach

ÆQ camping
li community events

Seasonal or Temporary Populations

group quartersh

kh community building

Government/NGO Buildings

libraryc

churchæ

administrative building²

; club buildings
!® post office

118



0

0

j

j

j

j

V
V

V

V

V

V

V

V

V

V

V

V

V

V

V

V

V

,

,
,

,,
,

,

,

,

,

,

,

,

,
,

, ,

,

,
,

,

,,

, ,,
, ,

,

,

,

,

,
,

,

,
,

,

,

,,

,
,

,

,

, ,V

,

,

,,

,

,

,

,V

,

,

,

,,

V

7

7

N

N

O

j

N

j
j

j

j
j

j

jj

0

V

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

TT

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T
T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T
T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

TT
T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

TT

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

TT

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T
T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

TT

T

T

TTT

T

JJ

J

JJJJJJJ

JJ

JJJJJJ

JJ

JJJ
JJ

J

J

JJ

EE
E

E

E

E
E

E E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

(

(
(

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

>

>

>

>

>

>

>

>

>

>

>

>

>

>

>

>

>

>

>

>
>

>

>

>

>

tt
t

t

t

t

t

t

tt

t

tt
t
t

t t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t
t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

Union

Br
us

se
ls

Gardner

NasewaupeeForestville

Sevastopol

Cla
y B

an
ks

Stu
rge

on
 Ba

y

Sturgeon Bay

Ga
rdn

er

Dunes Lake

Forestville Millpond

Dunes Lake

Stony Creek

Renard Creek

Kayes Creek

Ahnapee River

Big Creek

Bear Creek

Larson Creek

Ma
y C

ree
k

Fabry Creek

Schuyler Creek

Claybanks Creek

Twin Harbor Creek

Los
t Cree

k

Sugar Creek

Lily Bay Creek

Woodard Creek

Malvitz Creek

CO
 H

WY
 C

CO HWY DK

CO HWY S

CO HWY X

CO
 H

WY
 U

S Shiloh Rd

Mi
ll R

d

CO HWY K

Stone Rd

Pa
rk 

Dr

ST
 H

WY
 42

Tru
 W

ay
 R

d

ST HWY 57

CO HWY J

CO HWY H

CO
 H

WY
 N

Pit Rd

Fox Ln

Mi
se

re 
Rd

Br
us

se
ls 

Rd

CO
 H

WY
 XC

Salona Rd

CO
 H

WY
 O

CO
 H

WY
 M

Forest Rd

Wilson Rd

CO HWY Y

School Rd

Rabbit Rd

Low Rd

Tagge Rd

Maplewood Rd

Idl
ew

ild
 R

d

ST HWY 42-57

Lovers Ln

W Center Rd

Hornspier Rd

Silverdale Rd

CO HWY MM

CO HWY TT

Cherry Rd

E Center Rd

Ma
y R

d

Swamp Rd

Sand Bay Rd

Ce
da

r L
n

Ba
y S

ho
re 

Dr

Ril
ey

s B
ay

 R
d

Ma
ple

 R
d

Lime Kiln Rd

Ma
rsh

 R
d

S Brauer Rd

Old Elm Rd

Pine Rd

Ploor Rd

Midway Rd

Rosewood Rd

Pit
 C

t

S S
tev

en
so

n P
ier

 R
d

Geier Rd

Kolberg Rd

Emerald Dr

Shoreline Rd

Sc
ho

ol 
Dr

Cemetery Rd

S L
ak

e M
ich

iga
n D

r

Circle Ridge Rd

Walker Rd

N Carnot Rd

La
ke

 Fo
res

t P
ark

 R
d

W Carnot Rd

CO HWY OO

Poplar Ln

Pine Ln

Taube Rd

Elm
 Ln

Hig
h R

d

W County Line Rd

Ro
ck

y R
d

White Star Rd

Star Rd

Mile Rd

Ripp RdW Dunn Rd

Gardner Rd

Du
mp

 R
d

Vis
te 

Rd

Dane Rd

Wilke Rd

Rid
ge

 R
d

Feest Rd

E Carnot Rd

S H
all

 R
d

Belgian Dr

Moore Rd

Cu
rve

 R
d

Sw
am

p C
t

N Town Hall Rd

Haberli Rd

County Line Rd

Renier Rd

Mathey Rd

Led
ge

 Rd

Cloverleaf Rd

Glidden Dr

CO HWY D

S Forest Dr

Pic
ke

ral
 R

d

Elm
s R

d

Sams Rd

Stage Rd Hump Rd

S C
arn

ot 
Rd

Ne
w 

Se
ttle

me
nt 

Rd

S Norway Rd

Cherry Ln

Sand Bay Point Rd

S Bay S
hor

e R
d

Gravel Pit Rd

Skeet Ave

Shoemaker Rd

W Star Rd

Hil
ly 

Rid
ge

 R
d

Haines Rd

Zirbel Rd

N 
No

rw
ay

 R
d

To
rna

do
 R

d

Kluth Rd

E Swamp Rd

Dufek Ln

Co
yo

te 
Ct

Old Substation Rd

Mann Rd

Y Inn Rd

He
rbs

 R
d

CO HWY H-O

Rass Rd Ro
ose

vel
t C

t

Clar 
Lin

 Rd

Rutz Ln

Hoffman Rd

Hickory Hill Ln

Oakwood Rd

Wood Lane Rd

Sk
i L

n

Guilette Rd

Sixel Rd

Naze Rd

Ullman Ct
Slow Rd

School Ln

Plainview Rd

Todey Rd

Bre
ezy

 Ac
res

 Rd

E Gardner Rd

W Olson Dr

Cir
cle

 Ri
dge

 Ct

W Jorns Ln

Roosevelt Rd

Sa
rge

an
t R

d

E Jorns Ln

Appletree Rd

Circle Rd

Duvall Ct

Cli
ff T

op
 Rd

Coisman Rd

South Rd

ST H
WY 42

-57

CO HWY J

S L
ake

 M
ich

iga
n D

rLovers Ln

Ledge Rd

Rileys Bay Rd

CO HWY D

Viste Rd

CO HWY C

ST HWY 57

Haberli Rd

Sand Bay Rd

ST
 HW

Y 5
7

Ripp Rd

ST HWY 57

¯

Map 2.3: Contamination Sites, Hazardous Material Storage, 
and Groundwater Concern Areas
Southern Door

Door County Hazard Mitigation Plan

DNR R&R Sites

contamination from another propertyJ

soil contaminationE

groundwater and soil contamination>

( groundwater contamination

open site, ongoing cleanupt
closed site completed cleanupT

Hazardous Materials

fuel storagey
, manure storage

landfillO

wastewater relatedj

solid wasteN

_ chemical storage 

Groundwater Concern Areas
High Concern 
Moderate To High Concern

jV

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

J

J

J

J
J

J

J

J

J
J

J
J

J

J

J
J

J

J

JJ

J

J

J

J
J

J

J

J

J

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

>

>

>

>

>

>

>

>

>

>

>

>

>

>

>

>

>

>

>

>

>

>

>

>

>

t
t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

CO HWY H

ST
 H

WY
 42

Maplewood

119



!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

! !

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

æ

æ

æ

æ

æ

æ

æ

æ æ
ææ

æ
æ

æ
æ

æ

ææ
æ

æ

æ

æ

æææ
æ

æ
æ

²

²

²

²

²

²c!®²

;

;
²

;
;

ú

ú

ú

ú ú

ú úúúú

ú

ú

ú

úú

ú
úú

ú
ú úúú ú
ú

ú
úú
ú
ú

ú
ú úúú

ú

úúúú
úú ú
úú

ú úúú
úú
úú ú

ú
úúúúúú úúú

úú úú ú
ú úú

úúú úú
ú

úúú úúúúúúúúú úú úúú úúúú úú
ú

úúúúú

ú
ú
úúú ú

úú úúú

úú
úú ú ú

ú úúú
ú

Î

î

e
e

e

î

î

î

î

î

Î

Î

Î

k

î

Ñ

k

¬

¬

¬

¬

sk
¬

k
Ñ

¬

¬

r

r

r

r

r

r

r

r

r

!

d

d

ÞÞ

Þ Þ

r

r

r

r

r

r

rr
rr

r

r

r

r

r

r

r

r

Þ
r

rÞdÞ

Þ dÞr

Þ
Þ

d

!

dÞ

ÞrÞ

Þ

Þ

Þdd
!

ÆQ

ÆQ

i

i
h

h

h

h

i

ii
i

g

i

i

h

h

g

i

åå

å

å

å å

å

«

å
® «

«
å
å
«

«
å
«

0

j

j

j

j

V

V

V

V

V

V

V

V

V

V

V

V

V

V

V

V

V

V

V

V

V

V

,,
,, ,

,

,

,

,, ,

,,V

,
,

,

,, ,,,

,

,

,
,

,

,

,

,
,,

,

,

,,
,

,,

,
,

,
,

,,
,

,

,

,

,

,

,

,

,

,

,

,

,

,

,

,

V

7

7

7

7

7

N

j

U

U

U
U

U

U

U
j

N

j
j

j

j
j

j

jj

O

Sevastopol

Egg Harbor

Baileys Harbor

Jacksonport

Na
se

wa
up

ee

Gibraltar

Sturgeon Bay

Liberty Grove
Fo

res
tvi

lle

Clay Banks

Egg Harbor

Egg Harbor

Sturgeon Bay

Clark Lake

Kangaroo Lake

Mud Lake

Kangaroo Lake

Lost Lake

Dunes Lake

Schwartz Lake

Arbter Lake

Dunes Lake

Lily Bay Creek

Hibbards Creek

Peil Creek

Big Creek

Geisel Creek

Claybanks Creek

Lo
ga

n C
ree

k

Hidden Brook

Heins Creek

Reiboldt Creek

Fish Creek

ST
 H

WY
 57

CO
 H

WY
 A

Ba
y S

ho
re 

Dr

CO HWY T

CO HWY E

CO HWY F

CO HWY I

CO
 H

WY
 S

CO HWY EE

Memorial Dr

CO
 H

WY
 U

Glidden Dr

S Shiloh Rd

Elm Dr

CO
 H

WY
 Q

Park Dr

Salona Rd

Bechtel Rd

W Town Line Rd

Forest Rd

Sunny Slope Rd
Division Rd

Ploor Rd

Tagge Rd

Clark Lake Rd

Fairview Rd

Oak Rd

CO HWY V

Loritz Rd

Logerquist Rd

Plum Bottom Rd

Hornspier Rd

CO HWY TT

Spring Rd

Cherry Rd

Juddville Rd

Flok Rd

Gibraltar Rd

CO HWY P

ST
 HW

Y 4
2

Sunset Dr

Maplewood Rd

E Dunn Rd

White Cliff Rd

CO
 H

WY
 G

Lost Lake Rd

Mathey Rd

Hillside Rd

Reynolds Rd

N Junction Rd

CO HWY HH

Shoreline Rd

Ridges Rd

Walker Rd

Ho
rse

sho
e B

ay 
Rd

La
ke

 Fo
res

t P
ark

 R
d

CO HWY H

Peninsula Players Rd

Blu
ff L

ed
ge

 R
d

Bluff Dr

Harbor School Rd

Willow Rd

W Carlsville Rd

Bluff Rd

N Cave Point Dr

S Highland Rd

Wandering Rd

Jorns Rd

Nelson Ln

Ripp Rd
W Dunn Rd

S Country View Rd

Maple Tree Rd

Main St

Ehler Rd

Su
nn

y P
oin

t R
d

Bagnall Rd

Leist Rd

Vis
te 

Rd

Martin Rd

Rid
ge

 R
d

Moore Rd

W Whitefish Bay Rd

Berger Rd

Co
tta

ge
 R

ow

Haberli Rd

Wa
ys

ide
 R

d

Honold Rd

Kiehnau Rd

Bluff Ct

N 
Ma

ple
 R

d

Gibraltar Bluff Rd

Point Dr

Birch Ln

Ne
w 

Se
ttle

me
nt 

Rd

Boynton Ln

S Norway Rd

Wild Ln

Monument Point Rd

Court Rd
Ba

rk 
Rd

High Ridge Rd

Kangaroo Beach Rd

Qu
art

er 
Lin

e R
d

Daubner Ln

Pin
e T

ree
 R

d
Pine Dr

E Town Line Rd

Peil Ln

Ston
e M

ill L
n

Butts Rd

E Meadow Rd

Or
ch

ard
 R

d

Bo
ch

ek
 R

d

Bay Vista Rd

Todey Rd

Fish Rd

E Carla Ct

Guy St

Sky Rd

E Mathey Rd

Kita Rd

Rasner Way

O Brien Rd

Gibraltar Rd

Hillside Rd

Clark Lake Rd

Jorns Rd

W Whitefish Bay Rd

ST HWY 42

Mathey Rd

ST
 H

WY
 42

CO HWY T

AT
C

AT
C

¯

Map 2.4: Facilities/Infrastructure, 
Hazardous Materials, and Flood Zone
Central Door

æ

æ

æ

æ
æ

²
ú

Î

!

ÞÞ

i

h

hå
Gibraltar

Fis
h C

ree
k

Main St

ST HWY 42 Sh
ore

 Rd
 W

Bluff Cir

Co
tta

ge
 R

ow

Gibraltar Bluff Rd

Bluff Ln

Sp
ruc

e S
t

CO HWY F

Ril
ey

s L
nFox Hollow Ct

Maple St

Sp
rin

g R
d

Wi
nd

mi
ll L

n

Greywood Rd

Little Spring Rd

Gibraltar RdEvergreen Rd

Elm St

Clark Bluff Cir

Cottage Row Ct

Bro
ok 

Pt

Main St
ST HWY 42

æ

æ

²

ú

ú
ú

Î
¬

rr

,

j

U

Ba
ile

ys
 H

arb
or

Bluff Rd ST
 H

WY
 57

Wa
rd 

St

Guy St

Linda Ln

CO HWY F

E Oaks Dr

Park Rd

W 
Oa

ks
 D

r
Th

im
ble

be
rry

 Ln

Se
ve

rn 
St

Birch Bluff Ct

Fish Creek

Baileys Harbor

e

¬r

Gi
bra

lta
rMackaysee Lake

Krause (Mud) Lake

Island Dr West

Base Line Rd

Island Dr

Door County
Hazard Mitigation Plan

Transportation-Related
airport or aircraft-relatede

boat rampî

ferryí
highway shopk

marinaÎ
stream road intersectionsú

roads in 100-yr flood zone

!n dam
Other

100-yr flood zone

® child care
å school

Occupied Buildings/
Vulnerable Populations

« vulnerable population

Utilities

power lines (ATC)
water-relatedÞ

propaneÄ

electric-relatedd

gas lines (WPS)! !

radio/tv-related!

communications-relatedr

Emergency Services

emergency servicesns
fire station¬

clinic/hospitalÑ

a police station

Coast Guard-relatedk

Hazardous Materials

fuel storagey

, manure storage

solid wasteN

landfillO

wastewater relatedj

open contamination siteU

_ chemical storage 

jg beach

ÆQ camping
li community events

Seasonal or Temporary Populations

group quartersh

kh community building

Government/NGO Buildings

libraryc

churchæ

administrative building²

; club buildings
!® post office

Baileys Harbor

Chambers Island

120



0

j

j

j

j

V

V

V

V

V

V

V

V

V

V

V

V

V

V

V

V

V

V

V

V

V

V

,,
,, ,

,

,

,

,, ,

,,V

,
,

,

,, ,,,

,

,

,
,

,

,

,

,
,,

,

,

,,
,

,,

,
,

,
,

,,
,

,

,

,

,

,

,

,

,

,

,

,

,

,

,

,

V

7

7

7

7

7

N

j

j

N

j
j

j

j
j

j

jj

O

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T
T

T

T

T

TT

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T
T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T
T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

TT
T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

TT

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

TT

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T
T
T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

TT

T

T

TTT

T

JJ

J

JJJJJJJ

JJ

JJJJJJ

JJ

JJJ
JJ

J

J

JJ

EE
E

E

E

E
E

E E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

(

(
(

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

(
(

(

(

(

(

>

>

>

>

>

>

>

>

>

>

>

>

>

>

>

>

>

>

>

>
>

>

>

>

>

tt
t

t

t

t

t

t

tt

t

tt
t
t

t t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t
t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

Sevastopol

Egg Harbor

Baileys Harbor

Jacksonport

Na
se

wa
up

ee

Gibraltar

Sturgeon Bay

Liberty Grove
Fo

res
tvi

lle

Clay Banks

Egg Harbor

Egg Harbor

Sturgeon Bay

Clark Lake

Kangaroo Lake

Mud Lake

Kangaroo Lake

Lost Lake

Dunes Lake

Schwartz Lake

Arbter Lake

Dunes Lake

Logan Creek

Lily Bay Creek

Hibbards Creek

Big Creek

Peil Creek

Geisel Creek

Claybanks Creek

Hidden Brook

Heins Creek

Reiboldt Creek

Fish Creek

ST
 H

WY
 57

CO
 H

WY
 A

Ba
y S

ho
re 

Dr

ST
 HW

Y 4
2

CO
 H

WY
 T

CO HWY E

CO HWY F

CO HWY I

CO
 H

WY
 S

CO HWY EE

Memorial Dr

CO
 H

WY
 U

Glidden Dr

S Shiloh Rd

Elm Dr

CO
 H

WY
 Q

Park Dr

Salona Rd

Bechtel Rd

W Town Line Rd

Forest Rd

Sunny Slope Rd
Division Rd

Ploor Rd

Tagge Rd

Clark Lake Rd

Fairview Rd

Oak Rd

CO HWY V

Loritz Rd

Logerquist Rd

Plum Bottom Rd

Hornspier Rd

CO HWY TT

Spring Rd

Cherry Rd

Juddville Rd

Flok Rd

Gibraltar Rd

CO HWY P

Sunset Dr

Maplewood Rd

E Dunn Rd

White Cliff Rd

CO
 H

WY
 G

Lost Lake Rd

Mathey Rd

Hillside Rd

Reynolds Rd

N Junction Rd

CO HWY HH

Shoreline Rd

Ridges Rd

Walker Rd

Ho
rse

sho
e B

ay 
Rd

La
ke

 Fo
res

t P
ark

 R
d

Peninsula Players Rd

Blu
ff L

ed
ge

 R
d

Bluff Dr

CO HWY H

Harbor School Rd

Willow Rd

W Carlsville Rd

Bluff Rd

N Cave Point Dr

S Highland Rd

Wandering Rd

Jorns Rd

Nelson Ln

Ripp Rd
W Dunn Rd

S Country View Rd

Maple Tree Rd

Main St

Ehler Rd

Sunny Point Rd

Bagnall Rd

Leist Rd

Vis
te 

Rd

Martin Rd

Rid
ge

 R
d

Moore Rd

W Whitefish Bay Rd

Berger Rd

Co
tta

ge
 R

ow

Haberli Rd

Wa
ys

ide
 R

d

Honold Rd

Wooded Ln

Bluff Ct

N 
Ma

ple
 R

d

Gibraltar Bluff Rd

Anschutz Ln

Point Dr

Birch Ln

Ne
w 

Se
ttle

me
nt 

Rd

Boynton Ln

S Norway Rd

Wild Ln

Monument Point Rd

Court Rd
Ba

rk 
Rd

High Ridge Rd

Kangaroo Beach Rd

Qu
art

er 
Lin

e R
d

Daubner Ln

Pin
e T

ree
 R

d
Pine Dr

E Town Line Rd

Peil Ln

Ston
e M

ill L
n

Butts Rd

E Meadow Rd

Ida Red Rd

Hidden Dr

Or
ch

ard
 R

d

Bo
ch

ek
 R

d

Todey Rd

Fish Rd

E Carla Ct

Guy St

Sky Rd

E Mathey Rd

Kita Rd

Rasner Way

O Brien Rd

Laurie Ln

Rudy Rd

Hillside Rd
Jorns Rd

W Whitefish Bay Rd

CO HWY T

Clark Lake Rd

Mathey Rd

Gibraltar Rd

ST HWY 42

æ

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T
T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T
T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

TT

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T
T

T

T

T

T T

T

JJ

J

JJJJ
J JJ

JJ

J
JJ JJ
J

JJ

JJ
J

J J

J

J

JJ

E
E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

>

>

>

>

>

>

>

>

>

>

>

>

>

>

>

>

>

>

>

>

>

>

>

>

>

tt

t

t

t

t

t

t

t
t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

Fis
h C

ree
k

Main St

ST HWY 42 Sh
ore

 Rd
 W

Bluff Cir

Co
tta

ge
 R

ow

Gibraltar Bluff Rd

Bluff Ln

Sp
ruc

e S
t

CO HWY F

Ril
ey

s L
nFox Hollow Ct

Maple St

Sp
rin

g R
d

Wi
nd

mi
ll L

n

Greywood Rd

Little Spring Rd

Gibraltar RdEvergreen Rd

Elm St

Clark Bluff Cir

Cottage Row Ct

Bro
ok 

Pt

Main St
ST HWY 42

,

j

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T
T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

TT

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

TT

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T
T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T
T

T

T

T

T T

T

JJ

J

JJJJJJJ

JJ

JJJJJJ

JJ

JJJ

JJ

J

J

JJ

EE

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

>

>

>

>

>

>

>

>

>

>

>

>

>

>

>

>

>

>

>

>

>

>

>

>

>

tt

t

t

t

t

t

t

t
t

t

t

t

t

t

t
t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

Ba
ile

ys
 H

arb
or

Bluff Rd ST
 H

WY
 57

Wa
rd 

St

Guy St

Linda Ln

CO HWY F

E Oaks Dr

Park Rd

W 
Oa

ks
 D

r
Th

im
ble

be
rry

 Ln

Se
ve

rn 
St

Birch Bluff Ct

Fish Creek

Baileys Harbor

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

TT

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T
T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T
T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

TT
T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

TT

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

TT

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T
T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

TT

T

T

T
TT

T

JJ

J

JJJJJJJ

JJ

JJJJJJ

JJ

JJJ
JJ

J

J

JJ

EE
E

E

E

E
E

E E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

(

(
(

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

>

>

>

>

>

>

>

>

>

>

>

>

>

>

>

>

>

>

>

>
>

>

>

>

>

tt
t

t

t

t

t

t

tt

t

tt

t
t

t t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t
t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

Gibraltar

Mackaysee Lake
Krause (Mud) Lake
Island Dr West

Base Line Rd

Island Dr

¯

Map 2.5: Contamination Sites,
Hazardous Materials Storage, 
and Groundwater Concern Areas
Central Door

Door County
Hazard Mitigation Plan

DNR R&R Sites

contamination from another propertyJ

soil contaminationE

groundwater and soil contamination>

( groundwater contamination

open site, ongoing cleanupt
closed site completed cleanupT

Hazardous Materials

fuel storagey
, manure storage

landfillO

wastewater relatedj

solid wasteN

_ chemical storage 

Groundwater Concern Areas
High Concern 
Moderate To High Concern

Baileys Harbor

Chambers Island

121



æ

æ

æ

æ

æ

æ æ
ææ

æ

ææ

ææ

²

²

²²

²²

c

c!®

!®

æ

ú

ú

úú

ú

ú

ú
ú

ú

ú

ú

ú

ú
ú

Î

e

î

î

í í

k

k

Î

Î

Î

Î

Î

Ñ

ÑÑ

¬

¬

¬

¬s
r

r

!

d

Þ

ÞÞ

Þ

r

r

rrr
rr

ÆQ

ÆQg
ÆQ

i
h

i

h

h

i

i

ig

®

å

«

j

j

j

V

V
V

,

U

7

7

7

7

NN
V V

Liberty Grove

Gibraltar

Baileys Harbor

Wa
sh

ing
ton

Sis
ter

 Ba
yGibraltar

Gibra
ltar

Washington

Europe Lake

Mud Lake

Mink River Lake

Mi
nk

 R
ive

r

Fish Creek

Three Springs CreekCO HWY Q

ST
 H

WY
 57

Hill Rd

Old Stage Rd

CO HWY ZZ

CO HWY F

Shore Rd W

Be
ac

h R
d

Timberline Rd

Mink River Rd

German Rd

CO HWY A

Shore Rd E

Wildwood Rd

Gibraltar Rd

Middle Rd

Lakeview Rd

Ga
rre

tt B
ay

 Rd

ST HWY 42

Isle View Rd

Waters End Rd

North Bay Rd

Sunset Dr

Highview Rd

CO HWY NP

Scandia Rd

Old Lime Kiln Rd

Woodcrest Rd

Orchard Dr

Main St
Grove Rd

Bla
ck

be
rry

 R
d

Pioneer Rd

Humbug Rd

Co
tta

ge
 R

ow

Door Bluff Rd

Plateau Rd

North Bay Dr

Cottage Rd

Wild Ln

S Bay Shore Dr

Porcupine Bay Rd

Kinsey Bay Ln

Appleport Rd

Badger Rd

Green Rd

Robin Ln

Central Rd

Green Bay Rd

Hillside Dr

Sumac Ln

Bluff Rd

Fit
zg

era
ld 

Rd

Pine Dr

Sugar Bush Rd

Door Bluff Park Rd

Meadow Rd

Sa
w 

Mi
ll L

n

E Meadow Rd

S Sand Bay LnHil
lcr

es
t R

d

Wagon Trl

Lost Ln
N 

Ne
wp

ort
 Ln

Mueller Ln

Kenosha Dr

Winding Ln

Skaugum Rd

Rasner Way

He
ml

oc
k R

d

Autumn Ct

Bluff Cir

Ranch Ln

ST
 HW

Y 4
2

ST
 H

WY
 42

Gibraltar Rd

AT
C ¯

Map 2.6: Facilities/Infrastructure, Hazardous Materials, and Flood Zone
Northern Door

æ

æ

²

ú

ú

e

îÎ

Î

¬

Ñ

rd

r

iå

0
0

NO

U

Wa
sh

ing
ton

Little Lake

Main Rd

Lake View Rd

Town Line Rd

He
ml

oc
k D

r

Jackson Harbor Rd

Airport Rd Range Line Rd Michigan Rd

Deer Lane Rd

Aznoe Rd

South Shore Dr
Mountain Rd Su

nri
se

 R
d

Lo
bd

ell
 Po

int
 R

d

East Side Rd

Swenson Rd Old Camp Rd
Mc Donald Rd

Old
 M

ill R
d

Detroit Harbor Rd

Green Bay Rd

Foss RdGasoline Town Rd

Gudmundsen Dr

Joh
nso

n D
r

Pedants Ln

Wickman DrTown Line Rd

Michigan RdAirport Rd

Washington Island

Door County Hazard Mitigation Plan

Transportation-Related
airport or aircraft-relatede

boat rampî

ferryí
highway shopk

marinaÎ
stream road intersectionsú

roads in 100-yr flood zone

!n dam
Other

100-yr flood zone

® child care
å school

Occupied Buildings/
Vulnerable Populations

« vulnerable population

Utilities

power lines (ATC)
water-relatedÞ

propaneÄ

electric-relatedd

gas lines (WPS)! !

radio/tv-related!

communications-relatedr

Emergency Services

emergency servicesns
fire station¬

clinic/hospitalÑ

a police station

Coast Guard-relatedk

Hazardous Materials

fuel storagey

, manure storage

solid wasteN

landfillO

wastewater relatedj

open contamination siteU

_ chemical storage 

jg beach

ÆQ camping
li community events

Seasonal or Temporary Populations

group quartersh

kh community building

Government/NGO Buildings

libraryc

churchæ

administrative building²

; club buildings
!® post office

122



j

j

j

V

V
V

,

7

7

7

7

NN
V V

JJ

J

JJJJJJJ

JJ

JJJJJJ

JJ

JJJ
JJ

J

J

JJ

EE
E

E

E

E
E

E E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

(

(
(

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

>

>

>

>

>

>

>

>

>

>

>

>

>

>

>

>

>

>

>

>
>

>

>

>

>

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

TT

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T
T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T
T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

TT
T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

TT

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

TT

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T
T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

TT

T

T

T
TT

T

tt
t

t

t

t

t

t

tt

t

tt
t
t

t t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t
t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

Liberty Grove

Gibraltar

Baileys Harbor

Wa
sh

ing
ton

Sis
ter

 Ba
yGibraltar

Gibra
ltar

Washington

Europe Lake

Mud Lake

Mink River Lake

Mi
nk

 R
ive

r

Fish Creek

Three Springs CreekCO HWY Q

ST
 H

WY
 57

Hill Rd

Old Stage Rd

CO HWY ZZ

CO HWY F

Shore Rd W

Be
ac

h R
d

Timberline Rd

Mink River Rd

German Rd

CO HWY A

Shore Rd E

Wildwood Rd

Gibraltar Rd

Middle Rd

Lakeview Rd

Ga
rre

tt B
ay

 Rd

ST HWY 42

Isle View Rd

Waters End Rd

North Bay Rd

Sunset Dr

Highview Rd

CO HWY NP

Scandia Rd

Old Lime Kiln Rd

Woodcrest Rd

Orchard Dr

Main St
Grove Rd

Bla
ck

be
rry

 R
d

Pioneer Rd

Humbug Rd

Co
tta

ge
 R

ow

Door Bluff Rd

Plateau Rd

North Bay Dr

Cottage Rd

Wild Ln

S Bay Shore Dr

Porcupine Bay Rd

Kinsey Bay Ln

Appleport Rd

Badger Rd

Green Rd

Robin Ln

Central Rd

Green Bay Rd

Hillside Dr

Sumac Ln

Bluff Rd

Fit
zg

era
ld 

Rd

Pine Dr

Sugar Bush Rd

Door Bluff Park Rd

Meadow Rd

Sa
w 

Mi
ll L

n

E Meadow Rd

S Sand Bay LnHil
lcr

es
t R

d

Wagon Trl

Lost Ln
N 

Ne
wp

ort
 Ln

Mueller Ln

Kenosha Dr

Winding Ln

Skaugum Rd

Rasner Way

He
ml

oc
k R

d

Autumn Ct

Bluff Cir

Ranch Ln

ST
 HW

Y 4
2

ST
 H

WY
 42

Gibraltar Rd

¯

0
0

NO

U

JJ

J

JJJJJJJ

JJ

JJJJJJ

JJ

JJJ
JJ

J

J

JJ

EE
E

E

E

E
E

E E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

(

(
(

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

>

>

>

>

>

>

>

>

>

>

>

>

>

>

>

>

>

>

>

>
>

>

>

>

>

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

TT

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T
T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T
T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

TT
T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

TT

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

TT

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T
T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

TT

T

T

T
TT

T

tt

t

t

t

t

t

t

tt

t

t
t

t
t

t t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t
t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

Wa
sh

ing
ton

Little Lake

Main Rd

Lake View Rd

Town Line Rd

He
ml

oc
k D

r

Jackson Harbor Rd

Airport Rd Range Line Rd Michigan Rd

Deer Lane Rd

Aznoe Rd

South Shore Dr
Mountain Rd Su

nri
se

 R
d

Lo
bd

ell
 Po

int
 R

d

East Side Rd

Swenson Rd Old Camp Rd
Mc Donald Rd

Old
 M

ill R
d

Detroit Harbor Rd

Green Bay Rd

Foss RdGasoline Town Rd

Gudmundsen Dr

Joh
nso

n D
r

Pedants Ln

Wickman DrTown Line Rd

Michigan RdAirport Rd

Washington Island

Door County Hazard Mitigation Plan

æ

Map 2.7: Contamination Sites, Hazardous Materials Storage,
and Groundwater Concern Areas
Northern Door

DNR R&R Sites

contamination from another propertyJ

soil contaminationE

groundwater and soil contamination>

( groundwater contamination

open site, ongoing cleanupt
closed site completed cleanupT

Hazardous Materials

fuel storagey
, manure storage

landfillO

wastewater relatedj

solid wasteN

_ chemical storage 

Groundwater Concern Areas
High Concern 
Moderate To High Concern

123



!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

æ

æ

æ

æ
æ

æ

æ

æ

æ

²c
!®²

;

;

²

;

;

r

r

r

r

Þ
r

r
Þ dÞ

Þ d

Þr

Þ

Þ

d

!

d

Þ

Þ

r

Þ

Þ

Þ

Þ
d

d

!

úúú

ú

ú

úú ú
ú

ú

ú

úú

ú
ú

ú úú

ú

úú

ú ú

ú
úúúú úú ú

ú
ú úúú

úúú
ú úú

ú

ú

úúú

ú

e

e

k

î

k

¬ s

k

¬

k

Ñ

¬

ÆQ

ÆQ

h

g

i

å

å å

å

«

å

® «

«

å

å

«

«

å

«

j

V

V

V

V

V V

V

V

V

V

V

,

,

,

,

,

,

,

V

N

U

U

U

U

U

j

N

j

j

j

j

j

j

j
j

Sevastopol

Na
se

wa
up

ee

Sturgeon Bay

Big Creek

Lily Bay Creek

Pa
rk 

Dr

CO HWY T

Wilson Rd

CO HWY TT

ST
 HW

Y 4
2-5

7

Gordon Rd

Lake Forest P
ark R

d

Emerald Dr

CO HWY C

Lily
 Bay 

Rd

Buffalo Ridge Trl

N Duluth Ave

Rid
ge

 R
d

Moore Rd

Shoreline Rd

Mathey Rd

Grondin Rd

Bu
ffa

lo R
idg

e R
d

S N
orw

ay
 R

d

S Brauer Rd

Ch
err

y R
d

Ba
y S

ho
re 

Dr

Gr
af 

Rd

Stagg Rd

N 
La

ke
 M

ich
iga

n D
r

S Country View Rd

Smejkal Rd

Entrance Rd

Sa
rge

an
t R

d

Timber Ln

Cr
ee

k D
rDjuplin Rd

Ru
by

 Ln

Wo
od

co
ck

 D
r

Knollwood Dr

Meredith Ln

ST
 HW

Y 4
2-5

7

Mathey Rd

Ma
the

y R
d

ATC¯

Map 2.8: Facilities/Infrastructure, Hazardous Materials, and Flood Zone
City of Sturgeon Bay

Door County Hazard Mitigation Plan

æ

æ

æ

æ

²c

!®

²

;

²

Þ

r

Þ d
Þ

Þ

Þ

d

d

ú

úúúú ú
ú

ú

ú

î
k

¬

¬

i

å

å

«

V

V

V

V

U

U
U

j

j

j

j

Sturgeon Bay

Sturgeon Bay

Sturgeon Bay

Michigan St

N 1st Ave

S 3rd Ave
Louisiana St

W Maple St

N 3rd Ave

Kentucky St

Oregon St

Nebraska St

N 4th Ave

S 5th Ave

S 4th Ave

S 1st Ave

Quincy St

N Joliet Ave

Oregon Bridge

N 5th Ave

Pennsylva
nia St

S 7
th 

Av
e

Michigan St Bridge

S 2nd Ave

N 2nd Ave

N 
6th

 Av
e

E Oak St

N 
8th

 Av
e

W Oak St

E Maple StN 
La

ns
ing

 Av
e

W Larch St

Memorial Dr
W Locust St

N Ithaca Ave

W Juniper St

S N
ee

na
h A

ve

Jefferson St Jefferson St

W Locust St

ATC

Transportation-Related
airport or aircraft-relatede

boat rampî

ferryí
highway shopk

marinaÎ
stream road intersectionsú

roads in 100-yr flood zone

!n dam
Other

100-yr flood zone

® child care
å school

Occupied Buildings/
Vulnerable Populations

« vulnerable population

Utilities

power lines (ATC)
water-relatedÞ

propaneÄ

electric-relatedd

gas lines (WPS)! !

radio/tv-related!

communications-relatedr

Emergency Services

emergency servicesns
fire station¬

clinic/hospitalÑ

a police station

Coast Guard-relatedk

Hazardous Materials

fuel storagey

, manure storage

solid wasteN

landfillO

wastewater relatedj

open contamination siteU

_ chemical storage 

jg beach

ÆQ camping
li community events

Seasonal or Temporary Populations

group quartersh

kh community building

Government/NGO Buildings

libraryc

churchæ

administrative building²

; club buildings
!® post office

124



j

V

V

V

V
V

V

V

V

V

V

,

V

,

,

,

,,

N

O

j

N

j

j

j

j

j

j

j
j

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

TT

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

TT

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

TT

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T
T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

TT

T

T

T

T T

T

JJ

J

JJJJJJJ

JJ

JJJJJJ

JJ

JJJ

JJ

J

J

JJ

EE

E

E

E

E

E

E
E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

>

>

>

>

>

>

>

>

>

>

>

>

>

>

>

>

>

>

>

>

>

>

>

>

>

tt

t

t

t

t

t

t

tt

t

t

t

t

t

t t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

Na
se

wa
up

ee

Sevastopol

Larson Creek

Big Creek

May Creek

Pa
rk 

Dr

CO HWY C

Idlewild Rd

CO HWY MM ST
 HW

Y 4
2-5

7

Emerald Dr

Gordon Rd

CO HWY M

Sand Bay Rd

Wilson Rd

N Duluth Ave

Eliason Rd

Grondin Rd

Rock Farm Rd

S Norway Rd

Shoreline Rd

Stagg Rd

Gr
af 

Rd

Co
yo

te 
Ct

Mann Rd

Bay Shore Dr

Hoffman Rd

Old
 Hw

y R
d

Entrance Rd

Roalkvam Rd

W Olson Dr

Haines Rd

Sa
rge

an
t R

d

Lamere Rd

Soukup Rd

Djuplin Rd

S Summerset Cir

Ru
by

 Ln

Wo
od

co
ck

 D
r

Knollwood Dr

Lenius Rd

Deer Trail Rd

Hendricks Rd

Wh
ite

 Ta
il R

d

Meredith Ln

ST
 HW

Y 4
2-5

7

Sand Bay Rd

¯

V

V

Vj

j

j

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T
T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T
T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

TT

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T
T

T

T

T

T T

T

JJ

J

JJJ
JJ JJ

JJ

J
JJ J
J
J

JJ

JJ
J

J J

J

J

J
J

E
E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

>

>

>

>

>

>

>

>

>

>

>

>

>

>

>

>

>

>

>

>

>

>

>

>

>

tt

t

t

t

t

t

t

t
t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

N 1st Ave
N 3rd Ave

Kentucky St Louisiana St

Michigan St

N 4th Ave
S 3rd Ave

N 5th Ave

Oregon St

Nebraska St

S 1st Ave

S 4th Ave

S 2nd Ave

N 2nd Ave

N 
6th

 Av
e

Pennsylva
nia St

S 5th Ave

Michigan St Bridge

Quincy St

Jefferson St
Jefferson St

DNR R&R Sites

contamination from another propertyJ

soil contaminationE

groundwater and soil contamination>

( groundwater contamination

open site, ongoing cleanupt
closed site completed cleanupT

Hazardous Materials

fuel storagey
, manure storage

landfillO

wastewater relatedj

solid wasteN

_ chemical storage 

Groundwater Concern Areas
High Concern 
Moderate To High Concern

V

j j

j

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T
T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T
T

T

J
J

J

JJJ
J

J
JJ

JJ

J

J
J J
J

J

JJ

J
J

J

J J

J

J

J
J

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

>

>

>

>

>

>

>

>

>

>

>

>

>

>

>

>

>

>

>

>

>

>

>

>

>

tt

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

Sturgeon Bay

W Maple St

E Oak StW Oak St

E Maple St

W Larch St
S N

ee
na

h A
ve

S L
an

sin
g A

ve

S M
ad

iso
n A

ve

W Locust St

N 
La

ns
ing

 Av
e

N 
Ma

dis
on

 Av
e

Oregon Bridge

East Side

West Side

Map 2.9: Contamination Sites, Hazardous Materials Storage,
and Groundwater Concern Areas
City of Sturgeon Bay

Door County Hazard Mitigation Plan

125



æ

æ

æ

Î

¬

r

r

d

Þ

Þ

r

r

h

i

i

g

j

V

V

V

,

,
,

7

7

h

i

i

g

Eg
g H

arb
or

Gi
bra

lta
rEgg Harbor

Egg Harbor
Egg Harbor

ST HWY 42

CO HWY E

Wh
ite

 C
liff

 R
d

Heritage Lake Rd

CO HWY T

Horseshoe Bay Rd

Harbor School Rd

CO HWY EE

Hillside Rd

Maple Tree Rd

Church St

South Trl

Ch
ate

au
 Dr

Division Rd

Brooks Ln

Hillside Trl

Bay Vista Rd

Shady Ln

Bluff Pass

We
st 

 Sh
ore

 D
r

Qu
art

er 
Lin

e R
d

Ma
rin

er 
Rd

Bay Dr

Po
int

 Be
ac

h R
d

Sunny Point Rd

Point Circle Dr

Apple Ridge Rd

Daisy Patch Rd

Fox Point Rd

Alpine RdEv
erg

ree
n R

d

Isla
nd

 Vi
ew

 Rd

Allen LnAlpen Ln Re
lax

 Ln

Go
lf V

illa
ge

 D
r

Charmant Way

East Shore Dr

Green Bay Ln

Heritage Dr
Harbor Heights Rd

N Shore Dr

Chal
et C

t

Dock Rd

Eames Farm Rd

Pio
ne

er 
Dr

W Elm Rd

Frontier Dr

Juddville Hill Rd

Tyrolean Pass

Harbor Dr

Washington Dr

Sunset Ln

Center Circle Dr

Ball Park Rd

Cross Ln

Windsor Ln

Rid
ge

wo
od

 Bl
uff

 D
r

Wild Turkey Trl

Liberty Way

Quarterline Rd East

N Landmark Cir

Rainbow Ridge Ct

Clubhouse Dr

Orchard Rd

Alpine Ln Ro
ck

 Pi
ne

 Ln

S Landmark Cir

Harbor Ridge Rd

Meadow Ridge RdBrooks Ct

Viking Ct

N Point Ln

Fox Point Ter

ST
 HW

Y 4
2

Ch
urc

h S
t

AT
C¯

Map 2.10: Facilities/Infrastructure, Hazardous Materials, and Flood Zone
Village of Egg Harbor
Door County Hazard Mitigation Plan

Transportation-Related
airport or aircraft-relatede

boat rampî

ferryí
highway shopk

marinaÎ
stream road intersectionsú

roads in 100-yr flood zone

!n dam
Other

100-yr flood zone

® child care
å school

Occupied Buildings/
Vulnerable Populations

« vulnerable population

Utilities

power lines (ATC)
water-relatedÞ

propaneÄ

electric-relatedd

gas lines (WPS)! !

radio/tv-related!

communications-relatedr

Emergency Services

emergency servicesns
fire station¬

clinic/hospitalÑ

a police station

Coast Guard-relatedk

Hazardous Materials

fuel storagey

, manure storage

solid wasteN

landfillO

wastewater relatedj

open contamination siteU

_ chemical storage 

jg beach

ÆQ camping
li community events

Seasonal or Temporary Populations

group quartersh

kh community building

Government/NGO Buildings

libraryc

churchæ

administrative building²

; club buildings
!® post office

126



j

V

V

V

,

,
,

7

7

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T
T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

TT

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

TT

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T
T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

TT

T

T

T

T T

T

JJ

J

JJJJJJJ

JJ

JJJJJJ

JJ

JJJ

JJ

J

J

JJ

EE

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

>

>

>

>

>

>

>

>

>

>

>

>

>

>

>

>

>

>

>

>

>

>

>

>

>

tt

t

t

t

t

t

t

tt

t

t

t

t

t

t
t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

Eg
g H

arb
or

Gi
bra

lta
rEgg Harbor

Egg Harbor
Egg Harbor

ST HWY 42

CO HWY E

Wh
ite

 C
liff

 R
d

Heritage Lake Rd

CO HWY T

Horseshoe Bay Rd

Harbor School Rd

CO HWY EE

Hillside Rd

Maple Tree Rd

Church St

South Trl

Ch
ate

au
 Dr

Division Rd

Brooks Ln

Hillside Trl

Bay Vista Rd

Shady Ln

Bluff Pass

We
st 

 Sh
ore

 D
r

Qu
art

er 
Lin

e R
d

Ma
rin

er 
Rd

Bay Dr

Po
int

 Be
ac

h R
d

Sunny Point Rd

Point Circle Dr

Apple Ridge Rd

Daisy Patch Rd

Fox Point Rd

Alpine RdEv
erg

ree
n R

d

Isla
nd

 Vi
ew

 Rd

Allen LnAlpen Ln Re
lax

 Ln

Go
lf V

illa
ge

 D
r

Charmant Way

East Shore Dr

Green Bay Ln

Heritage Dr
Harbor Heights Rd

N Shore Dr

Chal
et C

t

Dock Rd

Eames Farm Rd

Pio
ne

er 
Dr

W Elm Rd

Frontier Dr

Juddville Hill Rd

Tyrolean Pass

Harbor Dr

Washington Dr

Sunset Ln

Center Circle Dr

Ball Park Rd

Cross Ln

Windsor Ln

Rid
ge

wo
od

 Bl
uff

 D
r

Wild Turkey Trl

Liberty Way

Quarterline Rd East

N Landmark Cir

Rainbow Ridge Ct

Clubhouse Dr

Orchard Rd

Alpine Ln Ro
ck

 Pi
ne

 Ln

S Landmark Cir

Harbor Ridge Rd

Meadow Ridge RdBrooks Ct

Viking Ct

N Point Ln

Fox Point Ter

ST
 HW

Y 4
2

Ch
urc

h S
t

AT
C¯

æ

Map 2.11: Contamination Sites, Hazardous Materials Storage,
and Groundwater Concern Areas
Village of Egg Harbor

Door County Hazard Mitigation Plan

DNR R&R Sites

contamination from another propertyJ

soil contaminationE

groundwater and soil contamination>

( groundwater contamination

open site, ongoing cleanupt
closed site completed cleanupT

Hazardous Materials

fuel storagey
, manure storage

landfillO

wastewater relatedj

solid wasteN

_ chemical storage 

Groundwater Concern Areas
High Concern 
Moderate To High Concern

127



æ
æ

æ

²

²

c

!®

ú

ú

Î

e

¬

i

j

Gibraltar

Shore Rd E

Maple Grove Rd

CO HWY A
Lit

tle
 Si

ste
r R

d

ST HWY 42

We
stw

oo
d D

r

Go
lf R

d

Old Lime Kiln Rd

Golf Ln

Eagle Terrace
AT

C

¯

Map 2.12: Facilities/Infrastructure, Hazardous Materials, and Flood Zone
Village of Ephraim

Door County Hazard Mitigation Plan

²

²

c

!®

Î

¬

i

Ephraim

Mo
rav

ia 
St

Water St

No
rw

ay
 S

t

CO HWY Q

Willow St

S D
an

e S
t

Cedar St

N 
Da

ne
 S

t

Church St

Iverson Ln

Cherry LnCherry St

Downtown Area

Transportation-Related
airport or aircraft-relatede

boat rampî

ferryí
highway shopk

marinaÎ
stream road intersectionsú

roads in 100-yr flood zone

!n dam
Other

100-yr flood zone

® child care
å school

Occupied Buildings/
Vulnerable Populations

« vulnerable population

Utilities

power lines (ATC)
water-relatedÞ

propaneÄ

electric-relatedd

gas lines (WPS)! !

radio/tv-related!

communications-relatedr

Emergency Services

emergency servicesns
fire station¬

clinic/hospitalÑ

a police station

Coast Guard-relatedk

Hazardous Materials

fuel storagey

, manure storage

solid wasteN

landfillO

wastewater relatedj

open contamination siteU

_ chemical storage 

jg beach

ÆQ camping
li community events

Seasonal or Temporary Populations

group quartersh

kh community building

Government/NGO Buildings

libraryc

churchæ

administrative building²

; club buildings
!® post office

128



j

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T
T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

TT

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

TT

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T
T

T

T

T

T T

T

JJ

J

JJJJ
JJJ

JJ

JJJJJJ

JJ

JJJ

JJ

J

J

JJ

EE

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

>

>

>

>

>

>

>

>

>

>

>

>

>

>

>

>

>

>

>

>

>

>

>

>

>

tt

t

t

t

t

t

t

t
t

t

t

t

t

t

t
t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

Gibraltar

Liberty Grove

Sis
ter

 Ba
y

Town Line Dr

Highland Rd

Shore Rd E

ST HWY 42

Maple Grove Rd

CO HWY A

Middle Rd

Eagle Terrace

Ea
gle

 Blu
ff

¯

Map 2.13: Contamination Sites, Hazardous Materials Storage,
and Groundwater Concern Areas
Village of Ephraim

Door County Hazard Mitigation Plan

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T
T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T
T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

TT

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T
T

T

T

T

T T

T

JJ

J

JJJ
JJ JJ

JJ

J
JJ J
J
J

JJ

JJ
J

J J

J

J

J
J

E
E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

>

>

>

>

>

>

>

>

>

>

>

>

>

>

>

>

>

>

>

>

>

>

>

>

>

tt

t

t

t

t

t

t

t
t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

Wa
ter

 St

Mo
rav

ia 
St

Anderson Ln

S D
an

e S
t

Cedar St

N 
Da

ne
 S

t

Spruce St

Church St

CO
 H

WY
 Q

Willow St

Cherry St

DNR R&R Sites

contamination from another propertyJ

soil contaminationE

groundwater and soil contamination>

( groundwater contamination

open site, ongoing cleanupt
closed site completed cleanupT

Hazardous Materials

fuel storagey
, manure storage

landfillO

wastewater relatedj

solid wasteN

_ chemical storage 

Groundwater Concern Areas
High Concern 
Moderate To High Concern

129



!n

æ

c²

!®

ú

ú

ú

ú

ú ú

ú

ú

ú
ú

¬
r

r

j

0

Fo
res

tvi
lle

Forestville Millpond

Ahnapee River

CO HWY J

Mi
ll R

d

Brans Rd

E Main St

CO HWY D

Gaede Ave

W Main St

S Forestville Ave

E Park St

N Forestville Ave

Mi
lle

r A
ve

Sleepy Hollow Dr

Hu
ce

k A
ve

S G
ran

d A
ve

Ikes Ln

W Park St

Lucerne Dr

Cedar St

Commercial St

Krueger Ave

N West Ave

Leege Ave

Ullmann Ln

S West Ave

N Grand Ave

Le
o A

ve

Sc
hm

itz
 D

r

Pagel Ave

W Cedar Dr

Whispering Waters Rd

Delorit Dr
Hillcrest St

CO HWY J

E Park St

¯

Map 2.14: Facilities/Infrastructure, Hazardous Materials, and Flood Zone
Village of Forestville
Door County Hazard Mitigation Plan

Transportation-Related
airport or aircraft-relatede

boat rampî

ferryí
highway shopk

marinaÎ
stream road intersectionsú

roads in 100-yr flood zone

!n dam
Other

100-yr flood zone

® child care
å school

Occupied Buildings/
Vulnerable Populations

« vulnerable population

Utilities

power lines (ATC)
water-relatedÞ

propaneÄ

electric-relatedd

gas lines (WPS)! !

radio/tv-related!

communications-relatedr

Emergency Services

emergency servicesns
fire station¬

clinic/hospitalÑ

a police station

Coast Guard-relatedk

Hazardous Materials

fuel storagey

, manure storage

solid wasteN

landfillO

wastewater relatedj

open contamination siteU

_ chemical storage 

jg beach

ÆQ camping
li community events

Seasonal or Temporary Populations

group quartersh

kh community building

Government/NGO Buildings

libraryc

churchæ

administrative building²

; club buildings
!® post office

130



j

0

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T
T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T
T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T
T

T

J
J

J

JJJ
J

J
JJ

JJ

J
J
J J
J
J

JJ

J
J

J

J J

J

J

J
J

E
E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

>

>

>

>

>

>

>

>

>

>

>

>

>

>

>

>

>

>

>

>

>

>

>

>

>

tt

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

Fo
res

tvi
lle

Forestville Millpond

Ahnapee River

CO HWY J

Mi
ll R

d

Brans Rd

E Main St

CO HWY D

Gaede Ave

W Main St

S Forestville Ave

E Park St

N Forestville Ave

Mi
lle

r A
ve

Sleepy Hollow Dr

Hu
ce

k A
ve

S G
ran

d A
ve

Ikes Ln

W Park St

Lucerne Dr

Cedar St

Commercial St

Krueger Ave

N West Ave

Leege Ave

Ullmann Ln

S West Ave

N Grand Ave

Le
o A

ve

Sc
hm

itz
 D

r

Pagel Ave

W Cedar Dr

Whispering Waters Rd

Delorit Dr
Hillcrest St

CO HWY J

E Park St

¯

Map 2.15: Contamination Sites, Hazardous Materials Storage,
and Groundwater Concern Areas
Village of Forestville

Door County Hazard Mitigation Plan

DNR R&R Sites

contamination from another propertyJ

soil contaminationE

groundwater and soil contamination>

( groundwater contamination

open site, ongoing cleanupt
closed site completed cleanupT

Hazardous Materials

fuel storagey
, manure storage

landfillO

wastewater relatedj

solid wasteN

_ chemical storage 

Groundwater Concern Areas
High Concern 
Moderate To High Concern

131



æ

æ

² ²c

!®

æ

ú

k

Î

Ñ

Ñ

¬
s

r

r

d

Þ

Þ

h
i
g

®

«

j

j

j
V

V

U

V

V

Sister BayLiberty Grove

Hill Rd

ST H
WY 57

Country Ln

S Bay Shore Dr

Fieldcrest Rd

Wo
od

cre
st 

Rd

Mill Rd

Flint Ridge Rd

Scandia Rd

N Bay Shore Dr

Maple DrLit
tle

 Si
ste

r R
d

Or
ch

ard
 D

r

N Spring Rd

Fo
res

t L
n

Birchwood Dr

We
stw

oo
d D

r

Plateau Rd

CO HWY ZZ

Sunset Dr

Go
lf R

d

Autumn Ct

S Sprin
g R

d

Tri
lliu

m 
Ln

Meadow Ln

S Highland Rd
Villa Dr

Ap
ple

wo
od

 R
d

Cherrywood Ln

Co
un

try
 W

alk
 D

r

Sunny Ct

Chalet Ln

Jungwirth Ct

Sunnyside RdGolf Ln

Koessl Ln

N 
Hig

hla
nd

 R
d

Sis
ter

 Bl
uff

 D
r

Mill Ln
Cardinal Ct

Pheasant Ct

Admiral Dr

No
rth

wo
od

s D
r

Cherrywood Ct

Woodcrest Ln

Somerset Dr

Fieldcrest Ln

Bluffside Ln

Parkview Dr

Wo
od

cre
st 

Ct

Regatta Way
Mill Cir

Co
un

try
 W

alk
 Ln

Gateway Dr
E Stony Ridge Cir

Cu
t S

ton
e C

t

Peterson Ct

Bittersweet Ln

Canterbury Ln

Ju
dit

h B
laz

er 
Dr

Cutty Ridge Ct

Meadow Wood Dr

Mill Rd

Maple Dr

Woodcrest Rd

Door County Hazard Mitigation Plan

¯

Map 2.16: Facilities/Infrastructure, Hazardous Materials, & Flood Zone
Village of Sister Bay

Transportation-Related
airport or aircraft-relatede

boat rampî

ferryí
highway shopk

marinaÎ
stream road intersectionsú

roads in 100-yr flood zone

!n dam
Other

100-yr flood zone

® child care
å school

Occupied Buildings/
Vulnerable Populations

« vulnerable population

Utilities

power lines (ATC)
water-relatedÞ

propaneÄ

electric-relatedd

gas lines (WPS)! !

radio/tv-related!

communications-relatedr

Emergency Services

emergency servicesns
fire station¬

clinic/hospitalÑ

a police station

Coast Guard-relatedk

Hazardous Materials

fuel storagey

, manure storage

solid wasteN

landfillO

wastewater relatedj

open contamination siteU

_ chemical storage 

jg beach

ÆQ camping
li community events

Seasonal or Temporary Populations

group quartersh

kh community building

Government/NGO Buildings

libraryc

churchæ

administrative building²

; club buildings
!® post office

132



j

j

j
V

V

N

N

V

V

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T
T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T
T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

TT

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T
T

T

T

T

T T

T

JJ

J

JJJJ
JJJ

JJ

J
JJJJ
J

JJ

JJ
J

JJ

J

J

JJ

E
E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

>

>

>

>

>

>

>

>

>

>

>

>

>

>

>

>

>

>

>

>

>

>

>

>

>

tt

t

t

t

t

t

t

t
t

t

t

t

t

t

t
t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

Sister BayLiberty Grove

Ephraim

Hill Rd
Old Stage Rd

Scandia Rd

ST H
WY 57

Plateau Rd

Country Ln

CO HWY ZZ

Wo
od

cre
st 

Rd

S Bay Shore Dr

Fieldcrest Rd

Mill Rd

Flint Ridge Rd

N Bay Shore Dr

Maple Dr

Orchard Dr

Lit
tle

 Si
ste

r R
d

ST HWY 42
N Spring Rd

Town Line Dr

Fo
res

t L
n

Birchwood Dr

We
stw

oo
d D

r

Sunset Dr

Go
lf R

d

Autumn Ct

Lindem Ln

S Sprin
g R

d

Tri
lliu

m 
Ln

Nordic Dr

Meadow Ln

S Highland Rd

Villa Dr

Ap
ple

wo
od

 R
d

Cherrywood Ln

Co
un

try
 W

alk
 D

r

Sunny Ct

Chalet Ln

Jungwirth Ct

Sunnyside RdGolf Ln

Arbor Dr

Koessl Ln

Bay Ridge Pl

N 
Hig

hla
nd

 R
d

Sis
ter

 Bl
uff

 D
r

Trails End Rd

Mill Ln
Cardinal Ct

Pheasant Ct

Admiral Dr

No
rth

wo
od

s D
r

Cherrywood Ct

Woodcrest Ln

Somerset Dr

Fieldcrest Ln

Bluffside Ln

Parkview Dr

Wo
od

cre
st 

Ct

Mill Cir

Co
un

try
 W

alk
 Ln

Lit
tle

 Si
ste

r H
ill 

Rd

Gateway Dr

E Stony Ridge Cir

Cu
t S

ton
e C

t

Peterson Ct

Bittersweet Ln

Canterbury Ln

Ju
dit

h B
laz

er 
Dr

Cutty Ridge Ct

Meadow Wood Dr

Woodcrest Rd

Mill Rd

Maple Dr

¯

Door County Hazard Mitigation Plan
Map 2.17: Contamination Sites, Hazardous Materials Storage, 
and Groundwater Concern Areas 
Village of Sister Bay

DNR R&R Sites

contamination from another propertyJ

soil contaminationE

groundwater and soil contamination>

( groundwater contamination

open site, ongoing cleanupt
closed site completed cleanupT

Hazardous Materials

fuel storagey
, manure storage

landfillO

wastewater relatedj

solid wasteN

_ chemical storage 

Groundwater Concern Areas
High Concern 
Moderate To High Concern

133



Village of Sister Bay 
BOARD REPORT 

 
            Meeting Date 06/21/2016 
            Item No.: 2 
 
Recommendation:  
That the Village Board adopt Resolution 334-062116, Adoption of the 2015 Compliance and Maintenance 
Annual Report (CMAR) report for Sister Bay Utilities. 
 
Background:  As required by the DNR, the governing body must annually review and approve through res-
olution an acceptance of the CMAR Report. 
 
This report appears exemplary, and our staff in the Utilities Department deserve hurrah for a job well done. 
 
Fiscal Impact: None at this time; 
 
       Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
       Zeke Jackson 
       Village Administrator 
 
 
 
 
 
 

134



 
 

Resolution No. 334-062116 
Approving the 2015 Annual Compliance Maintenance Report 

 
WHEREAS, the Utilities Superintendent of the Village of Sister Bay has reviewed the 2015 Annual 
Compliance Maintenance Report to be submitted to the Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources, 
and 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Trustees of the Village of Sister Bay, Wisconsin 
that the attached 2015 Annual Compliance Maintenance report prepared by Mike Schell is hereby ap-
proved. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that a copy of this resolution and report is forwarded to the Wisconsin 
Department of Natural Resources.  
 
Introduced at a regular meeting of the Board of Trustees of the Village of Sister Bay held this 2121 day 
of June, 2016. 
 
Passed and adopted this 21st day of June, 2016. 
 
 
         _____________________________________ 
         Dave Lienau, President 
ATTEST: 
__________________________________     VOTE: Ayes _____ Noes _____ 
Christy Sully, Village Clerk WCPC MMC 
 
 
 
 
 
 

135



136



137



138



139



140



141



142



143



144



145



146



147



148



149



150



151



152



153



154



155



156



Village of Sister Bay 
BOARD REPORT 

 
            Meeting Date 06/21/2016 
            Item No.: 2 
 
Recommendation:  
No approval is needed on this item; the Consumer Confidence Report (CCR) is mandated by Utility Provid-
ers in order to inform consumers of potentially hazardous substances in their drinking water. 
 
Background:  Items that are of moderate concern in our water supply: 
 
Barium – Metal – Low dose studies have indicated hearing loss and neurological impairment. 
 
Lead – Neurological dysfunction, especially in young children. 
 
Nitrate – Digestive system disorders, stomach and intestinal cancers, birth defects, spontaneous abortion.  
South Africa and the EU have action limits approximately half the value of US limits by EPA standards. 
 
Radium 226/228 – Radioactive isotope.  Mimics Calcium in the body, though relatively little is actually ab-
sorbed via ingestion.  Alpha emitter.  Increased risk of bone, breast and liver cancer.  Water softeners may 
remove up to 90% of Radium present. 
 
While none of these were found in levels requiring action by the DNR, consumers may wish to further pro-
tect themselves by installing in home filtration devices designed for these specific substances.   
 
Fiscal Impact:  
 
       Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
       Zeke Jackson 
       Village Administrator 
 
 
 
 
 
 

157



2015 Consumer Confidence Report Data 
SISTER BAY WATERWORKS, PWS ID: 

41505101 

Water System Information 

If you would like to know more about the information contained in this report or would like to 
obtain a summary of the source water assessment, please contact Michael C. Schell at (920) 854-
2246.  This CCR will not be mailed but is available upon request. 

Opportunity for input on decisions affecting your water 
quality 

If you are interested in appearing before our Board, Sister Bay has a Water, Sewer, and 
Stormsewer Committee and a Utilities Committee.  These committees meet regularly, as 
announced, throughout the year.  The Village Board meets the third Tuesday of every month.  
Questions regarding the nature of agenda items or more detail on agenda items can be directed to 
the Village Administrator at (920) 854-4118.   

Health Information 

Drinking water, including bottled water, may reasonably be expected to contain at least small 
amounts of some contaminants. The presence of contaminants does not necessarily indicate that 
water poses a health risk. More information about contaminants and potential health effects can 
be obtained by calling the Environmental Protection Agency's safe drinking water hotline (800-
426-4791). 

Some people may be more vulnerable to contaminants in drinking water than the general 
population. Immuno-compromised persons such as persons with cancer undergoing 
chemotherapy, persons who have undergone organ transplants, people with HIV/AIDS or other 
immune systems disorders, some elderly, and infants can be particularly at risk from infections. 
These people should seek advice about drinking water from their health care providers. 
EPA/CDC guidelines on appropriate means to lessen the risk of infection by cryptosporidium 
and other microbial contaminants are available from the Environmental Protection Agency's safe 
drinking water hotline (800-426-4791). 

Source(s) of Water 

Source ID Source Depth (in feet) Status

1 Groundwater 208 Active

158



Source ID Source Depth (in feet) Status

2 Groundwater 305 Active

3 Groundwater 262 Active

Educational Information 

The sources of drinking water, both tap water and bottled water, include rivers, lakes, streams, 
ponds, reservoirs, springs and wells. As water travels over the surface of the land or through the 
ground, it dissolves naturally occurring minerals and, in some cases, radioactive material, and 
can pick up substances resulting from the presence of animals or from human activity. 

Contaminants that may be present in source water include: 

 Microbial contaminants, such as viruses and bacteria, which may come from sewage 
treatment plants, septic systems, agricultural livestock operations and wildlife. 

 Inorganic contaminants, such as salts and metals, which can be naturally- occurring or 
result from urban stormwater runoff, industrial or domestic wastewater discharges, oil 
and gas production, mining or farming. 

 Pesticides and herbicides, which may come from a variety of sources such as agriculture, 
urban stormwater runoff and residential uses. 

 Organic chemical contaminants, including synthetic and volatile organic chemicals, 
which are by-products of industrial processes and petroleum production, and can also 
come from gas stations, urban stormwater runoff and septic systems. 

 Radioactive contaminants, which can be naturally occurring or be the result of oil and gas 
production and mining activities. 

In order to ensure that tap water is safe to drink, EPA prescribes regulations that limit the amount 
of certain contaminants in water provided by public water systems. FDA regulations establish 
limits for contaminants in bottled water, which shall provide the same protection for public 
health. 

Definitions 

Term Definition 

AL 
Action Level: The concentration of a contaminant which, if exceeded, triggers treatment 
or other requirements which a water system must follow. 

MCL 
Maximum Contaminant Level: The highest level of a contaminant that is allowed in 
drinking water. MCLs are set as close to the MCLGs as feasible using the best available 
treatment technology. 

MCLG 
Maximum Contaminant Level Goal: The level of a contaminant in drinking water below 
which there is no known or expected risk to health. MCLGs allow for a margin of safety.

pCi/l picocuries per liter (a measure of radioactivity) 

ppm parts per million, or milligrams per liter (mg/l) 

159



Term Definition 

ppb parts per billion, or micrograms per liter (ug/l) 

TT 
Treatment Technique: A required process intended to reduce the level of a contaminant 
in drinking water. 

Detected Contaminants 

Your water was tested for many contaminants last year. We are allowed to monitor for some 
contaminants less frequently than once a year. The following tables list only those contaminants 
which were detected in your water. If a contaminant was detected last year, it will appear in the 
following tables without a sample date. If the contaminant was not monitored last year, but was 
detected within the last 5 years, it will appear in the tables below along with the sample date. 

Disinfection Byproducts 

Contaminant 
(units) 

Site MCL MCLG 
Level 
Found 

Range

Sample 
Date (if 
prior to 
2015) 

Violation 
Typical Source of 
Contaminant 

HAA5 (ppb) 12 60 60 1 1  No 
By-product of 
drinking water 
chlorination 

TTHM (ppb) 12 80 0 3.8 3.8  No 
By-product of 
drinking water 
chlorination 

Inorganic Contaminants 

Contaminant 
(units) 

Site MCL MCLG 
Level 
Found

Range

Sample 
Date (if 
prior to 
2015) 

Violation
Typical Source of 
Contaminant 

BARIUM 
(ppm)  2 2 0.051 

0.048 -
0.051 

2/3/2014 No 

Discharge of drilling 
wastes; Discharge 
from metal refineries; 
Erosion of natural 
deposits 

FLUORIDE 
(ppm)  4 4 0.5 

0.4 - 
0.5 

2/3/2014 No 

Erosion of natural 
deposits; Water 
additive which 
promotes strong 
teeth; Discharge from 
fertilizer and 

160



Contaminant 
(units) 

Site MCL MCLG 
Level 
Found

Range

Sample 
Date (if 
prior to 
2015) 

Violation
Typical Source of 
Contaminant 

aluminum factories 

NICKEL 
(ppb)  100  1.0000

0.7800 
- 
1.0000

2/3/2014 No 

Nickel occurs 
naturally in soils, 
ground water and 
surface waters and is 
often used in 
electroplating, 
stainless steel and 
alloy products. 

NITRATE 
(N03-N) 
(ppm) 

 10 10 2.70 
1.40 - 
2.70  No 

Runoff from fertilizer 
use; Leaching from 
septic tanks, sewage; 
Erosion of natural 
deposits 

SODIUM 
(ppm)  n/a n/a 24.00 

3.50 - 
24.00 

2/3/2014 No n/a 

 

Contaminant 
(units) 

Action 
Level 

MCLG 

90th 
Percentile 
Level 
Found 

# of 
Results 

Sample 
Date (if 
prior to 
2015) 

Violation 
Typical Source 
of Contaminant 

COPPER 
(ppm) 

AL=1.3 1.3 0.6000 

0 of 10 
results 
were 
above 
the 
action 
level. 

7/18/2014 No 

Corrosion of 
household 
plumbing 
systems; Erosion 
of natural 
deposits; 
Leaching from 
wood 
preservatives 

LEAD (ppb) AL=15 0 3.60 

0 of 10 
results 
were 
above 
the 
action 
level. 

7/18/2014 No 

Corrosion of 
household 
plumbing 
systems; Erosion 
of natural deposits

161



Radioactive Contaminants 

Contaminant 
(units) 

Site MCL MCLG
Level 
Found

Range

Sample 
Date (if 
prior to 
2015) 

Violation 
Typical Source 
of Contaminant

GROSS ALPHA, 
EXCL. R & U 
(pCi/l) 

 15 0 4.0 
0.0 - 
4.0 

2/3/2014 No 
Erosion of 
natural deposits 

RADIUM, (226 + 
228) (pCi/l)  5 0 4.0 

1.4 - 
4.0 

2/3/2014 No 
Erosion of 
natural deposits 

GROSS ALPHA, 
INCL. R & U 
(n/a) 

 n/a n/a 4.0 
0.0 - 
4.0 

2/3/2014 No 
Erosion of 
natural deposits 

Additional Health Information 

If present, elevated levels of lead can cause serious health problems, especially for pregnant 
women and young children. Lead in drinking water is primarily from materials and components 
associated with service lines and home plumbing. Sister Bay Waterworks is responsible for 
providing high quality drinking water, but cannot control the variety of materials used in 
plumbing components. When your water has been sitting for several hours, you can minimize the 
potential for lead exposure by flushing your tap for 30 seconds to 2 minutes before using water 
for drinking or cooking. If you are concerned about lead in your water, you may wish to have 
your water tested. Information on lead in drinking water, testing methods, and steps you can take 
to minimize exposure is available from the Safe Drinking Water Hotline or at 
www.epa.gov/safewater/lead. 

Other Compliance 

Uncorrected Significant Deficiencies 

Deficiency Description and Progress to Date 
Date 
System 
Notified 

Scheduled 
Correction 
Date 

System is not implementing a comprehensive Private Well program. 
The Village is not requiring the well owner to have the well 
inspected by a licensed well driller or pump installer prior to 
issuance of a permit or renewal of a permit. This was identified as a 
deficiency in the Department’s 2012 sanitary survey. Following that 
inspection, the Village informed the Department that they would 
begin requiring the well inspection for all new permits and renewals 
in 2013. This was never done. 

9/21/2015 12/31/2016 

162



Deficiency Description and Progress to Date 
Date 
System 
Notified 

Scheduled 
Correction 
Date 

System is not implementing a comprehensive Private Well 
Abandonment / Permitting Program. There are a number of expired 
well permits and the Village is not requiring the well owner to have 
the well inspected by a licensed well driller or pump installer prior 
to issuance of a permit or renewal of a permit. This was identified as 
a deficiency in the Department’s 2012 sanitary survey. Following 
that inspection, the Village informed the Department that they 
would begin requiring the well inspection for all new permits and 
renewals in 2013. This was never done. 

9/21/2015 12/31/2020 

Actions Taken 

In order to address the items above, Sister Bay Waterworks has developed a process for 
permitting and the abandonment of private wells.  Residents with private wells are reminded to 
renew their well permit or arrange for properly abandoning their well.  Failure to obtain a permit 
results in a late fee plus additional penalties as described in Chapter 62 – Utilities, Section 62.6 
d(6) of the Municipal Code (available by visiting the Village Administration Office or at 
www.sisterbaywi.info).  Two safe water samples, a letter from a licensed well driller or pump 
installer certifying that the well pump is still operational and met code NR812 at the time of 
installation, and payment of a standard fee are required to renew permits. 

163



Village of Sister Bay 
BOARD REPORT 

 
            Meeting Date 06/21/2016 
            Item No.: 3 
 
Recommendation:  
That the Village Board accept a recommendation of the Plan Commission and adopt Ordinance 242-06211 
Amending 66.1065 of the Sister Bay Zoning Code, Utility Poles 
 
Background:  From time to time, the Village receives inquiries from various parties on what it would take to 
erect a tower in the Village.  The state and federal governments have had changes to laws in the last several 
years that blur the lines between what is a cellular provider, internet provider, utilities provider or other 
tower erector in terms of local zoning authority.   
 
To further complicate the situation, the Village is a materially interested party with regards to its rights of 
way.  What made sense in 1912, granting a right of way to electric providers in order to gain the marvel of 
electricity, does not necessarily make the same sense with respect to any utility that may wish to operate 
within the Village’s right of way. 
 
We just spent over a million dollars burying all utilities in our downtown, would it make sense for us to 
permit a 200’ “Tower” because a utility calls it a “Utility Pole” as opposed to a “Tower”? 
 
This proposed ordinance will allow the Village to maintain control over it’s rights of way.  It will allow us 
to monitor whom uses the right of way, and require them to apply to the Village whenever locating utility 
poles within our right of way. 
 
The Plan Commission has held a duly noticed public hearing on the matter, and recommended approval of 
the Zoning Code Amendment to the Village Board. 
 
Fiscal Impact: None at this time; 
 
       Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
       Zeke Jackson 
       Village Administrator 
 
 
 
 
 
 

164



 
 

Plan Commission Public Notice 
 

 
 

The Sister Bay Plan Commission will  hold  a public hearing  at the Sister Bay Fire Station, 2258  Mill Rd, 
Door  County, Wisconsin  on Tuesday,  May 24,  2016 at 5:30  P.M. or shortly  thereafter, for the purpose 
of considering proposed text amendments to the Zoning Code.  

 
The purpose of this public hearing is to obtain comments and input from the public on the proposed text 
amendments. 

 
A copy of the proposed amendments and the  cu r rent  Zoning Code are available for inspection. The 
Zoning Code and Zoning Map for the Village a r e  a l s o  on file  at the Zoning Administrator's office  and 
may  be viewed at 2383  Maple Drive weekdays between 10:00 a.m. and 4:00p.m.  

 
Written testimony, including email, will be accepted at the Sister Bay Administration Building, 2383 
Maple Drive, Sister Bay, WI 54234, (FAX 920-854-9637) until 3:00 P.M. on the day of the meeting. 
Letters will be available for public inspection during normal  business hours, until  the close of business 
on the day of the hearing. Letters will be entered into the record; and  a summary  of all letters will be 
presented at the meeting, but individual letters may not be read. Anonymous correspondence will not be 
accepted. 

 
All  application materials  for  Regular Zoning Permits, Conditional Use Permits and  zoning amendment 
petitions may be viewed at the Sister Bay Administration Building, 2383  Maple Drive, Sister Bay, WI  
during normal business hours, 8:00am. -4:00p.m. 

 
By order of the Plan Commission of the Village  of Sister Bay.  
 
Zeke Jackson 
Zoning Administrator 
zeke.jackson@sisterbaywi.gov 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

2383 Maple Drive 
PO Bo x  769 

Sister Bay. WI 54234 

Tel. (920) 854-4118 
Fax (920) 854-9637 

www.sisterbaywi.gov 

165

mailto:zeke.jackson@sisterbaywi.gov
http://www.sisterbaywi.gov/


166



Village of Sister Bay 
BOARD REPORT 

 
            Meeting Date 06/21/2016 
            Item No.: 4 
 
Recommendation:  
That the Village Board award a contract for engineering services to Robert E. Lee and associates in the 
amount of $14,550.00.  Authorize use of funds from CIP Fund 04-24, Parks Building Fund. 
 
Background:  This item was discussed at the last Board meeting.  At that time, both bids had not been re-
ceived.  The recommended course of action from the Utilities and Finance Committee regarding Braun Site 
redevelopment is to prepare “shovel ready” plans for the Braun Site, so that when a sale occurs, we can 
expediently move forward with infrastructure installation to meet the building needs of the developer of the 
site. 
 
Fiscal Impact: $14,550.00 in CIP funds at this time.  Some or all of this may be recovered through the sale 
of property. 
 
       Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
       Zeke Jackson 
       Village Administrator 
 
 
 
 
 
 

167



NAME OF BIDDER/ADDRESS/PHONE AMOUNT OF BID

Robert E Lee and Associates $14,550.00

Donohue and Associates $26,400.00

BID TABULATION SHEET FOR ENGINEERING SERVICES - Braun lot utilities

All proposals were received at the administrative offices of the Village of Sister Bay

168



Village of Sister Bay 
BOARD REPORT 

 
            Meeting Date 06/21/2016 
            Item No.: 5 
 
Recommendation:  
That the Village Board adopt the updated set of Bylaws, as discussed at the May Village Board Meeting. 
 
Background:  The Village Board discussed this item at length at its’ May meeting.  The Bylaws have been 
amended according to the notes that I took at that meeting, and should they meet with your approval, 
should be adopted. 
 
*note:  The request to add voting authority to the ex-officio member is not permitted under Wis. Stats. 
66.23.   
 
The Ex-officio member derives their authority to speak at the meeting from Sec. 66.23(e) “The city plan 
commission shall have power and authority to employ experts and a staff, and to pay for their services and 
such other expenses as may be necessary and proper, not exceeding, in all, the appropriation that may be 
made for such commission by the legislative body, or placed at its disposal through gift, and subject to any 
ordinance or resolution enacted by the governing body.” 
 
66.23 restricts the membership of the Plan Commission to 7 except under two conditions: 
 
1.  The Municipality has within its boundaries a military installation with over 200 service members serv-
ing.  The community, by ordinance, can increase the membership to 8, provided that the commander of 
the base makes the appointment for the 8th member. 
 
2.  By Ordinance, the Village may increase the number of members to 8 in order to create a position for the 
Village’s building inspector/commissioner.  This appears to be the only exception that the Village may be 
able to create to expand the membership to another voting member. 
 
Fiscal Impact: none. 
 
       Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
       Zeke Jackson 
       Village Administrator 
 
 
 
 
 
 

169



 
 
 
 

170



Village of Sister Bay Board of Trustees Bylaws – 062116 Draft 
 

 2 

171



Village of Sister Bay Board of Trustees Bylaws – 062116 Draft 
 

 3 

172



Village of Sister Bay Board of Trustees Bylaws – 062116 Draft 
 

 4 

173



Village of Sister Bay Board of Trustees Bylaws – 062116 Draft 
 

 5 

174



Village of Sister Bay Board of Trustees Bylaws – 062116 Draft 
 

 6 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

175



Village of Sister Bay Board of Trustees Bylaws – 062116 Draft 
 

 7 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 
 

176



Village of Sister Bay Board of Trustees Bylaws – 062116 Draft 
 

 8 

177



 

 

 

 

 
 

 
 

178



Rules of Order & Organization for Sister Bay Committees/Commissions – Draft 062116 
 

 2 

 

 

 

 

179



Rules of Order & Organization for Sister Bay Committees/Commissions – Draft 062116 
 

 3 

 

180



Rules of Order & Organization for Sister Bay Committees/Commissions – Draft 062116 
 

 4 

181



Rules of Order & Organization for Sister Bay Committees/Commissions – Draft 062116 
 

 5 

182



Rules of Order & Organization for Sister Bay Committees/Commissions – Draft 062116 
 

 6 

183



Rules of Order & Organization for Sister Bay Committees/Commissions – Draft 062116 
 

 7 

184



Rules of Order & Organization for Sister Bay Committees/Commissions – Draft 062116 
 

 8 

 

 

 

 

 

185



Village of Sister Bay 
BOARD REPORT 

 
            Meeting Date 06/21/2016 
            Item No.: 7 
 
Recommendation:  
That the Village Board accept the recommendation of the Village Clerk-Treasurer, and issue licenses to the 
applicants for various alcohol, soda and/or cigarette licenses attached to this Board Report. 
 
Background:  The Village Board is required to act annually on all new and renewal licenses related to al-
cohol, tobacco and soda.  Applicants are required to submit appropriate paperwork and fees to the Clerk.  
All applications are in order, and appropriate fees have been received. 
 
Fiscal Impact:  
 
Fee collection comparison detailed below: 
 
 2015 2016 
Liquor/Beer/Wine $8208.32 $29,626.66 
Operator $750.00 $730.00 
Soda $135.00 $140.00 
Cigarette $50.00 $50.00 
 
 
       Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
       Zeke Jackson 
       Village Administrator 
 
 
 
 
 
 

186



 

 

 

 

2016 

 

CLASS A BEER & LIQUOR LICENSES    AGENT/OWNER 

 

Bhirdo's by the Bay       Denise L Bhirdo 

Top Shelf Cafe & Gourmet      John Louis Seiberlich 

Shopko        Christopher Schramm 

Piggly Wiggly        Jay Kita 

Firefly Outfitters LLC       Collin Dahl 

 

CLASS B BEER & LIQUOR LICENSES 

 

Husby’s        John Sawyer 

Sister Bay Bowl       Penny Anchutz 

 

SPECIAL B 

 

Little Sister Resort       Greg Sunstrom 

 

300 SEAT B 

 

Lure         Patsy Wuollett  

Northern Grill        Ron MacDonald 

Al Johnson’s        Lars Johnson 

Boathouse of Sister Bay      Tim Cross 

 

CLASS A BEER LICENSES 

 

Voight's Country Walk Amoco     Dennis & Lisa Voight 

Sister Bay Mobil       Dave Lienau 

 

CLASS B BEER & CLASS C WINE LICENSES 

 

Church Hill Inn       Mike Goldstone 

Grasse’s Grill        Jim Grasse 

Sister Bay Inn        AlmaVaicekausilas 

Chop         PatsyWuollett 

Bier Zot/Wild Tomato      John Britton Unkefer 

Drink Coffee        Rachel Lohman 

Klaud’s Kitchen       Klaudia Crawford ell 

Bayridge Golf Course       Erik Anderson 

Door County Creamery      Jesse Johnson 

Roots Inn & Kitchen       Sara Doherty 

187



 

 

2016 OPERATOR'S LICENSES    AGENT/OWNERS PRESENT 

 
Christopher Janisse   Husby’s      John Sawyer  

James Larson   Husby’s 

Sage Conrad   Husby’s 
Andrea Keller   Husby’s  

Chad Kodanko   Husby’s 

Todd Strojny   Husby’s 
Art Turnquist   Husby’s 

Carlin Hatch   Husby’s 

Adam Hutchinson   Husby’s 
Janet Jenisse   Husby’s  

Matt Stone    Husby’s  

Kala Larsen   Husby’s 
Lyndzi Growt   Husby’s 

Denielle Warecki   Husby’s  

 
Andrea Erickson   Bhirdo's       Denise L Bhirdo 

Michele Bhirdo-Pluff   Bhirdo's 

Ken Haskell   Bhirdo’s 
Angela La Plant   Bhirdo’s 

 

Dolly Zahn   Piggly Wiggly     Jay Kita 

Heike Tavenner   Piggly Wiggly 

Sandra Zak   Piggly Wiggly 
Jay Kita    Piggly Wiggly 

 

Gary Willems   Sister Bay Bowl     Penny Anschutz 
Penny L Anschutz   Sister Bay Bowl 

Brett C Anschutz   Sister Bay Bowl 

Paula Anschutz   Sister Bay Bowl 
Lexi Toursas   Sister Bay Bowl 

Zoey Touras   Sister Bay Bowl 

Eric Rockwell   Sister Bay Bowl 
Brian Sohns   Sister Bay Bowl 

Elizabeth Maloney   Sister Bay Bowl 

Oliva Lowery   Sister Bay Bowl 
 

John Voight   Country Walk Amoco     Dennis & Lisa Voight 

Gary Miller   Country Walk Amoco 
Dennis Voight   Country Walk Amoco 

Lisa Voight   Country Walk Amoco 

Carl Heine    Country Walk Amoco 
Sherry Lettie   Country Walk Amoco 

 

Mike Goldstone   Church Hill Inn     Mike Goldstone 
 

Lars Johnson   Al Johnson’s     Lars Johnson 

Jaime Blossom   Al Johnson’s 
Annika Johnson   Al Johnson’s 

 

Tonda Gagliardo   Top Shelf      John Seiberlich 
 

Elly Marie Polomis   Sister Bay Mobil     Dave Lienau 

Julian Lawrence   Sister Bay Mobil 
Sharmeel Williams   Sister Bay Mobil 

Brittann Walfall   Sister Bay Mobile 

Andre Wilson   Sister Bay Mobile 
Yenita Geurgieva   Sister Bay Mobile 

Zlatka Bonguraia   Sister Bay Mobile 

      
Jessica Grasse   Grasse’s Grill     James Grasse 

 

Carla Krist    Shopko       Christine Wilson 
Christopher Schramm   Shopko  

Kandie Skippon   Shopko 

 
Greg Sunstrom   Little Sister Resort     Greg Sunstrom 

Gene Lhost   Little Sister Resort 

    
  

Joseph Weisenritter                   Northern Grill     Ron Mac Donald 

Christopher Clark                   Northern Grill 
 

188



 

 

Diane Trenchard   Bayridge Golf Course     Diane Trenchard 

  
 

Patsy Wuollett   Chop      Patsy Wuollett 

 
Benjamin Ehlers   Lure      Patsy Wuollett 

Alyse-Marie Freeman 

 
Rachael Johnson   Door County Creamery    Jesse Johnson 

 

Larry Gajda   Sister Bay Lions 
Richard Stultz   Sister Bay Lions 

Dennis Paschke   Sister Bay Lions 

Dick Staver   Sister Bay Lions 
 

Anastsia Bell   SB/LBG Firefighters     Chris Hecht 

 
Rachel Lohman   Drink Coffee     Rachel Lohman 

Scott Lohman   Drink Coffee 

 
Brett Unkefer   Bier Zot/Wild Tomato    Britt Unkefer 

Sara Unkefer   Bier Zot/Wild Tomato 

 

Mike Daubner   Boathouse of Sister Bay    Tim Cross 

 
Alma Varcekavskas   Sister Bay Inn LLC     Alma Varcekavskas 

 

Chris Milligan   SBAA     

189



190



191



192



193



194



195



196



197



198



199



200



201



202



203



204



205



206



207



208



209



210



211



212



213



214



215



216



217



218



219



220



221



222



223



224



225



226



227



228



229



230



231



232



233



Village of Sister Bay 
BOARD REPORT 

 
            Meeting Date 06/21/2016 
            Item No.: 8 
 
Recommendation:  
That the Village Board adopt the Updated Fee Schedule as recommended by the Waterfront Oversight and 
Parks Committees. 
 
Background:  The Waterfront Oversight Committee examined the current fee schedule that the Village 
charges for use Waterfront and Other Parks facilities.  After much deliberation, they recommended signifi-
cant changes to the fee structure which would reflect the new amenities that are present in the Park. 
 
The Parks Committee received the recommendations of the Waterfront Oversight Committee, and, with a 
few adjustments to facilitate more responsible use by patrons, recommends approval of the attached fee 
schedule to the Village Board. 
 
 
Fiscal Impact: This fee schedule should make the Village facilities more closely priced to the market, and 
hopefully will generate user fees that will raise revenues for the Village. 
 
       Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
       Zeke Jackson 
       Village Administrator 
 
 
 
 
 
 

234



 

VILLAGE OF SISTER BAY FACILITY USE FEE SCHEDULE 
*At the end of the rental period the facility or room which is being used must be left in the condition it was found, or 
the cleaning charges mentioned on this schedule will be deducted from the security deposit. 

 

FACILITY 
SECURITY 
DEPOSIT 

CLEANING 
CHARGES 

(If Applicable) 

VILLAGE 
SERVICE/CHARITABLE 

ORGANIZATIONS & 
NOT-FOR-PROFITS 

FEES FOR  
NON-VILLAGE 

ORGANIZATIONS 
& INDIVIDUALS  

FEES FOR 
PROPERTY 
OWNERS & 
RESIDENTS 

Village Hall or 
Waterfront Park 

Gazebo 
$500.00 

$100.00 Per Hr. 
(Minimum Charge 
Is $100.00. Charges 
Will Be Deducted 

From Sec. Deposit) 

FREE 
$200.00 Per Day 

+ Tax 
If Applicable 

$50.00 Per Day  
+ Tax 

If Applicable 

TKH Building or 
Sports Complex 

Shelter 
$500.00 

$100.00 Per Hr. 
(Minimum Charge 
Is $100.00. Charges 
Will Be Deducted 

From Sec. Deposit) 

FREE 
$150.00 Per Day  

+ Tax 
If Applicable 

$25.00 Per Day  
+ Tax 

If Applicable 

Large Meeting 
Room at the Fire 

Station 
$500.00 

$100.00 Per Hr. 
(Minimum Charge 
Is $100.00. Charges 
Will Be Deducted 

From Sec. Deposit) 

FREE 

$25.00 + Tax 
If Applicable 

(Per 4 Hour Time 
Slot) 

$15.00 + Tax 
If Applicable 

(Per 4 Hour Time 
Slot) 

Small Meeting 
Room at the Fire 

Station 
$500.00 

$100.00 Per Hr. 
(Minimum Charge 
Is $100.00. Charges 
Will Be Deducted 

From Sec. Deposit) 

FREE 

$10.00 + Tax 
If Applicable 

(Per 4 Hour Time 
Slot) 

$5.00 + Tax 
If Applicable 

(Per 4 Hour Time 
Slot) 

Sports Complex 
Playing Fields 

$500.00 

$100.00 Per Hr. 
(Minimum Charge 
Is $100.00. Charges 
Will Be Deducted 

From Sec. Deposit) 

FREE 
$50.00 Per Field  

+ Tax 
If Applicable 

$25.00 Per Field  
+ Tax 

If Applicable 

Organizers of any on-going events may contract with the Village for better rates. 

 

235



VILLAGE OF SISTER BAY WEDDING & TENTED EVENT USE FEE SCHEDULE 
*At the end of the rental period the area(s) which is/are being used must be left in the condition it/they was/were found, 
or the cleaning/pick-up charges mentioned on this schedule will be deducted from the security deposit. 

 

 
AREA TO BE UTILIZED 

 

SECURITY 
DEPOSIT 

CLEANING/PICK-UP 
CHARGES 

(If Applicable) 

FLAT FEE WHICH WILL BE CHARGED & 
DURATION OF USE 

Marina Park $1,000.00 

$100.00 Per Hr.  
(Minimum Charge Is 

$100.00. Charges Will Be 
Deducted From Sec. 

Deposit) 

$1,250.00 + Tax 
(Tented Event Area Will Be Accessible From 

1:00 P.M. Fri. Through 10:00 A.M. Mon.) 

Area North of Village Hall  
(By “Lienau Hill”) 

$1,500.00 

$100.00 Per Hr. 
(Minimum Charge Is 

$100.00. Charges Will Be 
Deducted From Sec. 

Deposit) 

$1,875.00 + Tax 
(Tented Event Area Will Be Accessible From 

1:00 P.M. Fri. Through 10:00 A.M. Mon.) 
 

Beachfront  
(During May, June, September 

& October) 
Tent Must Be Erected In 

Designated Area 
 

$3,000.00 

$100.00 Per Hr. 
(Minimum Charge Is 

$100.00. Charges Will Be 
Deducted From Sec. 

Deposit) 

$3,500.00 + Tax 
(Tented Event Area Will Be Accessible From 

1:00 P.M. Fri. Through 10:00 A.M. Mon.) 
(On The Morning of the Ceremony The 

Facilities Manager Will See That A Sign Is 
Posted On The Beach Which States That A 

Portion Of It Has Been Reserved For a 
Wedding.) 

Beachfront 
(During July & August No 

More Than 2 Beachfront Events 
May Be Conducted – “First 

Come, First-Served”) 
Tent Must Be Erected In 

Designated Area 

$3,000.00 

$100.00 Per Hr. 
(Minimum Charge Is 

$100.00. Charges Will Be 

Deducted From Sec. 
Deposit) 

$7,000.00 + Tax 
(Tented Event Area Will Be Accessible From 

1:00 P.M. Fri. Through 10:00 A.M. Mon.) 
(On The Morning of the Ceremony The 

Facilities Manager Will See That A Sign Is 
Posted On The Beach Which States That A 

Portion Of It Has Been Reserved For a 
Wedding.) 

 
*Prior to the time that any tents are erected the person(s) reserving the previously mentioned area(s) must meet with Steve Mann, the 
Village’s Facilities Manager, to determine the designated tent location. (Steve can be reached at 920-421-0273.) 
 
**It will be the sole responsibility of the person(s) reserving the previously mentioned areas to rent, tents, chairs, tables, etc.  

236



Village of Sister Bay 
BOARD REPORT 

 
            Meeting Date 06/21/2016 
            Item No.: 9 
 
Recommendation:  Accept a recommendation by the Finance Director to engage Schenck SC to:  1) assist 
with the transition to a chart of accounts consistent with the State of Wisconsin’s Uniform Chart of Ac-
counts, and 2) perform a wastewater and collection cash flow and user charge study on behalf of the Utili-
ty. 
 
Background:  Auditors Virginia Hinz and Amber Drewieske of Schenck SC submitted engagement letters 
for the aforementioned consulting projects.   
 
A change to the chart of accounts has been discussed by the auditors and staff for several years.  With the 
upgrade in the accounting system and the changes in staff, the timing is appropriate for completing this 
project.  By outsourcing this project to Schenck, staff will have time to focus on daily activities, budgeting, 
preparing for the software upgrade, and implementing changes to utility billing. 
 
The Utility study is the bi-annual sewer rate study which was previously performed in-house.  Due to staff 
changes, we are recommending outsourcing this review.  Schenck will present their report and recommen-
dations to the Village Board. 
 
Copies of the engagement letters were provided for review prior to the meeting.  Trustees are encouraged 
to call Rass and/or Jackson with any questions. 
 
Fiscal Impact:   
The chart of accounts engagement is estimated to cost $2,250 to $2,500.  The Village has an unexpended 
budgeted balance for consulting work to the Village of $4,883.50.   
 
The Utility study is estimated to cost $3,500 to $4,000.  This is an unbudgeted item. 
        
        
 
       Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
       Tasha Rass 
       Finance Director 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

237



 

 

 

June 8, 2016 

Those Charged With Governance 
Mr. Zeke Jackson, Village Administrator 
2383 Maple Drive  
PO Box 769 
Sister Bay, WI 54234 
 
 
 
In accordance with your request, outlined below is a proposal to provide assistance to the Village of Sister Bay, Wisconsin 
in regard to cash flows and user charges of the wastewater collection and treatment utility enterprise fund. 
 
Engagement Scope and Objectives 
The scope of our engagement will be to prepare an analysis of current operating costs, capital expenditures, debt service 
payments and the present customer rate structure. As part of the analysis, we will project future cash inflows and outflows 
of the wastewater collection and treatment utility, as well as provide recommendations for rate changes. We will also 
present our report and rate recommendations to the Village Board as directed by the Village. Specifically, we will complete 
the following: 
 

 Allocate costs of the wastewater utility between fixed and variable; including determining all costs applicable to 
treatment of high strength dischargers. 

 Assist the Village in determining future capital expenditures of the wastewater utility for the years 2016 through 
2020, including proposed methods of financing. 

 Preparation of a projection of wastewater utility operating cash flows for the years 2016 through 2020. 
 Preparation of a recommendation for 2016 wastewater user charges including developing projections of future 

rate increases to achieve a higher rate of return and, accordingly, an increase in resources available for 
wastewater replacement outlays. 

 
Fees 
The assistance will be provided by experienced Schenck Government & Not-for-Profit staff. It is expected that Ginny Hinz 
and Amber Drewieske will provide the majority of the hours in regard to this proposal. Ginny has over 25 years of 
experience in consulting and auditing of Wisconsin utility operations, as well as completes utility rate analyzes for many 
utilities each year. Amber has approximately 7 years of experience auditing Wisconsin utility operations, including 6 for the 
Village.  Fees for services will be based on the number of hours worked at our standard rates.  We estimate the cost of the 
proposed services will range from $3,500 to $4,000. 
 
Acceptance 
If the foregoing is acceptable to you, please return a signed copy of this proposal to Schenck to confirm the engagement. 
We appreciate the opportunity to present our proposal for your consideration. 
   

238



Village of Sister Bay, Wisconsin

Mr. Zeke Jackson, Village Administrator

June 8, 2016

Page 2

Very truly yours,

Schenck SC

Tom Karman, CPA
Shareholder
2200 Riverside Drive
P.O. Box 23819
Green Bay, W 154305
920-455-4111

RESPONSE:

This letter correctly sets forth the understanding of the Village of Sister Bay, Wisconsin.

By:

Title:

Date:

239



Schenck
CPAs AND 50 MUCH MORE.

June 8, 2016

Those Charged With Governance
Mr. Zeke Jackson, Village Administrator
2383 Maple Drive
PO Box 769
Sister Bay, WI 54234

In accordance with your request, outlined below is a proposal to provide assistance to the Village of Sister
Bay, Wisconsin in regards to the Village's chart of account structure.

Engagement Scope and Objectives
The scope of our engagement will be to assist in the transition to a chart of accounts consistent with the
State of Wisconsin's uniform chart of accounts. As part of the transition, we will work with Village
management to create an account structure that best fits the Village's need for financial reporting.

Fees
The assistance will be provided by experienced Schenck Government &Not-for-Profit staff. It is expected
that Ginny Hinz and Amber Drewieske will provide the majority of the hours in regard to this proposal.
Ginny has over 25 years of experience in consulting and auditing of Wisconsin municipalities. Amber has
approximately 7 years of experience auditing Wisconsin municipalities, including 6 for the Village. Fees
for services will be based on the number of hours worked at our standard rates. We estimate the cost of
the proposed services will range from $2,250 to $2,500.

Acceptance
If the foregoing is acceptable to you, please return a signed copy of this proposal to Schenck to confirm
the engagement. We appreciate the opportunity to present our proposal for your consideration.

Very truly yours,

Schenck SC

~,

Tom Karman, CPA
Shareholder
2200 Riverside Drive
P.O. Box 23819
Green Bay, WI 54305
920-455-4111

Appleton • fond du Lac •Green Bay •Manitowoc •Milwaukee •Oshkosh •Sheboygan •Wausau schencksc.com • 800-236-2246

240



Village of Sister Bay, Wisconsin
Mr. Zeke Jackson, Village Administrator

June 8, 2016

Page 2

RESPONSE:

This letter correctly sets forth the understanding of the Village of Sister Bay, Wisconsin.

By:

Title:

Date:

241



Village of Sister Bay 
BOARD REPORT 

 
            Meeting Date 06/21/2016 
            Item No.: 10 
 
Recommendation:  
That the Village Board adopt the 2016 updated Zoning, Utillty and Development Fee Schedule, and ex-
pand Inspection Specialists’ scope of work to include commercial inspections. 
 
Background:   
 
After working with the current fee schedule, it would appear that some items are under charged, and other 
items are over charged relative to the time that we spend dealing with them with regard to Zoning and 
Building permit fees. 
 
The matter becomes further complicated because of recent staffing changes and district boundary changes 
with the Wisconsin Department of Administration’s Building Inspection Department.  In the past, one State 
inspector covered 4 counties of commercial projects.  That inspector has retired, and we are now on our 
3rd state inspector inside of a year.  The territories have also expanded to cover 11 counties (as I understand 
it), and as a result, I haven’t seen a state inspector in almost a year. 
 
I recommend that we engage our residential inspector to cover Village commercial inspections as well.  
Given the nature of some of the upcoming projects, this appears to make sense and will ensure the public 
is protected from unscrupulous contractors. 
 
I am very satisfied with the work that Mr. Guillette has performed, and he was instrumental in ensuring that 
the Overhead Line Burial project was completed on time. 
 
Fiscal Impact:  
Zoning:  This fee schedule will more accurately compensate for time spent, and cover our costs of perform-
ing Planning and Zoning functions. 
 
Our agreement with Mr. Guillette specifies that we pay him 90% of residential inspection fees collected by 
the Village.  Mr. Guillette has examined our Commercial Fee schedule and is willing to work on a 60/40 
split for the inspections, if we are willing to amend our fee schedule to be more in line with other commu-
nities. 
 
       Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
       Zeke Jackson 
       Village Administrator 
 
 
 
 
 
 

242



 
 

 Fee(3) 
1 Preliminary subdivision plats $250(1) 
2 Residential condominium $250(2) 
3 Commercial condominium $250(4) 
4 Certified survey maps $100 
5 Driveway approach permits $25 
6 Site plan, landscaping and building plan review $250 
7 Sign permit $50(7) 
8 Sandwich board sign $20 
9 Special event or fund raising $50 (5) 

10 Special plan commission or board meeting Cost 
11 Rezoning map change $400 
12 Zoning code text change $400 
13 Conditional use permit $400 
14 Official map amendment $400 
15 Amendment to conditional use $250 
16 Planned Unit development $250(2) 
17 Appeal to Zoning Board of Appeals $500 
18 Standard zoning permit $50 
19 Zoning permit accessory use structure $25 
20 Engineering analysis Cost 
21 Village Property status reports $30 
22 Development Agreement Fee $2,000 (6) 

 

 

Village of Sister Bay 
Zoning, Utility and Development Fees 

2015 
All fees, rates, permits and charges are subject to change. 
Check the Village's web site at www.sisterbaywi.gov for the most current amounts. 

  
Building permit fees are assessed by the Village's contract inspection company – Inspection 
Specialists, LLC, or in the case of commercial properties -- the State Building Inspector, Roger 
Strege. To reach Bret Guillett of Inspection Specialists, call 920-495-3232.  To reach Roger 
Strege call 920-336-2857. If building permit fees are required they must be paid separately. 

 
Permit or Fee by Type 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Notes: 
Mixed commercial and residential projects shall have the fees calculated 
based upon actual numbers of units by type. 
1 Plus $50 per dwelling unit 
2 Plus $50 per dwelling unit 
3 Plus legal notice, recording, publication fees if required and all engineering fees 
4 Plus $50 per business unit 
5 Non-profits located, no fee. 
6 The development agreement fee is a deposit and the balance of costs will be reimbursed to the developer. 
7 Replacement of existing signs shall have no fee. 

 
 

Impact Fees  Fee 
1 Wastewater Treatment Plant Impact Fee $653 
2 Water Tower Impact Fee $1,478 
3 Downtown Utilities Impact Fee $861 

 
 

Note: Each of the impact fees are charged based upon the count of water and sanitary fixture 
units for the building. If the count of water and sanitary fixture units totals 225 gallons per day 
that is equivalent to one REU. 
Impact fees are due when the building permit is applied for. 

243

http://www.sisterbaywi.gov/


 
Utility Fees, Charges and Rates  Fee 

1 Sewer Connection Fee >>> See the attached schedule.. 
2 Well Permits $50 
3 Utility Property Status Reports $30 
4 Lateral Permit Inspection Fee $20 

 

SEWER & WATER RATE SCHEDULE 
Effective March 19, 2015 

  
 
TOTAL 

METER SIZE                                                                              SEWER      WATER           FIRE          BASE 
Rate                                                                                       CHARGES CHARGES  PROTECT     CHARGE 

 
5/8 inch meter                                                                              $80.10        $29.40          $7.85       $117.35 
3/4 inch meter                                                                              $80.10        $29.40          $7.85       $117.35 
1 inch meter                                                                               $200.25        $57.00        $19.50       $276.75 
1½ inch meter                                                                            $400.50       $107.25        $39.00       $546.75 
2 inch meter                                                                               $640.80      $167.25        $63.00       $871.05 
3 inch meter                                                                             $1201.50      $318.75      $117.00    $1,637.25 
4 inch meter             $345.00       $195.00     
6 inch meter            $405.00       $391.00 

 
SEWER RATES 
$3.16 / 1,000 gallons 

 
WATER RATES 
First  30,000 gallons - $2.58/1000 gallons 
Next  20,000 gallons - $2.45/1000 gallons 
Next  50,000 gallons - $2.30/1000 gallons 
Over 100,000 gallons - $2.00/1000 gallons 

 
NON-SUFFICIENT FUNDS CHARGE 
NSF                                                                                             $25.00 

 
WATER RECONNECTION CHARGE  

During After 
business hours 

Reinstallation of Meter $30.00 $45.00 
Valve turned on curb stop $25.00 $37.00 

 

Amendment History 
Initial Approval: February 9, 2005 
Amended: October 29, 2005 
Amended: November 21, 2006 
Amended: November 19, 2007 
Amended: August 12, 2008 
Amended: November 4, 2008 
Amended: July 1, 2009 
Amended: November 11, 2010 
Amended: January 1, 2012 
Amended: July 1, 2013 
Draft   July 15, 2014 
Amended: March 19, 2015 

244



Village of Sister Bay

Board Report

For additional information:

http://intranet.sisterbay.com

Meeting Date: 6/21/2016
Item No.: 14

Amount Total

127,598.32$                             
163.24                                      

Village Total 127,761.56$                     

7,469.91$                                 
7,743.00                                  

26.49                                        
Marina Total 15,239.40$                       

264.67$                                     
‐                                            

Minor Funds Total 264.67$                              

Debt Service Village 22,300.00$                               
Marina ‐                                            
Utilities ‐                                            
Debt Service Total 22,300.00$                       

36,597.29$                               
CIP/TIF total 36,597.29$                       

53,378.27$                               
‐                                            

Utility total 53,378.27$                       

CIP/TIF bills prepaid

Utility bills prepaid
Bank fees & bills paid electronically

Marina sales tax
Marina credit card fees

Ice Rink Fund bills
Ice Rink Sales Tax

Recommendation:  Please be advised that I have reviewed the following bills and recommend them for approval.

Bills By Type

Village bills prepaid
Bank fees & bills paid electronically

Marina bills prepaid

File Name:  I:\Shares To Tasha\Appropriations\Appropriations June 2016.xlsx
 Last Updated:  6/17/201610:40 AM

Author:  Tasha M. Rass

Net payroll: 5/27, 6/10 37,343.51$                               
3,786.97                                  
8,772.60                                  

Payroll/taxes total 49,903.08$                       

305,444.27$                 

Fiscal Impact:  As above
Respectfully submitted,

Tasha M. Rass
Village Finance Director

Retirement paid online in May

TOTAL ALL BILLS

State taxes paid online in May

File Name:  I:\Shares To Tasha\Appropriations\Appropriations June 2016.xlsx
 Last Updated:  6/17/201610:40 AM

Author:  Tasha M. Rass

245



 

 
VILLAGE OF SISTER BAY Payment Approval Report - Village Page:     1 

Input Date(s): 05/17/2016 - 06/20/2016 Jun 17, 2016  08:35am 
 

Vendor Vendor Name Invoice No Description Inv Date Net Inv Amt Amount Paid Date PD

30542 04/30/201610005 ACTION ELECTRIC INC Digger's Hotline marking 588.22 588.22 06/02/2016 
maintenance - info booth 95.00 95.00 06/02/2016 

30579 04/30/2016maintenance - info booth 18.64 18.64 06/02/2016 

          Total 10005 701.86 701.86 

1599 04/30/201610007 ACTION APPRAISERS INC Assessor 2,875.00 2,875.00 06/02/2016 
1629 06/01/2016Assessor - June 2,875.00 2,875.00 06/07/2016 

          Total 10007 5,750.00 5,750.00 

239793 05/13/201610110 AFLAC Employee-funded premium 317.84 317.84 05/18/2016 

          Total 10110 317.84 317.84 

JAN-MAY 06/01/201610131 WALTRAUD A ARTS legal services - waterfront dev. 4,097.50 4,097.50 06/07/2016 

          Total 10131 4,097.50 4,097.50 

061416 06/14/201610211 CASH Est Recyc Fee-Old AC's Comp's & TV's 120.00 120.00 06/16/2016 

          Total 10211 120.00 120.00 

14527 06/01/201612238 BOETTCHER COMMUNICATIONS Web Site Hosting 360.00 360.00 06/07/2016 
Web Site Maintenance/Support 441.75 441.75 06/07/2016 

          Total 12238 801.75 801.75 

3489 05/17/201612240 BRIDENHAGEN LANDSCAPING INC Landscaping Repairs - 1/3 5,732.17 5,732.17 05/26/2016 
3489-B 05/17/20162nd Installment - Landscaping Contract 7,732.33 7,732.33 06/16/2016 

          Total 12240 13,464.50 13,464.50 

52216-6416 06/04/201612241 BELL, ANASTASIA Consulting - Marina 165.00 165.00 06/07/2016 
Consulting - Utilities - W 27.00 27.00 06/07/2016 
Consulting - Utilities - WW 39.75 39.75 06/07/2016 
Consulting - Utilities - C 8.25 8.25 06/07/2016 

          Total 12241 240.00 240.00 

15978 04/30/201613260 BHIRDO'S BY THE BAY Village gas - 35.06 35.06 05/18/2016 

          Total 13260 35.06 35.06 

111754 05/16/201613307 THE BUG BLASTER INC Spray Info Boothe 100.00 100.00 06/02/2016 

          Total 13307 100.00 100.00 

250440 06/01/201613505 BURKART-HEISDORF INS INC Qtrly Village Liability Ins. Prem. 2,236.03 2,236.03 06/16/2016 
Qtrly Marina Prop. & Liability Ins. Prem. 387.62 387.62 06/16/2016 
Qtrly Ice Rink Prop. & Liability Ins. Prem. 80.82 80.82 06/16/2016 
Qtrly S&W Liability Ins. Prem. 441.10 441.10 06/16/2016 
Qtrly WWTreatment Prop. & Liability Ins. P 649.40 649.40 06/16/2016 
Qtrly WW Collection Prop. & Liability Ins. 134.78 134.78 06/16/2016 
Qtrly Village Auto Ins. Premium 227.83 227.83 06/16/2016 
Qtrly Marina Auto Ins. Premium 7.04 7.04 06/16/2016 
Qtrly S&W Auto Ins. Premium 38.30 38.30 06/16/2016 
Qtrly WW Treatment Auto Ins. Premium 56.39 56.39 06/16/2016 
Qtrly WW Collection Auto Ins. Premium 11.70 11.70 06/16/2016 

246



 

 
VILLAGE OF SISTER BAY Payment Approval Report - Village Page:     2 

Input Date(s): 05/17/2016 - 06/20/2016 Jun 17, 2016  08:35am 
 

Vendor Vendor Name Invoice No Description Inv Date Net Inv Amt Amount Paid Date PD

Qtrly Board WC Ins. Premium 365.53 365.53 06/16/2016 
Qtrly Admin. Dept. WC Ins. Premium 2,397.52 2,397.52 06/16/2016 
Qtrly Parks Dept. WC Ins. Premium 2,323.82 2,323.82 06/16/2016 
Qtrly Marina WC Ins. Premium 881.82 881.82 06/16/2016 
Qtrly Ice Rink WC Ins. Premium 183.85 183.85 06/16/2016 
Qtrly S&W WC Ins. Premium 1,003.48 1,003.48 06/16/2016 
Qtrly Wastewater WC Ins. Premium 1,477.35 1,477.35 06/16/2016 
Qtrly WW Collection WC Ins. Premium 306.62 306.62 06/16/2016 

          Total 13505 13,211.00 13,211.00 

0093 05/12/201614309 CARDMEMBER SERVICE Festival - Event costs 286.38 286.38 06/02/2016 
2551 05/06/2016Safety flare - utilities 6.64 6.64 06/02/2016 
2688 05/14/2016Safe for Marina 66.45 66.45 06/02/2016 
2866 05/12/2016office supplies - laminating sheets 18.30 18.30 06/02/2016 
2929 04/25/2016Return merchandise 6.05 - 6.05 - 06/02/2016 
3053 04/20/2016Postage -  Utilities 1.36 1.36 06/02/2016 

3350A 04/26/2016Recognition Zacek & Curzon 126.95 126.95 06/02/2016 
3363 04/27/2016Postage 18.75 18.75 06/02/2016 
3648 05/04/2016Postage 18.75 18.75 06/02/2016 
3814 05/10/2016Postage -  Utilities 6.45 6.45 06/02/2016 
3998 05/16/2016Postage -  Utilities 6.45 6.45 06/02/2016 
4754 05/05/2016Shop supplies 43.99 43.99 06/02/2016 
5414 05/11/2016Marina web page hosting 95.40 95.40 06/02/2016 
5676 05/09/2016clerk/tres. inst. - Janal 491.00 491.00 06/02/2016 
5748 05/11/2016Acctg Workshop - Tasha 160.00 160.00 06/02/2016 
6776 05/05/2016Lamppost banners 61.40 61.40 06/02/2016 
7125 05/09/2016Plat Sign Braun Property 800.00 800.00 06/02/2016 
7345 05/03/2016Employee recognition 211.00 211.00 06/02/2016 
9407 04/27/2016Certified mail - utilities 6.47 6.47 06/02/2016 
9508 04/19/2016Adobe - CR for returned merchandise 24.25 - 24.25 - 06/02/2016 
9580 05/04/2016Postage -  Utilities 6.45 6.45 06/02/2016 
9715 04/28/2016Meal w/K Enquist 30.00 30.00 06/02/2016 
9854 05/06/2016Flags for Light Polls 425.45 425.45 06/02/2016 

          Total 14309 2,857.34 2,857.34 

28793 05/29/201614310 CAPTAIN COMMODES INC Commode rental - Dog Park 75.00 75.00 06/07/2016 

          Total 14310 75.00 75.00 

JUN16-ADM 05/23/201617501 CHARTER COMMUNICATIONS internet/ adm bldg 149.99 149.99 06/02/2016 
MAY16-BH 05/08/2016Boathouse - charter TV 80.96 80.96 05/26/2016 
MAY16-M 05/13/2016internet - Marina 145.00 145.00 06/02/2016 

          Total 17501 375.95 375.95 

895138 05/05/201617506 CELLCOM Cellphone - Marina manager 64.44 64.44 05/26/2016 
Cellphones - Parks employees 130.89 130.89 05/26/2016 

          Total 17506 195.33 195.33 

802-39529 01/13/201617526 CUMMINS NPOWER LLC Generator maintenance - FS 340.53 340.53 05/26/2016 

          Total 17526 340.53 340.53 

909688 05/15/201620007 DELTA DENTAL OF WIS Dental insurance 1,354.04 1,354.04 05/26/2016 

247



 

 
VILLAGE OF SISTER BAY Payment Approval Report - Village Page:     3 

Input Date(s): 05/17/2016 - 06/20/2016 Jun 17, 2016  08:35am 
 

Vendor Vendor Name Invoice No Description Inv Date Net Inv Amt Amount Paid Date PD

          Total 20007 1,354.04 1,354.04 

BOATHOUSE16 05/15/201620435 DEPT OF HEALTH SERVICES Boat house renewal 110.00 110.00 05/26/2016 

          Total 20435 110.00 110.00 

40012046 06/07/201620450 DOOR COUNTY TREASURER Marina IT Tech Support - May 44.24 44.24 06/16/2016 

          Total 20450 44.24 44.24 

000007718871 06/23/201620470 DWD-UI Enea Marina Unemp. 4/30/16-5/7/16 169.58 169.58 06/16/2016 

          Total 20470 169.58 169.58 

1536239 05/15/201620505 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS CORP. FSA Fee 50.00 50.00 06/16/2016 
1555724 06/10/2016Dependent Care - FSA 416.66 416.66 06/16/2016 

          Total 20505 466.66 466.66 

67325 05/31/201620507 EAGLE MECHANICAL INC HVAC Maint. - Marina 149.75 149.75 06/16/2016 
HVAC Maint. - Sports Complex 73.75 73.75 06/16/2016 

          Total 20507 223.50 223.50 

919800 05/17/201620510 EDER FLAG Flags - Marina 132.71 132.71 06/02/2016 
922190 05/24/2016Flags - Marina 141.66 141.66 06/07/2016 

          Total 20510 274.37 274.37 

PR0521160 05/26/201620512 EFTPS - ONLINE 941 PAYMENT PRINT PAPER CHECK TO UPDATE GL A 3,165.34 3,165.34 05/27/2016 
PRINT PAPER CHECK TO UPDATE GL A 740.34 740.34 05/27/2016 
PRINT PAPER CHECK TO UPDATE GL A 2,184.01 2,184.01 05/27/2016 

PR0521160A 05/26/2016CORRECTION SSN FOR EMPL 20481 30.68 30.68 06/10/2016 
CORRECTION MED FOR EMPL 20481 7.18 7.18 06/10/2016 
CORRECTION FED FOR EMPL 20481 15.90 15.90 06/10/2016 

PR0604160 06/10/2016PRINT PAPER CHECK TO UPDATE GL A 3,505.90 3,505.90 06/10/2016 
PRINT PAPER CHECK TO UPDATE GL A 819.98 819.98 06/10/2016 
PRINT PAPER CHECK TO UPDATE GL A 2,374.58 2,374.58 06/10/2016 

          Total 20512 12,843.91 12,843.91 

5003139262 05/26/201620515 FERRELL GAS Propane Delivery - Library 224.23 224.23 06/16/2016 
Propane Deliveries - Fire Station 990.53 990.53 06/16/2016 

          Total 20515 1,214.76 1,214.76 

702090 05/19/201620599 EVENSON LAUNDRY INC Entrance mats - Admin Bldg 28.00 28.00 06/07/2016 
Entrance mats - Fire Station 72.00 72.00 06/07/2016 

          Total 20599 100.00 100.00 

102490 04/25/201630609 FASTENAL Sports complex  53.95 53.95 06/02/2016 
103359 05/24/2016Safety  Equipment 408.00 408.00 06/07/2016 
103360 05/24/2016Biohazard Container/Station 188.47 188.47 06/07/2016 

Biohazard Container/Station 72.00 72.00 06/07/2016 
WISTU103636 06/02/2016Lag Bolts - Street Sign Maintenance 4.67 4.67 06/16/2016 

248



 

 
VILLAGE OF SISTER BAY Payment Approval Report - Village Page:     4 

Input Date(s): 05/17/2016 - 06/20/2016 Jun 17, 2016  08:35am 
 

Vendor Vendor Name Invoice No Description Inv Date Net Inv Amt Amount Paid Date PD

          Total 30609 727.09 727.09 

00050764 06/04/201630634 FOX VALLEY OVERHEAD DOOR INC Overhead Door Rep. at Maint. Bldg. 850.20 850.20 06/16/2016 

          Total 30634 850.20 850.20 

APR/MAY 05/07/201630701 FRONTIER Marina phone 126.21 126.21 05/26/2016 
JUNE16 05/25/2016Sports Cplx  phone 44.22 44.22 06/07/2016 

JUNE16ADM 05/25/2016Admin Bldg phone 184.15 184.15 06/07/2016 

          Total 30701 354.58 354.58 

0009886045 05/02/201630704 WISCONSIN MEDIA Legal Notices - Liquor Lic. Apps. 171.27 171.27 06/16/2016 
Legal Notice - BOR 19.22 19.22 06/16/2016 
Legal Notice - Plan Com. Public Hrg. 49.92 49.92 06/16/2016 

          Total 30704 240.41 240.41 

123964-060116 06/01/201630750 GOING CO INC Garbage Pick-Up - Marina 247.46 247.46 06/16/2016 
Recycling Pick-Up - Marina 40.90 40.90 06/16/2016 

123997-516 06/01/2016garbage - Village 9,548.53 9,548.53 06/07/2016 
recycle - Village 487.02 487.02 06/07/2016 

325803-060116 06/01/2016Recycling Pick-Up - Fire Station 48.06 48.06 06/16/2016 

          Total 30750 10,371.97 10,371.97 

PR0521160 05/26/201630751 GREAT-WEST Great West Deferred Comp.   DEFERRED 970.36 970.36 05/27/2016 
Great West Deferred Comp.   EMPLOYER 164.64 164.64 05/27/2016 

PR0604160 06/10/2016Great West Deferred Comp.   DEFERRED 970.36 970.36 06/13/2016 
Great West Deferred Comp.   EMPLOYER 164.64 164.64 06/13/2016 

          Total 30751 2,270.00 2,270.00 

2016-05 05/16/201631803 H & K SPORTS FIELDS LLC maintenance - baseball field 608.00 608.00 06/02/2016 
maint. to be reimb by Sister Bay Bays 3,000.00 3,000.00 06/02/2016 

          Total 31803 3,608.00 3,608.00 

MAY16 05/31/201631809 HSABANK EE funded HSA Contrib. 633.12 633.12 06/02/2016 

          Total 31809 633.12 633.12 

56118 05/24/201634855 HORST DIST INC Equipment  Maintenance 893.81 893.81 06/07/2016 

          Total 34855 893.81 893.81 

20940 04/29/201640956 INNOVATIVE PRINTING LLC Launch Pass - Marina Seasonal 89.00 89.00 06/02/2016 
20945 04/29/2016Business Cards - Nicole 55.00 55.00 06/02/2016 

          Total 40956 144.00 144.00 

51916 05/19/201641001 MATTHEW JACKSON Reimb for phone 83.35 83.35 05/26/2016 
Meeting mileage 179.72 179.72 05/26/2016 

          Total 41001 263.07 263.07 

061416 06/14/201641012 JILL JORDAN Reimb. For Mini Blind For Admin. Office 13.58 13.58 06/16/2016 

249



 

 
VILLAGE OF SISTER BAY Payment Approval Report - Village Page:     5 

Input Date(s): 05/17/2016 - 06/20/2016 Jun 17, 2016  08:35am 
 

Vendor Vendor Name Invoice No Description Inv Date Net Inv Amt Amount Paid Date PD

          Total 41012 13.58 13.58 

2294 - 053116 05/31/201641090 JUNGWIRTH'S ACE HARDWARE Fittings For Dog Park Water Project 30.26 30.26 06/16/2016 
Fasteners For Shredding Day Banners 12.97 12.97 06/16/2016 
Parts For Post Office Door 4.49 4.49 06/16/2016 
Maint. Dept. Office Supplies 2.99 2.99 06/16/2016 
Maint. Dept. Custodial Supplies 87.24 87.24 06/16/2016 
Maint. Dept. Shop Supplies 47.44 47.44 06/16/2016 
Village Bldg Keys For New Employees 11.92 11.92 06/16/2016 
Village Bldg Keys/Rings For New Emp. 42.19 42.19 06/16/2016 
P Fk, Sp Head & Fittings For Sp System 51.14 51.14 06/16/2016 
Sign Repair Parts 14.48 14.48 06/16/2016 
Fittings For Eye Wash Station Repairs .99 .99 06/16/2016 
Sander & Padlock For Marina 82.97 82.97 06/16/2016 
Parts For Dock Maintenance Projects 51.60 51.60 06/16/2016 
Fittings For Pump-Out Repairs 13.27 13.27 06/16/2016 

          Total 41090 453.95 453.95 

HOLTON88 05/16/201641106 NICOLE KRAUEL Recognition for retaining Holton pmt 100.00 100.00 05/18/2016 

          Total 41106 100.00 100.00 

002026 - 052516 05/25/201641205 LAMPERT'S LUMBER Materials For LL SB Inst. Project at SC 184.67 184.67 06/16/2016 
Materials For Marina Flower Bed Boxes 102.01 102.01 06/16/2016 
Materials For Dog Park Faucet Cover 17.54 17.54 06/16/2016 
Materials For Sign Maint. Project 76.59 76.59 06/16/2016 

20375544 04/29/2016Maintenance -  Boathouse 3.71 3.71 06/02/2016 
20375632 04/29/2016Maintenance -  Village Hall 26.07 26.07 06/02/2016 
20375775 05/02/2016Maintenance -  Dog Park 88.47 88.47 06/02/2016 
20376240 05/06/2016Maintenance - Fence 51.72 51.72 06/02/2016 
20376268 05/06/2016Maintenance -  Fence 84.56 84.56 06/02/2016 
20376279 05/06/2016Maintenance -  Fence 48.00 48.00 06/02/2016 
20376388 05/09/2016Boathouse fence 321.79 321.79 06/02/2016 
20376609 05/10/2016Boathouse fence 11.13 11.13 06/02/2016 
20376629 05/10/2016Boathouse fence 13.98 13.98 06/02/2016 
20376840 05/12/2016Bay's Sign 68.18 68.18 06/02/2016 
20377019 05/13/2016Sod repair/replacement 9.00 9.00 06/02/2016 
20377187 05/16/2016Bay's Sign 17.99 17.99 06/02/2016 
20377333 05/17/2016Maintenance -  A Dock 10.49 10.49 06/02/2016 
20377500 05/18/2016Maintenance -  Info booth 147.45 147.45 06/02/2016 
20377776 05/20/2016Maintenance -  A Dock 23.96 23.96 06/02/2016 
20377946 05/23/2016Bay's Sign 90.48 90.48 06/02/2016 
20378247 05/24/2016Maintenance -  Info booth 45.24 45.24 06/02/2016 
20378283 05/25/2016Maintenance -  Boathouse 28.47 28.47 06/02/2016 

          Total 41205 1,471.50 1,471.50 

70564 06/06/201641212 ROBERT E LEE & ASSOC INC Engineering Services - Braun Property 548.25 548.25 06/16/2016 
Eng. Serv - Creamery St Water Review 225.75 225.75 06/16/2016 
Eng Serv-Update of Constr. Standards 632.00 632.00 06/16/2016 
Eng S - Rev Gokey Mill Rd Condo Plan 129.00 129.00 06/16/2016 

70565 06/06/2016Prelim. Plat Dev. For Braun Property 1,364.50 1,364.50 06/16/2016 
70566 06/06/2016Eng. Services - Quarry Env. Review 1,889.00 1,889.00 06/16/2016 
70567 06/06/2016Topo Survey & Eng- Braun Prop. PL 2,858.50 2,858.50 06/16/2016 

250



 

 
VILLAGE OF SISTER BAY Payment Approval Report - Village Page:     6 

Input Date(s): 05/17/2016 - 06/20/2016 Jun 17, 2016  08:35am 
 

Vendor Vendor Name Invoice No Description Inv Date Net Inv Amt Amount Paid Date PD

          Total 41212 7,647.00 7,647.00 

20671 04/30/201641290 LUNDQUIST PLUMBING INC Post Office lawn maint. 79.20 79.20 06/02/2016 
Flower beds Marina 30.18 30.18 06/02/2016 
Water sprinkler maint. 67.80 67.80 06/02/2016 

20785 05/31/2016Repair  of Water Lines At Marina 685.53 685.53 06/16/2016 
20789 05/31/2016Water Line Installation at the Dog Park 877.21 877.21 06/16/2016 
20820 05/31/2016Restroom Repairs At Info. Booth 261.30 261.30 06/16/2016 

          Total 41290 2,001.22 2,001.22 

18747915 05/12/201641316 MARCO INC Public copies .03 .03 06/02/2016 
General copies 586.77 586.77 06/02/2016 
Marina copies .46 .46 06/02/2016 
Utilities' copies 7.63 7.63 06/02/2016 
Utilities' copies 11.34 11.34 06/02/2016 
Utilities' copies 2.84 2.84 06/02/2016 
32001 33.34 33.34 06/02/2016 

          Total 41316 642.41 642.41 

14407 05/23/201642107 LA VINE'S ICE LLC Marina - ice 36.00 36.00 06/07/2016 

          Total 42107 36.00 36.00 

127358 06/06/201651425 NORTH WOODS Marina Cleaning Supplies 476.27 476.27 06/16/2016 

          Total 51425 476.27 476.27 

838563850001 05/09/201661536 OFFICE DEPOT CREDIT PLAN Copy paper 50.14 50.14 05/26/2016 
APR/MAY16 05/15/2016Office Supplies -  village 754.95 754.95 06/02/2016 

Zeke's printer, toner,paper 1,202.48 1,202.48 06/02/2016 
Office Supplies -  shop office 8.38 8.38 06/02/2016 
Office Supplies -  utilities 27.83 27.83 06/02/2016 
Office Supplies -  utilities 40.97 40.97 06/02/2016 
Office Supplies -  utilities 8.51 8.51 06/02/2016 
Finance charge 3.13 3.13 06/02/2016 

          Total 61536 2,096.39 2,096.39 

27814292 06/02/201661547 ORKIN PEST CONTROL INC Pest. App @ Village Office - April & May 154.64 154.64 06/16/2016 
Pest. App. @ Fire Station - April & May 155.76 155.76 06/16/2016 
Pesticide App. at Info. Booth - April 80.96 80.96 06/16/2016 

          Total 61547 391.36 391.36 

11408 06/02/201661614 PENINSULA  PULSE Village's 1/2 of Sh/App Recyc. Box Ad 99.29 99.29 06/16/2016 
LG's 1/2 of Sh/App Recyc Day Box Ad 99.29 99.29 06/16/2016 

          Total 61614 198.58 198.58 

APR2016 04/30/201661633 PINKERT LAW FIRM LLP Garot project 1,534.00 1,534.00 06/07/2016 
General legal issues 1,118.00 1,118.00 06/07/2016 
SBYC/Packerland development 104.00 104.00 06/07/2016 
Ollies lawsuit 312.00 312.00 06/07/2016 
Quarry lawsuit 234.00 234.00 06/07/2016 
Beach project 442.00 442.00 06/07/2016 
Braun Lot/DT Redevelopment 520.00 520.00 06/07/2016 

251



 

 
VILLAGE OF SISTER BAY Payment Approval Report - Village Page:     7 

Input Date(s): 05/17/2016 - 06/20/2016 Jun 17, 2016  08:35am 
 

Vendor Vendor Name Invoice No Description Inv Date Net Inv Amt Amount Paid Date PD

Billing Collection - out of bus acct 28.08 28.08 06/07/2016 
Billing Collection - out of bus acct 41.34 41.34 06/07/2016 
Billing Collection - out of bus acct 8.58 8.58 06/07/2016 

          Total 61633 4,342.00 4,342.00 

061016 06/10/201661792 TASHA RASS Mileage - Att. at Fin. Off. Workshop 212.76 212.76 06/16/2016 
Reimb. For Meals @ Fin. Off. Wkshop 47.21 47.21 06/16/2016 

          Total 61792 259.97 259.97 

033116 03/31/201670004 VERMEER WISCONSIN INC Woodchipper Parts 14.06 14.06 06/16/2016 

          Total 70004 14.06 14.06 

SC10107019 05/31/201671907 SCHENCK BUSINESS SOLUTIONS INC Final Billing 2015 Audit Serv. - Village 253.33 253.33 06/16/2016 
Final Billing 2015 Audit Serv. - Marina 253.33 253.33 06/16/2016 
Final Billing for 2015 Audit Serv. - TIF 253.34 253.34 06/16/2016 
Final Billing 2015 Audit Serv. - Utilities 271.80 271.80 06/16/2016 
Final Billing 2015 Audit Serv. - WW Tr. 400.15 400.15 06/16/2016 
Final Billing 2015 Audit Serv. - WW Col. 83.05 83.05 06/16/2016 

          Total 71907 1,515.00 1,515.00 

036460013-0531 05/31/201671914 SHOPKO STORES  LLC Cleaning Supplies - Marina 28.45 28.45 06/16/2016 

          Total 71914 28.45 28.45 

QTR1-16 06/02/201671920 SISTER BAY ADVANCEMENT 1st Quarter Support 12,500.00 12,500.00 06/02/2016 
Supplimentary funding 25,000.00 25,000.00 06/02/2016 

          Total 71920 37,500.00 37,500.00 

73206 05/09/201671925 SISTER BAY AUTO 1997 Ford F350 repair 224.34 224.34 06/07/2016 
73345 05/20/2016Brutis - tires 325.10 325.10 06/02/2016 

          Total 71925 549.44 549.44 

051616 05/16/201671926 SISTER BAY SEWER & WATER Imp & Con Fees - Dog Park Water Line 701.65 701.65 06/16/2016 
1195 05/30/2016Reimb for Garot invoices 3,477.58 3,477.58 06/02/2016 
1379 04/30/2016Dog Park Water Line Installation 297.29 297.29 06/16/2016 

          Total 71926 4,476.52 4,476.52 

67434 05/23/201671935 THE SPRINKLER CO INC Sprinkler System - Waterfront Park 8,870.68 8,870.68 06/02/2016 
67435 05/23/2016Repairs from street light installation 1,926.80 1,926.80 06/02/2016 
67439 05/24/2016Sprinkler repair - Parks 140.00 140.00 06/02/2016 

          Total 71935 10,937.48 10,937.48 

MAY16 05/17/201671938 STANDARD INSURANCE CO Long term disability 397.20 397.20 05/26/2016 

          Total 71938 397.20 397.20 

52616 05/26/201671982 CHRISTY SULLY Reimburse mileage 36.72 36.72 06/02/2016 

          Total 71982 36.72 36.72 

36291 05/13/201671999 SUNSHINE HOUSE INC Marina Fest Printing 979.76 979.76 05/26/2016 

252



VILLAGE OF SISTER BAY Payment Approval Report - Village Page:     8 
Input Date(s): 05/17/2016 - 06/20/2016 Jun 17, 2016  08:35am 

Vendor Vendor Name Invoice No Description Inv Date Net Inv Amt Amount Paid Date PD

          Total 71999 979.76 979.76 

2016-065 06/06/201672029 TOWN OF SEVASTOPOL Videographer Services - May Bd. Mtg 250.00 250.00 06/16/2016 
2016-066 06/06/2016Videographer Services - January 150.00 150.00 06/16/2016 

          Total 72029 400.00 400.00 

1518 02/17/201672031 TWEAK SOCIAL MEDIA & MARKETING Graphic Design 144.30 144.30 05/18/2016 
1624 05/03/2016Graphic Design 27.30 27.30 05/18/2016 

Web Development 133.25 133.25 05/18/2016 
1660 06/03/2016Marina Website Graphic Design 498.55 498.55 06/16/2016 

          Total 72031 803.40 803.40 

47599386 05/03/201672051 TRUGREEN*CHEMLAWN Lawn treatment 231.00 231.00 06/16/2016 

          Total 72051 231.00 231.00 

C0040715227 05/18/201672059 UNITED HEALTH CARE Health Insurance - June 13,091.42 13,091.42 05/18/2016 
Health Insurance - May 2,305.32 2,305.32 05/18/2016 

          Total 72059 15,396.74 15,396.74 

00859724 05/10/201673003 VERIZON NORTH Village LD Phone Calls - April 49.88 49.88 06/16/2016 
06879227 06/10/2016Village LD Phone Calls - May 41.48 41.48 06/16/2016 

          Total 73003 91.36 91.36 

1354 06/02/201673007 VOIGHT AUTOMOTIVE May Gas & Diesel Purch. - Parks Dept. 877.05 877.05 06/16/2016 

          Total 73007 877.05 877.05 

146175 05/18/201681988 WARNER-WEXEL WHOLESALE custodial supplies - Village 1,267.74 1,267.74 06/02/2016 
146742 05/26/2016 Marina - Paper towel for bathrooms 39.38 39.38 06/07/2016 

custodial supplies - Marina 70.36 70.36 06/07/2016 

          Total 81988 1,377.48 1,377.48 

0230205400027 06/03/201682350 WI PUBLIC SERVICE Street Lights 1,507.39 1,507.39 06/16/2016 

          Total 82350 1,507.39 1,507.39 

Total Paid: 177,090.25 
Total Unpaid:  -     

Grand Total: 177,090.25 

  Dated:  __________________________________________

    Staff:  __________________________________________

6/17/2016

253



 

 
SISTER BAY UTILITIES Payment Approval Report - Utilities Page:     1 

Input Date(s): 05/17/2016 - 06/20/2016 Jun 17, 2016  08:34am 
 

Vendor Vendor Name Invoice No Description Inv Date Net Inv Amt Amount Paid Date PD

30606 06/01/201610005 ACTION ELECTRIC INC fuses for still 108.54 108.54 06/15/2016 

          Total 10005 108.54 108.54 

16905 04/30/201613260 BHIRDO'S BY THE BAY vehicle fuel allocation 121.11 121.11 05/19/2016 
vehicle fuel allocation 178.30 178.30 05/19/2016 
vehicle fuel allocation 37.01 37.01 05/19/2016 
equipment fuel .00 

          Total 13260 336.42 336.42 

92508 06/03/201613270 BLUE PRINT SERVICE CO., INC WWTP pretreat. modifications +upgrades 568.52 568.52 06/15/2016 

          Total 13270 568.52 568.52 

038096 06/27/201617506 CELLCOM cellphones 60.30 60.30 06/15/2016 
cellphones 88.78 88.78 06/15/2016 
cellphones 18.42 18.42 06/15/2016 

895423 05/05/2016cellphones 60.06 60.06 05/19/2016 
cellphones 88.41 88.41 05/19/2016 
cellphones 18.35 18.35 05/19/2016 

          Total 17506 334.32 334.32 

CVC14151 05/13/201617515 BAKER TILLY VIRCHOW KRAUSE LLP Utility Billing support 432.00 432.00 05/19/2016 
Utility Billing support 636.00 636.00 05/19/2016 
Utility Billing support 132.00 132.00 05/19/2016 

          Total 17515 1,200.00 1,200.00 

MAY2016 05/31/201620465 DOOR LAWN MAINTENANCE & SECUR Lawn Maintenance 390.60 390.60 06/15/2016 
Lawn Maintenance 575.05 575.05 06/15/2016 
Lawn Maintenance 119.35 119.35 06/15/2016 

          Total 20465 1,085.00 1,085.00 

0032177-IN 06/09/201620513 ENERGENECS INC cl2 equipment 1,196.45 1,196.45 06/15/2016 

          Total 20513 1,196.45 1,196.45 

5003139282 05/26/201620515 FERRELLGAS WWTP propane 313.56 313.56 06/15/2016 

          Total 20515 313.56 313.56 

2016041 05/31/201620550 EPHRAIM WATER TESTING Well testing 25.00 25.00 06/15/2016 

          Total 20550 25.00 25.00 

193375 04/21/201630400 FERGUSON WATERWORKS #1476 collection system - manhole sealant 176.00 176.00 06/03/2016 
194104 05/02/2016distribution parts - water 692.00 692.00 06/03/2016 

          Total 30400 868.00 868.00 

060690 06/01/201630641 FRONTIER plant phones 85.23 85.23 06/15/2016 
plant phones 85.23 85.23 06/15/2016 

0917805 06/01/2016Telemetry Allocation .35 .35 06/15/2016 
Telemetry Allocation 1.70 1.70 06/15/2016 
Telemetry Allocation 1.15 1.15 06/15/2016 

LIFT6 05/16/2016Lift Stations 13.60 13.60 06/03/2016 

254



 

 
SISTER BAY UTILITIES Payment Approval Report - Utilities Page:     2 

Input Date(s): 05/17/2016 - 06/20/2016 Jun 17, 2016  08:34am 
 

Vendor Vendor Name Invoice No Description Inv Date Net Inv Amt Amount Paid Date PD

WW6 05/25/2016plant phones 71.00 71.00 06/03/2016 
plant phones 71.00 71.00 06/03/2016 

          Total 30641 329.26 329.26 

MAY16 06/01/201630750 GOING CO INC WWTP rubbish disposal 81.68 81.68 06/15/2016 

          Total 30750 81.68 81.68 

16427 06/06/201631810 HARBOR CONST OF DOOR CTY INC Hydrant #45 repair due to car accident 2,268.00 2,268.00 06/15/2016 
Hydrant #45 repair due to car accident 575.00 575.00 06/15/2016 

          Total 31810 2,843.00 2,843.00 

3885266 05/18/201631816 HAWKINS INC Lift station degreaser 264.12 264.12 05/27/2016 

          Total 31816 264.12 264.12 

6583732 05/31/201640963 ITU ABSORB TECH WWTP laundry service 74.90 74.90 06/15/2016 
6599810 06/07/2016custodial supplies 26.96 26.96 06/15/2016 

custodial supplies 8.24 8.24 06/15/2016 
custodial supplies 39.70 39.70 06/15/2016 

          Total 40963 149.80 149.80 

MAY2016 05/19/201641040 JIM OLSON MOTORS Cap purchase of Chevy Silverado 10,430.82 10,430.82 05/19/2016 
Cap purchase of Chevy Silverado 15,356.49 15,356.49 05/19/2016 
Cap purchase of Chevy Silverado 3,187.19 3,187.19 05/19/2016 

          Total 41040 28,974.50 28,974.50 

MAY16 05/31/201641090 JUNGWIRTH'S ACE HARDWARE office supplies 2.15 2.15 06/15/2016 
water meter parts 7.16 7.16 06/15/2016 
office supplies 3.17 3.17 06/15/2016 
chemicals 23.99 23.99 06/15/2016 
label maker for marking 21.98 21.98 06/15/2016 
Bar screen rebuild and flooring 45.37 45.37 06/15/2016 
plant septage rec screen 24.18 24.18 06/15/2016 
office supplies 8.65 8.65 06/15/2016 
life station chemical & hose 8.28 8.28 06/15/2016 

          Total 41090 144.93 144.93 

42844 05/31/201641196 LAKESHORE WASTE SYSTEMS INC sludge - hauling 192.00 192.00 06/15/2016 

          Total 41196 192.00 192.00 

0076362-IN 04/01/201651315 MIDWEST METER INC 3/4 M Meter PL Base 4,300.00 
Freight 123.25 
3/4 M Meter PL Base 4,300.00 -
Freight 123.25 -

          Total 51315 .00 .00 

372545 05/09/201651400 NCL OF WISCONSIN INC WWTP lab equipment repair 707.34 707.34 05/19/2016 
373671 06/03/2016WWTP lab supplies 272.27 272.27 06/15/2016 

255



 

 
SISTER BAY UTILITIES Payment Approval Report - Utilities Page:     3 

Input Date(s): 05/17/2016 - 06/20/2016 Jun 17, 2016  08:34am 
 

Vendor Vendor Name Invoice No Description Inv Date Net Inv Amt Amount Paid Date PD

          Total 51400 979.61 979.61 

126463 05/25/201651435 NORTH WOODS SUPERIOR CHEMICAL collection system chemicals 870.90 870.90 06/03/2016 

          Total 51435 870.90 870.90 

295287 05/18/201651436 NORTHERN LAKE SERVICES INC WWTP sample testing 30.00 30.00 05/27/2016 

          Total 51436 30.00 30.00 

MAY-2016 05/13/201651550 PATRICK JOHNSON CDL LICENSE & TEST 79.63 79.63 05/19/2016 
CDL LICENSE & TEST 117.23 117.23 05/19/2016 
CDL LICENSE & TEST 24.33 24.33 05/19/2016 

URCHASE0616 06/13/2016work shoes 11.00 11.00 06/15/2016 
work shoes 53.00 53.00 06/15/2016 
work shoes 36.00 36.00 06/15/2016 

          Total 51550 321.19 321.19 

24986 06/09/201661975 SAFETY FIRST INC gas monitor calibration 37.04 37.04 06/15/2016 
gas monitor calibration - coll 11.32 11.32 06/15/2016 
gas monitor calibration - ww 54.53 54.53 06/15/2016 

          Total 61975 102.89 102.89 

10583 05/20/201661977 STURGEON BAY UTILITIES sludge processing 4,120.00 4,120.00 05/27/2016 

          Total 61977 4,120.00 4,120.00 

73315 05/20/201671925 SISTER BAY AUTO vehicle parts '01 Ford 56.47 56.47 06/03/2016 
73346 05/20/2016vehicle maintenance '01 Ford 25.72 25.72 06/03/2016 

          Total 71925 82.19 82.19 

938463 04/27/201672054 USA BLUEBOOK Printer Cartridge 12.58 12.58 05/19/2016 
Printer Cartridge 18.52 18.52 05/19/2016 
Printer Cartridge 3.84 3.84 05/19/2016 

          Total 72054 34.94 34.94 

1355 06/02/201673007 VOIGHT'S COUNTY WALK BP gas allocation 174.87 174.87 06/15/2016 
gas allocation 259.80 259.80 06/15/2016 
gas allocation 64.95 64.95 06/15/2016 

          Total 73007 499.62 499.62 

WU63956 05/25/201680027 WISCONSIN DNR water use fees 149.00 149.00 06/03/2016 

          Total 80027 149.00 149.00 

5004810-2016-1 05/26/201680029 WI DNR ENVIRONMENTAL FEES environmental fees 1,381.23 1,381.23 06/15/2016 

          Total 80029 1,381.23 1,381.23 

MAY16 05/13/201682351 WIS PUBLIC SERVICE Well #3 - LGUD 157.89 157.89 05/27/2016 
Well #3 - Sister Bay 473.65 473.65 05/27/2016 

256



SISTER BAY UTILITIES Payment Approval Report - Utilities Page:     4 
Input Date(s): 05/17/2016 - 06/20/2016 Jun 17, 2016  08:34am 

Vendor Vendor Name Invoice No Description Inv Date Net Inv Amt Amount Paid Date PD

          Total 82351 631.54 631.54 

Total Paid: 48,218.21 
Total Unpaid:  -     

Grand Total: 48,218.21 

  Dated:  __________________________________________

    Staff:  __________________________________________

6/17/2016 

257



Village of Sister Bay 
BOARD REPORT 

 
            Meeting Date: 06/21/16  
             Item No.: 15 
 
Activities: 
  
Bay Shore Drive- Work on the project is complete, with only a few minor cleanup items remaining.  Some 
painting has yet to occur, and traffic control signage needs to be “rebanded” (will be completed following 
the final inspection on June 25) so that it does not conflict with our new pole banners. 
 
Sledding Hill- Pat Hockers has completed some top soil removal on the hill.  His stone rake has been sent 
off to be repaired by Caterpillar, and he is waiting for the return of that piece of equipment so he can com-
plete the work there. 
 
Beach- the Spring inspection by JJR took place on June 16.  Some items were discussed that need to be re-
touched, 1.  Rock placement North of swim dock.  2.  Sod subsidence North of Swim Dock.  3.  Fenc-
ing/netting needs to be repaired, and will remain in place until the end of September, 2016. 4.  Weeding 
and maintenance of the planting areas 
 
Staff is working to develop some narrative signage for the Beach, so that visitors will have the opportunity 
to learn about some of the less obvious features of the project, such as the rain gardens, native plantings, 
and coarse sand placement. 
 
Harbor View- Engineering work is 95% complete for the project.  It is my understanding in talking to the 
developer that 2 lots are under contract. 
 
Stony Ridge- Closing has taken place, and a preconstruction meeting is scheduled for June 20 to kick off 
the project. 
 
Wayfinding Signage- We received our State Approved plans on June 16.  We have 2 bids to date, and the 
Finance and Parks Committees will need to consider the bids that we have received.  The project has 
evolved from when it was first discussed and conceptualized financially, and will take more resources than 
were originally budgeted if the totality of the project is to come to fruition. 
 
Other Development-  I’ve issued permits for single family homes on Cherrywood, Northwoods, and West-
wood in the last 120 days.  Its pretty impressive, given that there were only 4 single family permits issued 
total from 2013-2015.  
 
Immediate Action- Staff has asked Mike Kahr to repair the swim dock and a section of J dock following 
damage from a storm earlier this year.   
 
 
       Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
       Zeke Jackson 
       Village Administrator 
 
 

258



259



260



261



Sister Bay / Liberty Grove Library Commission 
                                     Meeting May 24, 2016 
 
The meeting of the Sister Bay / Liberty Grove Library Commission was called to order by Virginia Phelan 
at 1:05 p.m. 
 
Members Present: Virginia Phelan, Lou Covotsos,  Allen Strack, Frank Forkert, Kathy Enquist, Henry 
Timm, Dixie Jorns and Ralph Blankenburg.  
 
Introduced our new Librarian Dixie Jorns 
 
Public Input:  None. 
 
Review and Approve the Revised Minutes of the April 12, 2016 Meeting: 
Allen Strack moved and Lou Covotsos seconded a motion to approve the minutes of the April 12, 2016 
meeting. The motion passed 6-0. 
 
Review and Approve Payment of the Bills: 

Sparkle Cleaning Service General Cleaning $816.00 
Ralph Blankenburg QuickBooks / File Dividers $220.47 
Ralph Blankenburg Flash Drives Betty's Party cups / Napkins $63.52 
Chop Gift for Betty Curzon Retirement $100.00 
Kathy Enquist Cookies for Betty Curzon's Party $35.00 
Kimco Engraving Placard for Betty Curzon for Library $69.29 
Jerry's Flowers Flowers for Betty's Party $52.75 
Frontier  Telephone $131.55 
Vicki Stadick Punch for Betty's Party $23.04 
Sparkle Cleaning Service General Cleaning $884.00 
Village of Sister Bay Propane $237.64 
Wulf Brothers Air Conditioning Service $369.75 
Schenck SC Audit $1,800.00 
Total 

 
$4,803.01 

 
Allen Strack moved and Frank Forkert seconded the motion to approve the payment of the bills.  The 
motion passed 6-0. 
 
Librarians Report: 

I'm happy to report that our statistics are continuing to bounce back from their low points last year.  
Hopefully will continue to see numbers go up now that the roads are open and we are more accessible. 
 
Circulation 
April  2015 3,703 YTD:  13,103 
April  2016 4,486 YTD:  15,109  
 
People Count: 
April  2015 2,516  Lib. Visits    3 Programs attended by 12 Adults; 32 Kids  Total of 44 People. 
April  2016 2,793  Lib. Visits    3 Programs attended by 15 Adults; 41 Kids  Total of 56 People. 
 
Computer Use: 
Overdrive: 
April  2015 287 E-book uses   74 Audio books uses 2 Videos uses  
April  2016 275    "         "    125      "       "   48 Magazines 

262



SAM & Wireless use not available 
 
Door Shakespeare has asked if they could make arrangements to pick up the Shakespeare door we have 
been storing for them in the library.  We have been keeping it safe for them since they did not have a 
place to store it.  They now have an office and would like to display it for their upcoming season.  Dixie 
will check on a time for them to pick it up.   
 
Audit Report: 

Ralph Blankenburg handed out the audit report to the members with an extra copy for the Village of Sister 
Bay and The Town of Liberty Grove.  The members were asked to read over the report and we would 
discuss any questions at the next meeting. 
 
 Shed: 

Ralph Blankenburg reported that we are having a problem with people dropping off books that are old 
musty smelling, covers taped, old travel guides, DVDs on tax programs and computer instructions for old 
systems that we cannot sell, but have to take to recycling.  Dixie will put up a sign that people need to 
check with a librarian before dropping off books.  Ralph also said that he and Kathy needed help sorting 
the shed that has accumulated stacks of books.  This is a monumental job and help is needed.   
 
Maintenance: 
Ralph was given permission to have the trim on the shed painted. 
 
Next Meeting: 

June 14, 2016 @ 1:00 p.m. 
 
Adjourn: 
It was moved by Virginia Phelan and seconded by Frank Forkert to adjourn at 2:10 p. m.  The motion 
passed 6-0. 
 
Submitted by: Ralph Blankenburg. 

263



264



265



266



267



268



269



270



PLAN COMMISSION MEETING MINUTES 1 

TUESDAY, MAY 24, 2016 2 

Sister Bay-Liberty Grove Fire Station –2258 Mill Road 3 

UNAPPROVED VERSION 4 
 5 
The May 24, 2016 meeting of the Plan Commission was called to order by Chairperson Dave 6 

Lienau at 5:30 P.M. 7 

 8 

Present:  Chairperson Lienau and members Scott Baker, Nate Bell, Don Howard, Marge 9 
Grutzmacher, Mary Kay Shumway and Shane Solomon. 10 

 11 

Staff Members:  Assistant Administrator Janal Suppanz 12 

 13 

Excused:  Village Administrator Zeke Jackson 14 

 15 
Comments, correspondence and concerns from the public: 16 
Lienau introduced the newly appointed Plan Commission members, Mary Kay Shumway 17 

and Shane Solomon, and welcomed them, and the other Commission members concurred. 18 

He also noted that no new correspondence had been received, and then asked if anyone 19 

wished to comment regarding a non-agenda item. No one responded.   20 

 21 
Approval of the agenda: 22 
A motion was made by Grutzmacher, seconded by Baker that the Agenda for the May 24, 2016 23 
meeting of the Plan Commission be approved as presented. Motion carried – All ayes. 24 
 25 
Approval of minutes as published: 26 
As to the minutes for the April 19, 2016 meeting of the Plan Commission: 27 
A motion was made by Baker, seconded by Grutzmacher that the minutes for the April 19, 2016 28 
meeting of the Plan Commission be approved as presented. Motion carried with Shumway abstaining. 29 
  30 
Business Items: 31 
Item No. 1.  Public Hearing on a proposed amendment to the Sister Bay Zoning Code 32 
which creates §166.1065 - Utilities in Rights-of-Way; Discussion on the proposed 33 
amendment; Consider motions for action if appropriate: 34 
At 5:35 P.M. Lienau called the public hearing on a proposed amendment to the Sister Bay Zoning 35 
Code which creates §166.1065 - Utilities in Rights-of-Way, to order. 36 
 37 
Representatives of a transmission company recently informed Jackson that they are 38 

considering erecting a large utility pole/tower in the right-of-way on Mill Road in the 39 

vicinity of Pipka’s. State Statutes dictate that as long as proper notice is given and proper 40 

documentation filed utility poles may be erected in cities, towns and villages throughout the 41 

State unless a municipality has a contradictory regulation. The Village just spent a 42 

considerable amount of money to bury the power lines downtown and requires that power 43 

lines for any new structures be buried, and, therefore, erection of any new utility poles, 44 

especially in the downtown area, would be quite problematic and counter-productive. A 45 
draft of a document which contains Zoning Code text amendments which pertain to 46 

placement of utilities in the right-of-way was included in the meeting packets, and the 47 

Commission members jointly reviewed that document. If the regulations are approved no 48 

271



Minutes for the May 24, 2016 Meeting of the Plan Commission 

  

-2- 

 

poles would be permitted within the boundaries of TID No. 1. Further, after April 1, 2016,  1 

poles which do not exceed 35 feet and will be placed in the right-of-way in other areas of the 2 

Village require a permit, and poles exceeding 35 feet in height may be allowed in those areas 3 

with a Conditional Use Permit, but the Permit must be approved with a ¾ vote of the Plan 4 

Commission. The proposed pole regulations are similar to those enforced in other 5 

municipalities throughout the State. 6 
 7 
At 5:39 P.M. Lienau asked if anyone wished to comment regarding the proposed amendment, and 8 
when no one responded he declared that the Public Hearing was officially closed.  9 
 10 
A motion was made by Grutzmacher, seconded by Baker that the Plan Commission recommends that 11 
the proposed amendment to the Sister Bay Zoning Code which creates §66.1065, regulating utilities in 12 
the rights-of-way, be approved as presented. Motion carried – All ayes. 13 
  14 
Item No. 3. Report by the Zoning Administrator regarding development activities, various 15 
enforcement actions, and issuance of Sign and Zoning Permits: 16 
A copy of the Zoning Administrator’s Report was included in the meeting packets and the 17 

Commission members jointly reviewed that document. During the review process Lienau 18 

noted that: 19 

 The work on the Bay Shore Drive Reconstruction Project is complete!!!! There is still 20 
some landscaping and sod touch-up work as well as street sign replacement which has 21 

to be done. 22 

 Pat Hockers is scheduled to complete work on the sledding hill in early summer. The 23 
suggestion has been made that the sledding hill be moved, but that will not be 24 

possible. 25 

 Employees from JJR will be conducting a final beach inspection at the end of the 26 
month. In accord with DNR regulations the plantings which were done must remain 27 

viable for one year from the date of installation. 28 

  Work is progressing on the Harbor View Project. Al Gokey is awaiting State approval 29 
of the utilities plans. Deposits have been taken on three lots within that development. 30 

  A closing on the loan for the Stony Ridge Expansion Project has been scheduled for 31 
May 25, 2016. 32 

  Bids have been received for the Wayfinding Signage Project. This issue will be referred 33 
to the Finance Committee. 34 

  Bids are being sought for engineering work on sanitary sewer, water and storm water  35 
improvements for the Braun property.  36 

  There is a backlog of code violation enforcement which must be addressed, but at this 37 
time staff is overwhelmed with other work. Unless there is some eminent threat to 38 

public health the violations will be addressed ASAP. 39 

 40 
Item No. 3. Matters to be placed on a future agenda or referred to a Committee, official or 41 
employee: 42 
A special meeting of the Plan Commission will be conducted at 5:30 P.M. on Tuesday, May 43 

31, 2016. At that meeting revisions to the plans for the Al Johnson’s Restaurant Expansion 44 

Project will be addressed. 45 

 46 

 47 

272



Minutes for the May 24, 2016 Meeting of the Plan Commission 

I:\1. 2016 Agendas\Plan\2016_05\052416 meeting\052416 Plan Commission Minutes - Unapproved 
Version.docx 
Created by Janal Suppanz on 05/24/2016; Last Printed: 6/15/2016 3:34 PM  

-3- 

 

Lienau noted that at some point the Village’s Architectural Code will have to be revised, and 1 

this issue will likewise be addressed at a future meeting of the Plan Commission.   2 

 3 

Grutzmacher noted that the patio has been created at Grasse’s Grill, but the directional 4 

signage which was required by the Plan Commission has not been erected yet, and requested 5 

that the Village Administrator check into this issue ASAP.  6 
 7 
Adjournment: 8 
A motion was made by Grutzmacher, seconded by Baker to adjourn the meeting of the Plan 9 
Commission at 6:10 P.M. Motion carried – All ayes. 10 

 11 
Respectfully submitted,  12 

 13 
Janal Suppanz,  14 

Assistant Administrator 15 

273



SPECIAL PLAN COMMISSION MEETING MINUTES 1 

TUESDAY, MAY 31, 2016 2 

Sister Bay-Liberty Grove Fire Station –2258 Mill Road 3 

UNAPPROVED VERSION 4 
 5 
The May 31, 2016 special meeting of the Plan Commission was called to order by 6 

Chairperson Dave Lienau at 6:15 P.M. 7 

 8 

Present:  Chairperson Lienau and members Scott Baker, Nate Bell, Don Howard, Marge 9 
Grutzmacher, Mary Kay Shumway and Shane Solomon. 10 

 11 

Staff Members:  Village Administrator Zeke Jackson and Assistant Administrator Janal 12 

Suppanz 13 

 14 

Others:  Henry Isaksen, Rolf and Lars Johnson, Fred Bexel, and Brian Siegworth of Peninsula 15 

Building Systems. 16 

 17 
Comments, correspondence and concerns from the public: 18 
Lienau noted that no correspondence had been received, and then asked if anyone wished to 19 

comment regarding a non-agenda item. No one responded.   20 

 21 
Approval of the agenda: 22 
A motion was made by Grutzmacher, seconded by Baker that the Agenda for the May 31, 2016 special 23 
meeting of the Plan Commission be approved as presented. Motion carried – All ayes. 24 
 25 
Approval of minutes as published: 26 
As to the minutes for the May 24, 2016 meeting of the Plan Commission: 27 
A motion was made by Shumway, seconded by Baker that the minutes for the May 24, 2016 meeting 28 
of the Plan Commission be approved as presented. Motion carried with Shumway abstaining. 29 
  30 
Business Items: 31 
Item No. 1.  Discussion and review of a proposal for Al Johnson’s regarding an addition to 32 
the main building, and an amendment to the plans for the proposed outdoor seating area; 33 
Consider relevant motions for action: 34 
Revised plans as well as conceptual drawings for the proposed outdoor seating area and the 35 

addition at Al Johnson’s Swedish Restaurant and Butik, as well as an applicable 36 
Development Agreement were included in the meeting packets, and the Commission 37 

members jointly reviewed all of those documents. If the plans are approved the existing 38 

buildings on the Johnson property will be utilized. 39 

 40 
A motion was made by Baker, seconded by Solomon that the Plan Commission recommends that the 41 
amended Development Agreement for the property located at 10698 N. Bay Shore Drive between the 42 
Village of Sister Bay and the Johnson Family Trust which was reviewed at this meeting be approved as 43 
presented. Motion carried – All ayes. 44 
 45 

The previously mentioned plans depict the creation of an expanded warehouse and 46 

commercial kitchen by renovating an existing building which has metal siding on the 47 

Johnson property. The Plan Commission has been charged with conducting architectural 48 

274



Minutes for the May 31, 2016 Meeting of the Plan Commission 

I:\1. 2016 Agendas\Plan\2016_05\053116 meeting\word\053116 Special Plan Commission Meeting Minutes - 
Unapproved Version.docx 
Created by Janal Suppanz on 05/31/2016; Last Printed: 6/15/2016 4:02 PM 
 -2-  

 

reviews, and concept drawings as well as siding and color samples for the exterior of the 1 

expanded warehouse/commercial kitchen were presented by the Johnsons. Some of the 2 

Commission members noted that the conceptual drawings depict a mural being placed on 3 

the long expanse of the building, which is currently not allowed. Lars Johnson responded 4 

that that portion of the building will actually be covered up by the existing cedar trees, so it 5 

is quite likely that the mural will not even be created. 6 
 7 
A motion was made by Bell, seconded by Grutzmacher that the building, site and architectural plans, 8 
as well as the proposed siding and color samples for the expanded warehouse/commercial kitchen on 9 
the property which houses Al Johnson’s Swedish Restaurant and Butik are approved as presented on 10 
the condition that a formal landscaping plan which depicts the type of building screening which will 11 
be utilized on the property must be presented to the Plan Commission within 30 days of completion of 12 
the expansion project.  13 
 14 
A roll call vote was taken on that motion, and the Commission members voted in the following 15 
fashion: 16 
 17 
Lienau – Aye; Baker – Aye; Bell – Aye; Grutzmacher – Aye; Howard – Aye; Shumway – Aye; 18 
Solomon – Aye. 19 
 20 
Motion carried.  21 
 22 
Item No. 2. Report by the Zoning Administrator regarding development activities, various 23 
enforcement actions, and issuance of Sign and Zoning Permits: 24 
Jackson noted that he didn’t have anything further to report. 25 

 26 
Item No. 3. Matters to be placed on a future agenda or referred to a Committee, official or 27 
employee: 28 
Jackson will be working on a revised draft of the Sign Code and will be presenting that 29 

document to the Commission members ASAP. He will also be drafting some amendments to 30 

the Zoning Code.  31 
 32 
Adjournment: 33 
A motion was made by Howard, seconded by Grutzmacher to adjourn the meeting of the Plan 34 
Commission at 7:24 P.M. Motion carried – All ayes. 35 

 36 

Respectfully submitted,  37 

 38 
Janal Suppanz,  39 

Assistant Administrator 40 

275



SBAA BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING MINUTES 1 

THURSDAY, JUNE 2, 2016 2 

SISTER BAY ADVANCEMENT ASSOCIATION COORDINATOR’S OFFICE 3 

10668 N. BAY SHORE DRIVE   4 

 (APPROVAL PENDING) 5 

 6 

The June 2, 2016 meeting of the Sister Bay Advancement Association Board of Directors 7 
was called to order by President Drew Bickford at 8:02 A.M.    8 
 9 
Present:   Drew Bickford, Ron Kane, Larry Gajda, Nancy Grube, James Larsen, and Tonya 10 
Crowell. Windy Bittorf arrived at 8:16 A.M.   11 
 12 
Excused:  Denise Bhirdo and Casey St. Henry.  13 
 14 
Others:  Kathy Enquist 15 
 16 
Staff Members:  Chris Milligan, SBAA Coordinator and Janal Suppanz, Secretary. 17 
 18 
Business Items: 19 
Bickford welcomed Kathy Enquist, and indicated that it is his understanding that Enquist 20 
will be appointed to serve as the Village Board Liaison on the SBAA Board of Directors in 21 
the near future. He also noted that Casey St. Henry has resigned from the SBAA Board of 22 
Directors. (St. Henry informed Bickford that due to his work schedule he will no longer be 23 
able to attend meetings or help with festivals and events.) 24 
 25 
Item No. 1.  Approval of the Agenda: 26 
A motion was made by Kane, seconded by Grube that the Agenda for the June 2, 2016 27 
meeting of the SBAA Board of Directors be approved as presented. Motion carried – All 28 
ayes. 29 
 30 
Item No. 2.  Approval of minutes: 31 
A motion was made by Gajda, seconded by Crowell, that the minutes for the May 5, 2016 32 
meeting of the SBAA Board of Directors be approved as presented. Motion carried – All 33 
ayes. 34 
 35 
Item No. 4. Coordinator’s Report: 36 
Milligan’s Coordinator’s Report was included in the meeting packets, and the Board 37 
members jointly reviewed that document. During the review process Milligan pointed out 38 
the following issues: 39 

 The SBAA’s kiosk has been updated with colorful informational posters and 40 

promotional materials related to upcoming events.  The old plaques have 41 

been removed, and  Baylake Information Systems has done some repair work 42 

on the Inn-Line touch screen. 43 

 So far Visitor Center traffic is down considerably. This could be attributed to 44 

the fact that road construction was going on, but employees from other 45 

Visitor Centers informed Milligan that their customer counts were also down.     46 

276



Sister Bay Advancement Association Meeting Minutes –  June 2, 2016 

-2- 

 

 20,000 Sister Bay brochures were printed.  (3,000 of them will be delivered 1 

by “The Paper Boy”, 1,800 were hand-delivered to local businesses, and 2 

3,400 were mailed in bulk to travel/welcome centers throughout Wisconsin.)   3 

 The digital version of the Sister Bay brochure is up and running with direct 4 

links to member businesses.  Innovative Printing will no longer automatically 5 

distribute paper copies of the brochures without authorization.   6 

 The licensing for mobile support plug-ins for the SBAA’s website is now in 7 

place.  All that remains is for Mike Jarman to install the necessary components  8 

and work on updating some of the hyperlinks. 9 

 He is working on a membership packet/handbook.  His goal is to provide the 10 

packet/handbook to prospective SBAA members as well as current members 11 

when they renew their memberships. 12 

 A different location will be chosen for the menu mailbox which had been by 13 

the Post Office as complaints were received that people were throwing the 14 

menus on the ground.  15 
 Milligan suggested that a committee consisting of a small group of SBAA 16 

members who are non-board members be charged with working on website 17 

planning for 2017. 18 
 19 

Item No. 3. Financial Report: 20 
Bittorf indicated that she and Suppanz didn’t have an opportunity to do bookkeeping or 21 
prepare financial reports for May yet. The reports will be e-mailed to the Board members 22 
as soon as they are available. 23 
 24 
Item No. 5. Committee Reports: 25 

 Goat Parade & Beach Bash Summer Celebration Committees 26 

~  Print ads have been created for both of these events and will be published     27 

 in “The Pulse” and the “Key to the Door”. Gannett is running an on-line ad, 28 

 and  a  radio ad was created and will be broadcast on “The Lodge”. 29 

~  The stickers have been received for the “Goat Plop” Contest. 30 

~  The First Baptist Church Food Pantry will be accepting food donations on   31 

 the day of the Goat Parade.  32 

~  The poster which was created for Beach Bash is at the printer. 33 

~  The banner for Beach Bash should be received from the Graphic Designer   34 

 by June 3rd and will be displayed by June 10th.  35 

~  Media releases are complete. 36 

~  Getting teams to participate in the Beach Bash Volleyball Tournament has 37 

 been problematic.  (The tournament is being conducted on a busy 38 

 weekend, and a number of potential participants will be working.)  39 

~  The Ribbon Cutting Ceremony for the new highway will be conducted at 40 

 11:30 A.M. on June 25th, and all the SBAA Board members have been 41 

 invited to that ceremony. 42 

 Seeking Sven Committee 43 

The Seeking Sven Contest  will be launched on June 11th.  This year there will 44 

not be print ads created with respect to the contest, but flyers have been 45 

277



Sister Bay Advancement Association Meeting Minutes –  June 2, 2016 

-3- 

 

created and they are at the printer.  This will be the SBAA’s first attempt at 1 

integrating Instagram into event promotions.   2 

 Concerts & Movies in the Park Committee 3 

Member sponsorship requests were mailed on April 25th.  As of May 26th, 4 

$8,850 in pledged and paid sponsorships was received from a total of 25 5 

sponsors.  The drafts of the Concerts & Movies In The Park poster and ads 6 

have been approved.  All the sponsors are mentioned on the poster, and  7 

radio spots will be running on “The Lodge” throughout the entire concert and 8 

movie series. The sponsors will also be recognized in the radio spots. 9 

 Fall Festival Committee 10 

A considerable amount of work still needs to be done on preparing for Fall 11 

Fest.  So far three food vendors and sixty arts & crafts vendors have been 12 

booked.  Milligan and Leininger plan to begin working on a non-profit 13 

mailing and outreach effort in mid-June.   Fall Fest Committee meetings will 14 

conducted on a regular basis commencing in June. 15 

 16 

 Film Fest Committee 17 
Work is ongoing on expanding Film Fest.  18 
 19 

 Door County Festival of the Arts Committee 20 
Plans are well underway for the Door County Festival of the Arts. Several artists 21 
have already registered and promotional materials have been prepared and 22 
distributed. The small goats and postcards have arrived. So far one student artist has 23 
committed to participate.  24 
 25 

New Business 26 
Item No. 6.  Discussion regarding the Spring Social: 27 
As of today thirty-two members have indicated that they will be attending the SBAA’s 28 
Spring Social.  29 
 30 

Item No. 7. Discussion regarding the Village’s request to have the SBAA design and 31 

coordinate a display schedule for the light pole banners: 32 
The Village Board has delegated the design, production and creation of a display schedule 33 
for re-useable banners for the new light pole arms to the SBAA. The amount of money 34 
which has been allocated for banner design and production is $7,650.00. Banners are 35 
displayed on a regular basis in Sturgeon Bay, and, therefore, Milligan contacted Pam Seiler 36 
from the Sturgeon Bay Visitor Center and discussed the logistical issues associated with 37 
banner displays with her. Seiler suggested that initially the SBAA Board members specify 38 
the different categories of banners they would like to see created and provide that 39 
information to the graphic designer who will be working on the banner project.   40 
 41 
Lengthy discussion took place regarding this issue, and it was eventually the consensus that 42 
the graphic designer working on the banner project shall be asked to prepare proofs of the 43 
following categories of multi-colored banners:  44 

 Spring themed “Welcome To Sister Bay” banners; 45 

 Summer themed “Welcome To Sister Bay” banners; 46 

278



Sister Bay Advancement Association Meeting Minutes –  June 2, 2016 

-4- 

 

 Fall themed “Welcome To Sister Bay” banners; 1 

 Winter themed “Welcome To Sister Bay” banners; 2 

 Banners advertising festivals and events which are conducted in the Village on a 3 
recurring basis; and, 4 

 Banners containing images of seasonal outdoor recreational activities which take 5 
place in the Village such as baseball/softball, boating/kayaking, fishing, soccer, ice 6 
skating, and sledding. 7 

 8 
Once the proofs have been reviewed and designs approved decisions will be made 9 
regarding the number of each of the banners which should actually be ordered and the 10 
preferred display schedule. 11 
 12 
Enquist indicated that she realizes that there aren’t banner arms “uptown”, but if possible it 13 
would be nice if the banner designs which are eventually chosen are capable of being 14 
enlarged and displayed on flags so that there is a coordinated “feel” throughout the Village.     15 
 16 

Item No. 8. Discussion regarding the Village’s solicitation of RFP’s for Waterfront 17 
Vendors: 18 
The Parks Committee accepted the recommendation of the Waterfront Oversight 19 
Committee and determined that RFP’s shall be solicited from vendors wishing to do 20 
business in Waterfront Park. At yesterday’s Parks Committee Meeting discussion took place 21 
regarding the preferred RFP solicitation procedures, and it was eventually the consensus 22 
that before any formal action is taken on this issue input shall be solicited from the SBAA 23 
Board of Directors. It was the consensus that the Parks Committee members shall be 24 
invited to the July SBAA Meeting. 25 
 26 
At 9:02 A.M. Grube indicated that she had another obligation and left the meeting. 27 
 28 
Item No. 9. Discussion regarding Festivals and Events: 29 
a.  Rummage Sale Recap: 30 
The Rummage Sale was well attended and customer counts were up considerably at a 31 
number of businesses. All the maps which were printed were distributed to Rummage Sale 32 
participants and attendees.  33 
 34 
At 9:21 A.M. Enquist indicated that she had another obligation and left the meeting. 35 
 36 
The next meeting of the SBAA Board of Directors will be conducted at 8:00 A.M. on 37 
Thursday, July 7, 2016. 38 
 39 
Adjournment: 40 
A motion was made by Crowell, seconded by Kane to adjourn the meeting of the SBAA 41 
Board of Directors at 9:24 A.M. Motion carried – All ayes. 42 
 43 
Respectfully submitted, 44 

 45 
Janal Suppanz, Secretary 46 

279



Youth Center 

 
Meeting called to order on May 5, 2016 at 4:10pm. In attendance: Kathy Enquist, Jenna 
Riley and Shannon Jungwirth. 
 
Correspondence: Heather Anderson was unable to attend but sent an email saying the 
parents are not getting the word that the Youth Center is open. We will continue to post 
signs, larger posters are being printed at Innovative. I will ask Janal to put information in 
the Sister Bay column of the advocate and Shannon is doing an interview with the pulse.  
 
Minutes approved. 
Business Items: 
Report on the grand re-opening: The Youth center re-opened on April 30th. There 
were pizzas from Husby’s and a movie played. The kids played basketball - there were 
about 25 kids. On May 9th there were about 15 kids. 
Youth Center Projects: A suggestion sheet was circulated. 
Volunteer Schedule: Shannon has made a sign up sheet and has emailed it to our 
current list of parents. She is having trouble getting email addresses as there is no 
master list at the school.  
Fund Raising Activities: Shannon met with Gary Choudoir about the glass making 
activity at Marinafest. Last year the kids also sold glo-sticks. Motion was made by 
Enquist and seconded by Riley that we continue the glass making at the Marina fest this 
year. Motion carried. The youth center is also making some money selling snacks.  
Next Meeting is at the village hall on July 5th at 4:30. 
Items to discuss at next meeting: 1.The shepherd of the Bay church is doing campfires 
at the beach on saturday nights and they contacted us to see if we were interested. 
2.Should we add some games that can be played outside? 3.Request for a bike rack 
outside the Village Hall. 4. Find ways to get the kids to make the parents aware of the 
Youth Center. 5. Status of the pool table. We have a ping pong table that can be put in 
its place. 6.Discussion of the other groups and events that are using the village hall.  
 
Meeting Adjourned at 4:45pm. 
 

 

280



DOOR COUNTY TOURISM ZONE  1 
EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE 2 

Minutes of April 21st, 2016 3 
City of Sturgeon Bay, 421 Michigan Street 4 

 5 
ACTION ITEMS: 6 
Skare moved and Nelson seconded to approve the agenda. Motion carried. 7 

Le Clair moved and Nelson seconded to approve the March 17th, 2016 Full Commission minutes as 8 
submitted. Motion carried.  Van Lieshout abstained as he was not present at the meeting. 9 

Weddig moved and Holtz seconded to approve Kerber Rose Reports, Payables, and Receipts to Date. 10 
Motion carried. 11 

Nelson moved and Skare seconded to request a formal proposal to consider a PR campaign from 12 
Hillstrom PR. Motion carried. 13 

Nelson moved and Weddig seconded to have the BLIS contract and agreement reviewed with 14 
Attorney Vande Castle. Motion carried. 15 

Van Lieshout moved and Weddig seconded to convene into Closed Session pursuant to Wisconsin 16 
State Statutes, Section 19.85(1)(a)(f) or (g) to confer with legal counsel for the government body who 17 
is rendering oral or written advice concerning strategy to be adopted by the body with respect to 18 
litigation in which it is or likely to become involved to wit: enforcement actions against lodging 19 
providers who have failed to obtain lodging permits and to timely remit monthly room tax report and 20 
tax payments. Motion carried. 21 

Starr moved and Van Lieshout seconded to reconvene into Open Session. Motion carried. 22 

Star moved and Weddig seconded that Roberts should proceed with advising Attorney Vande Castle 23 
to proceed as directed in Closed Session.  Motion carried. 24 

Nelson moved and Starr seconded to adjourn. Motion carried. 25 
Committee Members Present by Roll Call: Josh Van Lieshout, Bryan Nelson, Elizabeth Le Clair, Bill 26 
Weddig, Dick Skare, Bob Starr, and Dave Holtz.  27 

Also in Attendance: Jack Moneypenny/DCVB Dianne Lensert/Kerber Rose and Kim 28 
Roberts/Administrator 29 

Call to Order 30 
Van Lieshout called the meeting to order at 9:05 a.m. 31 

Approval of the Agenda 32 
Skare moved and Nelson seconded to approve the agenda. Motion carried. 33 

Approval of the Meeting Minutes from March 17th, 2016 Full Commission Meeting 34 
Le Clair moved and Nelson seconded to approve the March 17th, 2016 Full Commission minutes as 35 
submitted. Motion carried.  Van Lieshout abstained as he was not present at the meeting. 36 

Report by the Door County Visitor Bureau on Marketing Efforts 37 
Moneypenny said things were busy at the DCVB.  He said that placement of media and advertising was 38 
in process.  Billboards are active in Milwaukee, Madison and Chicago.    TV spots are running in Chicago 39 
and Milwaukee.  He went on to say although they don’t do a lot of print these days, the major print ad, 40 
Midwest Living, would be out for distribution this week.  The Midwest Living (May/June issue) ad is a 41 
pull out insert which includes six (6) co-op advertisers.  He added that the pull out was a great vehicle to 42 
get into people’s home with eight (8) pages featuring Door County this year and national distribution. 43 
Moneypenny said the website was rebounding with every month getting better.    44 

He asked everyone to remember National Tourism Week with the breakfast on May 3rd at Maxwelton 45 
Braes.  State numbers and county numbers will be released this week and embargoed until next Friday 46 

281



when the Governor releases them; it will give us our ranking in the State.  Moneypenny shared that 1 
there was one (1) community whose tourism numbers are based on canoe and kayak launches, they use 2 
that number to extrapolate tourism numbers compared to the detailed data that is provided to the 3 
State from Door County. 4 

Moneypenny announced that May 12th is the “Walk with Walker” at Peninsula State Park.  It will be the 5 
First Lady’s 50th wellness walk.  Also on May 12th from 11-1 the Governor’s Tourism Council meets at 6 
Bjorklunden.  7 

The new billboard campaign with rotated images provides a lot of visual impact, Moneypenny said.  He 8 
added that it was one of the first visual concepts that he loved from the get go. The rotating images 9 
provide many different views of Door County on the electronic billboards providing plenty of visual 10 
impact. The themes will be carried into the newsletter and website header later this summer with the 11 
same visual message.   He felt the message was really good. 12 

Van Lieshout asked if Moneypenny had any outreach from Green Bay Lambeau District and if they were 13 
trying to get a handle on rentals in the area. 14 

Moneypenny said he had sent the City of Sturgeon Bay TRH ordinance to Brad Toll at the Green Bay 15 
Chamber.   16 

Van Lieshout said we have the same attorney in these matters as they do and that it had been in the 17 
news. 18 

Le Clair spoke about VRBO.  She had a customer who said that she wouldn’t have found the property 19 
without VRBO and she never would have thought about looking for a chamber.  Le Clair asked how do 20 
we keep up or compete with that mentality. 21 

Starr said you don’t, you join it. 22 

Le Clair said she won’t be extending her membership with VRBO.  She added that she felt like she was 23 
being extorted in that she had received a letter from VRBO telling her that she had to use their payment 24 
system so that the service fee can be applied. 25 

Starr asked if it costs her more to be on Expedia. 26 

Le Clair said she pays an annual membership for VRBO and with Expedia it is a flat fee of three (3%) 27 
percent. 28 

Roberts noted that VRBO and Homeaway changed their algorithm. Despite what membership level is 29 
paid for, which previously had resulted in a sort level based on membership, the change will result in a 30 
sort based on who uses that VRBO/ Homeaway booking and payment system. 31 

Moneypenny responded by saying the fees are everywhere.  32 

Roberts agreed with Moneypenny and said the uproar is based on the change of terms. 33 

Trip Advisor does the same thing; increase fees as popularity and traffic increases.  He used the DCVB’s 34 
Trip advisor page as an example of demonstrating increased traffic and an increase of fees resulting in 35 
an annual Trip Advisor growing to a fee of over forty thousand dollars ($40,000).  The sponsorship was 36 
cancelled by the DCVB.  Moneypenny felt that it was just the way it is these days. 37 

Starr felt that it was the independent, smaller owners like Le Clair that find it difficult to compete and 38 
who the Chamber has served well over the years. 39 

Moneypenny responded by asking if the DCVB continues to serve her well. 40 

Le Clair said yes for thirty two (32) years! 41 

Van Lieshout asked if Moneypenny was feeling good about 2016.  42 

Moneypenny noted that advanced reservations look to indicate another year like last year.  43 

282



Van Lieshout asked if there had been any major developments from WIGOT.  Moneypenny said no. He 1 
went on to say that AB 714 had been signed into law which changed the date in which an entity could 2 
become an entity and the other revision was the composition of the marketing entity’s board:  one (1) 3 
per community unless you are in a zone then at least four (4) innkeepers must sit on the marketing 4 
entity board.   5 

Report from the Administrative Assistant on current activities and issues associated with permitting 6 
new members. 7 
Roberts reported that she sent out eighteen (18) no report letters for the month of February and as of 8 
April 14th, 2016, nine (9) properties remained to report.   9 

Roberts said that the total outstanding due as of April 14th, 2016 was three thousand two hundred 10 
seventy three dollars and seventy eight cents ($3,273.78) from seven (7) permit holders. She noted that 11 
one thousand nine hundred and seven dollars and ninety two cents ($1,907.92) due to the Commission 12 
were permit holders with payment plans in place.   13 

Roberts reported that she had permitted twelve (12) properties since March reporting; seven (7) of 14 
which were permitted through compliance channels.  She noted that she still was working on fifteen 15 
(15) properties.  She also noted that the total permits has risen to nine hundred ninety four (994) which 16 
was an all time high.  She went on to say that VRBO listings seem to have slowed and she has seen a 17 
surge on Airbnb and Craigslist.  She added that she has been watching some of the Facebook groups 18 
dedicated to the VRBO service fees, “Say No to VRBO service fee” to track where property owners are 19 
talking about listing their properties other than VRBO.  She felt that the challenge will be staying on top 20 
of  the next developing online hub for rentals. 21 

Roberts noted that two (2) articles were currently in print regarding room tax:  Washington Island 22 
Observer “2015 banner year for Island visitors; tourism promotion supported by room tax” article and 23 
Door County Advocate “Room Tax Provides Marketing for Tourism” article. 24 

Roberts updated the Commission with the progress in working with Tweak marketing.  She said that she 25 
had completed a questionnaire to assist the Tweak team in writing the script for the video.  She went on 26 
to discuss that agent letters had gone out on April 6th, 2016.  Roberts explained that the letters included 27 
a spreadsheet of all the properties each agent represented and asked each agent to check the month 28 
open, that they were still managing all properties listed and the letter included reminders for the 2016 29 
season. 30 

During the March meeting, Roberts said, it was requested that Vande Castle be asked to attend the May 31 
full commission meeting.  The subject of student housing was the reason behind the request.  Roberts 32 
went on to say that she had looked for exemptions in the statute and the definition of transient within 33 
the statute that is given in §77.52(2)(a)1. She had found none.   She went on to say that she called a 34 
residence hall, Hiawatha Residence Hall, a dorm for the Dells.  Accommodations are available only to 35 
verifiable short term, seasonal Dells area workers.  The office manager, Roberts said, noted that rentals 36 
are done by the week and when asked if any room tax was paid on the rentals, she said no.  Roberts felt 37 
most students would be in Door County for more than a month’s worth of work, making most stays 38 
consecutive 30+ day stays which would be tax exempt.  She went on to say that she didn’t think it was 39 
necessary to have an opinion drafted by Vande Castle at this point.  She asked if the request still stood 40 
to ask Attorney Vande Castle to attend the May meeting.  All agreed that it would not be necessary to 41 
ask Attorney Vande Castle to attend the May meeting. 42 

Van Lieshout added that many municipalities have projects on the table or in discussion and it’s a good 43 
problem to be discussing.   44 

Moneypenny said even though the Dells residence hall is renting by the week; students are there more 45 
than thirty (30) days which is the threshold. 46 

Roberts agreed and didn’t feel it was going to be an issue.  47 

283



Starr agreed that there was no issue to have Vande Castle come up here to explain. Van Lieshout 1 
agreed. The consensus reached was that most students working in Door County taking advantage of 2 
offered student housing would be living and working in the area for more than thirty (30) consecutive 3 
days which makes the stay tax exempt.   4 

Roberts added that she had permitted one (1) student housing dwelling this spring.  The owner had 5 
mentioned that although she had advertised rentals by the week for student workers, not one of her 6 
renters is staying for less than thirty (30) days. 7 

Van Lieshout asked what happens if there is a gap between student rentals and the property owners 8 
decide to do a short term rental in between. 9 

Starr felt that property owners need to know the ordinance. 10 

Roberts agreed and said that our system is set up for property owners to report the rentals and claim 11 
them as exempt stays should the rental be more than (30) thirty days.  She also advised that she had 12 
recommended that the property owner document the rentals for student housing and have some sort 13 
of agreement with the lodger to substantiate the length of the stay. 14 

Roberts advised the Committee that the Frequently Asked Questions had been updated and posted on 15 
the website.  16 

Moneypenny noted that there were a few zone’s coming into fruition throughout the state.  17 

She went on to talk about slower report months in which municipalities would have a small distribution 18 
of less than one dollar ($1).  She asked the Committee to approve Kerber Rose’s request that 19 
distributions be a minimum of five dollars ($5). All agreed. 20 

Moneypenny asked that something go out to the municipalities explaining the change. 21 

Roberts updated the Committee about the ongoing changes with Homeaway and VRBO.  The new 22 
service fees, ranging from four percent (4%) to nine percent (9%) with a maximum fee of four hundred 23 
ninety nine ($499) has turned the rental market upside down, she said.  She noted that she was 24 
watching discussion groups to see where folks might be headed, as many seem to imply that they will 25 
not renew with VRBO.   She noted that even if a owner paid for a premium membership which 26 
guarantees a higher sort, if the owner doesn’t utilize the VRBO payment system (so that the service fee 27 
can be added) the algorithm has been changed so that they no longer sort per the membership level.  28 
Roberts said she was concerned about how the changes might hurt rentals for houses and homes this 29 
summer and wondered if the change would push visitors towards more traditional lodging.  She noted 30 
that there was a class action lawsuit claiming bait and switch.  She added that a few people had called 31 
and asking about DCVB membership and if it the listing on Doorcounty.com could aid with booking.  She 32 
noted that she had referred inquiries to the DCVB. 33 

Moneypenny said the DCVB is the gateway for book-it-now.  BLIS can provide Lodgical Light for small 34 
businesses to assist with the payment portion if the property owner doesn’t have a website with a 35 
reservation system.  He added that the license fee for book-it-now was thirty thousand dollars ($30,000) 36 
a year, which is a service provided for the members of the DCVB for annual fee.  He hopes that more 37 
people start using the product. 38 

Moneypenny clarified that every member of the DCVB is listed on DoorCounty.com.  People search for 39 
lodging.  If a chosen property has book-it-now it will redirect to the property’s website/booking engine.  40 
If the property does not the redirect, the service refers the consumer to contact the owner directly for 41 
reservations.  Moneypenny said there is a lot of activity with book-it-now. 42 

Roberts asked about the fee for book-it-now. 43 

Moneypenny said it was two hundred dollars ($200) a year. 44 

284



With the developments and changes regarding VRBO, Roberts asked, could the DCVB send out a 1 
reminder of services provided by the DCVB that could assist property owners facing challenges with the 2 
VRBO service fees. 3 

Moneypenny said he would mention it in a newsletter but would not send out an email to play it against 4 
VRBO.  Moneypenny said the two hundred dollar ($200) fee is a flat fee to help defray the thirty 5 
thousand dollar ($30,000) price tag for book-it-now.  He went on to say that Gretchen from BLIS has 6 
talked to all of their users about book- it- now.  He said growth has been stagnant. 7 

Discussion of Current Comparable Occupancy Numbers  8 
Lensert reviewed numbers starting with February which was up 5.2%, although occupancy was down.  9 
She added that January was up 11.6% and year to date up 8.2% 10 

Nelson agreed the growth has been ADR driven.  He added that winter rates last year were much 11 
discounted and he felt that it was good to see rates rebounding for the slower months. 12 

Weddig added that moderate weather provided for moderate travel. 13 

Nelson agreed that mild winters do better. He added that he had compared calendars from past years 14 
and mild winters were better. 15 

Weddig moved and Holtz seconded to approve Kerber Rose Reports, Payables, and Receipts to Date. 16 
Motion carried. 17 

Discussion and Consideration of PR effort 18 
Van Lieshout reminded everyone that this was a follow up item from the awareness campaign that we 19 
hired Tweak to assist the Commission with.  He went on to say that he asked Roberts to sit down with 20 
Jane Hillstrom.  What came of the meeting deserves consideration, he said.  He explained that the 21 
DCTZC’s performance has been great, but our customers (lodging providers) don’t perceive that there is 22 
value to the DCTZC. 23 

Roberts said the question that Hillstrom asked that generated a lot of discussion was, “what 24 
percentage of your customers doesn’t like room tax?”  Roberts said initially her response caused her to 25 
qualify her response due to her position and taking in all of the communication that comes through the 26 
office. Roberts added that the meeting was set up to have Hillstrom create press releases to 27 
communicate the 2015 year end numbers; celebrating the increase over 2014 of 8.5%.  The meeting 28 
lasted a few hours, Roberts said, with Hillstrom wanting to understand how the Commission works.  29 
Hillstrom took the notes from their meeting and conducted an informal survey so that she could better 30 
write a proposal for the Commission.  She said that the take away from her second meeting, in which 31 
Hillstrom presented a proposal, was that lodging providers feel that they are on the front lines 32 
collecting and remitting room tax, but don’t feel that they are getting anything in return. 33 

Le Clair asked if the sampling was smaller properties that Hillstrom had talked to. 34 

Roberts replied that it was an informal sampling; she added that some lodging providers were 35 
successful and some were barely holding on.  Roberts said that the points brought up by Hillstrom bear 36 
discussion.  She stressed that she understands that there isn’t any way for the Commission to make 37 
everyone happy. We are a taxing agency, she said, but felt there were opportunities for the Commission 38 
to improve on how it is perceived locally by lodging providers and by our member communities. 39 

Skare asked if Hillstrom had offered a percentage of what she felt would be a good approval rating. 40 

Roberts replied no. 41 

Skare felt that he didn’t think it was too bad. 42 

Weddig added that these people must not have been here prior to 2007.   43 

Nelson added that we have always had resistance. 44 

285



Moneypenny said the group of concerned citizens’ has decreased dramatically over the past couple of 1 
years; he felt that a lot of them must have realized that there are a whole lot more people visiting the 2 
county as a result of marketing.  He felt that people miss the connection or step between the DCTZC 3 
and the DCVB; the agencies are looked at separately.  Tangibly, he said the permit holders don’t get 4 
anything from the DCTZC because we collect the tax and forward it to the DCVB.  The DCVB is the one 5 
giving them something for the tax.  The DCTZC is the bad guy making people pay the tax.  He went on to 6 
say that he would like to see the DCVB be part of the PR campaign to stress that we are in it together; 7 
having people understand that we are truly partners and it is a joint effort.  8 

Le Clair said in the beginning she was against room tax, but she stressed that she had been wrong. It has 9 
done so much for our community, she said. 10 

Moneypenny said Brown County just increased their room tax to 10%.  They are almost double to Door 11 
County’s 5.5%.   12 

Starr asked if we should be dissatisfied with the low approval rating. 13 

Roberts said she felt there was room for improvement and education. Roberts summarized some of the 14 
sentiment: Some feel that it is taxation without representation, others feel their lodging operation 15 
should be promoted on the DCVB website, some oppose the late fees, some feel the online filing system 16 
needs to be simplified, some feel that not everyone pays in, some are not supportive due to the credit 17 
card fees and some feel that the lodging providers bear the burden of the tax collections while 18 
restaurants and shops do not but benefit from the marketing of Door County funded by room tax. As 19 
ADR goes up the credit card fees increase for lodging providers.   20 

Starr asked how big the sampling was. 21 

Roberts said she didn’t know; the proposal was meant to start a conversation based on informal 22 
findings.   Hillstrom did a lot of work and we haven’t hired her firm.   23 

Van Lieshout said that Hillstrom findings echo what we see on the Commission. He used Ephraim as an 24 
example; it is one (1) of the largest lodging providers in the county with two (2) spots on the 25 
Commission.  No one comes to meetings to represent the municipality.  He said it means one (1) of two 26 
(2) things: They don’t understand the importance of representing the municipality or don’t see the need 27 
because the checks continue.  It will erode to a lack of value of why municipalities should continue to 28 
participate.  He added that it’s echoed in the southern communities too.  Van Lieshout and Roberts sat 29 
down with McNulty, town chairman of the Village of Forestville, who asked why we are in this.  It is 30 
concerning if the one of the larger communities collecting room tax and one of the smaller communities 31 
don’t know the value they get for participating in the zone.  We need to tell them what the value is or 32 
down the road someone is going to come along and break out of the zone.  33 

Nelson felt that he wasn’t sure it was a problem or could be.  But he felt that it was a good preventive 34 
measure to solidify support so that there are defenders out there. 35 

Skare felt that there needs to be a reminder of municipal advantages. 36 

Weddig and Nelson agreed with Skare. 37 

Le Clair said that communication at town board meetings was essential to spread awareness of what 38 
the DCTZC was doing. The community needs that money so it has to be communicated. 39 

Nelson pointed out that the municipalities don’t have the structure in place to do room tax collection 40 
and enforcement.  Hire a professional to tell the community what we do, he said. 41 

Weddig reminded everyone that the room tax support civic associations.  The support of the arts and 42 
culture, without room tax we wouldn’t have arts and culture without sustainable tourism. 43 

Nelson moved and Skare seconded to request a formal proposal to consider a PR campaign from 44 
Hillstrom PR. Motion carried. 45 

Nelson said that he is an acquaintance and she is nationally known in her field. 46 

286



Moneypenny said the DCVB uses Hillstrom PR for crisis management and that she is excellent and felt 1 
that she would be great in this capacity. 2 

Moneypenny went back to talk about southern Door communities and getting them to join the zone. He 3 
said that he went to meetings to explain room tax to get these communities to join the zone by 4 
explaining that tourism is quality of life issue.  If tourism goes away, so does our quality of life; 5 
restaurants, culture, arts, they all go away, Moneypenny said.  What we do affects the quality of life of 6 
every resident in each community.  To leave the zone would not work.  Who is going to collect the tax 7 
he asked. 8 

Starr felt this was a communications answer. 9 

Roberts agreed.  Nothing comes out of the office other than election results or annual results. 10 

Discussion and Consideration of Baylakes Information System contract for Custom Software 11 
Development and Agreement. 12 
We’ve been working on this for over a year, Van Lieshout said.  This is a simplified approach but still 13 
comes back with a revenue opportunity for the Commission based on our investment.   14 

Nelson moved and Weddig seconded to move forward with the agreement pending revenue by 15 
Attorney Vande Castle. Motion carried. 16 

Starr asked who drafted the agreement. 17 

Roberts said Swain’s attorney did. 18 

Nelson commented that it is interesting the cap is five (5) times our investment.  He said this is free 19 
money and is reasonable. 20 

Starr asked why it was capped. 21 

Nelson said that he felt that BLIS came up with intellectual properties of the program and they aren’t 22 
sure if there is a market out there for the program. 23 

Moneypenny asked where the money would go. 24 

Roberts said that the opinion from Vande Castle was this money, since it did not come from lodging 25 
revenues, this money would not be applicable to the split. 26 

Moneypenny asked if this money would replace money from the four (4%) percent. 27 

Van Lieshout said if this would be a continuing source of revenue, that would be up for discussion but 28 
the potential for income with the program is variable.  He hoped that the revenue would create a new 29 
source of revenue to take on smaller short term projects for infrastructure, PR or marketing assistance 30 
back to the DCTZC customers. 31 

Starr said Hillstrom and Tweak are perfect examples of how potential income could be spent. 32 

Moneypenny stressed that he wasn’t asking to have the four (4%) reduced.  He was just asking a 33 
question that a lot of people might ask, especially innkeepers. 34 

Nelson said there is the precedent of turning over the excess. 35 

Moneypenny said he still hears that the four (4%) should have been split between the DCVB and the 36 
municipalities or four (4%) should have come off the top and the split off the 70%/30%. 37 

Van Lieshout said that was all food for thought and thanked Moneypenny for the points. 38 

Van Lieshout moved and Weddig seconded to convene into Closed Session pursuant to Wisconsin 39 
State Statutes, Section 19.85(1)(a)(f) or (g) to confer with legal counsel for the government body who 40 
is rendering oral or written advice concerning strategy to be adopted by the body with respect to 41 
litigation in which it is or likely to become involved to wit: enforcement actions against lodging 42 

287



providers who have failed to obtain lodging permits and to timely remit monthly room tax report and 1 
tax payments. Motion passed carried. 2 

Starr moved and Van Lieshout seconded to reconvene into Open Session. Motion carried. 3 

Starr moved and Weddig seconded that Roberts should proceed with advising Attorney Vande Castle 4 
to proceed as directed in Closed Session.  Motion carried. 5 

Nelson moved and Starr seconded to adjourn at 10:47 AM. Motion carried. 6 
 7 
Respectfully submitted, 8 
 9 
Kim Roberts 10 
Administrator 11 
 12 
 13 
 14 

 15 

 16 

 17 

 18 

 19 

 20 

 21 

 22 

 23 

 24 

 25 

 26 

 27 

 28 

 29 

 30 

 31 

 32 

 33 

 34 

288



CLOSED SESSION 1 

TOURISM ZONE COMMISSION EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE 2 

April 21, 2016 3 

The closed session of the Tourism Zone Executive Committee was convened at 10:25 a.m. by 4 
Chairperson Van Lieshout in the Executive Chambers, City Hall.  5 

Committee Members Present by Roll Call: Josh Van Lieshout, Bryan Nelson, Elizabeth Le Clair, Bill 6 
Weddig, Dick Skare, Bob Starr, and Dave Holtz  7 

Also present: Dianne Lensert/Kerber Rose and Kim Roberts/Administrator 8 

Van Lieshout moved and Weddig seconded to convene into Closed Session pursuant to Wisconsin 9 
State Statutes, Section 19.85(1)(a)(f) or (g) to confer with legal counsel for the government body who 10 
is rendering oral or written advice concerning strategy to be adopted by the body with respect to 11 
litigation in which it is or likely to become involved to wit: enforcement actions against lodging 12 
providers who have failed to obtain lodging permits and to timely remit monthly room tax report and 13 
tax payments. Motion carried. 14 

Discussion took place in regard to non-compliant properties. 15 

Starr moved and Van Lieshout seconded to reconvene into Open Session. Motion carried. 16 

The meeting reconvened in open session at 10:46 a.m.  17 

Respectfully submitted, 18 

 19 
Kim Roberts 20 
Administrator 21 

289



DOOR COUNTY TOURISM ZONE  1 
COMMISSION and EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE MEETING 2 

Minutes of May 19th, 2016 3 
Town of Sevastopol, 4525 STH 57, Sturgeon Bay 4 

ACTION ITEMS: 5 
Robillard moved and Tice seconded to approve the agenda. Motion carried. 6 

Weddig moved and Ward seconded to approve the minutes of April 21st, 2016 as amended.  Motion carried. 7 

Ward moved and Anderson seconded to approve reports and payables plus receipts.  Motion carried. 8 

Anderson moved and Jackson seconded to present the officers as slated to vote at the June 2016 meeting. Motion 9 
carried. 10 

Consider motion to convene into Closed Session pursuant to Wisconsin State Statutes, Section 19.85(1)(a)(f) or (g) to 11 
confer with legal counsel for the governmental body who is rendering oral or written advice concerning strategy to be 12 
adopted by the body with respect to litigation in which it is or likely to become involved; to wit: enforcement actions 13 
against lodging providers who have failed to obtain lodging permits and to timely remit monthly room tax report and 14 
tax payments. Closed session contract negotiation for services related to public communications services with Hillstrom 15 
PR.   Starr moved to convene into Closed Session as per statutes named; Jackson seconded at 9:34 AM. Motion carried. 16 

Jackson moved to reconvene into Open Session; Bell seconded. Motion carried. 17 

Jackson moved and Anderson seconded that the DCTZC begin work with Hillstrom PR as a means to drive value 18 
back to our customers.   Hillstrom PR will assist with: A permit holder survey, press releases, annual report 19 
assistance, message training and improved website language.   The Commission will also entertain and/or explore 20 
a credit card rebate in the future.  Dannhausen and Skare opposed. Motion carried. 21 

Jackson moved to adjourn; Ward seconded. Motion carried.  22 

Committee Members Present by Roll Call:  Mary Boston, Dave Holtz, Bryan Nelson, Fred Anderson, Ryan Heise, 23 
Myles Dannhausen, Nancy Robillard, Bill Weddig, Dick Skare, Cathy Ward, Chuck Tice, Nate Bell, Zeke Jackson, Bob 24 
Starr, Josh Van Lieshout and Linda Elmore. 25 

Excused:  Elizabeth Le Clair 26 

Absent:  Jeff Larson, Keith Krist, and Deb Jeanquart. 27 

Also in Attendance:  Michelle Rasmussen/DCVB, Jon Jarosh/DCVB, Jack Moneypenny/DCVB, Dianne Lensert/ Kerber 28 
Rose and Kim Roberts/Administrator, DCTZC. 29 

Call to Order 30 
Chair Van Lieshout called the meeting to order at 9:03 AM. 31 

Approval of the Agenda 32 
Robillard moved and Tice seconded to approve the agenda. Motion carried. 33 

Approval of the Minutes of April 21st, 2016 34 
Weddig moved and Ward seconded to approve the minutes of April 21st, 2016 as amended.  Motion carried. 35 

Report by the Door County Visitor Bureau on Marketing Efforts 36 
Moneypenny said that the tourism piece was well received from Tourism Week.  He went on to say that there were 37 
three (3) candidates for the newly re-organized position that would utilize eight nine percent (89%) of the employees 38 
time in the communications and PR position and the remaining time would be spent as board liaison in the combined 39 
function. 40 

Rasmussen reported that unique and regular visits have improved with the solution regarding the cloud via Innline.  41 
She went on to say their attendance at the Midwest Market Place along with thirty (30) tour operators provided 42 
good contacts with tour operators and the group market.  The latest e-newsletter resulted in a 29.8% open rate; the 43 
email list has been scrubbed, she noted, those people who hadn’t opened a newsletter in five (5) years were deleted 44 
from the email list. 45 

290



Rasmussen discussed the Midwest Living pull out ad in the latest issue of the magazine.  She noted that it was eight 1 
(8) pages this year.   2 

Jarosh talked about the upcoming press trip and was thrilled that the blossoms were in bloom for the arrival of the 3 
journalists.  He said that there were eleven (11) journalists arriving for the press trip and staying through Sunday. 4 

Jarosh went on to speak about the current publications in which Door County is featured: Country Magazine 5 
(featuring Washington Island), Midwest Travel, Redbook, and the Journal Sentinel to name a few. 6 

Moneypenny spoke about the “Our Door County” videos.  In sum the “Our Door County” videos have reached forty 7 
five thousand (45,000) views.  He went on to say that all of the Tourism Week publications were mailed to every 8 
household in the county which Moneypenny stressed that the message of the importance of tourism and hard 9 
numbers reached a large audience.  He went on to say the publication was available electronically.  10 

Moneypenny went on to discuss an idea that was brought to him by a DCVB member; teaching the CTA classes in 11 
Spanish.  Moneypenny felt this was a great idea and Yvonne Torres had already begun transcribing the CTA training 12 
manual into Spanish.  He stresses that the absorption rate of customer skills and local information in one’s native 13 
language increases tremendously.  He added that he hopes to have all the CTA materials translated by the third 14 
week of June.  In addition to the CTA information Moneypenny felt that the Power of Tourism publications should 15 
be available in Spanish online in 2017. 16 

Van Lieshout asked if the DCVB was using Instagram. 17 

Rasmussen replied yes, but mostly for pictures; she noted that the fan base was great with Instagram.  She added 18 
that for advertising, Facebook and Twitter were their main focus with social media sites. 19 

Ward commented that the salmon release in Gills Rock was a great sight and that NBC was on site with crews for 20 
filming. 21 

Starr noted that his sales team had commented that the power of tourism publication really translated the success 22 
of room tax, the management of the tax and the partnership with hotel operators.  He said his staff really felt that it 23 
was a success story and well liked. 24 

Report from Administrative Assistant on current activities, projects and issues associated with permitting new 25 
members. 26 
Roberts reported that she sent out fifteen (15) no report letters for the report month of March on May 12th, 2016.   27 
She added that as of May 18th, 2016 nine (9) properties remain to report for March 2016.   Roberts noted that for 28 
February 2016 there were no properties remaining to report. 29 

The total outstanding due in unpaid taxes, fees and penalties is one thousand six hundred eleven dollars and thirty 30 
nine cents ($1,611.39) from five (5) permit holders.  Roberts noted that there were quite a few properties still making 31 
payments on outstanding balances. 32 

Roberts said that she had permitted twenty one (21) new properties since the meeting in April; ten (10) of which 33 
were a result of compliance efforts.  She added that she was working on thirteen (13) unpermitted properties that 34 
are advertising online or have contacted the office regarding permitting. 35 

Roberts said that she had sent the BLIS contract to Attorney Vande Castle directly after the April meeting on April 36 
21st, 2016 along with the ordinance amendment for review.  Roberts went on to say that the first explainer video was 37 
in its final stages with Tweak Marketing.  The second video was to be a “how to” video to show how to file online.  38 
Roberts asked if the Commission would agree to delay the production of the video as the upgrades with BLIS would 39 
change how the filing online would look and very likely some of the entry fields would change. All agreed to wait 40 
until the work with BLIS was complete before proceeding with production of the second explainer video. 41 

Discussion on Current Comparable Occupancy numbers  42 
Lensert noted that March took a dip with a decrease of 3.6%. She said the decrease was mostly noted in the City of 43 
Sturgeon Bay, but for the year, numbers show an increase of 6.9%.  She added that there were more rooms filled and 44 
the ADR was down slightly in March. 45 
Lensert added that with regards to payables the audit has been paid for. 46 
 47 

291



Consideration of approving reports and payables plus receipts 1 
Ward moved and Anderson seconded to approve reports and payables plus receipts.  Motion carried. 2 

Report from Commissioners on feedback from local boards on recent issues. 3 
Van Lieshout asked the Commission if there were any comments or discussion from the local boards. There were 4 
none. 5 

Discussion and nomination of officers for 2016-2017. 6 
Nelson advised the Commission that if someone else was interested in his position that he was ok with stepping 7 
down.  Van Lieshout reviewed the current officers: Nelson/Treasurer, Le Clair/Secretary, Skare/ Vice-Chair, and Van 8 
Lieshout/ Chair. Anderson moved and Jackson seconded to present the officers as slated for vote at the June 2016 9 
meeting. Motion carried. 10 

Chair Van Lieshout introduced Jane Hillstrom from Hillstrom PR.  He noted that she was in attendance to discuss 11 
public relations and how to improve communication with municipalities, the community, and lodging providers. 12 

Hillstrom gave a brief background of her firm.    13 

Consider motion to convene into Closed Session pursuant to Wisconsin State Statutes, Section 19.85(1)(a)(f) or (g) to 14 
confer with legal counsel for the governmental body who is rendering oral or written advice concerning strategy to be 15 
adopted by the body with respect to litigation in which it is or likely to become involved; to wit: enforcement actions 16 
against lodging providers who have failed to obtain lodging permits and to timely remit monthly room tax report and 17 
tax payments. Closed session contract negotiation for services related to public communications services with Hillstrom 18 
PR.   Starr moved to convene into Closed Session as per statutes named; Jackson seconded at 9:34 AM. Motion carried. 19 

CLOSED SESSION 20 

Consider a Motion to Reconvene into Open Session 21 
Jackson moved to reconvene into Open Session; Bell seconded. Motion carried. 22 

Consider a motion to take action, if required. 23 
Jackson moved and Anderson seconded that the DCTZC begin work with Hillstrom PR as a means to drive value 24 
back to our customers.   Hillstrom PR will assist with: A permit holder survey, press releases, annual report 25 
assistance, message training and improved website language.   The Commission will also entertain and/or explore 26 
a credit card rebate in the future.  Dannhausen and Skare opposed. Motion carried. 27 

Anderson asked if it would be appropriate to create a sub-committee. 28 

Van Lieshout felt that it would be a good idea. 29 

Skare said that the creation of a sub-committee would satisfy his objections and he would support the motion. Skare 30 
withdrew his opposition. 31 

A sub-committee was created with the following members to oversee the work with Hillstrom PR:  Larson, Jackson, 32 
Nelson and Anderson. 33 

Adjournment 34 

Jackson moved to adjourn; Ward seconded. Motion carried.  35 

 36 
Respectfully submitted, 37 
 38 

 39 
Kim Roberts 40 
Administrator 41 
 42 

DOOR COUNTY TOURISM ZONE  43 

292



COMMISSION and EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE MEETING 1 
Minutes of May 19th, 2016 2 

Town of Sevastopol, 4525 STH 57, Sturgeon Bay 3 
 4 

The closed session of the Tourism Zone Executive Committee was convened at 9:34 a.m. by Chairperson Van 5 
Lieshout at the town hall of the Town of Sevatopol, Sturgeon Bay.  6 

Committee Members Present by Roll Call: Mary Boston, Dave Holtz, Bryan Nelson, Fred Anderson, Ryan Heise, 7 
Myles Dannhausen, Nancy Robillard, Bill Weddig, Dick Skare, Cathy Ward, Chuck Tice, Nate Bell, Zeke Jackson, Bob 8 
Starr, Josh Van Lieshout and Linda Elmore. 9 

Also present:  Kim Roberts/Administrator, Dianne Lensert/Kerber Rose, and Jane Hillstrom/Hillstrom PR  10 

Consider motion to convene into Closed Session pursuant to Wisconsin State Statutes, Section 19.85(1)(a)(f) or (g) to 11 
confer with legal counsel for the governmental body who is rendering oral or written advice concerning strategy to be 12 
adopted by the body with respect to litigation in which it is or likely to become involved; to wit: enforcement actions 13 
against lodging providers who have failed to obtain lodging permits and to timely remit monthly room tax report and 14 
tax payments. Closed session contract negotiation for services related to public communications services with Hillstrom 15 
PR.   Starr moved to convene into Closed Session as per statutes named; Jackson seconded at 9:34 AM. Motion carried. 16 

 17 

Discussion took place in regard to non-compliant properties and negotiation for services related to public 18 
communications services with Hillstrom PR. 19 

Consider a Motion to Reconvene into Open Session 20 
Jackson moved to reconvene into Open Session; Bell seconded. Motion carried. 21 

Consider a motion to take action, if required. 22 
Jackson moved and Anderson seconded that the DCTZC begin work with Hillstrom PR as a means to drive value 23 
back to our customers.   Hillstrom PR will assist with: A permit holder survey, press releases, annual report 24 
assistance, message training and improved website language.   The Commission will also entertain and/or explore 25 
a credit card rebate in the future.  Dannhausen and Skare opposed. Motion carried. 26 

Anderson asked if it would be appropriate to create a sub-committee. 27 

Van Lieshout felt that it would be a good idea. 28 

Skare said that the creation of a sub-committee would satisfy his objections and he would support the motion. 29 

A sub-committee was created with the following members to oversee the work with Hillstrom PR:  Larson, Jackson, 30 
Nelson and Anderson. 31 

 The meeting reconvened in open session.  32 

Respectfully submitted, 33 

 34 

Kim Roberts 35 
Administrator 36 

293



WATER, SEWER COLLECTION AND STORM SEWER  1 

COMMITTEE MEETING MINUTES 2 

TUESDAY, MAY 17, 2016 3 

SISTER BAY FIRE STATION - 2258 MILL ROAD 4 

(APPROVAL PENDING) 5 
 6 

The May 17, 2016 meetings of the Utilities (WWTP) Committee and the Water, Sewer Collection 7 
and Storm Sewer Committee were called to order by Committee Chair Pat Duffy at 7:34 A.M.  8 
 9 
Present: Committee Chair Pat Duffy, and members Scott Baker, Kathy Enquist, Fred Anderson, 10 
Hugh Mulliken and Peter Sauer. 11 
 12 
Staff Members: Utility Manager Mike Schell, Town Administrator Bud Kalms, Village 13 
Administrator Zeke Jackson and Assistant Administrator Janal Suppanz 14 
 15 
Excused:  Utilities Supervisor Dave Alberts 16 
 17 
A motion was made by Baker, seconded by Enquist that the May 17, 2016 meeting of the Water, Sewer 18 
Collection and Storm Sewer Committee be recessed until such time as the meeting of the Utilities 19 
(WWTP) Committee has been adjourned. Motion carried – All ayes. 20 
 21 
Approval of the Agenda for the May 17, 2016 Utilities Committee (WWTP) Meeting:  22 

A motion was made by Baker, seconded by Enquist, that the Agenda for the April 5, 2016 23 
meeting of the Utilities (WWTP) Committee be approved as presented.  Motion carried – 24 
all Ayes. 25 

 26 
At 8:02 A.M. a motion was made by Mulliken, seconded by Baker that the May 17, 2016 27 
meeting of the Utilities (WWTP) Committee be adjourned.  Motion carried – all Ayes.  28 
 29 

The members of the Water, Sewer Collection and Storm Sewer Committee immediately reconvened, and 30 
their meeting was called back to order at 8:04 A.M.  31 
 32 
Approval of the Agenda for the May 17, 2016 Water, Sewer Collection and Storm Sewer 33 
Committee Meeting:  34 
A motion was made by Baker, seconded by Enquist, that the Agenda for the May 17, 2016 meeting of the 35 
Water, Sewer Collection and Storm Sewer Committee be approved as presented.  Motion carried – All 36 
ayes. 37 
 38 
Approval of the April 5, 2016 meeting minutes: 39 
A motion was made by Enquist, seconded by Baker, to approve the minutes for the April 5, 2016 meeting 40 
of the Water, Sewer Collection and Storm Sewer Committee as presented.  Motion carried – All ayes. 41 
 42 
Public Comments and Correspondence  43 
Duffy noted that no correspondence had been received and asked if anyone wished to address a 44 
non-agenda item. No one responded. 45 
 46 
 47 

294



Minutes for the May 17, 2016 Water, Sewer Collection and Storm Sewer Committee Meeting 

 

 
-2- 

 

Discussion Items 1 
1. Administrative Related 2 
a. Capital Planning Worksheet: 3 
For many years the Utilities Manager maintained a list of capital improvement projects and the 4 
estimated cost of each of the projects on that list, and when replacement items or repairs were 5 
needed expenditures were made from the Equipment Replacement Fund. (That fund is 6 
maintained in accord with DNR and PSC regulations.) The Capital Improvements List is 7 
reviewed during the annual budget process, and after the Utilities budget has been approved 8 
the appropriate allocations are made. The Village utilizes a formal capital improvement 9 
plan/worksheet, and Jackson is recommending that from this point forward a similar document 10 
be utilized by the Utilities. The previously mentioned Capital Improvements Projects list was 11 
included in the meeting packets and the Committee members jointly reviewed that document. 12 
Schell cautioned that there are a number of variables associated with equipment replacement at 13 
the Utilities Department. Therefore, it is not always possible to accurately project when 14 
something will fail.   15 
 16 
It was the consensus that a five year CIP which is similar to the plan that the Village utilizes shall be 17 
created for the Utilities Department, but that the Long Term Capital Improvement Project List which was 18 
reviewed at this meeting shall still be utilized.   19 
 20 
b. Discussion regarding late fees: 21 
Quarterly bills were mailed out in a timely fashion and all but a few customers have paid those 22 
bills. Late notices were also mailed out in a timely fashion. Suppanz and Tasha Rass will be 23 
following up with shut-off notices next week. If someone hasn’t paid their utility bill the past 24 
due amount is eventually turned in to the County Treasurer as a special assessment. 25 
 26 
Jackson noted that at some point the Committee may want to consider adjusting late payment 27 
fees, but further research will have to be done regarding that issue. He also noted that due to 28 
staffing issues the Committee may want to consider the automated billing and payment options 29 
which are available.  30 
 31 
2. Water System Related: 32 
a. Update on the Liberty Grove system: 33 
Work is ongoing on studying the options which will improve the water pressure issues in the 34 
Liberty Grove Utility District. Anderson noted that the water pressures at his residence have 35 
improved considerably, and asked if something has been done already. Schell replied that 36 
approximately four months ago a variable speed drive was installed on the #3 Well.   37 
 38 
b. Report on the status of the follow-up DNR water system inspection 39 
Water system inspections and tests are conducted on a regular basis and all DNR regulations 40 
are being complied with.  41 
 42 
(i) Private well inspections: 43 
Well inspection letters have been mailed out and follow-up will be done by Utilities employees. 44 
 45 
 46 

295



Minutes for the May 17, 2016 Water, Sewer Collection and Storm Sewer Committee Meeting 

 

 
-3- 

 

(ii) Cross connection inspections: 1 
Residential cross connection inspections are conducted on a regular basis by the Utilities 2 
employees. The Building Inspector conducts all the commercial inspections.  3 
 4 
3. Collection System Related 5 
a. Bioxide feed system update 6 
From time to time complaints are received that foul odors are being emitted from some of the 7 
manholes. In an attempt to address this issue Bioxide has been utilized at the lift stations and 8 
seems to be working quite well. Some complaints were received about odors emitting from 9 
some locations and buildings throughout the Village, and follow-up has been done. The 10 
representative from the company which sells Bioxide will be coming to meet with Schell in the 11 
near future and he intends to discuss possible solutions to the odor problems with him. In some 12 
instances venting issues could be the problem . 13 
 14 
It was the consensus that as a follow-up to the Bay Shore Drive Reconstruction Project the Utilities 15 
employees shall see that “smoke tests” are conducted in the Village. Prior to the time that those tests are 16 
conducted written notice shall be provided to the affected property owners. (That notice shall describe the 17 
need for the testing and the property owners shall be informed that if issues are found on their property it 18 
may be necessary for them to pay for the required repairs or alterations.)    19 
 20 
b. Update on the status of the Great Lakes Cleaning and Televising Project and associated 21 
repairs: 22 
The crews from Great Lakes TV recently surveyed 12,000 feet of pipe which is serviced by the 23 
Utilities Department. They did find that one pipe is in need of repair, and those repairs will be 24 
made ASAP.  Three laterals were also found to be leaking, and they will likewise be repaired 25 
ASAP. During the survey process the technicians and Utilities employees discovered that a 26 
sump pump had been hooked up illegally at a residence in Sister Bay. That sump pump has 27 
been disconnected and is now hooked up properly. The property owner will be billed for the 28 
related expenses. 29 
 30 
4. Stormwater System Related 31 
a. Al Johnson’s Parking Lot Storm Sewer Project:  32 
Jackson and Schell indicated that at this time they didn’t have anything further to report on this 33 
issue. 34 
   35 
b. CIP for the Storm Sewer and Operations Fund: 36 
The suggestion has been made that a CIP line item be created in the Village’s budget for Storm 37 
Sewer Work and Operations, and it was the consensus that this would be a good idea.  38 
 39 
A motion was made by Duffy, seconded by Enquist that a CIP line item shall be created in the Village’s 40 
budget for Storm Sewer Work and Operations. Motion carried – All ayes.  41 
 42 
c. Vortex unit cleaning: 43 
The Vortex units have not been cleaned yet because the water flows are still too strong. They 44 
will be cleaned ASAP.  45 
 46 

296



Minutes for the May 17, 2016 Water, Sewer Collection and Storm Sewer Committee Meeting 

I:\1. 2016 Agendas\Utilities\2016_05\WSSS\051716 Utilities Minutes - W S SS Unapproved Version.docx 
Created by Janal Suppanz on 5/17/2016; Last Printed: 5/18/2016 4:59 PM 

 
-4- 

 

5. Extensions 1 
a. Report on the status of the Garot Project: 2 
The Village attorney has been doing a considerable amount of research regarding the status of 3 
the legal issues associated with other development projects Keith Garot has been involved with. 4 
As soon as all the legal issues are resolved a closing will be scheduled on the financing for 5 
Garot’s expansion project. 6 
  7 
b. Report on the status of the Braun Property: 8 
Work has been ongoing on planning for development on the Braun property. The property will 9 
be lotted off, and, therefore, a main extension will be required. Stub-outs have been installed 10 
behind the new sidewalks in that area so that there will not be a need to tear everything up 11 
again, but any potential developers will want to see a set of plans and cost estimates for the 12 
required sewer and water work, and Schell has requested proposals for the related engineering 13 
work. 14 
 15 
A motion was made by Baker, seconded by Baker that the Utilities Committee recommends that the low 16 
bid be accepted for the engineering work related to installation of sewer and water on the Braun Property. 17 
Motion carried – All ayes. 18 
 19 
c.  Report on the status of the Harbor View (Old School) Project: 20 
Al Gokey is working very hard on the Harbor View Project. Down payments have been 21 
received from persons interested in two of the lots within the Harbor View Development, and 22 
Gokey anticipates that the closings will take place in July. Gokey intends to follow up on leads 23 
for persons who might be interested in some of the other lots soon. 24 
 25 
6. Matters to be placed on a future agenda or referred to a Committee, Official, or Employee: 26 
The next meeting of the Water, Sewer Collection and Storm Sewer Committee has been scheduled for 7:30 27 
A.M. on August 9, 2016. 28 
At that meeting the following issue will be addressed: 29 

 Discussion regarding measures which can be taken to automate the utility billing and 30 
payment processes; Consider a motion for action if appropriate. 31 

     32 
Adjournment: 33 
A motion was made by Baker, seconded by Duffy, to adjourn the May 17, 2016 meeting of the Water, 34 
Sewer Collection, and Stormsewer Utilities Committee at 9:24 A.M.  Motion carried – All ayes. 35 
 36 
Respectfully submitted,  37 

 38 
Janal Suppanz,  39 
Assistant Administrator  40 

297



 UTILITIES (WASTEWATER TREATMENT PLANT - WWTP)  1 

COMMITTEE MEETING MINUTES 2 

Tuesday, May 17, 2016 3 

Sister Bay Fire Station - 2258 Mill Road 4 

(Unapproved Version) 5 
 6 

The May 17, 2016 meeting of the Utilities (WWTP) Committee and the Water, Sewer Collection 7 
and Storm Sewer Committee was called to order by Committee Chair Patrick Duffy at 7:34 A.M.  8 
 9 
Present: Committee Chair Pat Duffy, and Members Scott Baker, Kathy Enquist, Hugh Mulliken, 10 
Fred Anderson and Peter Sauer. 11 
 12 
Staff Members: Utility Manager Mike Schell, Town Administrator Bud Kalms, Village 13 
Administrator Zeke Jackson and Assistant Administrator Janal Suppanz. 14 
 15 
Excused:  Utility Supervisor Dave Alberts, 16 
 17 

A motion was made by Baker, seconded by Enquist that the May 17, 2016 meeting of the 18 
Water, Sewer Collection and Storm Sewer Committee be recessed until such time as the 19 
meeting of the Utilities (WWTP) Committee has been adjourned. Motion carried – All 20 
ayes. 21 

 22 
Approval of the Agenda:  23 
A motion was made by Baker seconded by Sauer, that the Agenda for the May 17, 2016 meeting of the 24 
Utilities (WWTP) Committee be approved as presented.  Motion carried – all Ayes. 25 
 26 
Approval of the April 5, 2016 meeting minutes: 27 
A motion was made by Sauer, seconded by Baker, that the minutes for the April 5, 2016 meeting of the 28 
Utilities (WWTP) Committee be approved as presented.  Motion carried – all Ayes. 29 
 30 
Comments and Correspondence  31 
Duffy noted that no correspondence had been received. He then asked if anyone wished to 32 
address a non-agenda item. No one responded.  33 
 34 
Discussion Items 35 
1.  Administrative Related: 36 
a. Pre-treatment Project Status Report: 37 
Everything is still on schedule for the Pre-Treatment Project. The equipment is being 38 
manufactured and should be delivered by mid-August.  39 
 40 
b. Update on the status of water pressure issues in the Liberty Grove Utility District: 41 
Work is continuing on studying the options which will improve the water pressure issues in the 42 
Liberty Grove Utility District. Anderson noted that the water pressures at his residence have 43 
improved considerably, and asked if something has been done already. Schell replied that 44 
approximately four months ago a variable speed drive was installed on the #3 Well.   45 
 46 
 47 
 48 

298



Minutes for the May 17, 2016 Meeting of the Utilities (WWTP) Committee Meeting 

I:\1. 2016 Agendas\Utilities\2016_05\WWTP\051716 Utilities Minutes - WWTP Unappoved Version.docx 
Created by Janal Suppanz on 5/17/2016; Last Printed:  5/18/2016 4:23 PM 

- 2 - 

 

c. Update on the status of the sewer and water billing for the first quarter of 2016: 1 
Quarterly bills were mailed out in a timely fashion and all but a few customers have paid those 2 
bills. Late notices were also mailed out in a timely fashion. Suppanz and Tasha Rass will be 3 
following up with shut-off notices next week. If someone hasn’t paid their utility bill the past 4 
due amount is eventually turned in to the County Treasurer as a special assessment. 5 
 6 
Jackson noted that at some point the Committee may want to consider adjusting late payment 7 
fees, but further research will have to be done regarding that issue. 8 
 9 
2. Plant Related 10 
a. Capacities Report 11 
A Capacities Report was included in the meeting packets, and Schell explained all the data that 12 
report contains. 13 
 14 
3.  Manager’s Report 15 
Schell reported on the following issues: 16 

 Water has now been installed at the Dog Park. 17 

 Dave Alberts is adapting to his new job quickly and is doing fine. 18 

 Work commenced on installation of a lateral for the Information Booth yesterday. 19 

 He is still working on compiling the CMAR data. Thar report must be submitted by June 20 
30, 2016.  21 

 22 
Jackson noted that it is his understanding that President Lienau recently received a letter from 23 
the Town of Liberty Grove, and requested that Kalms send him a copy of that letter. 24 
 25 
4.  Matters to be placed on a future agenda or referred to a Committee, Official, or Employee: 26 
The next meeting of the Utilities (WWTP) Committee has been scheduled for Tuesday, August 9, 27 
2016 at 7:30 A.M. That meeting will be conducted at the Wastewater Treatment Plant. 28 
 29 
It was the consensus that the following items shall be addressed at a future meeting of the 30 
Utilities (WWTP) Committee: 31 

 Review and approval of the CMAR 32 

 Update on the status of the water pressure issues in Liberty Grove 33 

 Update on the status of quarterly sewer and water bill collections and review of applicable 34 
reports.  35 

 36 
Adjournment: 37 
At 8:00 A.M. a motion was made by Mulliken, seconded by Baker that the May 17, 2016 meeting of the 38 
Utilities (WWTP) Committee be adjourned.  Motion carried – all Ayes. 39 
 40 
Respectfully submitted,  41 

 42 
Janal Suppanz,  43 
Assistant Administrator 44 

299




